
 

 

 

           

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

   

 

MAYOR        CITY CLERK 
             Bryce Ward – Borough Rep                          Kathy Weber, MMC   

            888-4444                488-8583  

 

  COUNCIL MEMBERS        
Kevin McCarthy- Alt Dep Mayor Pro Tem 590-0800 

Avery Thompson    388-5351 

David Skipps     750-5106   

Santa Claus       388-3836 

Thomas McGhee – Mayor Pro Tem  455-0010 

Doug Isaacson  - Deputy Mayor Pro Tem 322-3133 

  

1. Call to Order/Roll Call 

  

2. Pledge of Allegiance to the US Flag 
 

3. Invocation   
  

4. Approval of the Agenda 

 

5. Approval of the Minutes  

 

6. Communications from the Mayor 

 Proclamations 

 Youth Suicide – Out of the Darkness Campaign in the Interior 

 Student of the Month for May:  Kimberly Williams 

 Student of the Month for May:  Makayla Crawford 

 

7.     Council Member Questions of the Mayor 

 

8.     Communications from Department Heads, Borough Representative and the City 

        Clerk  

   

CITY OF NORTH POLE 

Alaska 

 

 

MONDAY, MAY 15, 2017 

Work Session – Comprehensive Strategic Plan Implementation 

5:30 p.m. – 6:30 p.m. 

Committee of the whole 6:30 p.m. 

Regular City Council Meeting – 7:00 p.m. 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

9.     Ongoing Projects Report 

   

10.  Citizens Comments (Limited to Five (5) minutes per Citizen) 

 

11.  Old Business 

a.   Ordinance 17-12, An Ordinance amending Title 15, Building and Construction. 

 

12.  New Business 
a. Approval of Development Agreement between the City of North Pole and Badger 

Properties LLC. 

 

b. Request to dispose of mobile home training facility at North Pole Fire Department. 

 

c. Renewal of the City of North Pole Healthcare Plan for July 1, 2017 – June 30, 2018.  

 

d. Ordinance 17-13, an Ordinance to amend codes associated with the City of North 

Pole’s Storm Water Management Ordinances, Chapter 12.24 – Illicit Discharge 

Detection and Elimination; Chapter 15.66 – Construction Site Storm Water Runoff; 

and Chapter 15.74 – Post-Construction Storm Water Management. 

 

e. Ordinance 17-14, An Ordinance to incur $303,000 debt from a ow-interest Alaska 

Department of Environmental Conservation (ADEC) loan for the purpose of 

constructing an extension to the wastewater treatment plant discharge sewer main in 

response to an ADEC Notice of Violation. 

 

f. Ordinance 17-15, an Ordinance to allow multiple water meters at properties with 

multiple occupancies and to allow a single customer sewer service line at properties 

with multiple occupancies. 

 

g. Ordinance 17-16, an Ordinance of the City of North Pole, Alaska to amend the 2017 

Jag/Byrne grant to purchase an undercover vehicle for use by North Pole Police 

Department. 

 

13.  Executive Session 

a. To discuss personnel issues in the fire department 

 

14.  Council Comments 

 

15.  Adjournment 

 

The City of North Pole will provide an interpreter at City Council meetings for hearing 

impaired individuals.  The City does require at least 48 hours’ notice to arrange for this 

service.  All such requests are subject to the availability of an interpreter.  All City Council 

meetings are recorded on CD.  These CD’s are available for listening or duplication at the City 

Clerk’s Office during regular business hours, Monday through Friday, 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. 

or can be purchased for $10.00 per CD. The City Clerk’s Office is located in City Hall, 125 

Snowman Lane, North Pole, Alaska. 



 

 
 
City of North Pole Comprehensive Strategic Plan  
Implementation Work Session with City Council and Department Heads 
Focus: Assessment of Retail Needs and Opportunities  
Monday, May 15, 2017; 5:30 – 6:30 PM  
City Hall: 125 Snowman Lane, North Pole, AK 
 
Agenda  

I. Review and Discuss FINAL Commercial Re-Zoning Summary  
 
II. Review and Discuss DRAFT Resident Survey Summary   
 
III. Next Steps + Adjourn  

 



Regular City Council Meeting 

May 1, 2017 

7:00 p.m. 

 

 

   1 
Minutes 

May 1, 2017 

 

 

 

 

Committee of the Whole – 6:30 P.M. 

      Regular City Council Meeting – 7:00 P.M. 

 

A regular meeting of the North Pole City Council was held on Monday, May 1, 2017 in the Council 

Chambers of City Hall, 125 Snowman Lane, North Pole, Alaska. 

 

CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 

Mayor Ward called the regular City Council meeting of Monday, May 1, 2017 to order at  

7:00 p.m. 

                 

There were present:     Absent/Excused 

Mr. McCarthy – Alt Dep Mayor Pro Tem  Excused        

Mr. Isaacson - Deputy Mayor Pro Tem   

Mr. Thompson         

Mr. McGhee - Mayor Pro Tem              

Mr. Claus        

Mr. Skipps            

Mayor Ward –     

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE U.S. FLAG 

Led by Mayor Ward 

 

INVOCATION  
Invocation was given by Mr. McGhee 

 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA  

 

Mr. McGhee moved to approve the agenda of May 1, 2017 

 

Seconded by Mr. Isaacson 

 

DISCUSSION 

None 

 

Mr. McGhee moved to consent the following items under Old Business 

  

a.  Ordinance 17-11, An Ordinance of the City of North Pole, Alaska to amend 2017 budget to 

transfer funding to the Litigation Fund 

 

 

New Business 

 



Regular City Council Meeting 

May 1, 2017 

7:00 p.m. 

 

 

   2 
Minutes 

May 1, 2017 

 

 

 

a.   Request to sign contract/location release with Discovery Communications, Inc and M2 

Pictures. 

  

b.  Ordinance 17-12, An Ordinance amending Title 15, Building and Construction. 

 

Seconded by Mr. Isaacson  

 

Discussion 

None 

 

On the amendment 

 

PASSED 

Yes:  6 – McGhee, Isaacson, Skipps, Claus, Thompson, Ward 

No:  0 

Absent:  1 - McCarthy  

 

On the Agenda as amended 

 

Discussion 

None  

 

PASSED 

Yes:  6 – McGhee, Isaacson, Skipps, Claus, Thompson, Ward 

No:  0 

Absent:  1 - McCarthy  

 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

Mr.  McGhee moved to approve the Minutes of April 17, 2017  

 

Seconded by Mr. Isaacson 

 

Discussion 

None  

 

PASSED 

Yes:  6 – McGhee, Isaacson, Skipps, Claus, Thompson, Ward 

No:  0 

Absent:  1 - McCarthy  



Regular City Council Meeting 

May 1, 2017 

7:00 p.m. 

 

 

   3 
Minutes 

May 1, 2017 

 

 

 

 

COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE MAYOR 

 City Clerk, Kathy Weber, swore in Brian Meyer as a North Pole Police Officer. 

 The Violations Committee will be meeting before the first meeting of every month in the 

Council Chambers starting at 5:30pm.  The public is welcome to attend; we are hoping to 

have things wrapped up by August.      

 4th of July meetings are scheduled for the following dates until the event:, May 8th, May 

22nd, June 12th, June 26th. All meetings will be at City Hall at 6pm and go till 7pm. The 

public is welcome to attend. We are considering North Pole High School as a possible 

festival location.   NOTE: the May 8th meeting will be held at the North Pole High School 

Parking lot.  

 April 28th was the 49th Military Appreciation Banquet put on by the Greater Fairbanks 

Chamber of Commerce, Thank you to Councilman Doug Isaacson and Thomas McGhee 

for sponsoring a ticket.   

 Today was the first annual memorial service at the Trooper park.  Chief Dutra did a great 

job and it was very well attended.  Thank you to all of the folks who have helped make 

this possible.   

 May 4th is the National Day of Prayer at 6:00 a.m the Mayor will be reading the 

proclamation at the prayer breakfast at the Church of God in Christ (COGIC) on Mission 

Road.  All are welcome.    

 May 4th is the FNSB Senior Citizen Recognition Day at the Carlson Center at 10:30am. 

The Mayor will be there to read proclamations with the other mayors.  

 Next week is the Arctic Council meeting in Fairbanks, for more information please visit 

https://www.arctic-council.org     or http://akarctichost.org/program/arctic-council-

ministerial-meetings  

 

 

COUNCIL MEMBER QUESTIONS OF THE MAYOR  

None 

 

 

 

 

 

https://www.arctic-council.org/
http://akarctichost.org/program/arctic-council-ministerial-meetings
http://akarctichost.org/program/arctic-council-ministerial-meetings


Regular City Council Meeting 

May 1, 2017 

7:00 p.m. 

 

 

   4 
Minutes 

May 1, 2017 

 

 

COMMUNICATIONS FROM DEPARTMENT HEADS, BOROUGH 

REPRESENTATIVE AND THE CITY CLERK 

 

Fire Dept., Chief Coon 

 The Fire Department was honored to participate in the ceremony today at the memorial 

park. Chief Coon thanked the Mayor, Council, and Chief Dutra for all that was done and 

allowing us to participate. 

 Deputy Chief Heineken attended the UAF paramedic graduation. Attending the 

Graduation shows the students that the North Pole Fire Department values their 

achievements and gives us a chance to shake hands with graduates and tell them what a 

great place NPFD is to be a member of. 

 Chief Coon Participated in a State Chiefs teleconference where an update on legislative 

issues that pertain to the Alaska Fire Service. The GEMT ground emergency medical 

transport bill moved through the state house and has stalled out in the senate. The State 

chiefs will be working with state senators to help move this bill along. 

 This Wednesday Chief Coon will attend the Interior Fire Chiefs Association meeting 

where he will have to act up in the absence of the President and VP. Chief Coon was 

voted in as secretary of the association in January. 

 Our Driver Operator course is progressing and will be testing for state certification later 

in the month. This training occurs in-house and at almost no cost to the city. 

 The FD open house will be on May 20th. 

 The FD still has clean up bags to give out to anyone still cleaning up. 

 The Crews will be completing pre-fire inspections of commercial buildings all summer. 

This is a great value to the department to be familiar with our structures before an 

incident occurs. It also allows the department to educate the property owner of any safety 

concerns. 

 

Police Dept., Chief Dutra 

 Drug Take Back for this year was a smashing success.  We brought in 144.5 lbs of drugs.  

We worked with the Fairbanks Wellness Coalition and the TV and Radio PSA’s and 

brought in the most people ever.  All sites showed remarkable increases in drug 

collection. 

 

 I attended the Chamber Luncheon with Mayor Ward and did a presentation on Memorial 

Park and the fund raiser for the corvette. 

 

 Met with DEA/AST on drug unit activity.   

 



Regular City Council Meeting 

May 1, 2017 

7:00 p.m. 

 

 

   5 
Minutes 

May 1, 2017 

 

 

 Memorial Park ceremony was fantastic.  Well attended and was well received.  A lot of 

folks came out and a lot of people to thank for the success of the park.  Thank you to 

everyone who helped. 

 

 

Finance, Tricia Fogarty 

 None  

 

 

Director of City Services, Bill Butler 

Building Department 

 Amendments to update building code amendments before Council this evening. 

 5 residential permits issued for homes in the Stillmeyer Subdivision. 

 Developer purchased one of the large foreclosed undeveloped lots in the Stillmeyer 

Subdivision with plans to subdivide and build out the property. 

 Contacts increasing for possible projects: Santa Claus House expansion; Tri-plex, Ouida 

Way; Eight-plex, CrossWay. 

Public Works 

 Recruitment for summer hires is now open. Open to individuals 18 years and older; 

hiring ASAP. 

 Constructing a shelter for over dog park entrance. 

 Packed snow obstructs access to park in winter (cannot open gates). 

 Dog park gets consistent use year round. Only park in City with year-round use. 

 Constructing the remainder of the park and facility identification signs. 

 Street sweeping: Hired contractor and expect sweeping to begin this week. 

Utility Department 

 Sulfolane lawsuit settlement agreement. 

 Application for Certificate of Public Convenience and Necessity (CPCN) submitted 

to the Regulatory Commission of Alaska on April 7 for water system extension 

service area and the remainder of the City not in the City’s current CPCN. 

 On April 15, RCA published a public notice of the City’s CPCN application. 

 On April 27, RCA notified City its CPCN application has been assigned a docket 

with a decision no later than October 4, 2017. 

 ADEC issued the Utility a Notice of Violation related to its Industrial Pretreatment 

Program. 



Regular City Council Meeting 

May 1, 2017 

7:00 p.m. 

 

 

   6 
Minutes 

May 1, 2017 

 

 

 Utility intends to respond forcefully that the NOV is not justified based upon our 

position that ADEC approved the Utility’s IPP Program application and the NOV 

sites faults with the ADEC approved application. 

 ADEC approved the Utility using grant funds to pay 70% of the costs associated with 

installing cellular modems at all its lift stations and to replace a server that supports the 

Utility data collection network; an estimated $20,000 savings 

 ADEC has approved a partial loan for $303,000 as part of the approved $2 million 

ACWF loan for the sewer outfall project. 

 ADEC had to break the loan into parts because the full loan was to cover construction 

and the project is not yet ready to go to construction. 

 The partial loan includes eligibility for up to $60,600 of loan subsidy (20%). 

 A recommendation to accept the loan will be submitted for consideration at the May 

15 City Council meeting. 

Natural Gas Utility Board 

 The firm IGU was negotiating with for a gas supply contract withdrew from the 

discussions after it signed a deal with another utility. 

 Deadline for the finalization of an agreement with AIDEA to transfer Fairbanks Natural 

Gas to IGU was extended to May 1. 

 

Borough Representative 

 Ordinance 2017-30 is a ordinance authorizing the exchange of borough land around NP 

Elementary with the Santa Claus House for land adjacent to 5th Avenue park.   

 Ordinance 2017-20-2F amends the budget to accept additional grant funding for the 

Growth Management Plan related to F-35 buildout.   

 COC: Ordinance 2017-40 would repeal the Vision Fairbanks downtown plan as an element 

of the FNSB Regional Compressive Plan. 

 

City Clerk’s Office, Kathy Weber 

 Again, the recording of the council meetings is not working.  I worked with AlasConnect 

last week and got the problem fixed. However, tonight again, the recording has quit 

working.  I still have $6,000 in my archival grant and need most of that for training with a 

new hire but will look at getting this fixed once and for all by the next meeting.  This has 

been very frustrating for me. 

 Things have been very busy for me the last 2 weeks.  With the loss of the records 

management clerk and a death in the family I have had to take on the duties of the Records 

Manager.  I hope to have someone hire before the end of May. 



Regular City Council Meeting 

May 1, 2017 

7:00 p.m. 

 

 

   7 
Minutes 

May 1, 2017 

 

 

 Records Management/Archivist position has gone out to the public.  It is being advertised 

on our website and also at fairbankshelpwanted.com.  The closing date is May 15th.  I would 

ask the council to reconsider the position of Records Manager/Archivist to be changed to 

Deputy Clerk.  It is very important for that position to work cohesively with the City Clerk 

and to be able to perform many of the same functions.  The Clerks office hold all records 

and obtains information from organizations and other governmental agencies to help 

inform the public.   

 The City Clerk/Human Resource Manager position has also been advertised and will close 

on May 15th.  I hope to have some applications for you and we will need to set up a time 

for interviews.  Please let me know what night and time you will be available. 

 The newsletter for May is ready for distribution.  Let me know if you have anything of 

interest that you would like to include in the newsletter. 

 Attended the Senior Luncheon last Wednesday.  John Poirier was their guest speaker and 

April was Grange Month.  There is a proclamation in the packet on the history of the 

Grange.  They will be having many different things going on at the Grange throughout the 

summer.  Each of you have a Grange membership form.  If you have any question please 

give Mr. Poirier a call at 488-7247. 

 

ONGOING PROJECTS 

 None 

 

 

CITIZENS COMMENTS – (Limited to Five (5) minutes per Citizen) 

 None 

 

OLD BUSINESS 

Consented Agenda 

 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

Consented Agenda 

 

 

COUNCIL COMMENTS 

 

Mr. Isaacson –  echoed comments on behalf of Chief Dutra on the Memorial Park and Officer 

McBrooms invocation.  Thanked Mayor for his organization of this event.  His son will be here 

for a week working on his rental.  All of his children who graduated from North Pole are now 

somewhere else. Arctic connectivity is going to be a big thing at the meeting on May 8th and 9th. 



Regular City Council Meeting 

May 1, 2017 

7:00 p.m. 

 

 

   8 
Minutes 

May 1, 2017 

 

 

 

Mr. Skipps – thanked mayor and Dept. Heads for the birthday cards. 

 

Mr. Claus – reminded everyone that this is law enforcement month.  His sister and her husband 

will be here at the next meeting.  He wished everyone safe travels. 

 

Mr. Thompson – no comment 

 

Mr. McGhee – congratulated the Police Chief on the Memorial Park and all that attended.  He 

would like to see it on a non-work day in the future.  He was grateful for his ability to get a table 

at the Military Appreciation Dinner.  There were many there that were honored and there aren’t 

many communities that support this sort of thing.  He said he was going to miss Kathy and it will 

be a difficult job to fill.  He complimented the fire department on their job.  Mr. McGhee asked 

everyone to be careful out there on the roads.  Today he saw large amounts of furniture fall off a 

truck and someone else going towards EAFB who lost groceries and  didn’t know it.  Be diligent 

with your loads. 

 

Mayor Ward – July 4th committee meeting on May 8th.  Looking at a softball game between the 

fire department and police department. 

 

Mr. McGhee moved to adjourn the meeting at 7:43 p.m. 

 

Seconded by Mr. Isaacson 

 

The regular meeting of Monday, May 1, 2017 adjourned at 7:43 p.m.  

 

These minutes passed and approved by a duly constituted quorum of the North Pole City Council 

on Monday, May 15, 2017.  

   

       ____________________________________ 

        Bryce J. Ward, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

  

___________________________________ 

Kathryn M. Weber, MMC 

North Pole City Clerk      



--CONTACT I N FORMATION--

Full Name: Jason Whetsell
Email: akcopspresident@gmail.com
Phone Number: (9071 3L7 -5264

Questio n/Com me nt/Suggestion :

MynameisJasonWhetsellandlamaretiredAnchoragepoliceofficer. lamthenewlyappointedpresidentoftheAlaska
chapter of C.O.P.S. (Concerns Of Police Survivors). We are a non profit that is there to help the survivors of officer line of
d uty deaths . On 5/a/77, I flew to Fairba nks to attend a presentation at the North Pole M idd le School, where the students
raised nearly 520,000 which they then gave to 13 different charities, one of which was C.O.P.S. That alone was amazing

seeing the generosity of the kids.

I am wanting to send you this email to make you aware of your Police Department and how they went above and beyond to
help me when larrived. Lieutenant Rathbun was in contact with me weeks priorto the event. He had a ride waiting for me

at the airport who then made sure I got back in time (quick turn around). Sergeant Bellant picked me up, escorted me

around and took me to lunch.

I met with Chief Dutra who told me about the Memorial park named after Troopers Gabe Rich and Scott Johnson. I went to
the park and saw what Chief Dutra worked on along with the many volunteers he spoke of.

It's employees like that who represent your City in a very good way. I was impressed with your Police Department and their
leadership. lenjoyedmyvisitandl'meagertoreturn. lfthere'sanythinglcandoforyouoryourcity,pleasedon'thesitate
to ask. Would you also please thank Chief Dutra, Lt Rathbun and Sgt Bellant for taking the time to help me out?

Thank you,

Jason Whetsell
(9O7) 3L7-s264

The results of this submission may be viewed at:
http://www.northpolea laska.com/n ode /7 / submission/1751

2



--lrorl*l*åu *odùofoìo*kERS

# R I DE S T RONG

h p
a

I

competitions:
scoot//zPM
bmx //3
skate//+:lo

sponsored by

AS

o

CONCERT STARTS @ 7:00PM

S

ate
ontest.

CLEAN HIP HOP SHOW FEATURING
LLt l()t.tts 3t:,t1()P sL l(L T ( )t.l Y I ir Y L ( ,R

FRÅill..'r DFI t;\F tC)h. i r.l t, I F IFR()i"\ì Àt.ti) T-rF T'^tlt,

f r ee f ocd f ''orÌl
trat.L l

+

@

t,

rRIll\r



Alosko Dívisíon Public Heolth

Public Hes
Child frnrnun

When: Thursdoy, Moy 18,Z}ff
3:00 to 6:00 p.m.

VVh ere: North Pole Fire Deportment
110 Lewís 5t

lt PARENTS â,\UST BE PRESENTI

. Pte¡se BRrNe youR cHrLD's sHor REcoRD.

O ALL CHILDHOOD IÂ¡I¡UUNIZATIoNS TyILL BE

AVAILABLE INCLUDTNo VACCINES TO PRO.
TECT AOAINST CHTCKENPOX, AND WHOOP-
INO COUêH.

o Wxoopr¡¡c CoucH v^ccrNE FoR ADULTS
WTLL ALSO BE AVAILABLE

o Fees wru- BE AssEssED FoR sERVrcEs.
No o¡Ie wILL BE REFUSED sERvIcE DUE To
INABILITY TO PAY.

o No TB TEsTs wILL BE oFFERED A1 THIs
CLINTC.

o

'-lÊ\.Al n\l¡ l)lVlSll)N (rr

Public Health



oo
ßirth

2017 Recommended lmmunizations for Children from Birth Through 6 Years OId
GÐ

HepB HepB HepB

DTaP DTaP

H¡b

PCV

tPv tPv

lnfluenza ( arly)'

MMR MMR

VaricellaVaricella
Shaded boxes indicate the
vaccine can be g¡ven dur¡ng
shown age range

RV

DTaP

Hib

PCV

RV

DTaP

H¡b

PCV

tPv

RV

DTaP

H¡b

PCV

tPv

For more information, call toll free

1 -800-cDc-l¡{Fo (1 -800-2324636)

or visit
www.cd<.govlva<<ines/parents

U.S. Department of
Health arid Human Services
Centers for Disease
Control and Prevention

AMERICAN ACADEIvIY OF
FAMILY PHYSICIANS

American Academy
of Pediatricsr

2
months

4
months

(t
months

t2
mon[hs

I
month

t5
months

II
months

o

llr-23
months

O-r
2-3
vøors

4-6
veors

ls your family
growing? To prorecr
your rìr\¡J baby arrtl

yorrrself agarnst rvhooprng

cough, get a Tda¡r vaccrne

Jhe reconrnlt'nded trnre rs

the 27' throtrgh 36' v¡eek

of ¡rregnarrcy Talk to your

dortor for nrore detarls

\

5

NOTE:

lfyourchild misses a shot,
you don't need to start over,just go
back to your child's

doctor for the next shot.

Talk with your child3 doctor
ifyou have questions

about vaccines.

FOOTNOTES:
* Two doses given at least four week apart are recommended for children aged 6 months through 8 years of age who are getting an

influenza (flu) vaccine for the fiß1 time and for some other children ¡n th¡s age group.

E Two doses of HepA vaccine are needed for lasting protectíon. The first dose of HepA vaccine should be given between 1 2 months and
23 months of age. The second dose should be given 6 to ì8 months later. HepA vaccinat¡on may be given to any child l2 months and
older to protect against HepA. Children and adolescents who did not receive the HepA vaccine and are at high+islç should be
vaccinated against HepA.

If your child hos any medical conditions that put h¡m at ilsk for infection ot is ttøveling outside the Un¡ted States, tolk to yout
child's doctor obout additionol voccines thøt he may need.

sêe êAck Hçe
foklrol<E
lr#oR.tiAfloî{ oî(
vA(( l¡(ê -

lRÊvê/(rAbLe
ÞßeA,es AttÞ fl/ê
VACaI¡(eS tHAf

'lkÌveil|-f?ên,

STRONG MEDICINE FOR AMERICA DEDICATED TO THE HEALIH OF ALL CHILDREN'



Tetanus

Rubella

Rotavirus

Pneumococcal

Polio

Pertussis

Mumps

Measles

lnfluenza (Flu)

Hepatitis B

Hepatitis A

Hib

Diphtheria

(hickenpox

Disease

DIaP* vaccine protects against tetanus.

MMR** vaccine protects against rubella.

RV vaccine protects against rotavirus.

P(V vaccine protects against pneumo(occus.

IPV vaccine protects against poli0.

DTaP* vaccine protects against pertlss¡s

(whoopinq cough).

tlilR*\accine protects against mumps.

MMR** vaccine protects against measles.

flu vaccine protects against influenza.

HepB vaccine protects aga¡nst hepatit¡s B.

HepÄ vaccine protects against hepatitis A.

Hib vaccine protects against Haemophilus

influenzaelypeb.

DIaP* vaccine proteds aga¡nst diphtheria.

Vadcella vaccine protects against chickenpox.

Vaccine

Exposure through cuts in skin

Air, direct contact

Through the mouth

Air, direct contact

Air, direct contact, through

the mouth

Air, direct contact

Air, direct contact

Air, direct contact

Ail, direct contact

contact with blood or

body fluids

Direct contact, contaminated

food or watel

Air, direct contact

Air, direct contact

Air, direct contact

Disease spread by

Stiffuess in neck and abdominal muscles,

difficulty swallowing, musde spasms, fever

Children infected with rubella virus sometimes

have a rash, fever, swollen lymph nodes

Diarrhea, feveç vomiting

May be no symptoms, pneumonia (infection

in the lungs)

May be no symptoms, sorethroat, fever,

nausea, headache

Severe cough, runny nose, apnea (a pause in

breathing in infants)

Swollen salivary glands (underthe jaw), fever,

headache, tiredness, muscle pain

Rash, fever, cough, runny nose, pinkeye

Fever, muscle pain, sore throat, cough,

extreme fatigue

May be no symptoms, feveL headache,

weakness, vomiting, jaundice (yellowing of

skin and eyes), joint pain

May be no symptoms, fever, stomach pain,

loss of appetite, fatigue, vomiting, jaundice

(yellowing ofskin and eyes), datk urine

May be no symptoms unless bacteria

enter the blood

Sore throat, mild fever, weakness, swollen

qlands in neck

Rash, tiredness, headache, fever

Disease symptoms

Broken bones, breathing difficulty, death

Very serious in pregnant w0men-can lead to miscar-

riagg stillbirth, premature delivery birth defects

Severe diarrhea, dehydration

Bacteremia (blood infection), men¡ngitis (infecti0n 0f

the covering around the brain and spinal cord) , death

Paralysis, death

Pneumonia (infection ln the lungs), death

Meningitis (infection ofthe covering around ttn brain

and spinal cord), encephalitis (brain swelling), inflam-

mation oftesticles or ovaries, deafness

Encephalitis (brain swelling), pneumonia (infect¡on in

the lunqs), death

Pneumonia (infedion in the lungs)

(hronic liver infection, liver failure, liver cancer

Liver failure, arthralgia (joint pain), kidne¡ pancreatic,

and blood disorders

Meningitis (infection ofthe covering around the brain

and spinal cord), intellectual disability, epiglotlitis
(life-threatening infecti0n that can block the windpipe

and lead to serious breathing problems), pneumonia

(infection in the lungs), death

Swelling of the heart muscle, heart failure, coma,

paralysis, death

lnfected blisters, bleeding disorders, encephalitis (brain

swelling), pneumonia (infection in the lungs)

Disease compl¡cations

Vaccine-Preventable Diseases and the Vaccines that Prevent Them

* 
DTaP combines protection against diphtheria, tetanus, and pertussis.

** MMR combines protection against measles, mumps, and rubella. Lastupdated December 2016 ' C5272886-E



Talk to ur child's doctor or nurse about the vaccines recommended for their

7-8 Years

9-1 O Years

11-12Years

1 3-l 5 Years

1 6-1 8 Years

More Pretæns and teens
¡nformation: should get a flu

vaccrne every year,

These shaded boxes indicate when the vaccìne is

recommended for all children unless your doctor tells
you that your child cannot safely receive the vaccine.

These shaded boxes indicate the vaccine is

recommended for children with certa¡n health or
lifestyle condit¡ons that put them at an increased r¡sk for
serious diseases. See vaccine-specific recommendations
at www.cdc.gov/vaccines/pubs/ACIP-list.htm.

Teens, I 6-1 8
years old, may be
vaccinated with a
MenB vacc¡ne.

These shaded boxes indicate the vaccine should be
given if a child is catching-up on mìssed vaccines.

This shaded box indicates the vaccine is recommended
for children not at increased risk but who wish to get
the vaccine after speaking to a provider.

Chickenpox
Varicella

U.S. Department of
Health and Human Services
Centers for Disease
Control and Prevention

AMERICAN ACAÞEMY OF
FAMILY PHYSICIANS

Pretæns and teens
should get one
shot ofldap at age
1 'l or 12 years.

All 11-l2yearolds
should geta 2-shot
series of HPV

vaccine at least
6 months apart.
A 3-shot series ¡s

needed for those
with weakened
immune systems
and those age 1 5

or older

All l'l-12 year
olds should get
a single shot of
a quadrivalent
meningococcal
conjugate vaccine
(MenACWY). A
booster shot is

recommended at
¿9e 1 6.

ffi
r

Flu
lnfluenza

Tdap
Tetanus,

diphtheria,
pertussis

HPV
Human

pap¡llomavirus MenACWY

I I

MenB

Meningococcal

Pneumococcal Hepatitis B Hepatitis A

I

Inactivated
Polio

MMR
Measles,
mumps/
rubella

I

I

i

I

i'
I

I

I

l
a

l

I
L':,.:¡""i$:::: f STßONG IEDICINÊ FOR AMÊRICA



Vaccine-Preventable Diseases and the Vaccines that Prevent Them

Diphtheria (bn be prevented by Tdôp !at(inât¡on)

Diphtheria ¡s a very contagious bacterial disease that affects the
respiratory system, including the lungs. Diphtheria bacteria can be
passed from person to person by direct contact with droplets ftom
an infected personS cough or sneeze. When people are infected,
the bacteria can produce a toxin (poison) in the body that can
cause a thick coating in the back of the nose or throat that makes
it hard to breathe or swallow. Effects from this toxin can also lead
to swelling of the heart muscle and, in some cases, heart failure.
ln serious cases, the illness can cause coma, paralysis, and even
death.

Hepatitis A ((¿n be prevented by HepA va(indtion)

Hepatitis A is an infection in the liver caused by hepatitis A virus.The
virus is spread primarily person-to-person through the fecai-oral
route. ln other words, the virus is taken in by mouth from contact
w¡th objects, food, or drinks contaminated by the feces (stool) of an
infected person. Symptoms can includefever,t¡rednest poor appe-
tite, vomiting, fomach pain, and sometimes jaundice (when skin
and mptoms,
may llness for
seve from the
infection. ln the U5., about 1 00 people a year die from hepatitis A.

Hepatitis B ((an be prÊvented by liepB v¿ccination)

Hepatitis B causes a flulike illness with loss of appetite, nausea,
vomiting, rashes, joint pa¡n, and jaundice. Symptomsof acute tÞpa-
t¡tis B include fever, fatigue, loss of appetite, nausea, vomiting, pain
in joints änd stomach, dark urine, grey-colored stools, and jaundice
(when skin and eyes turn yellow).

Human Papillomavirus ((an be prevented by tlPV va(rinati0n)

Human papillomavirus is a common virus. HPV is most common
in peopie in their teens and early 20s. lt is the major caule of
cervical cancer in women and genítal warts in women and men.
The strains of HPV that cause cervical cancer and genital warts
are spread during sex.

lnfluenza ((àn be prevented by ðniltdl ilu .ia(cination)

or even death, even among previously healthy children.

Measles (tân be prevented by ¡4ltR \/ac(inat¡on)

Measles is one of the most contagious viral diseases. Measles
virus is spread by direct contact with the airborne respiratory
droplets of an infected person. Measles is so contagious that just

being in the same room after a person who has measles has already
left can result in infection. Symptoms usually include a nsh, fever,
cough, and red, watery eyes. Fever can persist, rash can last for up
to a week, and coughing can last about 10 days. Measles can also
cause pneumonia, seizures, brain damage, or death.

Meningococca¡ D¡sease (tàn be prevented by meningococc¿l vactination)

Meningococcal disease is caused by bacteria and is a leading
cause of bacterial meningitis (infection around the brain and
spinal cord) in children. The bacteria are spread through the
exchange of nose and throat droplets, such as when coughing,
sneezing or kissing. Symptoms include sudden onset of
fever, headache, and stiff neck. Meningococcal bacteria also
cause blood infections. About one of every ten people who
get the disease dies from it. Survivors of meningococcal
disease may lose their arms or legs, become deal have problems
with their nervous systems, become developmentally disabled,
or suffer seizures or strokes-

Mumps ((an be preventrd by MtlR vd(ination)

Mumps is an infectious disease caused by the mumps virus,
which is spread in the air by a cough or sneeze from an infected
person. A child can also get infected with mumps by coming
in contact with a contaminated object, like a toy. The mumps
virus causes swollen salivary glands under the ears or jaw fever,
muscle aches, tiredness, abdominal pain, and loss of appetite.
Severe complications for children who get mumps are uncom-
mon, but can include meningit¡s (infection of the covering of the
brain and spinal cord), encephalitis (inflammation of the brain),
permanent hearing loss, or swelling of the testes, which rarely
results in decreased fertility.

Pertussis (Who0pìns (0ush) ((an be pr.venteC bv Tdðp vat(inat¡0n)

Pertuss¡s is caused by bacteria spread through d¡rect contact
with resp¡ratory droplets when an infected person coughs or
sneezes. ln the beginning, symptoms of pertussis are similar to
the common cold, including runny nose, sneezing, and cough.
After 1-2 weeks, pertussis can cause spells of violent coughing
and choking, making it hard to breathe, drink, or eat. This cough
can last for weeks. Pertussis is most serious for babies, who can
get pneumonia, have seizures, become brain damaged/ or even
die. About half of children under I year of age who get pertussis
must be hospitalized.

Pneumococcal D¡sease ({ârì be prer/ented by pneum0(0(cal va((inatior)

Pneumonia is an infection of the lungs that can be caused by the
bacteria called pneumococcus. This bacteria can cause other
types of infections too, such as ear infections, sinus infections,
meningitis (infection of the covering around the brain and spinal
cord), and bacteremia (bloodstream infection). Sinus and ear
infections are usually mild and are much more common than the

more serious forms of pneumococcal disease. However, in some
cases pneumococcal disease can be fatal or result ¡n long-term
problems, líke brain damage and hearing loss. Pneumococcal
disease spreads when people cough or sneeze. Many people
have the bacteria in their nose or throat at one time or another
without being ill-this is known as being a carrier.

Polio (can ¡e prevented by lPv va((¡nation)

Polio is caused by a virus that lives in an infected person's throat
and intestines. lt spreads through contact with the stool of an
infected person and through droplets from a sneeze or cough.
Symptoms typically include sore throat, fever, tirednest nausea,
headache, or stomach pain. ln about 1%o of cases, polio can
cause paralysis. Among those who are paralyzed, About 2 to 10
children out of 1 O0 die because the virus affects the muscles that
help them breathe-

Rubella (Crrman 14"ales) (Can be preventÊd by I'il'1R vaccìnation)

Rubella is caused by a virus that is spread through coughing and
sneez¡ng. ln children rubella usually causes a mild illness with
fever, swollen glands, and a rash that lasts about 3 days. Rubella
rarely causes serious illness or complications in children, but can
be very ser¡ous to a baby in the womb. lf a pregnant woman is

infected, the result to the baby can be devastating, including
miscarriage, serious heart defects, mental retardation and loss of
hearing and eye sight.

Tetanus (l-cckjaw) (t¿n be prev0nted bv Ìdap vanination)

Tetanus is caused by bacteria found in soil, dust, and manure.
The bacteria enters the body through a puncture, cut, or sore
on the skin. When people are infected, the bacter¡a produce a

months. One to two out of 1 O people people who get tetanus die
frorn the disease.

kenpox
people.
an also

spread from the blisters
by breathing in these vi
enpox include an itchy
and fever. Chickenpox
skin infectìons, pneumonia, encephalitis (brain swelling), or even
death.

lf yoLr have drìy (lue\trons atrorrt volr ( lrrrtl s v¿ccirres, talk to yoLrt healthc¿re provider
Last updated on 0l /1 0/2017 . C5273685-A



lf you are
this age, talk to your healthcare professional about these vaccines

Flu
lnfluenza

Td/Tdap
Tetanus,

diphtheria,
pertussis

Zostet
Shingles

PCVI 3 PPSV23

Pneumococcal

MenACWY
or MPSV4

MenB

Meningococcal MMR
Measles,

mumps,
rubella for women for men

HPV
Human papillomavirus

Chickenpox
Varicella

Hepatitis A Hepat¡tis B H¡b
Haønophilus

influenzae
typeb

'19 - 2l years

22-26years

27 - 59 years

60 - ó4 years

65+ year

More
lnformation:

You should get I dose ofPCVI3
and åt least 1 dose of PPSV23
depending on your age and
health condition.

You should
get flu vaccine
everyyear.

You should
get a Td
booster every
10 yea6.You
also need
I dose of
Tdap.Women
should get a
Tdap vacc¡ne
during every
Pregnancy 10
help protxt
the baby.

You should
get shingles
vacctne even
ifyou have
had shingles
before.

Yil should gct th¡s vaccine ifyou did not get ¡twhen you were ¡ chlld.

You should get HPV vaccine if
you are a woman through age
26 years or a man rhrough age
2'l years and d¡d not ålready
complete the series-

t
a

Recommended ForYou: This vacc¡ne ¡s

recommended for you unless your healthcare
professionâl tells you th¿t you do not need it or
should not get it.

May Be Recommended ForYou: This vaccine
is recommended for you ifyou have certain risk
factors due to your health condit¡on or other.Talk
to your healthcare professional to see ifyou need
this vaccine.

lf you are trayel¡ng or¡tside the United States, you
may need additional Yacc¡nes.
Ask your heahhcare professional about wh¡ch vaccines
you may need at least 6 week before you travel.

For morc infonnation, call I€OO<DC-|I{FO
(1 €(XÞ21246361 or viit www.cdc.govfvaccines

U,S. Department of
Health and Human Services
Centers for Disease
Control and Prevention

cs272ffi4



lf you have
this health
condition, talkto healthcare professional atout these vaccines

Pregnancy

Weakened

lmmune S¡rstem

HIV: CD4count
le6sthân2O0

HIV: CD4count
200 or

Kidney disease
or poor kidney

function

Æplenia (if you
do not have a

spleen or if it does
not work well)

Heart disease

Chrcnic lung disease

Chonic alcoholism

Diabetes
(Type I orType 2)

Chronic Liver

Disease

More
lnformation:

You should
getflu vaccine
ewry year.

You should
9et shingles
vacc¡ne if
you afe age
60 years or
older, even
ifyou have
had shingles
before.

You should get
aTd booster
every I 0 )€aÉ
You also need
I doF of
Tdap vacc¡ne.
Women
should get
Tdap vaccine
during every
plegnancy.

You should getthis ve¡ne if you d¡d not gct ¡t when you were a ch¡ld.

You should get HPVEcc¡ne if
you are a woman through age
26 yeaß or a man thþugh age
2l years and d¡d not already
complete the sefies.

You shqrld get
H¡b vacc¡ne
¡fyou do not
have a spleen,
have sickle
cell disease,
or received a
bone maÍow
transplant.

Re<ommended ForYou: This vaccine
is recommended for you ønløsyour
healthcare professional tells you that you
do not need it or should not get ¡t.

You should get I doseof PCV13

and at least 1 dose ofPP5V23
depending on yourage and
health condition.

May 8e Recommended ForYou: This

vacc¡rìe is recommended for you if you
have certain other riskfactors due to your
age, health cond¡tion or other. Talkto your
healthcre professional to sæ ifyou need
this vaccine.

For mole informatiroç call 1 €OG(DC-lllFO
(1 €(XÞ2324636) or viit ww.cdc.goulvaailres

U,S. Department of
Health and Human Services
Centers for Disease
Control and Preræntion

I

Flu
Influenza

Td/fdap
Tetanut

diphtheria,
pertuss¡s

sllOUTD
rþ168t
YtßtlrG

Shingles
Zoster

PCVI 3 PPSV23

Pneumococcal

MenACWY
or MPSV4

MenB

Meningococcal MMR
Measles,
mumps,
rubella

sHoulD
ilor6E1
Y ßCüE

for women

Human papillomovirus
HPV

{or men

sllqn¡,
ftolGCl
YâßCII|E

Chickenpo<
Varicello

Hepatitis A Hepat¡tis B H¡b
Haønophilus

influenzae

type b

t t YOU SHOULD NOT GETTHIS VACCINE

c5212886-G



Friday, June 9th from 2-5PM 

Saturday, June 10th 9AM—4PM 



Office of the Mayor
City o/ /Vo rth Pole

lprodumutÍon
WHEREAE Makayla Cravufbrd is a senior at
Notth PoIe High School and is the daughter of
SaIIy Guzman & I{enry Crayrford of Nott}t PoIe;
and

WHEREA$ Makayla is vety afüstic and was
chosen Student of the Month for uisual Arts in
2015; and

WHEREAE Makayla finds the fime to volunteer on
base at the Kid Center and has manned a bootlt at
the Tanana VaIIey State fair for UAF the past 3
years; and

WHERME Makayla is a focused and percistent
indiuidual who always strives to do lter best in aII
the acfiuities she has participated in with the hory
that she might be able to gtve back to the
communifir and heþ make it a better place; and

WHEREAS the City of Notth Pole desires to
recognize the ouistanding students in the
commanity,

NOVV, THEREFORfl I tuyce /. Ward, Mayor of the
City of Notth PoIe, do hereby proclaim Makayla
Cravufbrd the:

North PoIe City Council
High SchooI Student of the Month

for the Month of May 2O17.

Bryce/. Mayor

ATTEST OF

Weber, MIUIC
SE AL

Nor'th PoIe City Clerk

*

A l-

t



Office of the Mayor
Ctty o/ /Vo rth Pole

mrodumutr0n
7

WHEREAS, Alasha and the Cíty of North Pole ualue the health and
safety of all our citizens; and

WHEREAS, youth suicide ís particularly damaging to one of our rnost
ualua,ble resources, our children, and one of the three leading causes of death
for youth, ages 10-24 -- accidents, hornicides and suícides; and

WHEREAS, it i.s the goal of the AIasI¿a Youth Suicide Preuention
Campøign and the City of North Pole to inuolue families, schools, businesses,
churches, law enforcement agencies and seruice organizations in all aspects of
this campaign and estøblísh an atmosphere that supports awo,reness,
education and on-goíng initiatiues to preuent youth suicide; and

WHEREAS, the City of North Pole'You¿h SOS - Signs of Suicíde"
campaign theme, promotes fømily a,nd indiuidual responsíbility for liuíng
healthy, raises a,wcr,reness about d,epression and suicíde, and prouídes comfort
and assista,nce to those who haue lost someone to suicide; and

WHEREAS, there are nLany educational actiuitíes planned during the
SOS - Signs of Suicíd,e Cømpaign thøt; increase indiuidual awareruess,
knowledge, and understanding of youth suiciÅ,e, prouíde informøtíon need,ed
to help recogníze and assist'high-ri,sh'youth in the Interior, as well d,s, co,st a
wider net to inuolue rrLore youth in preuention efforts to make ø greater impact
ín, our communíty.

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Bryce J. Ward, Møyor of the City of North
Pole, by the authority uested in me, do hereby proclaírn

Moy 11,2017
as

Youth Suicide - Out of the Darhness Campaign

in the Interíor
throughout the City of North Pole, and urge all citizens to join in thís euent
and to work all yeør long to protect our conxnl.unity from the d,angers and
fallout of suicide.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we haue hereunto set our hands this 1lth
day of May 2017,

Ward,, Mayor

ATTEST:

ryru Weber,

North Pole City Clerh





 

1 

 

Chapter 15.82 1 

FUEL GAS CODE 2 

Sections: 3 

15.82.010. Adoption. 4 

15.82.020. Modifications. 5 

15.82.030. Appeals. 6 

15.82.040. Local amendments to the International Fuel Gas Code, 2009 2015 Edition. 7 

 8 

15.82.010 Adoption. 9 

The code known as the International Fuel Gas Code, 2009 2015 Edition, as published by the International 10 

Conference of Building Officials, together with the local amendments as set forth in NPMC 15.82.040, 11 

shall constitute the laws of the City relating to building regulations. Where the International Fuel Gas 12 

Code conflicts with this code, this code shall prevail. An electronic copy of the International Fuel Gas 13 

Code is retained at the City offices. (Ord. 12-13 § 2, 2012) 14 

 15 

15.82.020 Modifications. 16 

The Building Official shall have the power to modify any of the provisions of the International Fuel Gas 17 

Code adopted by this chapter upon application in writing by the owner or lessee or his duly authorized 18 

agent, when there are practical difficulties in the way of carrying out the strict letter of the code; provided, 19 

that the spirit of the code is observed, public safety secured, and substantial justice done. The particulars 20 

of the modification, when granted or allowed, and the decision of the Building Official thereon shall be 21 

entered upon the records of the Department, and a signed copy shall be furnished the applicant. (Ord. 12-22 

13 § 2, 2012) 23 

 24 

15.82.030 Appeals. 25 

Whenever the Building Official disapproves an application or refuses to grant a permit applied for, or 26 

when it is claimed that the provisions of the code have been misconstrued or wrongly interpreted, the 27 

applicant may appeal from the decisions of the Building Official to the Mayor/City Manager within thirty 28 

days from the date of the decision. The appointment of the appeals board will be on a case-by-case basis 29 

with the members of said board comprised of local design professionals, contractors, inspectors or other 30 

members of the public deemed knowledgeable of the subject matter by the Mayor/City Manager. (Ord. 31 

12-13 § 2, 2012) 32 

 33 

15.82.040 Local amendments to the International Fuel Gas Code, 2009 2015 Edition. 34 

The amendments to the International Fuel Gas Code, 2009 2015 Edition, as published by the International 35 

Conference of Building Officials are hereby adopted by the City of North Pole as follows: 36 

 37 

Section 101.3 Appendices. Add the following to this section. 38 

 39 

Appendices A, B, C and D are hereby adopted. 40 

Except for Sections 101, 102, and the following amendments, delete Chapter 1 in its entirety and refer to 41 

the City of North Pole Administrative Code, Chapter 15.04. 42 

 43 

Section 101.2 Scope. Add the following sentence after the first sentence. 44 

http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/NorthPole/#!/NorthPole15/NorthPole1582.html#15.82.010
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/NorthPole/#!/NorthPole15/NorthPole1582.html#15.82.020
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/NorthPole/#!/NorthPole15/NorthPole1582.html#15.82.030
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/NorthPole/#!/NorthPole15/NorthPole1582.html#15.82.040
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/NorthPole/#!/NorthPole15/NorthPole1582.html#15.82.040


 

2 

 

The storage system for liquefied petroleum gas including tanks, containers, container valves, 45 

regulating equipment, meters, and/or appurtenances for the storage and supply of liquefied 46 

petroleum gas for any building, structure, or premises shall be designed and installed in 47 

accordance with the International Fire Code and NFPA 58. 48 

 49 

Section 101.2 Scope. Exception. Delete this exception in its entirety. 50 

 51 

Section 101.2.4 Systems, appliances and equipment outside the scope. Delete Number 13, 52 

Temporary LP-gas piping. 53 

 54 

Section 101.5.Severability.Add a sentence as follows: 55 

 56 

The provisions of this code shall not be deemed to nullify any provisions of local, state or federal 57 

law. 58 

 59 

Section 102.8 Referenced codes and standards. Add four subsections at the end of this section as 60 

follows: 61 

 62 

102.8.3 Plumbing. Where reference to any Plumbing Code is made in this Code it shall 63 

be taken to mean the Uniform Plumbing Code as adopted and amended by the City of 64 

North Pole. 65 

 66 

102.8.4 Electrical. Where reference to any Electrical Code is made in this Code it shall 67 

be taken to mean the National Electrical Code as adopted and amended by the City of 68 

North Pole. 69 

 70 

102.8.5 Administrative. The provisions of the City of North Pole Administrative Code, 71 

Chapter 15.04 shall apply to the administration and enforcement of this code. Where 72 

provisions of the City of North Pole Administrative Code and this code conflict, the most 73 

restrictive shall apply. 74 

 75 

102.8.6 Energy. Where reference is made in this Code to the International Energy 76 

Conservation Code it shall be taken to mean the IECC as currently adopted by the City of 77 

North Pole. 78 

 79 

Section 201.3 Terms defined in other codes. Delete this section and replace as follows. 80 

Where terms are not defined in this code and are defined in the International Building 81 

Code, National Electrical Code, International Fire Code, International Fuel Gas Code 82 

and the Uniform Plumbing Code, such terms shall have meanings ascribed to them as in 83 

those codes. 84 

 85 

Section 201.4 Terms not defined. Amend this section by adding the following sentence. 86 

Webster’s Third New International Dictionary of the English Language, Unabridged 87 

shall be considered as providing ordinarily accepted meanings. 88 



 

3 

 

Section 301.2.Energy utilization. Delete this section in its entirety. 89 

 90 

Section 301.16.Penetration Weatherproofing. Add this section and the following after section 301.15. 91 

Joints at roofs and exterior walls around pipes, ducts, appurtenances or equipment shall 92 

be made watertight by the use of approved materials. 93 

 94 

Section 301.17.Meter Protection. Add this section and the following. 95 

 96 

It shall be the responsibility of the Gas piping system permit-holder to provide physical 97 

damage protection and adverse weather protection as approved by the Building 98 

Department for the meter-set and piping connection to it. 99 

 100 

Section 301.18 Carbon Monoxide Alarms. Add this section numbering, title, and the following after 101 

section 301.17. 102 

 103 

Where a fuel-fired appliance is installed or replaced in an existing dwelling an approved carbon 104 

monoxide alarm shall be installed outside of each separate sleeping area in the immediate vicinity 105 

of the bedrooms. A single station, battery-operated carbon monoxide alarm shall be listed as 106 

complying with UL 2034 and shall be installed according to the manufacturer’s installation 107 

instructions. 108 

 109 

Section 303.4.Protection from vehicle impact damage. Add the following at the end of Section 303.4. 110 

 111 

Fuel-fired equipment and appliances located within the direct perpendicular path of a 112 

garage door opening of eight feet or less in height shall comply with Section 303.4.1 113 

 114 

Section 303.4.1.Fuel-fired appliance protection. Fuel-fired appliances and equipment 115 

located in the direct path for vehicles as described in 303.4 shall be protected from impact 116 

with one of the following methods. 117 

 118 

1. A minimum schedule 40 nominal 3 inch diameter steel pipe 30 inch high, with a 119 

vertical face at least 6 inch in the direction of vehicle approach and: 120 

1.1 Buried a minimum 2 foot0 inch deep in compacted soil and imbedded in at least 121 

4 inch nominal concrete slab. 122 

1.2 Set in a minimum 1 foot 0 inch x1 foot 0 inch x 1 foot 0 inch block of concrete 123 

(slab included).  124 

2. A platform on which the equipment sits, at least 24 inch high, extended at least 6 inch 125 

greater than the equipment footprint (including attachments such as burners and 126 

controls) in the direction of vehicle approach and in contact with the structure 127 

opposite the direction of vehicle approach. 128 

3. An approved system of equivalent resistance to vehicle impact extending at least 6 129 

inch ahead of the equipment’s footprint in the direction of vehicle approach, 130 

including attachments such as burners and controls. 131 

 132 



 

4 

 

303.7 Pit locations. Add the following sentence at the end of this Section. 133 

 134 

Liquefied petroleum gas piping shall not serve appliances located in a pit or basement where 135 

heavier-than-air gas might collect to form a flammable mixture. 136 

 137 

Section 304.6 Outdoor combustion air. Delete this section in its entirety and replace as follows. 138 

 139 

Combustion air for gas-fired appliances shall be provided on a basis of 1 square inch per 140 

4000 Btu per hour of the total input rating of all equipment. In lieu of this requirement, 141 

combustion air may be provided in accordance with Table 304.6, but shall not be less 142 

than the sum of the areas of all vent connectors in the space. Combustion air may be 143 

provided from one opening directly communicating with the outdoors or through a 144 

vertical or horizontal duct from the outdoors or spaces that freely communicate with the 145 

outdoors. The opening into the enclosure containing the appliances shall be located no 146 

lower in elevation than 2/3 the distance from the top of the finished floor to the bottom of 147 

the finished ceiling in the enclosure. 148 

 149 

TABLE 304.6 COMBUSTION AIR - CATEGORY I GAS APPLIANCES ONLY* 150 

Appliance Size Btu Input Rating C/A Duct Minimum Free 

Area (square inches) 

Minimum Round Duct Size 

(inches) 

Up to 120,000  28 6 

120,000 to 155,000 38 7 

155,000 to 175,000 50 8 

*Note: Category II, III and IV gas appliances may use Table 7-1 as amended for oil-fired appliances per 151 

Chapter 7 of the 2015 International Mechanical Code. 152 

 153 

Section 304.10 Louvers and grilles. Amend the fourth sentence as follows. 154 

 155 

Screens shall have a mesh size not smaller than ½ inch. 156 

 157 

Section 304.11 Combustion Air Ducts. Delete #4, #5, and #6 and refer to section 304.6 as amended. 158 

 159 

Section 304.11 Combustion air ducts. Delete # 8 and replace with the following. 160 

 161 

8. Combustion air intake openings located on the exterior of a building shall have the lowest side of 162 

such openings located not less than 18 inches vertically from the adjoining finished ground level or an 163 

approved alternative means provided to prevent snow blockage.  164 

 165 

Section 305.1.1 Fuel-fired equipment startup report. Add this subsection and the following. 166 

 167 

A startup report is required for all fan-assisted or power-burner fuel-fired equipment indicating the 168 

following conditions and others which the manufacturer recommends in their installation instructions. 169 

A non-returnable copy must be provided to the inspector for insertion in the Building Department 170 

project files. 171 



 

5 

 

 Company, Name, address, and Phone Number of Startup Technician 172 

 Manufacturer and Model No. of Equipment 173 

 Date and Time of Startup and Noted Readings 174 

 Net Stack Temperature 175 

 Overfire Draft 176 

 Breech Draft  177 

 Stack Draft 178 

 CO  179 

 CO2 or O2 180 

 Actual Rate of fuel input 181 

 182 

Section 305.13.Area served. Add this section and the following. 183 

 184 

Appliances serving different areas of a building other than where they are installed shall be 185 

permanently marked in an approved manner that uniquely identifies the appliance and the area it 186 

serves. 187 

 188 

Section 310 Electrical Bonding. Add subsection 310.2 and the following at the end of this section. 189 

 190 

310.2 Prohibited connection. The required gas piping system bonding connection to the electrical 191 

service grounding system shall not be made to any part of the gas service meter set equipment owned and 192 

operated by the Gas Utility Company. Bonding shall be on the customer side of the meter and regulator 193 

set. A direct bonding connection to Corrugated Stainless Steel Tubing is prohibited and bonding 194 

connections to Corrugated Stainless Steel Tubing systems shall be completed according to the specific 195 

tubing manufacturer’s instructions. 196 

 197 

Section 401.11 Prohibited future piping. Add this section and the following. 198 

 199 

Installation of piping for future use beyond a capped or plugged tee outlet is prohibited without the 200 

extension of the installation through the gas piping outlet(s) for specified equipment and appliances. 201 

 202 

Section 403.10.4 Metallic fittings. Revise this section by deleting the words “cast iron” in #2 and 203 

deleting #5 204 

 205 

Section 406.4.1 Test pressure. Amend the first sentence of this section as follows. 206 

 207 

Test pressure to be used shall be no less than 1 ½ times the proposed maximum working pressure, but 208 

not less than 10 psig. 209 

 210 

Section 406.8.Add a new section as follows. 211 

 212 

Section 406.8.Temporary Gas Installations. The installation of temporary gas shall comply with this 213 

section.  214 

 215 



 

6 

 

406.8.1 Temporary gas approval may be given to provide heating prior to the completion of the 216 

building’s primary heating system. 217 

406.8.2  218 

406.8.3 The heating appliance must be listed and labeled for its use to provide space heating and 219 

installed according to the manufacturer’s installation instructions, including all the 220 

manufacturer’s required clearances to combustibles. 221 

 222 

406.8.4 The return air for furnaces used for temporary heat shall ducted from a minimum of 10 223 

feet from the appliance. 224 

 225 
 226 

406.8.5 Portable space heaters shall be provided with one hundred percent (100%) outside air to 227 

the back end of the heater and the regulator vented to outside the space being heated. 228 

 229 

406.8.6 Gas hose used for temporary heaters shall be an approved type and all manufacturers’ 230 

listed clearances shall be maintained. The hose shall have an internal wire mesh or braid 231 

to render it “kink proof”. This wire mesh or braid shall run the full length of the hose. 232 

Each time a section of hose is used it shall be tested at a minimum of sixty (60) psi air 233 

pressure and labeled with temporary approval by the Building Department. The absence 234 

of the temporary approval label any time after gas service is supplied shall be cause to 235 

discontinue temporary gas service. 236 

 237 

406.8.7 Corrugated Stainless Steel Tubing used for temporary gas service must be installed and 238 

approved as a permanent installation. Unsupported, unprotected CSST is specifically 239 

prohibited. 240 

 241 

406.8.8 Temporary gas valve outlets not connected to an appliance or equipment shall be plugged 242 

or capped leak tight. 243 

 244 

Section 410.3.2 Regulator Vent Openings. Add the following subsection. 245 

 246 

Regulator vent openings shall not be located closer than 10 feet horizontally to any mechanical 247 

outdoor air intake opening or 3 feet horizontally from any gravity outdoor air intake opening, 248 

including opening doors and windows, unless such vent opening is at least 2 feet above the air intake 249 

opening. Regulator vent openings must be at least 12 inches above the anticipated snow level of 18 250 

inches. Regulator vent openings shall not be located closer than 5 feet to any electrical equipment 251 

including service disconnects, electrical meters, receptacles, etc., unless such electrical equipment 252 

meets the requirements of Article 500 and 501 of the National Electrical Code. 253 

 254 

Section 501.3 Masonry chimneys. Add the following sentence at the end of this section. 255 

 256 

Exterior masonry chimneys shall not be used to vent gas appliances. 257 

 258 



 

7 

 

Section 501.6 Positive pressure. Amend this section by adding the following paragraph and subsection 259 

at its end. 260 

 261 

Vents taller than 15 foot in height serving positive pressure equipment must be provided with 262 

provisions for an atmospheric balanced draft per 501.6.1. 263 

 264 

501.6.1.1.1  Positive pressure greater than 15 feet in height. For positive pressure equipment with 265 

venting system greater than 15 feet in height, provide an atmospheric balanced draft 266 

vent, i.e. provide a barometric draft regulator. The height of the vent shall be 267 

measured from the base of the appliance to the outlet of the chimney. Vent must be 268 

sized to prevent positive pressure. Multiple heating appliances connected to a vent 269 

greater than 15 feet in height shall be provided with separate draft or atmospheric 270 

controls for each appliance. 271 

 272 

Section 502.5 Installation. Add the following sentence at the end of this section. 273 

 274 

Vertical Vent terminations above a roof must extend at least 18 inches above the roof. Vent 275 

terminations through a wall must be at least above an anticipated snow depth of 18 inches. 276 

 277 

Section 502.8 Location and support of venting systems other than masonry chimneys. Add this 278 

section with the following. 279 

 280 

Vent terminations that penetrate a metal roof with a slope greater than 2:12 shall be protected by an 281 

ice dam or deflector of a type and design approved by the Code Official. 282 

 283 

Section 502.9 Vent height limitations. Add this section with the following. 284 

 285 

Vents which do not exceed 15 feet in height need not be provided with an atmospheric draft or 286 

control device unless required by Section 501.6.The height of the vent shall be measured from the 287 

base of the appliance to the outlet of the chimney. The entire length of the vent shall be factory 288 

sealable. The vent must be sized to avoid negative pressure. 289 

 290 

Section 502.10 Vent Enclosure. Add this section with the following. 291 

 292 

Venting systems installed with greater than 5 feet of developed length outside the building’s thermal 293 

envelope shall be enclosed with at least an R-11 enclosure from the penetration of the thermal 294 

envelope to a point no greater than 5 feet from the vent’s outlet. 295 

 296 

Section 503.3.6 Above-ceiling air-handling spaces. Add the following sentence to Item No. 1: 297 

 298 

The vent material shall have a flame spread index of not more than 25 and a smoke-developed index 299 

of not more than 50 when tested in accordance with ASTM E84. 300 

 301 

Section 614.2 Duct penetrations. Delete this section in its entirety and replace with the following. 302 



 

8 

 

Ducts that exhaust clothes dryers shall not penetrate required fire-resistive assemblies unless enclosed 303 

in a fire-resistive shaft complying with the building code 304 



Sponsored by: Mayor Bryce Ward 

Introduced and Advanced:  May 1, 2017 

Possible adoption:   May 15, 2017 

 

CITY OF NORTH POLE 1 

 2 

ORDINANCE 17-12 3 

 4 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING TITLE 15, BUILDING AND CONSTRUCTION 5 
 6 

WHEREAS, changes to the North Pole Municipal Code is a continually changing requirement; 7 

and 8 

 9 

WHEREAS, the City of North Pole Municipal Code should be amended to conform to the 10 

requirements of the City. 11 

 12 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of North Pole: 13 

 14 

Section 1. This ordinance is of a general and permanent nature and shall be codified. 15 

 16 

Section 2. Amend Title 15, Building and Construction, by adopting by reference the following 17 

national building codes as follows and with the attached amendments; 18 

 19 

A Chapter 15.12: Building Code; International Building Code, 2015 edition  20 

1. Delete existing Sections A through TTTT and replace with attached amendments; and 21 

retain Section UUUU but strike section label UUUU  22 

B Chapter 15.20: Residential Code; International Residential Code, 2015 edition 23 

1. Delete existing Sections A through MMMM and replace with attached amendments 24 

C Chapter 15.28: Mechanical Code; International Mechanical Code, 2015 edition 25 

1. Delete existing Sections A through SS and replace with attached amendments 26 

D Chapter 15. 36: Electrical Code; National Electrical Code, 2014 edition 27 

1. Delete existing Sections A through R and replace with attached amendments 28 

E Chapter 15. 42: Plumbing Code; Uniform Plumbing Code, 2014 edition 29 

1. Delete existing Sections A through ZZ and replace with attached amendments 30 

F Chapter 15.82: Fuel Gas Code; International Fuel Gas Code, 2015 edition 31 

1. Delete existing Sections A through II and replace with attached amendments 32 

 33 

Section 3.  Effective Date.  This ordinance shall be effective at 5:00 p.m. on the first City 34 

business day following its adoption. 35 

 36 

PASSED AND APPROVED by a duly constituted quorum of the North Pole City Council this 37 

15th day of May, 2017. 38 

 39 

   40 

                    Bryce J. Ward, Mayor 41 

 42 

ATTEST: 43 

 44 

  45 

Kathryn M. Weber, MMC 46 

North Pole City Clerk 47 



1 

 

Chapter 15.12 1 

INTERNATIONAL BUILDING CODE 2 

Sections: 3 

15.12.010. Adoption. 4 

15.12.020. Modifications. 5 

15.12.030. Appeals. 6 

15.12.040. Building permits – Compliance with ordinances. 7 

15.12.050. Moving buildings. 8 

15.12.060. Local amendments to the International Building Code, 2009 2015 Edition. 9 

 10 

15.12.010 Adoption. 11 

The International Building Code (IBC), 2009 2015 Edition, as published by the International Conference 12 

of Building Officials, together with the local amendments as set forth in this chapter, shall constitute the 13 

laws of the City relating to building regulations. Where the IBC conflicts with this code this code shall 14 

prevail. An electronic copy of the IBC and referenced standards is retained at the City offices. (Ord. 16-12 15 

§ 2, 2016; Ord. 12-07 § 2, 2012) 16 

 17 

15.12.020 Modifications. 18 

The Building Official shall have the power to modify any of the provisions of the International Building 19 

Code adopted by this chapter upon application in writing by the owner or lessee or his duly authorized 20 

agent, when there are practical difficulties in the way of carrying out the strict letter of the code; provided, 21 

that the spirit of the code is observed, public safety secured, and substantial justice done. The particulars 22 

of the modification, when granted or allowed, and the decision of the Building Official thereon shall be 23 

entered upon the records of the Department, and a signed copy shall be furnished the applicant. (Ord. 12-24 

07 § 2, 2012) 25 

 26 

15.12.030 Appeals. 27 

Whenever the Building Official disapproves an application or refuses to grant a permit applied for, or 28 

when it is claimed that the provisions of the code have been misconstrued or wrongly interpreted, the 29 

applicant may appeal from the decisions of the Building Official to an appeals board of five members to 30 

be appointed by the Mayor/City Manager within thirty days from the date of the decision. The 31 

appointment of the appeals board will be on a case-by-case basis with the members of said board 32 

comprised of local design professionals, contractors, inspectors or other members of the public deemed 33 

knowledgeable of the subject matter by the Mayor/City Manager. (Ord. 12-07 § 2, 2012) 34 

 35 

15.12.040 Building permits – Compliance with ordinances. 36 

It is established that no permit will be issued for the construction of new buildings or building within the 37 

corporate limits of the City which is inconsistent with the current comprehensive plan of the City or any 38 

City ordinances and regulations. (Ord. 12-07 § 2, 2012) 39 

15.12.50 Moving buildings. 40 

 41 

A. No building of any kind or nature shall be moved to a location in the City from outside the limits of the 42 

City without approval of the Building Official, and, in the event any persons move into the City a 43 

building from a location outside the City, he or they shall not be permitted to use the building either for 44 

http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/NorthPole/#!/NorthPole15/NorthPole1512.html#15.12.010
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/NorthPole/#!/NorthPole15/NorthPole1512.html#15.12.020
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/NorthPole/#!/NorthPole15/NorthPole1512.html#15.12.030
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/NorthPole/#!/NorthPole15/NorthPole1512.html#15.12.040
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/NorthPole/#!/NorthPole15/NorthPole1512.html#15.12.050
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/NorthPole/#!/NorthPole15/NorthPole1512.html#15.12.060


2 

 

residential or business purposes until the Building Official has approved the building for the purpose 45 

intended. 46 

 47 

B. No building which is more than eight feet six inches wide, more than thirteen feet six inches above the 48 

ground, more than seventy feet zero inches total length including trailer, more than four feet zero inches 49 

in rear overhang, more than three feet zero inches in front overhang or more than the allowable road 50 

weight limitations shall be moved upon the City streets without first obtaining a moving permit. Before a 51 

moving permit may be issued, the following items must be provided: a copy of the State transport permit, 52 

proof of insurance, the proposed route and time and a bond of $1,000 (one thousand dollars) in the form 53 

of a certified check payable to the City. The moving permit must have the written approval of both the 54 

Building Official and Chief of Police or their designee. The bond will be returned less any expenses 55 

incurred by the City repairing public facilities, utilities or roadways damaged during the move. (Ord. 12-56 

07 § 2, 2012) 57 

 58 

15.12.060 Local amendments to the International Building Code, 2009 2015 Edition. 59 

The amendments to the International Building Code, 2009 2015 Edition, as published by the International 60 

Conference of Building Officials and the State of Alaska 13 AAC 50.020 Building Codes (see the 61 

attachment to the ordinance codified in this section) are hereby adopted by the City of North Pole as 62 

follows:  63 

 64 

Chapter 1 Scope and Administration. Delete this chapter, except for Sections 101.2 and 101.2.1, and 65 

replace with the Administrative Code, Chapter 15.04. 66 

 67 

Section 101.2.1 Appendices. Amend this section to read as follows: Appendices E and H are hereby 68 

adopted. 69 

 70 

Section 202 Definitions. Create the following new definitions: 71 

 72 

Family Child Care Home. A licensed facility that is located within a single-dwelling unit dwelling 73 

in which personal care services are provided by the owner or tenant that normally occupies the 74 

residence on a twenty-four hour basis. 75 

 76 

Water Dispenser. A plumbing fixture that is connected to the potable water distribution system of 77 

the premises and manually controlled by the user for the purpose of dispensing potable drinking water 78 

into a receptacle such as a cup, glass, or bottle. Or, a freestanding apparatus that is manually 79 

controlled by the user for the purpose of dispensing potable water into a receptacle which is not 80 

connected to the potable water distribution system and supplied with potable water from a container, 81 

bottle, or reservoir. 82 

 83 

Section 202 Definitions. Delete the following definitions and replace as follows: 84 

 85 

Foster Care Facilities. Facilities that provide care on a 24-hour basis to more than five children 2 ½ 86 

years of age or less, including children related to the staff, shall be classified as Group I-2. 87 

 88 

http://www.legis.state.ak.us/basis/aac.asp#13
http://www.legis.state.ak.us/basis/aac.asp#13.50.020


3 

 

Nursing homes. Facilities that provide care, including both intermediate care facilities and skilled 89 

nursing facilities, serving more than two persons and any of the persons are incapable of self-90 

preservation.  91 

 92 

Townhouse. A single-family dwelling unit constructed in a group of two or more attached units in 93 

which each unit extends from foundation to roof and with a yard or public way on at least two sides. 94 

Each townhouse shall be considered a separate building as recognized by a recorded lot line between 95 

such units. Each townhouse unit shall be provided with separate water, sewer, heating and electrical 96 

services.  97 

 98 

Section 305.2 Group E, day care facilities. Revise this section as follows: 99 

 100 

This group includes buildings and structures or portions thereof occupied by more than five children 101 

older than 2½ years of age, including children related to the staff, who receive educational, 102 

supervision or personal care services for fewer than 24 hours per day. 103 

 104 

Section 305.2.3.Delete this section and replace as follows:: 105 

 106 

Section 305.2.3.Family child care homes. 107 

 108 

Family child care homes operating between the hours of 6:00 am and 10:00 p.m. may accommodate a 109 

total of twelve children, provided that no more than 5 children are under the age of 2 ½ years. Family 110 

child care homes as defined are classified as an (R3) occupancy and shall comply with section 111 

907.2.11 (smoke alarms), section 915 (carbon monoxide detection) and section 1030 (emergency 112 

escape and rescue openings) for napping and sleeping rooms. Fire extinguishers shall be provided in 113 

accordance with the International Fire Code. 114 

 115 

Section 305.3 Day Care Hours of Operation. Create a new section title to read as follows: 116 

 117 

Day care hours of operation. A Day Care that operates between the hours of 10:00 p.m. and 6:00 a.m. 118 

shall be equipped with an approved automatic sprinkler system throughout, designed and installed in 119 

accordance with NFPA Standard 13 or equivalent system as approved by the Fire Chief. An approved 120 

emergency escape or rescue window meeting the requirements of IBC Section 1030shall be provided 121 

in each sleeping or napping room. Smoke alarms and carbon monoxide detection shall be installed in 122 

accordance with sections 907.2.11 and 915.Fire extinguishers shall be provided in accordance with 123 

the International Fire Code. A Family Child Care Home that operates between the hours of 10:00 p.m. 124 

and 6:00 a.m. shall be equipped with an approved automatic sprinkler system throughout, designed 125 

and installed in accordance with NFPA Standard 13D or equivalent system as approved by the Fire 126 

Chief. 127 

 128 

Section 308.3 Institutional Group I-1. Delete sections 308.3.3 and 308.3.4 and replace with the 129 

following: 130 

 131 



4 

 

Section 308.3.3 Three to 16 persons receiving custodial care. A facility housing more than 2 132 

persons and no more than 16 persons receiving custodial care shall be classified as a Group R-4. 133 

 134 

Section 308.3.4 Fewer than 3 persons receiving custodial care. A facility with fewer than 3 135 

persons receiving custodial care shall be classified as a Group R-3 or shall comply with the 136 

International Residential Code, as amended by the City of North Pole. 137 

 138 

Section 308.4 Institutional Group I-2. Revise the first sentence of this section to read as follows: 139 

 140 

Institutional Group I-2 occupancy shall include buildings and  structures used for medical care 141 

on a 24-hour basis for more than two persons who are incapable of self-preservation. 142 

 143 

Section 308.4 Institutional Group I-2. Delete section 308.4.2 and replace with the following: 144 

 145 

Section 308.4.2.Fewer than 3 persons receiving medical care. A facility with fewer than 3 persons 146 

receiving medical care shall be classified as a Group R-3 or shall comply with the International 147 

Residential Code, as amended by the City of North Pole.  148 

 149 

308.6 Institutional Group I-4, day care facilities. Revise the first sentence of this paragraph to read as 150 

follows: 151 

 152 

Institutional Group I-4 shall include buildings and structures, or portions thereof occupied by more 153 

than five persons of any age, including persons related to the staff, receiving custodial care for fewer 154 

than 24 hours per day. 155 

 156 

Section 310.5 Residential Group R-3.Delete the following in this section. 157 

 158 

Care facilities that provide accommodations for five or fewer persons receiving care. 159 

 160 

Section 310.5.1 Care facilities within a dwelling. Delete this section in its entirety. 161 

 162 

Section 310.6 Residential Group R-4.Delete this paragraph in its entirety and replace as follows: 163 

 164 

Residential group R-4 occupancy shall include buildings, structures, or portions thereof for more than 165 

two but not more than 16 persons, excluding staff, who reside on a 24-hour basis in a supervised 166 

residential environment and receive custodial care. Occupancies which include Individuals who are 167 

not capable of responding to an emergency situation or incapable of self-preservation shall be 168 

classified as an I occupancy. Group R-4 shall be classified as either, Condition 1, as specified in 169 

310.6.1, and sprinklered throughout as required by 903.3.1.3, or Condition 2, as specified in 310.6.2, 170 

and sprinklered throughout as required by section 903.3.1.2.This group shall include, but not be 171 

limited to, the following: 172 

 173 

Section 406.3.4.Separation. Delete sections 406.3.4.1-406.3.4.3 and replace as follows. 174 

 175 



5 

 

406.3.4.1 Dwelling Unit Separation. The private garage shall be separated from all dwelling units by 176 

a one hour fire resistive wall assembly. The fire resistive wall may terminate at the ceiling provided: 177 

a) the ceiling framing construction is protected by a layer of 5/8 inch thick type X gypsum board and 178 

the area above the ceiling is a non-habitable attic space. Garages located beneath habitable rooms or 179 

dwelling units shall be separated by an approved one hour fire resistive horizontal floor ceiling 180 

assembly and one hour fire resistive vertical wall assemblies. Penetrations of the fire resistive 181 

assemblies shall be fire stopped with materials approved for the hourly rating. Door openings between 182 

a private garage and a dwelling shall be provided with a minimum rating of 45 minutes and be 183 

equipped with self-closing and self-latching doors. In addition these doors shall be provided with 184 

gasket seals on the top and sides including installation of a tight fitting threshold. Openings from a 185 

private garage directly into a room used for sleeping purposes shall not be permitted. 186 

 187 

406.3.4.2.Ducts in a private garage and ducts penetrating the walls or ceilings separating the dwelling 188 

unit from the garage shall be constructed of a minimum 0.019-inch (0.48mm) sheet steel (28 gauge 189 

galvanized steel) and shall have no openings into the garage. The duct shall be firestopped with 190 

materials approved for a one hour fire resistive assembly. 191 

 192 

406.3.4.3.A separation is not required between a group R-3 and U carport, provided the carport is 193 

entirely open on two or more sides and there are not enclosed areas above. 194 

 195 

Section 413.3 Usable space under floors. Add a new subsection to read as follows:  196 

 197 

Usable space under the first story shall be enclosed except in groups R-3 and U occupancies, and 198 

such enclosure when constructed of metal or wood shall be protected on the side of the usable space 199 

as required for one hour fire resistive construction. Doors shall be self-closing, of noncombustible 200 

construction or solid core, not less than 1 ⅜ inch inches in thickness or a twenty minute door 201 

assembly may be used. 202 

 203 

Exception: Areas protected by approved automatic sprinkler systems. 204 

 205 

Section 501.3 Location on property. Create a new section to read as follows: 206 

 207 

For the purposes of allowable area limitations, required yards shall be permanently maintained. 208 

Buildings shall adjoin or have access to a permanent public way or yard on not less than one side.  209 

 210 

Table 509 Incidental Uses. Amend table by adding footnote (a) to read as follows: 211 

 212 

footnote (a).Regardless of the Btu rating, psi rating or horsepower rating a one hour separation or 213 

automatic fire–extinguishing system is required for furnace or boiler rooms providing heat for group 214 

E, R-1, R-2, I and R-4 Occupancies  215 

 216 

Table 601 Fire-resistance rating requirements for building elements. Add footnote (g) to Columns IIA, 217 

IIIA, and VA.  218 

 219 



6 

 

g. In group E Occupancies, an automatic sprinkler system may be substituted for 1 hour fire-resistance-220 

rated-construction provided the system is designed in accordance with section 903.3.1.1.The 1-hour 221 

substitution for the fire resistance of exterior walls shall not be permitted. 222 

 223 

Section 603.1 Allowable Materials. Add the following item to allowable materials. 224 

 225 

1.4 Fire-retardant treated wood may be used as furring for exterior bearing and nonbearing wall 226 

construction provided the building is sprinklered throughout and the required fire rating of the wall is 227 

2 hours or less. 228 

 229 

Section 718.4.2 Groups R-1 and R-2. 230 

 231 

Delete the last sentence in its entirety and replace with the following: 232 

 233 

Draft stops in attic spaces shall be installed so that the maximum area between draft stops does not 234 

exceed 3,000 square feet, and the greatest horizontal dimension does not exceed 60 feet. Such draft 235 

stops are not required to be located directly above or in line with walls separating tenant spaces. 236 

 237 

Delete exception 1 in its entirety. 238 

 239 

Revise exception 3 to read as follows: 240 

 241 

In R-2 occupancies that do not exceed four stories in height, the attic space shall be subdivided into 242 

areas not exceeding 3,000 square feet. 243 

 244 

Section 808.1.1.1 Suspended acoustical ceilings. Delete this section in its entirety and replace as 245 

follows: 246 

Suspended acoustical ceiling systems shall be installed in accordance with the provisions of ASTM 247 

C635 and ASTM C636 and the following installation standards. 248 

1. A heavy duty-rated grid system shall be used in all occupancies. The perimeter wall angle shall be 249 

deemed to provide structural support for the perimeter cross-tee and main runner intersections and the 250 

edge support for the ceiling tiles provided it is secured. 251 

Exception: Intermediate duty rated systems may be used in R-3 Occupancies. 252 

2. Changes in the ceiling plane elevation shall be provided with structural support or additional wires 253 

capable of maintaining a positive bracing system. 254 

 3. Cable trays and electrical conduits shall be independently supported and braced independently of 255 

the ceiling.  256 

4. Compression posts are not required if the distance from the plane of the suspended ceiling and the 257 

lowest structural framing elements are 24 inches or less.  258 

5. Cross-tees, which are 8 inches or less in length and located at the perimeter of any room, do not 259 

require additional vertical 12 gauge support wires. 260 

6. A 90 degree cross tee return system may be used to support the cross-tee to the perimeter wall 261 

angle. Rivets, zip-it wall anchors and/or screws may be used to positively attach the cross tee to the 262 



7 

 

perimeter wall angle or wall substrate in lieu of additional perimeter wires. The installation shall be in 263 

accordance with this suspended ceiling policy. 264 

 7. Lighting fixtures seismically supported in accordance with CISCA 3-4 are not required to be 265 

positively attached to the suspended grid members. 266 

8. Recessed can or bullet type lighting fixtures weighing less than 20 pounds shall be supported to the 267 

grid system and shall be positively attached to the structure above with a minimum of one 12 gauge 268 

wire or safety chain. Fixtures weighing more than twenty pounds shall be supported with a minimum 269 

of two 12 gauge wires or two safety chains attached to the fixture and secured to the structure above. 270 

These wires may be slack. 271 

9. Suspended acoustical ceiling systems may not be used to provide lateral support for non-bearing 272 

partitions unless: a) designed by an engineer or b) installed in accordance with an approved 273 

evaluation report recognized by the International Building Code.  274 

10. Ceiling mounted air terminals weighing less than 20 pounds shall be positively attached to the 275 

ceiling suspension main runners or cross tees having the same carrying capacity as the main runners. 276 

Air terminals weighing more than twenty pounds shall be provided with a minimum of two 12-gauge 277 

wires, connected from the terminal to the structure above and shall be positively attached to the grid 278 

system. 279 

11. Corridors which are 6 feet in width or less may have the seismic splay wires installed in the 280 

direction of the long axis of the corridor. These splay wires shall be spaced 12 feet on center and 281 

splayed at a 45 degree angle. Splay wires are not required in the short axis of the corridor.  282 

12. When all ceiling tiles are replaced in an existing non-complying suspended ceiling, the lights and 283 

mechanical air terminals shall be upgraded and seismically braced prior to the new tile installation. 284 

13. When lighting fixtures are replaced or relocated in an existing suspended ceiling, the new lights or 285 

relocated lights shall be seismically-braced in accordance with CISCA 3-4 and this section. 286 

14. When mechanical ductwork or air terminals are altered or relocated in an existing suspended 287 

ceiling, those mechanical devices shall comply with the seismic requirements with CISCA and this 288 

section. 289 

15. When 50% or more of the grid system is replaced or altered, the entire grid system shall be 290 

upgraded to meet the current seismic standards in accordance with CISCA 3-4. 291 

16. Two inch wide perimeter angles are not required. 292 

 293 

Section 903.2.3Group E. Delete this section in its entirety and replace as follows:  294 

 295 

An automatic sprinkler system shall be provided throughout all Group E occupancies. An automatic 296 

sprinkler system shall also be provided for every portion of educational buildings below the level of 297 

exit discharge. Day care uses that are licensed to care for more than 5 persons between the hours of 298 

10 p.m. and 6 a.m. shall be equipped with an automatic sprinkler system designed and installed in 299 

accordance with Section 903.3.1.3, or an approved equivalent system. The use of a firewall or fire barrier 300 

does not establish a separate building or fire area for the purpose of this section. 301 

 302 

Exceptions: 303 

1. Buildings with E occupancies having an occupant load of 49 or less. 304 

2. Day care uses not otherwise required to have automatic sprinkler system by other provisions of the 305 

code. 306 



8 

 

Section 903.2.11.7.Pit Sprinklers. Add a new subsection and title to read as follows: 307 

 308 

Pit Sprinklers. Sprinklers shall be installed in the bottom of all new and existing elevator pits below 309 

the lowest projection of the elevator car but no higher than 24 inches from the bottom of the pit. 310 

 311 

Section 903.3.1.1 NFPA 13 sprinkler systems is revised by adding a new Subsection 903.3.1.1.3 to read 312 

as follows: 313 

 314 

Elevator Hoist ways and Machine Rooms. Where the provisions of this code require the installation 315 

of automatic sprinkler systems, such installation in Elevator hoist ways and machine rooms shall be in 316 

accordance with NFPA [13, Section 5-13.6.1] 13-2002 and ASME A17.1 Safety Code for Elevators and 317 

Escalators, 2010 edition. 318 

 319 

Exception:  320 

 321 

Sprinklers may be deleted in an elevator machine room when such room is: 322 

(1).Separated from the remainder of the building in accordance with Section 3005.4. 323 

(2).Smoke detection is provided in accordance with NFPA 72  324 

(3) Notification of alarm activation is received at a constantly monitored location. 325 

 326 

Section 903.4.2 Alarms. Amend this section by adding the following sentence to the paragraph: 327 

 328 

Buildings equipped with a sprinkler system without an alarm system shall have at least one notification 329 

device (horn/strobe) located inside the building in a commonly occupied area to alert occupants of a 330 

sprinkler activation. 331 

 332 

Section 907.2.3 Group E. Revise this section by adding a second paragraph to read as follows:. 333 

 334 

Rooms used for sleeping or napping purposes within a day care use for a Group E occupancy shall be 335 

provided with smoke alarms that comply with section 907.2.11 and carbon monoxide detection as 336 

specified in section 915. 337 

 338 

Section 915.1 General. Revise the last sentence of this paragraph to read as follows. 339 

 340 

Carbon monoxide detection shall be installed in existing buildings in accordance with Chapter 11 of 341 

the International Fire Code and this section. 342 

 343 

Section 915.3 Detection equipment. Add a sentence to this section to read as follows. 344 

 345 

In new construction, all carbon monoxide detectors and alarms located within a single dwelling unit 346 

shall be interconnected in such a manner that actuation of one alarm shall activate all of the alarms 347 

within the individual dwelling unit. 348 

 349 

Section 915.1.7 Vehicle parking. Add this subsection and the following. 350 



9 

 

 351 

Carbon monoxide detection shall be provided where there is located any vehicle parking within 25 352 

feet of any direct air intake openings. 353 

 354 

915.4.1 Power Source. Revise the Exception to read as follows. 355 

 356 

Exception: Where installed in existing buildings or in buildings without commercial power, battery-357 

powered carbon monoxide alarms shall be an acceptable alternative. 358 

 359 

Section 1010.1.9.3 Locks or Latches. Add condition 6 as follows: 360 

 361 

6. In Groups B, F, M and S occupancies, a single thumb turn may be used in exit doors, where the 362 

occupant load is 100 or less, in conjunction with an approved lock set when the thumb turn requires 363 

no more than one-half turn to unlock. Hardware height shall comply with Section 1010.1.9.2. This 364 

exception does not apply when panic hardware is required or installed. 365 

 366 

Section 1010.1.9.3.1 Manual security bar for limited use. Create a new subsection and title to read as 367 

follows: 368 

 369 

Manual security bar for limited use. Assembly occupancies such as restaurants, taverns and lounges 370 

and B,F,M,S occupancies with an occupant load of less than 100 may utilize a manual security bar for 371 

the second required exit when the building is not occupied by the public. The security bar shall be 372 

pre-approved by the fire marshal before installation. The bar must be easily removed and shall not be 373 

provided with padlocks, chains or other locking devices requiring special tools or knowledge. The bar 374 

shall be identified by a contrasting color. The exit door shall be provided with a sign stating, “This 375 

door to remain unlocked during business hours.” The use of this provision may be revoked by the fire 376 

marshal for non-compliance. 377 

 378 

Assembly occupancies with an occupant load of 300 or less which are provided with an approved 379 

sprinkler system throughout may install a security bar on the second required exit as specified above. 380 

The conditions and approval of the security bar installation shall be kept on file with the fire marshal. 381 

The use of this provision may be revoked by the fire marshal for noncompliance. 382 

 383 

Section 1011.5.2 Riser height and tread depth. Amend section by adding an exception #6 to read as 384 

follows: 385 

 386 

Stairs or ladders used only to attend equipment are exempt from the requirements of Section 1011. 387 

 388 

Section 1006.3.2.3 Exits from basements. Create a new subsection and title to read as follows: 389 

 390 

Exits from basements. 391 

 392 

Basements in all occupancies except Group R-3, shall be provided with a minimum of at least two 393 

independent exits. 394 



10 

 

 395 

Exceptions: 396 

 397 

1. Basements used exclusively for the service of the building. 398 

 399 

2. Basements used exclusively for storage purposes and limited to 750 square feet. 400 

 401 

3. Basements used for private offices, maintenance rooms or laundry rooms and similar uses limited 402 

to an aggregate floor area of 500 square feet, provided a hard wired smoke detector is installed in 403 

the basement and interconnected to a smoke detector located on the level of discharge as 404 

approved by the City Fire Marshal. 405 

 406 

4. Basements used for private offices, maintenance rooms or laundry rooms and similar uses which 407 

are provided with a direct exterior exit to grade shall be limited to an aggregate floor area of 750 408 

square feet, provided a hard wired smoke detector is installed in the basement and interconnected 409 

to a smoke detector on the level of exit discharge as approved by the City Fire Marshal. 410 

 411 

5. Buildings which are sprinklered throughout and contain a basement may have one exit provided: 412 

 413 

5.1 Basements are used exclusively for storage purposes and limited to 1500 square feet. 414 

 415 

5.2 Basements are used for private offices, maintenance rooms, or laundry rooms and similar uses 416 

limited to an aggregate floor area of 1000 square feet. 417 

 418 

5.3 Basements are used for private offices, maintenance rooms or laundry rooms and similar uses 419 

and are provided with a direct exterior exit to grade shall be limited to an aggregate floor area of 420 

1500 square feet. 421 

 422 

Section 1030.1.General. Revise the first sentence of the paragraph to read as follows: 423 

 424 

In addition to the means of egress required by this chapter, provisions shall be made for emergency 425 

escape and rescue in Group R, I-1, and day care occupancies where napping or sleeping rooms are 426 

provided. 427 

 428 

Section 1030.1 Delete exception 1 429 

 430 

Section 1030.2 Minimum size. Delete the exception. 431 

 432 

1101.2 Design. Add the following Paragraph: 433 

 434 

The design and construction of buildings or portions of buildings to meet the requirements of the 435 

Americans with Disabilities Act and Fair Housing Act is the exclusive responsibility of the owner of 436 

the structure. 437 

 438 



11 

 

1102.1 Definitions. Add the following definitions: 439 

 440 

CONVENTIONAL INDUSTRY TOLERANCES: Plus or minus ½ inch up to 36 inches and plus 441 

or minus 1 percent over 36 inches. Slopes may be plus or minus 1 percent. 442 

 443 

ADAPTABLE: The ability of certain building spaces and elements, such as kitchen counters, sinks, 444 

and grab bars, to be added or altered so as to accommodate the needs of either disabled or non-445 

disabled persons, or to accommodate the needs of persons with different types or degrees of 446 

disability. 447 

 448 

1103.1 Where required. Add the following sentence to this section: 449 

 450 

Subject to the approval of the Building Official, areas where work cannot reasonably be performed by 451 

persons having a severe impairment (mobility, sight or hearing) need not have specific features which 452 

provide accessibility to such persons. 453 

 454 

1103.2.3 Detached dwellings. Delete this paragraph as replace as follows: 455 

 456 

Detached one and two family dwellings and three unit dwellings, including accessory structures and 457 

their associated sites and facilities, are not required to be accessible. 458 

 459 

1108.2.7 Assistive listening systems. Add the following sentence to this section: 460 

 461 

Assistive listening systems shall be required in groups B, E, and M occupancies which contain rooms 462 

of assembly. 463 

 464 

1111.1 Signs. Delete the Exception to Item 1.  465 

 466 

1111.3 Other signs. Add the following item to this section: 467 

 468 

8. Building directories are required for the following occupancies as defined by the building code: 469 

Groups A, B, E, I and M greater than 6000 sq. ft. or more than one story. Regardless of building size, 470 

directories shall be provided for governmental office buildings, medical care facilities, shopping 471 

malls, public transportation facilities, senior citizen housing and hotels. Directories shall be provided 472 

within or immediately adjacent to the main entrances as approved by the Building Official. Directory 473 

signage shall comply with ICC/ANSI A117. 474 

 475 

1112.1 Public telephones. Add a new section as follows: 476 

Public telephones are required in medical care facilities, governmental office buildings, shopping 477 

malls, public and private schools, hotels, convention centers, and shall be located on an accessible 478 

route. (For the purpose of this section schools which meet the Group E, Division 1 occupancy 479 

classification as defined in Chapter 3 of the Building Code shall comply). 480 

 481 

1112.2 Public text telephones. Add a new section. 482 



12 

 

A public text telephone is required in governmental office buildings including police and fire stations, 483 

medical care facilities, senior housing facilities, hotels, conventions centers, libraries, public and 484 

private schools and shopping malls. A public text telephone is required in or adjacent to a hospital 485 

emergency room or hospital waiting room, and shall be located on an accessible route. (For the 486 

purpose of this section schools classified as group E, occupancy as defined in Chapter 3 of the 487 

building code shall comply). 488 

 489 

Section 1203.2 Ventilation required. Delete this section in its entirety and replace with the following: 490 

 491 

Enclosed attics and enclosed rafter spaces formed where ceilings are applied direct to the underside of 492 

the roof rafters or trusses shall have cross ventilation for each separate space by ventilating openings 493 

protected against the entrance of snow and rain. The net free ventilation area for each space shall be 494 

not less than 1/150 of that area of the space ventilated. One-half of this required ventilating area shall 495 

be provided in the upper one-third portion of the space to be ventilated and the remaining required 496 

ventilating area shall be evenly distributed at eave vents. A minimum continuous opening of 1.5 497 

inches in width shall be provided at the eave vents. The openings shall be covered with corrosion-498 

resistant metal mesh covering. 499 

 500 

Section 1203.4.1 Openings for under-floor ventilation. Delete sections 1203.4.1 and 1203.4.2 in their 501 

entirety and replace with the following: 502 

 503 

Each under-floor space shall be ventilated by an approved mechanical means or by openings in 504 

exterior foundation walls. Such openings shall have a net area of not less than 0.1 square foot for 505 

each 150 square feet of under-floor area. There shall be two openings located as close to corners as 506 

practical on opposite sides to provide cross ventilation. The openings shall be covered with corrosion 507 

resistant wire mesh approximately 1/4 inch in size. All structures with a crawl space shall have a 508 

minimum 6 mil ground vapor retarder to prevent the flow of water vapor from soils into the heated 509 

building interior. 510 

 511 

Section 1205.2 Natural light. Delete the paragraph in its entirety and replace as follows: 512 

 513 

Guest rooms and habitable rooms within a dwelling unit or congregate residence shall be provided 514 

with natural light by means of exterior glazed openings with any area not less than one twentieth of 515 

the floor area of such rooms with a minimum of 5 square feet, except that minimum egress 516 

requirements shall govern. 517 

 518 

1209.2 Attic Spaces. Add a sentence as follows: 519 

 520 

Attic access shall not be located in a room containing bathing facilities. 521 

 522 

1210.2.1 Floors and wall bases. Delete this paragraph and replace with the following: 523 

 524 

In other than dwelling units, toilet and bathing room floors shall have a smooth, nonporous, non-525 

absorbent surface such as non-cushioned sheet vinyl, sealed concrete or ceramic tile with sealed joints 526 



13 

 

or other approved materials. Base shall be of similar materials, shall extend up the wall 4 inches (127 527 

mm) minimum, and shall be sealed to the flooring and wall surface and allowing differential 528 

movement without water penetration. 529 

 530 

1210.2.2 Walls and partitions wainscot. Revise this section by renaming the section and delete the first 531 

paragraph to read as follows: 532 

 533 

Walls and partitions wainscot. 534 

 535 

Walls and partitions within 2 feet (610 mm) of the front and sides of urinals, water closets and 536 

lavatories shall have a smooth, non-porous, hard, non-absorbent surface such as non-cushioned sheet 537 

vinyl, sealed concrete, ceramic tile with sealed joints, approved plastic panels, or other approved 538 

materials, installed to a minimum height of 4 feet above the finished floor and except for structural 539 

elements, the materials in such walls shall be of a type that is not adversely affected by moisture. 540 

 541 

1210.2.2. Walls and partitions. Delete exception 1 and 2 and replace as follows: 542 

 543 

Exception. 544 

 545 

1. Dwelling Units 546 

 547 

1210.2.2.1 Walls and partitions moisture resistive gypsum board application. Create a new 548 

subsection and title to read as follows: 549 

 550 

In addition to the wainscot provisions as required by section 1210.2.2, moisture resistive gypsum 551 

board, cement board or other approved material shall be applied to walls within two feet from the 552 

front and sides of urinals, water closets, tub, shower, lavatories and service sinks. Moisture resistive 553 

gypsum board shall be applied on walls in the spaces as stated above in all occupancies up to a height 554 

of 4 feet. Walls immediately adjacent to tub and shower areas shall be provided with moisture 555 

resistive gypsum board to a height of 7 feet above the drain inlet. 556 

 557 

Chapter 13 ENERGY EFFICIENCY. Delete this chapter in its entirety and refer to the International 558 

Energy Conservation Code as amended. 559 

 560 

Section1503.7 Protection from falling snow and ice. Add a new section.  561 

 562 

Where the accumulation of snow and/or ice on a structure creates a hazardous condition, the areas 563 

below the accumulation shall be protected from falling snow and/or ice. These areas shall include (but 564 

not be limited to) building entrances and exits, pedestrian, driveways, public right-of-way and utility 565 

locations for gas meters, fire department connections, and electrical meters, services and disconnects. 566 

Section 1507.2.2Slope. Delete this paragraph and replace as follows: 567 

 568 

Asphalt shingles shall be used only on roof slopes of two units vertical in 12 units horizontal or 569 

greater. Required underlayment shall be provided as follows: A roof slope of 2:12 shall be provided 570 



14 

 

with an approved self–adhering polymer modified bitumen on the entire roof surface. A roof slope of 571 

3:12 shall be provided with double underlayment in accordance with section 1507.2.8. Roof slopes of 572 

4:12 or greater shall be provided with a single layer of underlayment in accordance with section 573 

1507.2.8. 574 

 575 

Section 1507.2.6 Fasteners. Add an exception to read: 576 

 577 

Staples may be substituted for nails on new work only. They must be galvanized or stainless steel 578 

with a (1) inch crown and of sufficient length to completely penetrate the shingle and roof sheathing. 579 

Staples must be straight and flush with the shingle surface. 580 

 581 

Section 1507.2.8 Underlayment application. In the first sentence, change “two units vertical” to “three 582 

units vertical”.  583 

 584 

Section 1507.2.8.2 Ice barrier. Delete this section in its entirety and replace as follows:  585 

 586 

Where a non-energy heel truss design is utilized, an approved self-adhering polymer modified 587 

bitumen sheet shall be installed on the roof deck extending from the eave up the roof to 36 inches 588 

inside the exterior wall line of the building. 589 

 590 

Exception: Detached accessory structures that contain no conditioned floor area. 591 

 592 

Section 1608.4 Roof snow loads. Add a new section to read as follows: 593 

 594 

In no case shall the roof design snow load be less than 50 psf. There is no snow load duration increase 595 

allowed for wood framed or wood trussed roofs. A minimum ground snow load (Pg) of 60 pounds per 596 

square foot shall be used in the determination of drift loads. 597 

 598 

Section 1608.5.Sliding snow. Create a new subsection and title to read as follows: 599 

 600 

Metal roofs with a slope greater than 2:12 shall have barriers installed to resist the sliding action and 601 

subsequent dumping of ice and snow on persons and property. These barriers shall be constructed to 602 

specifically protect required public parking areas, public walkways, entrances and required exit 603 

discharge. 604 

 605 

Section 1803.1 General. Add the following sentence to the paragraph.  606 

 607 

The effects of soil densification and differential settlement shall also be considered in the 608 

investigation, reporting and determination of potential soil strength loss when conditions warrant, also 609 

reference Sections 1803.5.11 and 1803.5.12. 610 

 611 

Section 1803.5.2.Questionable soil. Add the following sentence to the paragraph. 612 

 613 

In the event permafrost conditions are suspected, a soils investigation may be required. 614 



15 

 

 615 

Section 1804.4 Site grading. Add the following sentence to the last paragraph. 616 

 617 

It shall be the responsibility of the building owner to assure that discharge of roof and surface runoffs 618 

disposed of without affecting adjacent property. 619 

 620 

Section 1804.6 Compacted fill material. Delete the first sentence and replace with the following: 621 

 622 

Where footings will bear on compacted fill material, the compacted fill shall, when required by the 623 

Building Official, comply with the provisions of an approved report, which shall contain the 624 

following: 625 

 626 

Fill material used to support building foundations and/or floor slabs shall consist of not more than 627 

five percent by weight of particles passing the No. 200 sieve and shall be compacted to a minimum 628 

of 95 percent of maximum density. The Building Official may require that verification of 629 

compaction be submitted in the event a site inspection reveals questionable soil conditions. 630 

 631 

Section 1805.4.2 Foundation drain. Delete this section in its entirety. 632 

 633 

Section 1806.2 Presumptive load-bearing values. Add a third paragraph to the section to read as 634 

follows: 635 

 636 

Footings shall bear upon in-situ, coarse-grained soils as defined in ASTM 2487 with the exception of 637 

groups SM and SC. Soils grouped in the SM and SC classifications shall be acceptable provided the 638 

footings are at a depth as required above and placed upon a minimum of 1 foot-6 inch of compacted, 639 

clean gravel fill. 640 

 641 

Section 1807.1.6.2.1 Seismic requirements. Replace with: 642 

 643 

Plain concrete foundation walls are prohibited in Seismic Design Category D. 644 

 645 

Section 1807.1.3 Rubble Stone. Delete this section and referenced tables in its entirety. 646 

 647 

Section 1807.1.6.3.1 Masonry foundation walls. Replace 1. with: 648 

 649 

Table 1807.1.6.3(2), 1807.1.6.3(3) or 1807.1.6.3(4) for masonry walls with reinforcement. Plain 650 

masonry foundation walls are prohibited in seismic design category D. 651 

Table 1807.1.6.3(1) Plain masonry foundation walls. Delete this section in its entirety. 652 

 653 

Section 1807.1.6.3.1 Alternative foundation wall reinforcement. Delete this section in its entirety and 654 

replace as follows: 655 

 656 

In lieu of the reinforcement provisions for masonry foundation walls in table 1807.1.6.3(2), 657 

1807.1.6.3(3) or 1807.1.6.3(4), alternative reinforcing bar sizes and spacing having an equivalent 658 



16 

 

cross-sectional area of reinforcement per linear foot of wall shall be permitted to be used, provided 659 

the spacing of reinforcement does not exceed 48 inches and reinforcing bar sizes do not exceed 660 

No.11. 661 

 662 

Section 1809.1 General. Delete this section and replace as follows: 663 

 664 

Shallow foundations shall be designed by a registered engineer licensed by the State of Alaska. Such 665 

design shall comply with sections 1809.2 through 1809.13. 666 

 667 

Section 1809.2. Supporting soils. Add the following sentence to the paragraph. 668 

 669 

Shallow footings and foundations shall be built on unfrozen, undisturbed, non-frost susceptible soil, 670 

compacted unfrozen NSF fill, or controlled low-strength material (CLSM).Compacted fill material 671 

shall be placed in accordance with Section 1804.5.CLSM shall be placed in accordance with Section 672 

1804.6. 673 

 674 

Section 1809.4 Depth and width of footings. Delete this section in its entirety and replace as follows: 675 

 676 

The minimum depth of footings below the undisturbed ground surface shall be 3 foot-6 inch unless 677 

substantiated by a design prepared by a registered engineer licensed in the State of Alaska. The 678 

minimum width of footings shall be in accordance with a design prepared by a registered engineer 679 

licensed in the State of Alaska. 680 

 681 

Section 1809.5 Frost protection. Delete item 1 and replace with the following: 682 

 683 

1. The minimum depth of footings shall be 3 foot-6 inch below the ground surface. 684 

 685 

Delete item 2 under the exceptions and replace with the following: 686 

 687 

2. Area of 400 square feet (56 m²) or less for light-framed construction. 688 

 689 

Delete the last sentence of the paragraph and replace with the following: 690 

 691 

Footings shall not bear on frozen soil. 692 

 693 

Section 1809.7 Prescriptive footings for light frame construction. Delete this section in its entirety 694 

including table 1809.7 and replace as follows: 695 

 696 

Where a specific design is not provided, concrete footings supporting walls of light-frame single 697 

family–duplex residential construction are permitted to be constructed in accordance with the City of 698 

North Pole Standard Foundation Details SFD1-SFD8. Commercial foundation designs shall be 699 

prepared by a registered engineer licensed by the State of Alaska. 700 

 701 

Section 1809.8 Plain concrete footings. Delete this section in its entirety. 702 



17 

 

 703 

Section 1809.9 Masonry-unit footings. Delete this section and the exception in its entirety and replace as 704 

follows: 705 

 706 

Masonry-unit footings shall be reinforced and shall be designed by a registered engineer licensed by 707 

the State of Alaska. 708 

 709 

Section 1809.12 Timber footings. Add the following sentence to the end of the paragraph. 710 

 711 

Timber footings shall be designed by a registered engineer licensed by the State of Alaska. 712 

 713 

Section 1905.1.7 ACI 318, Section 14.1.4.Amend this section by revising paragraph 14.1.4 to read as 714 

follows: 715 

 716 

14.1.4.1 - Structures assigned to seismic design category D, E or F shall not have elements of 717 

structural plain concrete. 718 

 719 

Section 1905.1.7.ACI 318, Section 14.1.4.Amend this section by further deleting sub paragraphs (a), (b) 720 

and (c). 721 

 722 

Section 2304.8.2 Structural Roof Sheathing. Add a new paragraph to read as follows:. 723 

 724 

Roof sheathing installed on structural supports spaced (2) feet on center shall have a minimum 725 

(32/16) span rating with panel edge clips placed midway between such supports. Roof sheathing with 726 

a minimum (40/20) span rating may be applied to framing supports spaced at (2) feet on center 727 

without panel edge clips. 728 

 729 

Section 2304.8.2.1 Spaced lumber sheathing. Add a new subsection and exception to read as follows: 730 

 731 

Spaced lumber sheathing installed on roofs located in seismic design category D shall be designed by 732 

a licensed engineer registered in the State of Alaska. Drawings and supporting calculations shall be 733 

submitted for review and approval. Truss design shall consider effects of spaced sheathing. 734 

 735 

Exception: 736 

 737 

Detached residential garages, storage sheds green houses and other non-habitable accessory 738 

structures. A shop building or warehouse does not qualify for the exception unless designed by an 739 

Engineer licensed by the State of Alaska. Truss design shall consider effects of spaced sheathing. 740 

 741 

Section 2305.4. Framing connections. Create a new section and title to read as follows: 742 

 743 

Framing connections. Framing connections shall be installed at each exterior bearing end of each 744 

truss or rafter and shall have a minimum lateral load capacity of not less than 400 pounds unless 745 



18 

 

otherwise substantiated by design calculations provided by an engineer licensed in the State of 746 

Alaska. 747 

 748 

Table 2306.2. (1) Allowable Shear. Add the following sentence to footnote (c.) 749 

 750 

Where necessitated by sheathing fastener spacing, two 2-inch nominal members fastened together in 751 

accordance with section 2301.1 to transfer design shear value between the framing members is 752 

permitted. 753 

 754 

Table 2306.2. (2) Allowable Shear. Add the following sentence to footnote (e). 755 

 756 

Where necessitated by sheathing fastener spacing, two 2-inch nominal  members fastened 757 

together in accordance with section 2301.1 to transfer design  shear value between the framing 758 

members is permitted. 759 

 760 

Table 2306.3(1) Allowable Shear. Add the following sentence to footnote d. 761 

 762 

Where necessitated by sheathing fastener spacing, two 2-inch nominal members fastened together in 763 

accordance with section 2301.1 to transfer design shear value between the framing members is 764 

permitted. 765 

 766 

Table 2306.3(1) Allowable Shear. Delete the last sentence to footnote g and replace as follows: 767 

 768 

Foundation anchor bolts shall have a steel plate washer under each nut not less than 2-1/2 x 2-1/2 x 769 

3/16 inch. The plate washer shall extend to within ½ inch of the edge of the bottom plate on the 770 

sheathed side. 771 

 772 

Section 2306.3 Amend this section by adding a last sentence of the paragraph to read as follows: 773 

 774 

Shear walls sheathed with Portland cement plaster, gypsum lath, gypsum sheathing or gypsum board 775 

shall not be used to resist seismic forces in structures assigned to seismic design category D, E or F. 776 

 777 

Section 2308.2.3 Limitations. Amend this section by revising item 3 to read as follows: 778 

 779 

Ground snow loads shall not exceed 60 psf. 780 

 781 

Section 2308.3.1. Foundation plates or sills. Amend this section by adding the following sentence to the 782 

end of the paragraph to read as follows: 783 

 784 

A minimum washer of 2½ inch by 2½ inch by 3/16 inch is required for each sill plate bolted 785 

connection unless an alternate design is provided by a registered engineer licensed by the State of 786 

Alaska. 787 

 788 

Section 2509.3 Limitations. Delete item 1 in its entirety. 789 



19 

 

 790 

Chapter 27 ELECTRICAL. Delete this chapter in its entirety and replace with the National Electric 791 

Code as adopted and amended by the City of North Pole. 792 

 793 

Section 2901.1 Scope. Revise this section by deleting the reference to the International Plumbing Code 794 

and International Private Sewage Disposal Code. 795 

 796 

Add the following note to the beginning of this paragraph: 797 

 798 

Where reference to any Plumbing Code is made in this Code it shall be taken to mean the Uniform 799 

Plumbing Code as adopted and amended by the City of North Pole. 800 

 801 

Table 2902.1 Minimum Number of Required Plumbing Fixtures. Delete the footnotes to the table and 802 

replace as follows: 803 

 804 

Add footnotes (f) and (h) in the “water closet” column heading; add footnote (h) in the “other” column 805 

heading. Add footnote (g) at row 4 under the Factory and Industrial heading and under the Bathtubs and 806 

Showers column. 807 

 808 

a. The fixtures shown are based on one fixture being the minimum required for the number of persons 809 

indicated or any fraction of the number of persons indicated. The number of occupants shall be 810 

determined by the International Building Code. 811 

b. Toilet facilities for employees shall be separate from facilities for inmates or care recipients. 812 

c. A single-occupant toilet room with one water closet and one lavatory serving not more than two 813 

adjacent patient rooms shall be permitted where such room is provided with direct access from each 814 

patient room and with provisions for privacy. 815 

d. The occupant load for seasonal outdoor seating and entertainment areas shall be included when 816 

determining the minimum number of facilities required. 817 

e. For business and mercantile occupancies with an occupant load of 15 or fewer, service sinks shall 818 

not be required. 819 

f. In each bathroom or toilet room, urinals shall not be substituted for more than 67percent of the 820 

required water closets in assembly and educational occupancies. Urinals shall not be substituted for 821 

more than 50 percent of the required water closets in all other occupancies. 822 

g. Emergency showers and eyewash stations shall conform to ISEA Z358.1. 823 

h. Floor drains shall be installed in Toilet rooms containing two (2) or more water closets or a 824 

combination of at least one (1) water closet and one (1) urinal, except in a dwelling unit. Floor drains 825 

shall also be installed in commercial kitchens, laundry rooms in commercial buildings, and common 826 

laundry facilities in multi-family dwelling buildings. 827 

 828 

Section 2902.5 Drinking fountains. Delete sections 2902.5 and 2902.6 and replace with the following. 829 

 830 

2902.5. Drinking fountains. Drinking fountains shall be provided according to Table 2902.1 and this 831 

section. 832 

 833 



20 

 

2902.5.1 Location. Drinking fountains shall not be required to be located in individual tenant spaces 834 

provided that public drinking fountains are located within a travel distance of 500 feet from the most 835 

remote location in the tenant space and not more than one story above or below the tenant space. 836 

Where the tenant space is in a covered or open mall, such distance shall not exceed 300 feet. Drinking 837 

fountains shall be located on an accessible route. 838 

 839 

2902.5.2 Prohibited location. Drinking fountains, water coolers, and water dispensers shall not be 840 

installed in public restrooms. 841 

 842 

2902.5.3 Small occupancies. Drinking fountains shall not be required for an occupant load of 15 or 843 

fewer. 844 

 845 

2902.5.4 Provide high and low drinking fountains. Where drinking fountains are required, not 846 

fewer than two drinking fountains shall be provided. One drinking fountain shall comply with the 847 

requirements for people who use a wheelchair and one drinking fountain shall comply with the 848 

requirements for standing persons. 849 

  850 

Exception: A single drinking fountain with two separate spouts that complies with the requirements 851 

for people who use a wheelchair and standing persons shall be permitted to be substituted for two 852 

separate drinking fountains. 853 

 854 

2902.5.5 Substitution. Where restaurants provide drinking water and container free of charge, 855 

drinking fountains shall not be required in those restaurants. In other occupancies, excluding A and E 856 

occupancies, water dispensers shall be permitted to be substituted for not more than 50 percent of the 857 

required drinking fountains. In B occupancies with fewer than 75 occupants, bottled water dispensers 858 

or sinks shall be permitted to be substituted for the required drinking fountains. 859 

 860 

Section 3002.1 Hoistway Enclosure Protection. Add the following: 861 

 862 

Elevator hoistway shaft enclosure walls not required to have a fire resistive rating may be constructed 863 

with glass. Such glass shall be laminated glass that passes the requirements of ANSI A17.1. 864 



 

1 

 

Chapter 15.20 1 

RESIDENTIAL CODE 2 

Sections: 3 

15.20.010. Adoption. 4 

15.20.020. Modifications. 5 

15.20.030. Appeals. 6 

15.20.040. Local amendments to the International Residential Code, 2009 2015 Edition. 7 

 8 

15.20.010 Adoption. 9 

The International Residential Code, 2009 2015 Edition, as published by the International Conference of 10 

Building Officials, and every part thereof, together with the local amendments as set forth in 11 

NPMC 15.20.040, shall constitute the laws of the City relating to the construction of one and two family 12 

housing. An electronic copy of the International Residential Code is retained at the City offices. (Ord. 12-13 

08 § 2, 2012) 14 

 15 

15.20.020 Modifications. 16 

The Building Official shall have the power to modify any of the provisions of the International 17 

Residential Code adopted by this chapter upon application in writing by the owner or lessee or his duly 18 

authorized agent, when there are practical difficulties in the way of carrying out the strict letter of the 19 

code; provided, that the spirit of the code is observed, public safety secured, and substantial justice done. 20 

The particulars of the modification, when granted or allowed, and the decision of the Building Official 21 

thereon shall be entered upon the records of the Department, and a signed copy shall be furnished the 22 

applicant. (Ord. 12-08 § 2, 2012) 23 

 24 

15.20.030 Appeals. 25 

Whenever the Building Official disapproves an application or refuses to grant a permit applied for, or 26 

when it is claimed that the provisions of the code have been misconstrued or wrongly interpreted, the 27 

applicant may appeal from the decisions of the Building Official to the Mayor/City Manager within thirty 28 

days from the date of the decision. The appointment of the appeals board will be on a case-by-case basis 29 

with the members of said board comprised of local design professionals, contractors, inspectors or other 30 

members of the public deemed knowledgeable of the subject matter by the Mayor/City Manager. (Ord. 31 

12-08 § 2, 2012) 32 

 33 

15.20.040 Local amendments to the International Residential Code, 2009 2015 Edition. 34 

The amendments to the International Residential Code, 2009 2015 Edition, as published by the 35 

International Conference of Building Officials, are hereby adopted by the City of North Pole as follows: 36 

Chapter 1 Scope and Administration. 37 

 38 

Delete the following sections: R103 and R104.10.1, and refer to the City of North Pole Administrative 39 

Chapter 15.04.  40 

 41 

Section R105.3.1.1 Determination of substantially improved or substantially damaged existing 42 

buildings in flood hazard areas. Delete this section in its entirety and refer to Title 15 Fairbanks North 43 

Star Borough Flood Plain Management Regulations. 44 

http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/NorthPole/#!/NorthPole15/NorthPole1520.html#15.20.010
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/NorthPole/#!/NorthPole15/NorthPole1520.html#15.20.020
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/NorthPole/#!/NorthPole15/NorthPole1520.html#15.20.030
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/NorthPole/#!/NorthPole15/NorthPole1520.html#15.20.040


 

2 

 

 45 

Section R106.1.4 Information for construction in flood hazard areas. Delete this section in its entirety 46 

and refer to Title 15 Fairbanks North Star Borough Flood Plain Management Regulations. 47 

 48 

Section R108 Fees. Delete this section in its entirety and replace with the City of North Pole 49 

Administrative Code. 50 

 51 

Section R109 Inspections. Delete this section in its entirety and replace with: 52 

See the City of North Pole Administrative Code, Chapter 15.04. 53 

 54 

Chapter 2 Definitions 55 

 56 

Amend section R202 Definitions by adding the following definition: 57 

 58 

Duplex Dwelling Unit. Buildings which contain not more than two dwelling units. which are not 59 

otherwise distinguished or separated by a recorded lot line.  60 

 61 

Amend Section R202 Definitions Townhouse by the deleting the definition and replace as follows: 62 

 63 

Townhouse. A single-family dwelling unit constructed in a group of two or more attached units in 64 

which each unit extends from foundation to roof and with a yard or public way on at least two sides. 65 

Each townhouse shall be considered a separate building as recognized by a recorded lot line between 66 

such units. Each townhouse unit shall be provided with separate water, sewer, heating, fuel gas and 67 

electrical services. 68 

 69 

Table R301.2(1) Climatic and Geographic Design Criteria. Amend this table to read as follows: 70 

 71 

Table R301.2 Climatic and Geographic Design Criteria: 72 

 73 

 Roof Snow load: 50 psf 74 

 Wind speed: 90 mph 75 

 Seismic Design Category: D1 76 

 Weathering: Severe 77 

 Frost line depth: 42 inch below finished grade 78 

 Termite: None to slight 79 

 Decay: None to slight 80 

 Winter Design Temp. - 47° 81 

 Flood Hazards: Refer to FNSB Title 15 82 

 83 

Section R301.2.2.1.1 Alternate determination of seismic design category.  84 

Add the following sentence to the end of the paragraph to read as follows: 85 

 86 

The seismic design category for the City of North Pole shall be D1. 87 

 88 



 

3 

 

Section R301.2.4 Floodplain Construction. Delete this section in its entirety. 89 

 90 

Table R301.5 Minimum Uniformly Distributed Live Loads. Amend this table by deleting the live load 91 

value of 30 psf live load for sleeping rooms and replace with 40 psf. 92 

 93 

[Section R302.2 Townhouses. Delete this section in its entirety and replace with the following. 94 

 95 

Each townhouse shall be considered a separate building and shall be separated by fire-resistive wall 96 

assemblies meeting the requirements of section R302.1 for exterior walls. Each townhouse shall be 97 

protected from the adjacent dwelling unit by construction of independent one hour fire resistive 98 

exterior walls. The wall shall be rated for fire exposure on both sides. Plumbing, mechanical 99 

equipment, ducts or vents may be installed within independent one hour fire – resistive walls 100 

provided the openings are fire stopped as required by section 302.4.Electrical installations shall be 101 

installed in accordance with the National Electrical Code and shall be in accordance with section 102 

R302.4.  103 

 104 

Exception 1. 105 

 106 

A common 2- hour fire resistive rated wall is permitted provided such walls do not contain plumbing, 107 

mechanical equipment, ducts, or vents in the cavity of the common wall. 108 

 109 

Exception 2. 110 

 111 

A common 1- hour fire resistive rated wall is permitted provided such walls do not contain plumbing, 112 

mechanical equipment, ducts or vents in the cavity wall of the common wall and the townhouses are 113 

protected with an approved sprinkler system throughout. 114 

 115 

Section R302.2.4 Structural Independence. Delete exception #5 of this section and replace as follows: 116 

 117 

5. Townhouses separated by a common 2- hour fire- resistive wall as  provided in section R302.2 as 118 

amended. 119 

 120 

Section R302.3 Two – family dwellings. Revise the last sentence of exception #2 to read as follows: 121 

 122 

The structural framing supporting the ceiling shall be protected by not less  than 5/8 inch thick type 123 

X gypsum board or equivalent. 124 

 125 

Section R302.5.1 Opening protection. Add the following sentence to this section: 126 

 127 

Doors between the garage and residence shall be self-closing and latching. Doors shall be equipped 128 

with tight fitting smoke gasket seals installed along the top and sides of doors. A tight fitting 129 

threshold seal shall also be installed. 130 

 131 

Table R302.6 Dwelling/Garage Separation. Amend this table as follows: 132 



 

4 

 

Revise all references in the table to ½ inch gypsum board and replace with 5/8 inch thick type X 133 

gypsum board. 134 

 135 

Revise line two of the Material column to read as follows: 136 

 137 

Not less than one layer 5/8 inch Type X gypsum board for nominal dimensional lumber or two layers 138 

of gypsum board as required by ICC report ESR 1336 or as required by other proprietary research 139 

reports for specific engineered I Joists which achieve a one hour rated assembly. 140 

 141 

Section R303.1 Habitable Rooms (Light and Ventilation). Replace this section and the exceptions with 142 

the following: 143 

 144 

All habitable rooms shall be provided with natural light by means of exterior glazed openings with an 145 

area of not less than 5 percent of the floor area of such rooms with a minimum area of 5 square feet, 146 

except that minimum egress requirements shall govern. Natural ventilation shall be provided by 147 

openings to the exterior of not less than 4 percent of the floor area of habitable rooms. Such openings 148 

shall be openable and readily controllable by the building occupants. In lieu of required exterior 149 

openings for natural ventilation, a mechanical ventilating system may be provided. Such system shall 150 

be capable of providing air changes in accordance with the 2015 IECC as adopted and amended.  151 

 152 

Section R303.3 Bathrooms. Delete this section in its entirety, rename and replace with the following: 153 

 154 

Section R303.3 Bathrooms and Kitchens. Bathrooms, water closet compartments and similar rooms 155 

shall have a mechanical ventilating system connected directly to the outside capable of providing five 156 

air changes per hour. Moisture exhaust ducts shall be smooth and rigid. All moisture exhaust ducts 157 

located in an unconditioned space shall be insulated with a minimum R-11 and installed so as not to 158 

create low points where condensation may collect. All exhaust ducts shall be equipped with a back-159 

draft damper. 160 

 161 

Kitchens shall have mechanical exhaust ventilation provided directly above or immediately adjacent 162 

to the primary cooking appliance. All vents shall be connected directly to the exterior. A total exhaust 163 

ventilation rate for the structure shall be a minimum of 80 cfm per 1000 square feet of habitable floor 164 

space. All exhaust ducts shall be equipped with a back draft damper.  165 

 166 

Structures of unusually tight construction containing fuel-burning appliances, including fireplaces and 167 

mechanically exhausted range-top cooking appliances shall be provided with supplemental supply air 168 

in accordance with the Mechanical Code. A draft activated damper allowing air to flow into the 169 

structure when depressurization exceeds 10 pascals may be installed within a supply air duct. 170 

 171 

Section R309.3 Flood hazard areas. Delete this section and refer to Title 15 Fairbanks North Star 172 

Borough Flood Management Regulations 173 

 174 

Section R310.2.1 Minimum opening area. Delete the exception. 175 

Section R313 Automatic Fire Sprinkler Systems. Delete this section in its entirety. 176 



 

5 

 

 177 

Section R315.1 Interconnection. Add new subsection to read as follows: 178 

 179 

In new construction, carbon monoxide detectors shall be interconnected in such a manner that the 180 

actuation of one alarm will activate all of the alarms in the individual dwelling unit. 181 

 182 

Section R318 Protection against subterranean termites. Delete this section in its entirety. 183 

 184 

Section R322.Flood – Resistant Construction. Delete this section in its entirety and refer to Title 15 185 

Fairbanks North Star Borough Flood Plain Management Regulations 186 

 187 

Section R323 Storm Shelters. Delete this section in its entirety. 188 

 189 

Section R327 Moisture Vapor Retarders. Create a new section and title to read as follows: 190 

 191 

Section R327.1 Moisture control. 192 

 193 

The building design shall not create conditions of accelerated deterioration from moisture 194 

condensation. All exterior wall, ceiling, roof and floor assemblies which enclose heated spaces and 195 

which are exposed to outdoor ambient temperatures shall be protected against water vapor 196 

transmission. Assemblies not otherwise of impermeable construction shall have installed, on the 197 

heated side of the insulation or air spaces, vapor retarders having a perm rating of 0.06 minimum 198 

(equivalent to 6 mils polyethylene sheeting) or other material approved by the Building Official. All 199 

seams shall be lapped a minimum of one stud or joist bay or sealed with an approved tape or sealant. 200 

All voids between joists and studs shall be insulated and sealed in an approved manner. 201 

 202 

Exceptions: 203 

 204 

1. In construction where moisture or its freezing will not damage materials. 205 

 206 

2. A maximum of one-third of the total installed insulation may be installed on the warm side of 207 

approved vapor retarders. 208 

 209 

Section R327.2 Crawl space moisture protection. Create a new sub section and title to read as follows: 210 

 211 

Crawl space moisture protection. 212 

 213 

Exposed earth in crawl space foundations shall be covered with a continuous vapor retarder. All joints 214 

of the vapor retarder shall be overlapped by 6 inches or shall be sealed or taped in approved manner. 215 

The edges of the vapor retarder shall either extend over the concrete footing and secured in approved 216 

manner.  217 

 218 

Section R401.3 Drainage. Delete the section and the exception and replace with the following: 219 

 220 



 

6 

 

Surface drainage shall be diverted to a storm sewer conveyance or other approved point of collection 221 

so as to not create a hazard. Lots shall be graded to drain surface water away from foundation walls. 222 

The grade shall be sloped a minimum of 2% within the first 10 feet. It shall be the responsibility of 223 

the owner or contractor to assure that discharge of roof and surface runoff is disposed of without 224 

affecting the adjacent property. Surface drainage across lot lines is prohibited. 225 

 226 

Section R403.1 General. Delete the reference to “wood foundations” in the first sentence and add the 227 

following sentence to the end of the section to read as follows: 228 

 229 

Wood footings shall be designed and stamped by a registered engineer licensed in the State of Alaska. 230 

 231 

Section R 403.1.1 Minimum size. Delete this section in its entirety and replace as follows: 232 

 233 

The footing width shall be based on the load- bearing value of the soil in accordance with Table 234 

R401.4.1.All footing and foundation systems shall comply with standard foundations details (SFD1-235 

SFD9).In no case shall  the minimum size for concrete and masonry footings be less than 1 foot-236 

4 inch. The size of footings supporting piers and columns shall be based on the tributary load and 237 

allowable soil pressure in accordance with table R401.4.1. 238 

 239 

Table R403.1 Minimum width of concrete or masonry footings. Delete the table in its entirety and 240 

reference standard foundation details (SFD1-SFD9). 241 

 242 

Section R403.1.2 Continuous footing in Seismic Design Categories D0, D1, and D2. Delete this section in 243 

its entirety and replace as follows: 244 

 245 

Seismic reinforcing shall be provided in accordance with standard foundation details SFD1 though 246 

SFD9 unless reinforcing is specifically designed by a registered engineer licensed by the State of 247 

Alaska. Bottom reinforcement shall be located a minimum of 3 inches clear from the bottom of the 248 

footing. 249 

 250 

Section R403.1.3Footing and Stem wall reinforcing in Seismic Design Categories D0, D1, and D2. Delete 251 

this section in its entirety and replace as follows: 252 

 253 

Foundations with stem walls shall have installed a minimum of two #4 bars within 6 inches of the top 254 

of the wall and one #4 bar located 3 inches to 4 inches above the top of the footing unless otherwise 255 

noted on SFD. All reinforcing steel shall comply with standard foundation details SFD1, 2, 4, 5, 7, 8 256 

unless specifically designed and stamped by a registered engineer licensed by the State of Alaska. 257 

 258 

Section R403.1.3.3 Slabs-on- ground with turned-down footings. Delete this section and the exception 259 

in its entirety and replace as follows: 260 

 261 

Slabs-on- ground with turned-down footings shall be designed in accordance with standard 262 

foundation detail SFD9 or stamped by a registered engineer licensed by the State of Alaska. 263 



 

7 

 

Insulation for such slabs and footings shall be in accordance with section 403.3, figure 403.3(1) and 264 

table R403.3(1). 265 

 266 

Section R403.1.4 Minimum depth. Delete this section in its entirety and replace as follows: 267 

 268 

All exterior footings shall be placed at least 42 inches below finished grade unless the foundation 269 

system is designed by a registered engineer licensed by the State of Alaska. Where applicable the 270 

depth of footings shall also conform to sections R403.1.4.1 through R403.1.4.2. 271 

 272 

Exception:  273 

 274 

1. Non habitable detached single story accessory structures less than 480 square feet. 275 

 276 

Section R403.1.4.1 Frost protection. Amend this section by deleting the  exceptions and replace 277 

as follows: 278 

 279 

Exceptions: 280 

 281 

1. Protection of non-habitable freestanding accessory single story structures with an area of 480 282 

square feet or less shall not be required. 283 

 284 

2. Decks not covered with a roof and decks which are not more than 30 inches above grade at any 285 

point need not be provided with footings that extend below the frost line. 286 

 287 

Section R403.2 Footings for wood foundations. Delete this section in its entirety including references to 288 

figures R403.1(2) and R403.1(3) and replace as follows: 289 

 290 

Wood foundations shall comply with standard foundation details SFD3 and  SFD6 or the wood 291 

foundation system shall be specifically designed and  stamped by a registered engineer 292 

licensed by the State of Alaska.  293 

 294 

Section R403.3 Frost protected shallow foundations. Delete the first sentence and replace with the 295 

following: 296 

 297 

Frost protected shallow foundations shall be designed in accordance with standard foundation 298 

detail SFD9 or stamped by a registered engineer licensed in the State of Alaska. The design must be 299 

in constructed in accordance with Sections R403.3.1 thru R403.3.3, including Figures R403.3(1), 300 

R403.3(3) or R403.3(4) and Table R403.3 (1). 301 

 302 

Section R403.3.3 Drainage. Delete this section in its entirety and replace with the following: 303 

 304 

Final site drainage shall be in accordance with Section R401.3 305 

Section R403.3.4 Termite damage. Delete this section in its entirety. 306 

 307 



 

8 

 

Section R403.4.1 Crushed stone footings. Delete this section in its entirety. 308 

 309 

Table R403.4 Minimum Depth of Crushed Stone footings. Delete this table in its entirety. 310 

 311 

Section R404.1.2 Masonry foundation walls. Delete this section in its entirety and all references to 312 

tables R404.1.1(1), R404.1.1(2), R404.1.1(3), R404.1.1(4) and replace as follows: 313 

 314 

The minimum design for masonry foundation walls shall comply with The City of North Pole 315 

Standard Foundation Details (SFD) #1, #4 or #7 unless an alternate foundation design has been 316 

prepared and stamped by a registered engineer licensed by the State of Alaska. 317 

 318 

Section R404.1.3 Concrete foundation walls. Add the following sentence to the end of the paragraph. 319 

 320 

The minimum design for concrete foundation walls shall comply with The City of North Pole 321 

Standard Foundation Details (SFD) #2, #5 or #8 unless an alternate foundation design has been 322 

prepared and stamped by a registered engineer licensed by the State of Alaska. 323 

 324 

Table R404.1.2(1). Delete the table in its entirety and replace as follows: 325 

 326 

Two horizontal #4 bars are required to be installed within the top 6 inches of the wall and one #4 bar 327 

shall be provided near mid-height of the wall story where the maximum unsupported height of the 328 

basement wall is greater than 4 feet and less than or equal to 8 feet. When the maximum unsupported 329 

height of the basement wall is greater than 8 feet the required reinforcing shall be installed in 330 

accordance with a design provided by a registered engineer licensed by the State of Alaska. 331 

 332 

Section R404.1.3.2 Reinforcement for foundation walls. Delete this section in its entirety and replace 333 

as follows: 334 

 335 

Concrete foundation walls shall be laterally supported at the top and bottom. Horizontal 336 

reinforcement shall be provided in accordance with table R404.1.2(1) as amended. Vertical 337 

reinforcement shall be provided in accordance with Standard foundation Details SFD1, 2, 4, 5, 7, 8.In 338 

buildings assigned to Seismic Design Category D1 or concrete foundation walls shall also comply 339 

with Section R404.1.4.2. 340 

 341 

Table R404.1.2 (2). Delete this table in its entirety and replace as follows: 342 

 343 

Minimum vertical reinforcement shall be installed in accordance with Standard foundation Details 344 

SFD 1, 2, 4, 5, 7, 8 or shall be installed in accordance with a design provided by a registered engineer 345 

licensed by the State of Alaska. 346 

 347 

Table R404.1.2 (3). Delete this table in its entirety and replace as follows:  348 

Minimum vertical reinforcement shall be installed in accordance with Standard foundation Details 349 

SFD 1, 2, 4, 5, 7, 8 or shall be installed in accordance with a design provided by a registered engineer 350 

licensed by the State of Alaska. 351 



 

9 

 

 352 

Table R404.1.2 (4).Delete this table in its entirety and replace as follows:  353 

 354 

Minimum vertical reinforcement shall be installed in accordance with Standard foundation Details 355 

SFD 1, 2, 4, 5, 7, 8 or shall be installed in accordance with a design provided by a registered engineer 356 

licensed by the State of Alaska. 357 

 358 

Table R404.1.2 (5). Delete this table in its entirety and replace as follows: 359 

 360 

Vertical wall reinforcement shall be installed in accordance with the manufactures installation 361 

instructions or a design provided by a registered engineer licensed by the State of Alaska. 362 

 363 

Table R404.1.2 (6). Delete this table in its entirety and replace as follows:  364 

 365 

Minimum vertical reinforcement shall be installed in accordance with the manufactures installation 366 

instructions or shall be installed in accordance with a design provided by a registered engineer 367 

licensed by the State of Alaska. 368 

 369 

Table R404.1.2 (7). Delete this table in its entirety 370 

 371 

Table R404.1.2 (8). Delete this table in its entirety and replace as follows: 372 

 373 

Minimum vertical reinforcement shall be installed in accordance with Standard foundation Details 374 

SFD 1, 2, 4, 5, 7 and 8 or shall be installed in accordance with a design provided by a registered 375 

engineer licensed by the State of Alaska. 376 

 377 

Section R404.1.4.1 Masonry foundation walls. Delete this section in its entirety and replaces as follows: 378 

 379 

Foundation walls in buildings assigned to seismic Design Category D1 as established in Table 380 

R301.2(1), supporting more than 4 feet of unbalanced backfill or exceeding 8 feet in height shall be 381 

constructed in accordance with SFD 1, 2, 4, 5, 7 and 8 or a design shall be provided by a registered 382 

engineer licensed by the State of Alaska. Masonry foundation walls shall have two horizontal #4 bars 383 

located in the upper 6 inches of the wall. 384 

 385 

Section R404.1.4.2 Concrete foundation walls. Delete this section in its entirety and replace as follows: 386 

 387 

In buildings assigned to Seismic Design Category D1 as established in table R301.2(1), concrete 388 

foundation walls that support light –frame walls shall comply with this section and concrete 389 

foundation walls that support above-grade concrete walls shall comply with ACI 318, ACI 332 or 390 

PCA 100 (see section R404.1.2).In addition to the horizontal reinforcement by table R404.1.2(1) as 391 

amended concrete foundation walls shall comply with standard foundation details SFD1, 2, 4, 5, 7 392 

and 8. 393 

 394 

Section R404.2 Wood foundations. Delete this section in its entirety and replace as follows: 395 



 

10 

 

 396 

Wood foundation walls shall be constructed in accordance with the provisions of sections R404.2.1 397 

through R404.2.6 and standard foundation details SFD 3.and 6 as adopted by the City of North Pole. 398 

An alternate design may be submitted for review and approval if the design is prepared and stamped 399 

by a registered engineer licensed by the State of Alaska. 400 

 401 

Section R404.2.5 Drainage and Dampproofing. Delete this section in its entirety and replace as follows: 402 

 403 

Wood foundation basements shall be drained and dampproofed in accordance with Standard 404 

Foundation Details SFD3 and SFD6. 405 

 406 

Section R405.1 Concrete or masonry foundations. Delete this section in its entirety and replace as 407 

follows:  408 

 409 

Concrete and masonry foundations shall be installed in compliance with Standard foundation details 410 

SFD1, 2, 4, 5, 7, 8.A drainage system is not required when the foundation is installed on well-drained 411 

ground or sand gravel mixture soils according to the Unified Soil Classification System, Group I soil, 412 

as detailed in Table R405.1. 413 

 414 

Section R405.2 Wood foundations. Delete this section in its entirety and replace as follows: 415 

 416 

Wood foundations shall comply with Standard foundation details SFD 3 and 6. 417 

 418 

Section R405.2.1 Base. Delete this section in its entirety. 419 

 420 

Section R405.2.3 Drainage system. Delete this section in its entirety. 421 

 422 

Section R406.1 Concrete and Masonry Foundation Dampproofing. Amend this section by revising 423 

the first sentence to read as follows:  424 

 425 

Except where required by section R406.2 to be water proofed, foundation walls that retain earth and 426 

enclose interior spaces and floors below grade shall be dampproofed from the top of the footing to 6 427 

inches above finished grade. 428 

 429 

Section R406.1.Amend this section by adding exception #2 to read as follows:  430 

 431 

2.Crawl space foundation walls or walls backfilled on both sides, such as those used in conjunction 432 

with a “slab on grade”, do not require damp-proofing. 433 

 434 

Section R406.3 Dampproofing for wood foundations. Amend this section by adding the following 435 

sentence to the end of the paragraph. 436 

 437 

Foundation foundations shall comply with Standard foundation details SFD 3 and 6. 438 

 439 



 

11 

 

Section R406.3.2 Below-grade moisture barrier. Delete the first sentence and replace with the 440 

following: 441 

 442 

A double layer of 6-mil polyethylene film shall be applied over the below-grade portion of the 443 

exterior foundation walls prior to backfilling. A single layer of self-adhering polymer modified 444 

bitumen sheet material may be used in lieu of the polyethylene film. 445 

 446 

Section R406.3.2 Below- grade moisture barrier. Delete the last sentence of the paragraph and replace 447 

with the following: 448 

 449 

The moisture barrier shall overlap onto the footing. 450 

 451 

Section R408.1 Ventilation. Delete this section in its entirety and replace with the following: 452 

 453 

Each under-floor space shall be ventilated by an approved mechanical means or by openings in 454 

exterior foundation walls. Such openings shall have a net area of not less than 0.1 square foot for each 455 

150 square feet of under-floor area. There shall be two openings located as close to corners as 456 

practical on opposite sides to provide cross ventilation. The openings shall be covered with corrosion 457 

resistant wire mesh approximately 1/4 inch in size. All structures with a crawl space shall have a 458 

minimum 6 mil ground vapor retarder to prevent the flow of water vapor from soils into the heated 459 

building interior. 460 

 461 

Section R502.1.1 Sawn Lumber. Add the following exception: 462 

 463 

Exception: Rough sawn, ungraded, dimensional lumber may be used for framing materials in floors, 464 

walls and roofs of detached garages, utility buildings and other unheated accessory building and other 465 

applications where approved by the Building Official. 466 

 467 

Section R601.3 Vapor retarders. Add new section 468 

 469 

Continuous vapor retarders are required to be installed on the exterior envelope. The vapor retarder 470 

shall be installed such that not less than 2/3 of the total wall R-value is placed on the cold side of the 471 

vapor retarder. 472 

 473 

Exception: Construction where moisture or its freezing will not damage the materials. 474 

 475 

Section R602.11.1 Wall anchorage. In the second sentence, replace “3 inch by 3 inch” with the 476 

following: 477 

 478 

2 inch by 2 inch. 479 

 480 

Section R703.2 Water-resistive barrier. Delete this section in its entirety. 481 

 482 

Section R802.10.2 Design. Add the following sentence to end of paragraph: 483 



 

12 

 

 484 

A 15% load duration increase shall not be utilized for wood trusses where the live load considered is 485 

snow. 486 

 487 

Section 806.2 Minimum area. Amend this section by deleting the exception and replace as follows: 488 

 489 

As an alternative, the net free cross-ventilation area may be reduced to 1/300 when a class I vapor 490 

barrier is installed on the warm–in-winter side of the ceiling. 491 

 492 

Section 806.5 Unvented attic assemblies. Delete this section in its entirety. 493 

 494 

Section R807.1 Attic access. Add the following sentence to the end of the 2nd paragraph: 495 

 496 

Attic access shall not be located in a room containing bathing facilities. Access may be located in 497 

closets with minimum depth of 23 inches and minimum width of 48 inches. 498 

 499 

Exception: 500 

 501 

Attic access may be provided from the exterior gable vent in accordance with size and opening 502 

requirements of this section. The gable vent must be readily accessible.  503 

 504 

Section R903.1 General. Add the following sentence to the end of section: 505 

 506 

1. All valleys shall have a modified bitumen ice barrier lapped eighteen inches minimum each side of 507 

valley centerline. No penetrations shall be located in required valley ice barrier. 508 

 509 

Section R903.4 Roof drainage. Add the following sentence to the end of the paragraph: 510 

 511 

Roof drainage shall be diverted to a storm sewer conveyance or other approved point of collection so 512 

as to not create a hazard. Lots shall be graded to drain surface water away from foundation walls. The 513 

grade shall be sloped a minimum of 2% within the first 10 feet. It shall be the responsibility of the 514 

owner or contractor to assure that discharge of roof and surface runoff is disposed of without 515 

affecting the adjacent property. Water drainage which migrates across property lines is strictly 516 

prohibited. 517 

 518 

Section R905.2.2 Slope. Delete the section and replace with the following: 519 

 520 

Asphalt shingles shall be used only on roof slopes of two units vertical in 12 units horizontal or 521 

greater. Required underlayment shall be provided as follows: A roof slope of 2:12 shall be provided 522 

with an approved self-adhering polymer modified bitumen on the entire roof surface. A roof slope of 523 

3:12 shall be provided with double underlayment in accordance with section R905.2.7.Roof slopes of 524 

4:12 or greater shall be provided with a single layer of underlayment in accordance with section 525 

R905.2.7. 526 

 527 



 

13 

 

Section R905.2.5 Fasteners. Add an exception to read as follows: 528 

 529 

Staples may be substituted for nails on new work only. They must be galvanized or stainless steel 530 

with a 1 inch crown and of sufficient length to completely penetrate the shingle and the roof 531 

sheathing. Staples must be straight and flush with the shingle surface. 532 

 533 

Table 905.1.1(2) Underlayment Application. Amend the Asphalt shingles section by deleting the first 534 

sentence up to the “:” and replace as follows: 535 

 536 

A roof slope of 2:12 shall be provided with an approved self-adhering polymer modified bitumen on 537 

the entire roof surface. A roof slope of 3:12 shall be provided with double underlayment in the 538 

following manner. 539 

 540 

Section R905.1.2 Ice Barriers. Delete this section in its entirety and replace with the following: 541 

 542 

Where a non-energy heel truss design is utilized, an approved self-adhering polymer modified 543 

bitumen sheet shall be installed on the roof deck extending from the eave up the roof to 36 inches 544 

inside the exterior wall line of the building. 545 

 546 

Exception: Detached accessory structures that contain no conditioned floor area. 547 

 548 

Section R905.14 Sprayed polyurethane foam roofing. Delete this section in its entirety. 549 

 550 

Chapter 11 Energy Efficiency. Delete this chapter in its entirety and reference the International Energy 551 

Conservation Code as currently adopted and amended. 552 

 553 

MECHANICAL 554 

 555 

Chapters 12-23.Delete these chapters and reference the Mechanical Code as currently adopted and 556 

amended by the City of North Pole. 557 

 558 

FUEL GAS 559 

 560 

Chapter 24.Delete this chapter and reference the Fuel Gas Code as currently adopted and amended by the 561 

City of North Pole. 562 

 563 

PLUMBING 564 

 565 

Chapters 25-31.Delete these chapters and reference the Plumbing Code as currently adopted and 566 

amended by the City of North Pole. 567 

 568 

APPENDICES 569 

 570 



 

14 

 

Appendix K Sound Transmission. Adopt Appendix K Sound Transmission and revise section AK 102 571 

AIR-BORNE Sound and section AK 103 Structural-Borne Sound to read as follows: 572 

 573 

Section AK 102 AIRBORNE SOUND 574 

 575 

Air–borne sound insulation for a wall and floor- ceiling assemblies shall meet a Sound Transmission 576 

Class (STC) rating of 50 when tested in accordance with ASTM E90.Penetrations or openings in 577 

construction assemblies for piping; electrical devices, recessed cabinets, bathtubs soffits or heating 578 

ventilating or exhaust ducts shall be sealed, lined, insulated or otherwise treated to maintain the required 579 

ratings. Dwelling unit entrance doors, which a share a common space shall be tight fitting to the frame 580 

and sill and shall be provided with gasket seals at the top and sides of such doors. 581 

 582 

Section AK 103 Structural–Borne Sound 583 

 584 

Floor/ceiling assemblies between a dwelling unit and public space or service area within the structure 585 

shall have an impact insulation class (IIC) rating of not less than 50 when tested in accordance with 586 

ASTM E 492. 587 



 

1 

 

Chapter 15.28 1 

MECHANICAL CODE 2 

Sections: 3 

15.28.010. Adoption. 4 

15.28.020. Modifications. 5 

15.28.030. Appeals. 6 

15.28.040. Local amendments to the International Mechanical Code, 2009 2015 Edition. 7 

 8 

15.28.010 Adoption. 9 

The code known as the International Mechanical Code, 2009 2015 Edition, as published by the 10 

International Conference of Building Officials, together with the local amendments as set forth in 11 

NPMC 15.28.040, shall constitute the laws of the City relating to building regulations. Where the 12 

International Mechanical Code conflicts with this code, this code shall prevail. An electronic copy of the 13 

International Mechanical Code is retained at the City offices. (Ord. 12-09 § 2, 2012) 14 

 15 

15.28.020 Modifications. 16 

The Building Official shall have the power to modify any of the provisions of the International 17 

Mechanical Code adopted by this chapter upon application in writing by the owner or lessee or his duly 18 

authorized agent, when there are practical difficulties in the way of carrying out the strict letter of the 19 

code; provided, that the spirit of the code is observed, public safety secured, and substantial justice done. 20 

The particulars of the modification, when granted or allowed, and the decision of the Building Official 21 

thereon shall be entered upon the records of the Department, and a signed copy shall be furnished the 22 

applicant. (Ord. 12-09 § 2, 2012) 23 

 24 

15.28.030 Appeals. 25 

Whenever the Building Official disapproves an application or refuses to grant a permit applied for, or 26 

when it is claimed that the provisions of the code have been misconstrued or wrongly interpreted, the 27 

applicant may appeal from the decisions of the Building Official to the Mayor/City Manager within thirty 28 

days from the date of the decision. The appointment of the appeals board will be on a case-by-case basis 29 

with the members of said board comprised of local design professionals, contractors, inspectors or other 30 

members of the public deemed knowledgeable of the subject matter by the Mayor/City Manager. (Ord. 31 

12-09 § 2, 2012) 32 

 33 

15.28.040 Local amendments to the International Mechanical Code, 2009 2015 Edition. 34 

The amendments to the International Mechanical Code, 2009 2015 Edition, as published by the 35 

International Conference of Building Officials, are hereby adopted by the City of North Pole as follows: 36 

 37 

Section 101.2.1 Appendices. Add the following to this section. 38 

Appendix A as amended by the combustion air provisions of chapter 7 is hereby adopted. 39 

Except for sections 101, 102, and the following amendments, delete Chapter 1 in its entirety and refer 40 

to the City of North Pole Administrative Code, Chapter 15.04. 41 

 42 

Section 102.8 Referenced codes and standards. Revise and add four subsections at the end of this 43 

section as follows: 44 

http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/NorthPole/#!/NorthPole15/NorthPole1528.html#15.28.010
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/NorthPole/#!/NorthPole15/NorthPole1528.html#15.28.020
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/NorthPole/#!/NorthPole15/NorthPole1528.html#15.28.030
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/NorthPole/#!/NorthPole15/NorthPole1528.html#15.28.040
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/NorthPole/#!/NorthPole15/NorthPole1528.html#15.28.040


 

2 

 

 45 

102.8.3 Plumbing. Where reference to any Plumbing Code is made in this Code it shall be taken to 46 

mean the Uniform Plumbing Code as adopted and amended by the City of North Pole. 47 

 48 

102.8.4 Electrical. Where reference to any Electrical Code is made in this Code it shall be taken to 49 

mean the National Electrical Code as adopted and amended by the City of North Pole. 50 

  51 

102.8.5 Administrative. The provisions of the City of North Pole Administrative Code, Chapter 52 

15.04 shall apply to the administration and enforcement of this code. Where provisions of the City of 53 

North Pole Administrative Code and this code conflict, the more restrictive text shall apply. 54 

 55 

102.8.6 Energy. Where reference is made in this Code to the International Energy Conservation 56 

Code it shall be taken to mean the IECC as currently adopted by the City of North Pole. 57 

 58 

Section 201.3 Terms defined in other codes. Revise this section as follows. 59 

 60 

Where terms are not defined in this code and are defined in the International Building Code, National 61 

Electrical Code, International Fire Code, International Fuel Gas Code, or Uniform Plumbing Code, 62 

such terms shall have meanings ascribed to them in those codes. 63 

 64 

Section 201.4 Terms not defined. Amend this section by adding the following sentence. 65 

 66 

Webster’s Third New International Dictionary of the English Language, Unabridged shall be 67 

considered as providing ordinarily accepted meanings. 68 

 69 

Section 301.2.Energy utilization. Delete this section in its entirety. 70 

 71 

Section 301.7 Electrical. Add the following sentence to the end of this subsection. 72 

 73 

When an existing fuel-fired appliance is not equipped with the required manual disconnect and the 74 

appliance is replaced, an approved manual disconnect within clear view of the appliance shall be 75 

installed. 76 

 77 

Section 301.19 Carbon Monoxide Alarm. Add this section numbering, title, and the following after 78 

section.301.18. 79 

 80 

Where a fuel-fired appliance is installed or replaced in an existing dwelling an approved carbon 81 

monoxide alarm shall be installed outside of each separate sleeping area in the immediate vicinity of 82 

the bedrooms. A single station, battery-operated carbon monoxide alarm shall be listed as complying 83 

with UL 2034 and shall be installed according to the manufacturer’s installation instructions. 84 

 85 

Section 302.1.1 Pipe and Tubing embedded in concrete. Add this subsection with the following text. 86 

 87 



 

3 

 

Pipe and tubing embedded in concrete slabs or footings, including sleeves, shall not be placed at a 88 

depth below the top surface of the concrete of less than 1 ½ - inch for concrete exposed to earth or 89 

weather or ¾-inch for concrete not exposed to earth or weather. They shall not be spaced closer than 90 

3 diameters or widths from structural steel elements 91 

 92 

Section 302.6 Penetration Weatherproofing. Add this section and the following after section 302.5.3. 93 

 94 

Joints at roofs and exterior walls around pipes, ducts, appurtenances or equipment shall be made 95 

watertight by the use of approved materials. 96 

 97 

Section 303.4.Protection from damage. Add the following at the end of Section 303.4. 98 

 99 

Fuel-fired equipment and appliances located within the direct perpendicular path of a garage door 100 

opening of eight foot or less in height shall comply with Section 303.4.1 101 

 102 

303.4.1.Fuel-fired appliance protection. Fuel fired appliances and equipment located in the direct path 103 

of vehicles as described in 303.4 shall be protected from impact with one of the following methods. 104 

 105 

1. A minimum schedule 40 nominal 3 inch diameter steel pipe 30 inch high, with a vertical face of the 106 

pipe at least 6 inch in the direction of vehicle approach and: 107 

 108 

1.1 Buried a minimum 2 foot0 inch deep in compacted soil and imbedded in at least 4 inch nominal 109 

concrete slab, or 110 

 111 

1.2 Set in a minimum 1 foot 0 inch x1 foot 0 inch x 1 foot 0 inch block of concrete (slab included).  112 

2. A platform on which the equipment sits, at least 24 inch high, extended at least 6 inch greater than the 113 

equipment footprint (including attachments such as burners and controls) in the direction of vehicle 114 

approach and in contact with the structure opposite the direction of vehicle approach. 115 

3.  116 

4. An approved system of equivalent resistance to vehicle impact extending at least 6 inch ahead of the 117 

equipment’s footprint in the direction of vehicle approach, including attachments such as burners and 118 

controls. 119 

 120 

Section 303.8 Elevator Shafts. Delete this section in its entirety and replace as follows: 121 

 122 

Mechanical systems shall not be located in an elevator shaft except mechanical equipment and 123 

devices exclusively serving the elevator. Discharge piping from any sump pump shall exit the hoist 124 

way as low as practicable. Sump pumps shall be sized per the Uniform Plumbing Code as amended. 125 

 126 

Section 304.1.1 Fuel-fired equipment startup report. Add this subsection as follows: 127 

 128 

A startup report is required for all fan-assisted or power-burner fuel-fired equipment indicating the 129 

following conditions and others which the manufacturer recommends in their installation instructions. 130 



 

4 

 

A non-returnable copy must be provided to the inspector for insertion in the Building Department 131 

project files. 132 

 133 

 Company, Name, address, and Phone Number of Startup Technician 134 

 Manufacturer and Model No. of Equipment 135 

 Date and Time of Startup and Noted Readings 136 

 Net Stack Temperature 137 

 Over fire Draft 138 

 Breech Draft  139 

 Stack Draft 140 

 CO or Smoke 141 

 CO2 or O2 142 

 Actual Rate of fuel input 143 

 144 

Section 312.1 Load calculations. Delete the last sentence of this section and substitute the following. 145 

 146 

Alternatively, design loads shall be determined by an approved equivalent computation procedure. 147 

 148 

Section 401.4 Intake Openings. Add the following exception. 149 

 150 

Exception: 151 

 152 

Passive Outdoor Air intake openings, including opening doors and windows, shall not be located 153 

closer than 3 feet horizontally to any gas pressure regulator vent opening, unless such vent opening is 154 

located at least 3 feet above the air intake opening. 155 

 156 

Section 401.5 Intake opening protection. Add an exception at the end of this section as follows: 157 

 158 

Exception: HRV weather hoods as provided by the respective unit’s manufacturer may be used for its 159 

Intake and Exhaust Air openings. 160 

 161 

TABLE 401.5 OPENING SIZES IN LOUVERS, GRILLES AND SCREENS PROTECTING 162 

OUTDOOR EXHAUST AND AIR INTAKE OPENINGS 163 

 164 

Delete Table 401.5 and replace with the following. 165 

OUTDOOR OPENING TYPE MINIMUM AND MAXIMUM OPENING 

SIZES IN LOUVERS, GRILLES AND 

SCREENS MEASURED IN ANY 

DIRECTION 

 Exhaust and Intake openings in residential 

occupancies 
½ inch 

Intake openings in other than residential 

occupancies 

Not < ½ inch and not > 1 inch 



 

5 

 

 166 

Section 403.3.1.1 Outdoor airflow rate. Amend this section by revising the first sentence to read as 167 

follows. 168 

 169 

Ventilation systems shall be designed to have the capacity to supply the minimum outdoor airflow 170 

rate determined in accordance with Table 403.3.1.1 based on the occupancy of the spaces and the 171 

occupant load or in accordance with the latest edition of ASHRAE Standard 62 172 

 173 

Section.501.3 Exhaust discharge. Delete the exceptions to this section. 174 

 175 

Section 502.21. Manicure and Pedicure Stations. Add this section. 176 

 177 

The permit holder shall verify capture and containment performance of the exhaust system. This field 178 

test shall be conducted with all sources of outdoor air providing makeup air operating and with all 179 

sources of recirculated air operating which provide conditioning for the space in which the capture 180 

and containment is required. Capture and containment shall be verified visually by observing smoke 181 

simulating contaminant emission.  182 

 183 

Section 505.1 Domestic systems. Delete the first paragraph of this section and substitute the following. 184 

 185 

Built-in Cook-top or Range-top domestic cooking appliances located within dwelling units and within 186 

areas where domestic cooking appliance operations occur shall be listed and labeled as household-187 

type appliances for domestic use. A ventilating hood above, or an approved downdraft exhaust, shall 188 

be provided for a cook-top or range-top domestic cooking appliance, and shall discharge to the 189 

outdoors through a single-wall duct. The duct shall be sheet metal, of galvanized steel, stainless steel, 190 

aluminum or copper, airtight, and equipped with a backdraft damper. A microwave or cooking 191 

appliance that exhausts to the outdoors according to this section, is listed and labeled for installation 192 

over a cooking appliance, and conforms to the terms of the upper appliance’s listing and label, shall 193 

be approved. 194 

 195 

Delete exception #1. 196 

 197 

Section 506.3.11. Grease duct enclosure. Add the following sentence at the end of this section’s 198 

paragraph. 199 

 200 

Duct enclosures penetrating wall assemblies shall have a fire-resistance rating of not less than that 201 

required for the wall assembly, but not less than 1-hour nor more than 2-hour. 202 

 203 

506.3.11.1 Shaft enclosure. Delete and replace the second sentence of this subsection with the 204 

following. 205 

 206 

Such grease duct systems and exhaust equipment shall have a clearance to combustible construction 207 

of not less than 18 inches, and shall have a clearance to noncombustible construction and gypsum 208 

wallboard attached to noncombustible structures of not less than 3 inches. 209 



 

6 

 

 210 

Section 507.1 General. Amend this section by adding the following sentence. 211 

 212 

Design documents for commercial hoods, commercial ventilation and makeup air systems shall 213 

be designed by and bear the stamp of a professional mechanical engineer currently registered in 214 

the State of Alaska. 215 

 216 

Section 508.1 Makeup air. Amend this section by adding the following sentence. 217 

 218 

Design documents for commercial hoods, commercial ventilation and makeup air systems shall 219 

be designed by and bear the stamp of a professional mechanical engineer currently registered in 220 

the State of Alaska. 221 

 222 

Section 601.4 Contamination prevention. Amend this section numbering the published Exception as 223 

noted and adding Exception 3 as follows. 224 

 225 

Exception 1.Exhaust systems… 226 

 227 

Exception 3.Environmental air exhaust ducts under positive pressure may extend into or through 228 

ducts or plenums if one of the following design approaches is used. 229 

 230 

1. Route environmental air exhaust ducts inside a shaft when passing through a duct or plenum. 231 

Install a second duct around the environmental air exhaust duct where passing through ducts and 232 

plenums to minimize leakage to the duct plenums. Seal both ends of the outer duct to the outside. 233 

2. Install a second duct around the environmental air exhaust duct where passing through ducts and 234 

plenums to minimize leakage to the duct or plenum. Seal both ends of the outer duct to outside. 235 

3. Seal the environmental air exhaust ducts along all seams and joints using a listed low to medium 236 

pressure duct sealant which is typically applied by brush, trowel or caulking gun. 237 

4. Provide flexible duct with no seams in the duct or plenum. The maximum length of the flexible 238 

duct is limited to 8 feet due to high static loss. A metal duct may be sleeved by the flexible 239 

seamless duct. 240 

 241 

Section 602.1 General. Revise this section as follows. 242 

 243 

Supply, return, exhaust, relief and ventilation air plenums shall be limited to areas above a ceiling or 244 

below the floor, attic spaces and mechanical equipment rooms. Plenums shall be limited to one fire 245 

area. Fuel-fired appliances shall not be installed within a plenum. 246 

 247 

Exception: Underfloor crawlspaces shall not be used as plenums. 248 

 249 

Section 604.1 General. Revise this section as follows. 250 

 251 

Duct insulation shall conform to the requirements of sections 604.2 through 604.13.and the 252 

International Energy Conservation Code. All supply, return, and exhaust ducts and plenums shall be 253 



 

7 

 

insulated with a minimum of R-11 insulation when located outside the building envelope. When 254 

located within a building envelope assembly, the duct or plenum shall be separated from the building 255 

exterior or unconditioned space or exempt spaces by a minimum of R-11 insulation. 256 

 257 

Exceptions: 258 

 259 

1. When located within equipment. 260 

 261 

2. When the design temperature difference between the interior and exterior of the duct or 262 

plenum does not exceed 15 degrees F (8 degrees C). 263 

 264 

3. When located within the under floor crawlspace of a one or two family dwelling unit. 265 

 266 

Section 607.4. Access and identification. Add the following between the 1st and 2nd sentences of this 267 

Section. 268 

 269 

Access doors for fire dampers and smoke dampers shall be located as close as practicable to the 270 

dampers and also sized so fire damper spring catch and fusible links are accessible with two hands 271 

when the damper is closed. Duct access doors shall be a minimum size of 18 inches x 16 inches 272 

where the size of the duct permits, and a minimum size of 24 inches and 16 inches where entry of an 273 

individual is needed for the required minimum access. 274 

 275 

CHAPTER 7.COMBUSTION AIR. 276 

 277 

Section 701.1 Scope. Delete this section in its entirety and substitute the following. 278 

 279 

The provisions of this chapter shall govern the requirements for combustion and dilution air for fuel-280 

burning appliances other than gas-fired appliances. Solid fuel-burning appliances shall be provided 281 

with combustion air in accordance with the appliance manufacturers’ instructions. Oil-fired 282 

appliances shall be provided with combustion air in accordance with this chapter and, where not 283 

modified by this chapter, with Chapter 5 of NFPA 31.The methods of providing combustion air in 284 

this chapter do not apply to fireplaces and fireplace stoves. 285 

 286 

Add the following after Section 701.1 287 

 288 

701.1.2. Combustion and dilution air required. Every room or space containing fuel-burning 289 

appliances shall be provided with combustion air, including both air for complete fuel combustion 290 

and draft dilution, as required by this code. An approved engineered system may be used to provide 291 

combustion air as an alternative to the requirements of this chapter. An approved method shall be 292 

utilized to control the temperature of the room or space containing fuel-burning appliances. The room 293 

or space shall be maintained between 40 degrees F and 120 degrees F. The requirements for 294 

Combustion Air in this chapter do not include what might be needed for maintaining the ambient 295 

temperature of the room or space containing the fuel-burning equipment. Exhaust fans that create a 296 

negative draft in the room or space, or other fans that might create conditions of unsatisfactory 297 



 

8 

 

combustion or venting, are not permitted unless electrically interlocked with the fuel-burning 298 

appliances to prevent simultaneous operation. 299 

 300 

701.1.3. Prohibited sources. Combustion air shall not be obtained from a hazardous location, except 301 

where the fuel-fired appliances are located within the hazardous location and are installed in 302 

accordance with this code. Combustion air shall not be taken from a refrigeration machinery room, 303 

except where a refrigerant vapor detector system is installed to automatically shut off the combustion 304 

process in the event of refrigerant leakage. Combustion air shall not be obtained from any location 305 

below the design flood elevation, a crawlspace, or an attic. 306 

 307 

701.1.4. Outdoor openings. Combustion air outdoor openings shall be located and protected 308 

according to Sections 401.4 and 401.5, as amended and located at least 18 inches above grade.  309 

 310 

702.0. Outdoor Air 311 

 312 

702.1. Outdoor Air is required provided for combustion air. Combustion air as required by this 313 

chapter shall not be supplied by infiltration. 314 

 315 

702.2. Indirect-Connection, Passive-flow Combustion Air. A minimum of one combustion air 316 

opening is required. The opening shall be sized with an effective opening to the outdoors of 1 square 317 

inch per 6000 Btu/h of the combined input rating of the fuel-burning appliances or according to Table 318 

7-1.The opening into the enclosure containing the appliances shall be located no lower in elevation 319 

than 2/3 the distance from the top of the finished floor to the bottom of the finished ceiling in the 320 

enclosure. 321 

 322 

TABLE 7-1 OIL-FIRED APPLIANCE COMBUSTION AIR DUCT SIZING 323 

 324 

Appliance Size (Btu/hr 

Input) 

GPH Input at 

140,000 Btu/gallon 

Combustion Air Duct 

Minimum Free Area 

(sq. in.) 

Minimum Round 

Duct Size (sq. in.) 

<120,000 <.85 12 4 

120,000 -155,000 .85 – 1.10 19 5 

155,000 – 175,000 1.10 – 1.25 28 6 

 325 

702.3. Indirect-Connection, Forced-flow Combustion Air. Where combustion air is provided by a 326 

mechanical forced-air system, it shall be supplied at the minimum rate of 1 cfm per 3500 Btu/h of the 327 

combined input rating of all the fuel-burning appliances served. Each of the appliances served shall 328 

be electrically interlocked to the mechanical forced-air system so as to prevent operation of the 329 

appliances when the mechanical system is not in operation. Where combustion air is provided by the 330 

building’s mechanical ventilation system, the system shall provide the specified combustion air rate 331 

in addition to the required ventilation air. 332 

 333 



 

9 

 

702.4. Direct-Connection. Fuel-burning appliances that are listed and labeled for direct combustion 334 

air connection to the outdoors shall be installed in accordance with the manufacturer’s installation 335 

instructions. 336 

 337 

703.0. Combustion Air Ducts. 338 

 339 

703.1. General. Indirect-Connection Combustion air ducts shall: 340 

1. Be of galvanized steel complying with Chapter 6 or of equivalent rigid, corrosion-resistant material 341 

approved for this application. 342 

2. Have a minimum cross-sectional dimension of 3 inches. 343 

3. Terminate in an unobstructed space allowing free movement of combustion air to the appliances. 344 

4. Have the same cross-sectional areas as the free area of the openings to which they connect. Each 345 

combustion air inlet shall only open into the appliance space with one, separate ducted opening of the 346 

required free area opening. 347 

5. Serve a single appliance enclosure.  348 

6. Any dampers installed within any part of a combustion air duct or opening shall be electrically 349 

interlocked with the firing cycle of the appliance served, so as to prevent operation of any appliance 350 

when the dampers are closed. 351 

 352 

Section 801.21 Location and support of venting systems other than masonry chimneys. Add this new 353 

section with the following text. 354 

 355 

Vent terminations that penetrate a metal roof with a slope greater than 2:12 shall be protected by an 356 

ice dam or deflector of a type and design approved by the Code Official. 357 

 358 

Section 923.2 Small ceramic kilns-ventilation. Add this new section with the following text. 359 

 360 

A canopy-hood shall be installed directly above each kiln. The face opening area of the hood shall be 361 

equal to or greater than the top horizontal surface area of the kiln. The hood shall be constructed of 362 

not less than No. 24 U.S. gauge galvanized steel or equivalent and be supported at a height of 363 

between 12 inches and 30 inches above the kiln by noncombustible supports. 364 

 365 

Exception: Each hood shall be connected to a gravity ventilation duct extending in a vertical direction 366 

to outside the building. This duct shall be of the same construction as the hood and shall have a 367 

minimum cross-sectional area of not less than one fifteenth of the face opening area of the hood. The 368 

duct shall terminate a minimum of 12 inches above any portion of a building within four feet and 369 

terminate no less than 4 feet from the adjacent property line or any open able window or other 370 

openings into the building. The duct opening to the outside shall be shielded, without reduction of 371 

duct area, to prevent entrance of rain into the duct. The duct shall be supported at each section by 372 

noncombustible supports. Provisions shall be made for air to enter the room in which a kiln is 373 

installed at a rate at least equal to the air being removed through the kiln hood. 374 

 375 

Section 1001.1 Scope. Amend exception #7 as follows. 376 

 377 



 

10 

 

7. Any boiler or pressure vessel subject to inspection by federal inspectors. 378 

 379 

Section 1005.2 Potable water supply. Delete this section and its title in their entirety and substitute the 380 

following. 381 

 382 

Section 1005.2 Water Supply. An automatic means of water or heat transfer liquid makeup supply is 383 

required connected to all boilers. Connections to the potable water piping system shall be in 384 

accordance with the Uniform Plumbing Code as amended. 385 

 386 

Section 1006.7.Boiler safety devices. Amend this section by adding the following and Table 10-3 of the 387 

2009 Uniform Mechanical Code. 388 

 389 

Automatic boilers shall be equipped with controls and limit devices as set forth in Table 10-3. 390 



 

11 

 

 391 



 

12 

 

FOOTNOTES FOR TABLE 10-3  392 

 393 
1Fuel input shall be determined by one of the following: 394 

(a) The maximum burner input as shown on the burner nameplate or as otherwise 395 

identified by the manufacturer. 396 

(b) The nominal boiler rating, as determined by the building official, plus twenty-five 397 

percent (25%). 398 

 399 
2Automatic boilers shall have one flame failure device on each burner, which shall prove the presence of a 400 

suitable ignition source at the point where it will reliably ignite the main burner, except that boiler groups 401 

A, B, E, F, and G, which are equipped with direct electric ignition, shall monitor the main burner, and all 402 

boiler groups using interrupted pilots shall monitor only the main burner after the prescribed limited trial 403 

and ignition periods. Boiler group A, equipped with continuous pilot, shall accomplish 100 percent 404 

shutoff within ninety (90) seconds upon pilot flame failure. The use of intermittent pilots in boiler group 405 

C is limited to approved burner units. 406 
 407 
3In boiler groups B, C, and 0 a 90-second main burner flame failure limit may apply if continuous pilots 408 

are provided on manufacturer assembled boiler-burner units that have been approved by an approved 409 

testing agency as complying with nationally recognized standards approved by the building official. 410 

Boiler groups F and G equipped to re-energize their ignition systems within 0.8 second after main burner 411 

flame failure will be permitted thirty (30) seconds for group F or fifteen (15) seconds for group G to re-412 

establish their main burner flames. 413 
 414 
4Boiler groups C and D shall have controls interlocked to accomplish a non-recycling fuel shutoff upon 415 

high or low gas pressure, and boiler groups F, G, and H using steam or air for fuel atomization shall have 416 

controls interlocked to accomplish a non-recycling fuel shutoff upon low atomizing steam or air pressure. 417 

Boiler groups F, G, and H equipped with a preheated oil system shall have controls interlocked to provide 418 

fuel shutoff upon low oil temperature. 419 
 420 
5Automatic boilers shall have controls interlocked to shut off the fuel supply in the event of draft failure if 421 

forced or induced draft fans are used or, in the event of low combustion airflow, if a gas power burner is 422 

used. Where a single motor directly driving both the fan and the oil pump is used, a separate control is not 423 

required. 424 
 425 
6Boiler groups C, 0, and H, when firing in excess of 400,000 Btu per combustion chamber, shall be 426 

provided with low fire start of its main burner system to permit smooth light-off. This will normally be a 427 

rate of approximately one-third of its maximum firing rate. 428 
 429 
7Boiler groups C, D, and H shall not permit pilot or main burner trial for ignition operation before a 430 

purging operation of sufficient duration to permit a minimum of four complete air changes through the 431 

furnace, including combustion chamber and the boiler passes. Where this is not readily determinable, five 432 

complete air changes of the furnace, including combustion chamber up to the first pass, will be considered 433 

equivalent. An atmospheric gas burner with no mechanical means of creating air movement or an oil 434 

burner that obtains two-thirds or more of the air required for combustion without mechanical means of 435 



 

13 

 

creating air movement shall not require purge by means of four air changes, so long as its secondary air 436 

openings are not provided with means of closing, If such burners have means of closing secondary air 437 

openings, a time delay must be provided that puts these closures in a normally open position for four 438 

minutes before an attempt for ignition. An installation with a trapped combustion chamber shall, in every 439 

case, be provided with a mechanical means of creating air movement for purging. 440 
 441 
8Every automatic hot-water-heating boiler, low-pressure hot-water-heating boiler, and power hot water 442 

boiler shall be equipped with two high-temperature limit controls with a manual reset on the control, with 443 

the higher setting interlocked to shut off the main fuel supply, except that manual reset on the high-444 

temperature limit control shall not be required on any automatic package boiler not exceeding 400,000 445 

Btu/h input and that has been approved by an approved testing agency. Every automatic hot-water 446 

heating, power boiler, and package hot-water supply boiler shall be equipped with one low-water level 447 

limit control with a manual reset interlocked to shut off the fuel supply, so installed as to prevent damage 448 

to the boiler and to permit testing of the control without draining the heating system, except on boilers 449 

used in Group R Occupancies of less than six units and in Group U Occupancies and further, except that 450 

the low-water level limit control is not required on package hot-water supply boilers approved by a 451 

nationally recognized testing agency. However, a low-water flow limit control installed in the circulating 452 

water line may be used instead of the low-water level limit control for the same purpose on coil-type 453 

boilers. 454 
 455 
9Every automatic low-pressure steam-heating boiler, small power boiler, and power steam boiler shall be 456 

equipped with two high-steam pressure limit controls interlocked to shut off the fuel supply to the main 457 

burner with manual reset on the control, with the higher setting and two low-water-level limit controls, 458 

one of which shall be provided with a manual reset device and independent of the feed water controller. 459 

Coil-type flash steam boilers may use two high-temperature limit controls, one of which shall be 460 

manually reset in the hot water coil section of the boiler instead of the low-water level limit control. 461 
 462 
10Boiler groups C, D, and H shall use an approved automatic reset safety shutoff valve for the main burner 463 

fuel shutoff, which shall be interlocked to the programming control devices required. On oil burners 464 

where the safety shutoff valve will be subjected to pressures in excess of ten (10) psi when the burner is 465 

not firing, a second safety shutoff valve shall be provided in series with the first. Boiler groups C and D 466 

using gas in excess of one (1) pound-per-square-inch pressure or having a trapped combustion chamber or 467 

employing horizontal fire tubes shall be equipped with two approved safety shutoff valves, one of which 468 

shall be an automatic reset type, one of which may be used as an operating control, and both of which 469 

shall be interlocked to the limit-control devices required. Boiler groups C and D using gas in excess of 470 

one (1) pound per square inch pressure shall be provided with a permanent and ready means for making 471 

periodic tightness checks of the main fuel safety shutoff valves. 472 
 473 
11Control and limit device systems shall be grounded with operating voltage not to exceed 150 volts, 474 

except that, upon approval by the building official, existing control equipment to be reused in an altered 475 

boiler control system may use 220 volt single phase with one side grounded, provided such voltage is 476 

used for all controls. Control and limit devices shall interrupt the ungrounded side of the circuit. A readily 477 

accessible means of manually disconnecting the control circuit shall be provided with controls so 478 

arranged that when they are de-energized, the burner shall be inoperative. 479 



 

14 

 

 480 

1006.8. Electrical requirements. Add the following sentence and exception to this subsection. 481 

 482 

The required means of disconnect shall be within clear view of the boiler burner. 483 

Exception: Where it is not possible for personnel to position themselves out of clear view of the 484 

means of disconnect while maintaining the boiler, the capability of being locked in the off position 485 

shall not be required of the means of disconnect. 486 

 487 

Section 1007.Boiler low-water cutoff. Delete this section in its entirety and refer to Section 1006.7 as 488 

amended. 489 

 490 

Section 1101. 11 Installation Identification. Add this subsection with the following text. 491 

 492 

Each refrigerating system erected on the premises shall be provided with legible permanent signage, 493 

securely attached and easily accessible, as required in sections 1101.11.1 – 1101.11.3.In the event that 494 

the type or amount of refrigerant or other indication is changed, the signs must be changed or 495 

replaced to indicate the new conditions. 496 

 497 

1101.11.1 Each systems shall be provided a sign indicating: 498 

a. the name and address of the installer, 499 

b. the refrigerant number and amount of refrigerant, 500 

c. the lubricant identity and amount, and 501 

d. the field test pressure applied 502 

 503 

1101.11.2 Systems containing more than 110 lb. of refrigerant and consisting of controls and piping 504 

shall be provided signs having letters at least .5 inches in height indicating: 505 

 506 

(a).Each valve or switch that controls the refrigerant flow, the machinery room ventilation, and the 507 

compressors 508 

(b).The specific fluid, whether a refrigerant or secondary coolant, that is contained in exposed piping 509 

outside of the refrigerating machinery room. Valves or the piping adjacent to the valves shall be 510 

labeled in accordance with ANSI A13.1. 511 

 512 

1101.11.3 Each Refrigeration Machinery Room entrance must have in clear view a sign reading: 513 

“Machinery Room – Authorized Personnel Only. – Only those trained in emergency procedures if the 514 

Refrigerant alarm is activated.” 515 

 516 

Section 1105.3 Refrigerant detector. Amend this section by adding a second sentence to read as follows.  517 

 518 

Refrigerant detectors shall alarm both inside and outside the machinery room and refrigerated space. 519 

 520 

Section 1105.6.2 Makeup air. Amend this section as follows. 521 

Provisions shall be made for makeup air to replace that being exhausted. Openings for makeup air 522 

shall be located to avoid intake of exhaust air. Supply and exhaust ducts to the machinery room shall 523 



 

15 

 

serve no other area, shall be constructed in accordance with Chapter 5 and shall be covered with 524 

corrosion-resistant screen of not less than ½-inch mesh. 525 

 526 

Section 1205.1.3 Pressure vessels. Add the following exception to this subsection. 527 

 528 

Exception: Shutoff valves for diaphragm-type expansion tanks in systems installed with a single 529 

expansion tank of 12-gallon water volume or smaller, shall not be required. 530 

 531 

Section 1205.1.6.Expansion Tanks. Delete this subsection in its entirety. 532 

 533 

Section 1301.1 Scope. Amend this section as follows. 534 

 535 

The design, installation, construction and repair of fuel oil and waste oil storage and piping shall be in 536 

accordance with this chapter and NFPA 31.The storage of fuel oil and flammable and combustible 537 

liquids shall be in accordance with the International Fire Code. 538 

 539 

Section 1301.4 Fuel tanks, piping and valves. Amend and add to this section as follows. 540 

 541 

The tank, piping and valves for appliances burning oil shall be installed in accordance with the 542 

requirements of this chapter. The oil supply line is required to be taken from the top of the tank only, 543 

and where the level of fuel within the tank may be above the inlet port of the appliance served an 544 

approved method to prevent siphoning from the tank must be provided. If the tank is located inside a 545 

building, emergency pressure relief venting is required to the exterior. 546 

 547 

1301.4.1 Day tanks or supply tanks. Day tanks shall be installed in accordance with this code and 548 

NFPA 31. 549 

 550 

1301.4.1.1 A day tank or supply tank of (60) gallons or less may be installed for generators, boilers 551 

and water heaters within a boiler or mechanical room provided a (1)-hour fire-resistive occupancy 552 

separation is constructed around the room containing the equipment being served and the day tank or 553 

supply tank. 554 

 555 

1301.4.1.2 Day tanks or supply tanks which exceed (60) gallons shall be installed in accordance with 556 

the following requirements: 557 

A. A sprinkler system as approved by the Fire Department is required for the mechanical room. 558 

B. The room containing the day tank or supply tank shall be located on an exterior wall. 559 

C. Two exits shall be provided from the boiler room or mechanical room. One exit shall open 560 

directly to the exterior and be accessible to fire-fighting personnel. 561 

D. A (2)-hour fire resistive occupancy separation shall be provided around the boiler room or 562 

mechanical room. 563 

 564 

1301.4.2 Waste oil tanks. Tanks installed inside buildings for the collection of class IIIB motor 565 

vehicle waste oil and connected to listed oil-burning appliances shall be restricted to Group S-1 and 566 

motor vehicle related occupancies as referenced by the International Building Code. Waste oil tanks 567 



 

16 

 

located outside of central heating enclosures shall be limited to 500 gallon cumulative capacity, be 568 

provided with approved emergency pressure relief venting and shall be equipped with a hinged cap. 569 

All oil lines shall be equipped with a spring-loaded fusible valve located immediately adjacent to the 570 

tank shell. 571 

 572 

Waste oil tanks exceeding 500-gallon capacity and connected to waste oil-burning appliances shall be 573 

enclosed in a separate one-hour fire-resistive occupancy separation, be provided with approved 574 

emergency pressure relief venting and shall be surrounded by a four (4) –inch high non-combustible 575 

curb. 576 

 577 

Waste oil tanks located inside of central heating plant enclosures or generator mechanical rooms shall 578 

conform to section 1301.4.1 as amended. Upon approval of the Fire Chief, listed waste oil heaters 579 

may be located in other occupancy groups provided the tanks are installed outside of the building in 580 

accordance with chapter 15 of the International Mechanical Code and NFPA 31 Chapter 12, or 581 

installed in compliance with IMC section 1301.4.1. 582 



 

1 

 

Chapter 15.42 1 

PLUMBING CODE 2 

Sections: 3 

15.42.010. Adoption. 4 

15.42.020. Modifications. 5 

15.42.030. Appeals. 6 

15.42.040. Local amendments to the Uniform Plumbing Code, 2009 2014 Edition. 7 

 8 

15.42.010 Adoption. 9 

The code known as the Uniform Plumbing Code, 2009 2014 Edition, of the International Association of 10 

Plumbing and Mechanical Officials, and every part thereof, together with the local amendments as set 11 

forth in NPMC 15.42.040, shall constitute the laws of the City relating to plumbing. An electronic copy of 12 

the Uniform Plumbing Code is retained at the City offices. (Ord. 12-11 § 2, 2012) 13 

 14 

15.42.020 Modifications. 15 

The Building Official shall have the power to modify any of the provisions of the Uniform Plumbing 16 

Code adopted by this chapter upon application in writing by the owner or lessee or his duly authorized 17 

agent, when there are practical difficulties in the way of carrying out the strict letter of the code; provided, 18 

that the spirit of the code is observed, public safety secured, and substantial justice done. The particulars 19 

of the modification, when granted or allowed, and the decision of the Building Official thereon shall be 20 

entered upon the records of the Department, and a signed copy shall be furnished the applicant. (Ord. 12-21 

11 § 2, 2012) 22 

 23 

15.42.030 Appeals. 24 

Whenever the Building Official disapproves an application or refuses to grant a permit applied for, or 25 

when it is claimed that the provisions of the code have been misconstrued or wrongly interpreted, the 26 

applicant may appeal from the decisions of the Building Official to the Mayor/City Manager within thirty 27 

days from the date of the decision. The appointment of the appeals board will be on a case-by-case basis 28 

with the members of said board comprised of local design professionals, contractors, inspectors or other 29 

members of the public deemed knowledgeable of the subject matter by the Mayor/City Manager. (Ord. 30 

12-11 § 2, 2012) 31 

 32 

15.42.040 Local amendments to the Uniform Plumbing Code, 2009 2014 Edition. 33 

The amendments to the Uniform Plumbing Code, 2009 2014 Edition, as published by the International 34 

Association of Plumbing and Mechanical Officials, are hereby adopted by the City of North Pole as 35 

follows: 36 

 37 

CHAPTER 1 ADMINISTRATION 38 

 39 

Section 101.3 Purpose. Add subsections to read as follows: 40 

 41 

101.3.1. Referenced Codes. The technical codes as referenced elsewhere in this code shall be 42 

considered part of the requirements of this code to the prescribed extent of each reference. References 43 

http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/NorthPole/#!/NorthPole15/NorthPole1542.html#15.42.010
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/NorthPole/#!/NorthPole15/NorthPole1542.html#15.42.020
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/NorthPole/#!/NorthPole15/NorthPole1542.html#15.42.030
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/NorthPole/#!/NorthPole15/NorthPole1542.html#15.42.040
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/NorthPole/#!/NorthPole15/NorthPole1542.html#15.42.040


 

2 

 

to NFPA 54 and the Uniform Mechanical Code shall be replaced with adopted codes specified in 44 

sections 101.3.1.1 and 101.3.1.2 45 

 46 

101.3.1.1. Gas. The provisions of the International Fuel Gas Code shall apply to the installation of 47 

fuel gas piping from the point of delivery, gas appliances and related accessories as covered in this 48 

code. These requirements apply to gas piping systems extending from the point of delivery to the inlet 49 

connections of appliances and installation and operation of residential and commercial gas appliances 50 

and related accessories. 51 

 52 

101.3.1.2. Mechanical. The provisions of the International Mechanical Code shall apply to the 53 

installation, alterations, repairs and replacement of mechanical systems, including equipment, 54 

appliances, fixtures, fittings and/or appurtenances, including ventilating, heating, cooling, air-55 

conditioning and refrigeration systems, incinerators and other energy-related systems. 56 

 57 

101.3.1.3. Administrative. The provisions of the City of North Pole Administrative Code Chapter 58 

15.04 shall apply to the administration and enforcement of this code. Where provisions of the City of 59 

North Pole Administrative Code and this code conflict, the more restrictive test shall apply. 60 

 61 

101.3.1.4 Building. The provisions of the International Building Code shall apply where reference is 62 

made to the Building Code in this document. 63 

 64 

Section 102.1 Conflicts Between Codes. Delete this section in its entirety and replace with the 65 

following: 66 

 67 

When conflicts occur between this code and other technical codes, those provisions providing the 68 

greater safety to life shall govern. In other conflicts, between this code and other codes or laws, where 69 

sanitation, life safety or fire safety are not involved, the most restrictive provisions shall govern. 70 

 71 

Where in a specific case different sections of these codes specify different materials, methods of 72 

construction or other requirements, the most restrictive shall govern. When there is a conflict between 73 

a general requirement and a specific requirement, the specific requirement shall be applicable. 74 

 75 

Section 104.1 Permits required. Add the following subsection. 76 

 77 

Section 104.1 Emergency Repairs. Where equipment or piping system replacement must be 78 

performed in an emergency situation, the permit application shall be submitted to the building official 79 

within 72 hours of such emergency. All required inspections shall be conducted. 80 

 81 

104.3.2 Plan Review Fee. Delete Section 104.3.2 in its entirety and replace with the following. 82 

 83 

When submittal documents are required by Section 104.3.1, a plan review fee shall be paid. The plan 84 

review fee shall be paid when the review has been completed. The plan review fee shall be paid in 85 

conjunction with the plumbing permit fee. For Plan Review fees, see Chapter 15.04 Administrative 86 

Code. 87 



 

3 

 

 88 

104.3.2.1 Plan Check Fee Identical Building Construction. Create a new subsection and title as 89 

follows. 90 

 91 

Section 104.3.2.1 Plan Check Fee Identical Building Construction. The plan check fee 92 

for identical buildings with the same building construction shall be reduced by 75% of 93 

the initial plan check fee when the following conditions are met; 94 

 95 

a. The structural framing and floor plan are identical 96 

b. Construction is simultaneous or in immediate sequence. 97 

 98 

Section 104.3 Application for Permit. Add the following subsection. 99 

 100 

Section 104.3.4 Deferred Submittals. For the purposes of this section, deferred submittals are 101 

defined as those portions of the design which are not submitted at the time of the application and 102 

which are to be submitted to the building official within a specified period. Deferral of any 103 

submittal items shall have prior approval of the building official. The architect or engineer of 104 

record shall list the deferred submittals on the plans and shall submit the deferred submittal 105 

documents for review by the building official. Submittal documents for deferred submittal items 106 

shall be submitted to the architect or engineer of record who shall review them and forward them 107 

to the building official with a notation indicating that the deferred submittal documents have been 108 

reviewed and that they have been found to be in general conformance with the design of the 109 

building. The deferred submittal items shall not be installed until their design and submittal 110 

documents have been approved by the building official. 111 

 112 

Section 104.4.1.Approved Plans or Construction Documents. Delete the first paragraph of this 113 

section and replace with the following. 114 

 115 

When the building official issues a permit, the construction documents shall be approved by 116 

separate letter or plan review stating, or the plans shall be stamped as, “Reviewed and Approved 117 

for Code Compliance”. Work shall be installed in accordance with the approved construction 118 

documents. Changes to the approved set of construction documents that affect code compliance 119 

are prohibited unless amended documents are resubmitted by the appropriate design professional 120 

for review and approval before such modification is constructed in the field. 121 

 122 

Section 104.5 Fees. Delete Section 104.5 in its entirety and refer to Table 3-A of the City of 123 

North Pole Administrative Code, Chapter 15.04. 124 

 125 

Section 104.5.2 Investigation Fee - Work Without a Permit. Delete this subsection and 126 

substitute the following.  127 

 128 

See City of North Pole Administrative Code, Chapter 15.04. 129 

 130 

Section 104.5.3 Fee Refunds. Delete number 2 and substitute the following.  131 



 

4 

 

See City of North Pole Administrative Code, Chapter 15.04. 132 

 133 

Section 105.2.1 Uncovering. Delete the second paragraph and substitute the following.  134 

 135 

The requirements of this section shall not be considered to prohibit the operation of any plumbing 136 

installed to replace existing equipment or fixtures serving an occupied portion of the building in the 137 

event a request for inspection of such equipment or fixture has been filed with the Authority Having 138 

Jurisdiction not more than 48 hours after such replacement work is complete, and before any portion 139 

of such plumbing systems is concealed by any permanent portion of the building. 140 

 141 

Section 105.3.3 Approval. Delete this section in its entirety and substitute the following. 142 

 143 

Upon the satisfactory completion and final test of the plumbing system, an approval for use shall be 144 

issued by the Authority Having Jurisdiction to the permittee. 145 

 146 

Section 106.2 Notices of Correction or Violation. Delete the second paragraph of this section and 147 

substitute the following. 148 

 149 

Refusal, failure, or neglect to comply with any such notice or order within (180) days of receipt 150 

thereof, or other time limit as set forth in the notice or order, shall be considered a violation of this 151 

code and shall be subject to the penalties set forth elsewhere in this code for violations. 152 

 153 

Section 106.3 Penalties. Delete this section in its entirety and replace with the following. 154 

 155 

Any person who violates a provision of this code or fails to comply with any of the requirements 156 

thereof or who erects, constructs, alters, or repairs any plumbing in violation of the approved 157 

construction documents or directive of the building official, or of a permit or certificate issued under 158 

the provision of this code or other codes adopted by this jurisdiction shall be subject to penalties 159 

prescribed by law. 160 

 161 

204.0 Building Thermal Envelope. Add the following definition to this section. 162 

 163 

Building Thermal Envelope – For purposes of the plumbing code: the basement walls, exterior 164 

walls, floors, roofs, and any other building elements that enclose conditioned spaces, and frost-165 

protected foundations. For frost- protected foundations with required horizontal insulation, the 166 

thermal envelope shall be considered to extend from the warm-in-winter side, to the projection of the 167 

vertical insulation, cold-in-winter exterior surface. For thermal envelope assemblies enclosing 168 

conditioned spaces, the thermal envelope assembly includes any vapor retarders. 169 

 170 

205.0 Conditioned Space – Add the following Definition to this section. 171 

 172 

Conditioned Space -- For purposes of the plumbing code, space within a building that is 173 

provided with heating equipment or systems capable of maintaining, through design or heat loss, 174 

50 degrees F during the heating season, or communicates directly with a conditioned space. 175 



 

5 

 

 176 

210.0. Hot Water.- Delete this definition and substitute the following. 177 

 178 

Hot Water – Water at a temperature exceeding or equal to 110 degrees F. 179 

 180 

303.0 Disposal of Liquid Waste. Add the following sentence to this section. 181 

 182 

Pit privies (outhouses), as defined by Alaska D.E.C. 18 AAC 72.030 and 7 AAC 10.9990(46)(B), are 183 

prohibited. 184 

 185 

Section 312.6 Freezing Protection – Delete 312.6 in its entirety and substitute the following. 186 

All water, soil, waste, vent, or roof drainage piping shall be installed on the warm-in-winter side of 187 

the Building Thermal Envelope assembly, including any vapor retarders. 188 

 189 

Exception 1.Vent piping above the roof. 190 

 191 

Exception 2.Vent piping, other than wet vents, may be installed within exterior walls or above the 192 

roof/ceiling assembly where enclosed within at least R-8.8 insulation. This insulation must be 193 

continuous from the piping penetration of the warm-in-winter surface of the thermal envelope to 194 

the underside of the piping’s roof sheathing penetration. The insulation of the Building Thermal 195 

Envelope assembly may be used to meet this requirement. 196 

 197 

Exception 3.Underground Building Drain or Water Distribution piping outside the Building 198 

Thermal Envelope installed according to the circulation and insulation provisions of the latest 199 

revised standards of the local Public Water and Sewer Utility for water and sewer services. 200 

 201 

Exception 4.A system of frost protection that, is designed and sealed by a currently registered 202 

engineer or architect, including but not limited to heat trace installed according to Sections 301.2 203 

and 309.4; and provided it is accessible for repair or replacement without excavation or removal 204 

of elements of construction. 205 

 206 

Section 312.9 Steel Nail Plates. Delete 312.9 and its exception in their entirety and substitute the 207 

following. 208 

 209 

In concealed locations where piping, other than cast-iron or steel, is installed through 210 

holes or notches in studs, joists, rafters or similar members less than 1½ inches from the 211 

nearest edge of the member, the pipe shall be protected by shield plates having a 212 

minimum thickness of 0.0575 inch (No. 16 gage) shall cover the area of the pipe where 213 

the member is notched or bored, and shall extend a minimum of 2 inches above sole 214 

plates and below top plates. 215 

 216 

Section 312.12. Rodent proofing. Delete 312.12 in its entirety. 217 

 218 

Section 402.5 Setting. Delete the Exception and substitute the following. 219 



 

6 

 

 220 

Exception: The installation of paper dispensers, sanitary napkin receptacles, or accessibility grab bars 221 

shall not be considered obstructions if located such that a minimum of 7 inches clearance is 222 

maintained in any direction from the outside surface of the usable portion of the fixture. 223 

 224 

Section 403.2 Fixtures and Fixture Fittings for Persons with Disabilities. Delete this section in its 225 

entirety and refer to Chapter 11 of the 2015 IBC and ICC/ANSI A117.1-2003. 226 

Section 411.3 (Water Closet Seats). Delete the second sentence and substitute the following: 227 

 228 

Water closet seats for public use shall be of the elongated and open-front type. 229 

 230 

Section 422.0 Minimum Number of Required Fixtures. Delete this section in its entirety and refer to 231 

Chapter 29 and Table 2902.1 as amended of the 2015 IBC. 232 

 233 

Table 422.1 Minimum Plumbing Facilities. Delete this Table in its entirety and refer to Table 2902.1 as 234 

amended of the 2015 IBC. 235 

 236 

Section 501.0 General. Delete this section and substitute the following. 237 

 238 

The regulations of this chapter shall govern the construction, location, and installation of fuel-burning 239 

and other water heaters heating potable water. All fuel and combustion air systems, chimneys, vents, 240 

and their connectors shall be regulated by the respective sections of the locally amended 2015 241 

International Mechanical Code and the 2015 International Fuel Gas Code. The minimum capacity for 242 

water heaters shall be in accordance with the first hour rating listed in Table 501.1(1). All design, 243 

construction, and workmanship shall be in conformity with accepted engineering practices, 244 

manufacturer’s installation instructions, and applicable standards and shall be of such character as to 245 

secure the results sought to be obtained by the respective Codes. 246 

 247 

Section 502.1.Permits.Add the following exception. 248 

 249 

Exception: Replacement of an existing, approved, non-fuel-fired electric water heater with one of like 250 

size, type and rating in a manner that maintains its approval shall not require a permit. 251 

 252 

Section 503.2 Final Water Heater Inspection. Delete this section and substitute the following. 253 

 254 

A final water heater inspection shall be made after all work requiring a permit has been installed in 255 

addition to inspections required for other work regulated by the mechanical code and fuel gas code. 256 

 257 

Section 505.4.1 Single Wall Heat Exchangers. Delete part 2 (b) of this subsection and substitute the 258 

following. 259 

 260 

(b) The pressure of the heat-transfer medium must be limited to a maximum of (labeled by installer 261 

and equal to the system safety or relief valve rating) psig by an approved safety or relief valve and the 262 



 

7 

 

potable water system must be maintained at a normal minimum operating pressure of at least (labeled 263 

by installer and 5 psig greater than the heat-transfer medium safety or relief valve rating). 264 

 265 

Section 603.5.10 Steam or Hot Water Boilers. Add the following exception. 266 

 267 

Exception: Potable water makeup connections to boilers containing only heat-transfer mediums of 268 

water or other nontoxic fluid having a toxic rating or Class of 1 as listed in Clinical Toxicology of 269 

Commercial Products, 5th edition shall be permitted to be provided with a listed Backflow Preventer 270 

with Intermediate Atmospheric Vent. 271 

 272 

603.5.16 Special Equipment. Add the following to this subsection. 273 

 274 

Chemical Dispensers otherwise approved for connection to the potable water piping system shall not 275 

be connected to an Atmospheric Vacuum breaker hose thread in such a way that the Atmospheric 276 

Vacuum breaker is able to be pressurized, e.g. with a valve in the discharge piping. 277 

 278 

Section 609.4 Testing. Delete the third sentence and substitute the following. 279 

 280 

A one hundred (100) pound per square inch air pressure test may be substituted for the water test. 281 

 282 

Section 612 Residential Fire Sprinkler Systems. Delete this section in its entirety. 283 

 284 

Section 712.1 Media. Delete the first sentence and replace with the following. 285 

 286 

The piping of the plumbing, drainage, and venting systems shall be tested with water or air. 287 

 288 

Section 719.1 Cleanout Location. Delete the first paragraph in its entirety and replace with the 289 

following: 290 

 291 

Cleanouts shall be placed at the connection of the building sewer and building drain outside the 292 

building and extend to grade. 293 

 294 

Section 719.2.Delete this section in its entirety. 295 

 296 

Section 807.3 Domestic Dishwashing Machines. Add the following subsection. 297 

 298 

Section 807.3.1.When a compartment or space for a domestic dishwasher is provided, an approved 299 

dishwasher airgap fitting shall be installed. 300 

 301 

812.2 Elevator Pits. Add this new Subsection. 302 

 303 

812.2 Elevator Pits. Where drains are not provided to prevent the accumulation of water in elevator 304 

pits, sumps are required. Drains connected directly to the sanitary system shall not be installed in 305 

elevator pits. Sumps in elevator pits, where provided, shall be covered and the cover shall be level 306 



 

8 

 

with the pit floor. The pump shall be of sufficient capacity to prevent the accumulation of water in the 307 

pit. If the building is fire-sprinklered, the pump shall be sized of at least the capacity of one energized 308 

sprinkler head. 309 

 310 

Section 906.7 Frost or Snow Closure. Replace the first sentence with the following. 311 

 312 

Vent terminals shall be a minimum of 3 inches in diameter, but in no event smaller than the required 313 

vent pipe. 314 

 315 

1002.2 Fixture Traps. Add the following exception to this section. 316 

 317 

Exception: The developed length of a trap arm from a two-inch outlet private floor drain in a garage 318 

bay serving a single dwelling unit shall be permitted to exceed the distances given in Table 1002.2 if 319 

the floor drain trap and trap arm are increased to three-inch nominal size. When installed according to 320 

this exception the trap arm is required without any offsets or changes in direction and the vent shall 321 

be connected below, and extend vertically into or adjacent to the first garage wall under which the 322 

trap arm passes. 323 

 324 

Section 1101.6 Subsoil Drains. Delete 1101.6 325 

 326 

Section 1101.12.2.2.2 Combined System. Delete the second sentence in this subsection and replace with 327 

the following: 328 

 329 

When the combined secondary and primary roof drain system connects to a building storm drain that 330 

connects to an underground storm sewer, a relief drain shall be installed to ensure positive common 331 

roof drain flow. The connection of this relief drain to the common drain shall not divert or obstruct 332 

the primary drain. 333 

 334 

Section 1101.12.1 Primary Roof Drainage. Delete the last sentence of this section and replace with the 335 

following. 336 

 337 

Unless otherwise required by the Authority Having Jurisdiction, roof drains, gutters, vertical 338 

conductors or leaders, and horizontal storm drains for primary drainage shall be sized based on a 339 

maximum rainfall of one (1) inch per hour per square foot of roof area. 340 

 341 

Section 1106.2 Methods of Testing Storm Drainage Systems. Delete the first sentence of this section 342 

and substitute the following. 343 

 344 

The piping of storm drain systems shall be tested upon completion of the rough piping installation by 345 

water or air and proved tight. 346 

 347 

Chapter 12 Fuel Piping. Delete this chapter in its entirety and refer to the 2015 International Fuel Gas 348 

Code as amended. 349 

 350 



 

9 

 

Chapter 14 Firestop Protection. Delete this Chapter in its entirety and refer to the International 351 

Building Code as amended. 352 

 353 

Appendix H Private Sewage Disposal Systems. Delete this section in its entirety and replace with the 354 

following: 355 

 356 

Private Sewage Disposal Systems shall be designed and installed in accordance with the current 357 

standards as published by the State of Alaska Department of Environmental Conservation 358 

(D.E.C.).Written verification from D.E.C. or a State of Alaska-certified Septic System Installer of the 359 

D.E.C.’s approved installation shall be submitted to the Building Department. A Certificate of 360 

Occupancy shall not be issued until this written verification is submitted to the Building Department. 361 

 362 

Appendix C 363 

 364 

Section C 101.3 (required descriptive details). Add the following to this section. 365 

 366 

For the plumbing systems in Appendix C, other than those of C301.0, C302.0, and C501.0, the design 367 

by a registered professional engineer is required where the work is not exempted by AS 08.48.331.A 368 

riser diagram or isometric indicating the provisions of Appendix C intended to be installed shall be 369 

submitted for review and approval by the Building Department prior to the work being commenced. 370 

The riser diagram or isometric is in addition to the other details or data that may be required by the 371 

Building Official. 372 

 373 

Section C 302.2.Single-wall heat exchangers. Delete part (3) of this subsection and substitute the 374 

following. 375 

 376 

(3).The equipment is permanently labeled according to Section 505.4.1 (3) as amended. 377 

 378 

Section C 601.0 Single-Stack Vent System. Delete the 1st sentence of this subsection. 379 



 

1 

 

Chapter 15.36 1 

ELECTRICAL CODE 2 

Sections: 3 

15.36.010. Adoption. 4 

15.36.020. Modifications. 5 

15.36.030. Appeals. 6 

15.36.040. Local amendments to the National Electrical Code, 2011 2014 Edition. 7 

 8 

15.36.010 Adoption. 9 

The code known as the National Electrical Code, 2011 2014 Edition, of the National Fire Protection 10 

Association, and every part thereof, together with the local amendments as set forth in NPMC 15.36.040, 11 

shall constitute the laws of the City relating to electrical installations. An electronic copy of the National 12 

Electrical Code is retained at the City offices. (Ord. 12-10 § 2, 2012) 13 

 14 

15.36.020 Modifications. 15 

The Building Official shall have the power to modify any of the provisions of the National Electrical 16 

Code adopted by this chapter upon application in writing by the owner or lessee or his duly authorized 17 

agent, when there are practical difficulties in the way of carrying out the strict letter of the code; provided, 18 

that the spirit of the code is observed, public safety secured, and substantial justice done. The particulars 19 

of the modification, when granted or allowed, and the decision of the Building Official thereon shall be 20 

entered upon the records of the Department, and a signed copy shall be furnished the applicant. (Ord. 12-21 

10 § 2, 2012) 22 

 23 

15.36.030 Appeals. 24 

Whenever the Building Official disapproves an application or refuses to grant a permit applied for, or 25 

when it is claimed that the provisions of the code have been misconstrued or wrongly interpreted, the 26 

applicant may appeal from the decisions of the Building Official to the Mayor/City Manager within thirty 27 

days from the date of the decision. The appointment of the appeals board will be on a case-by-case basis 28 

with the members of said board comprised of local design professionals, contractors, inspectors or other 29 

members of the public deemed knowledgeable of the subject matter by the Mayor/City Manager. (Ord. 30 

12-10 § 2, 2012) 31 

 32 

15.36.040 Local amendments to the National Electrical Code, 2011 2014 Edition. 33 

The amendments to the National Electrical Code, 2011 2014 Edition, as published by the National 34 

Electrical Code Committee, are hereby adopted by the City of North Pole as follows: 35 

: 36 

Article 210.8.Ground-Fault Circuit-Interrupter Protection for Personnel. Add subsection [(D)](E) to read 37 

as follows:  38 

 39 

[(D)](E) Day Care Facilities. 40 

In all day care facilities as defined by the current building codes adopted by the City of North Pole all 41 

125-volt, single phase, 15- and 20- ampere receptacles installed where accessible to children shall 42 

have ground-fault circuit-interrupter (GFCI) protection. 43 

 44 

http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/NorthPole/#!/NorthPole15/NorthPole1536.html#15.36.010
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/NorthPole/#!/NorthPole15/NorthPole1536.html#15.36.020
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/NorthPole/#!/NorthPole15/NorthPole1536.html#15.36.030
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/NorthPole/#!/NorthPole15/NorthPole1536.html#15.36.040
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/NorthPole/#!/NorthPole15/NorthPole1536.html#15.36.040


 

2 

 

 Article 210.52.Dwelling Unit Receptacle Outlets. Add subsection [(I)](J) to read as follows: 45 

 46 

(J).Parking spaces. 47 

For each dwelling unit and mobile home, there shall be at least one exterior weather proof duplex 48 

receptacle on a separate 20- ampere [G.F.C.I.] circuit adjacent to on-site parking locations. 49 

 50 

Article 220.52 Small Appliance, Laundry and Car Head bolt Heater Loads - Dwelling Unit. Add 51 

subsections (C) and (D) to read as follows: 52 

 53 

(C).Car Head bolt Heater Loads. 54 

A feeder load of not less than 1500 volt-amperes shall be included for each individual 20 ampere 55 

branch circuit required by Article 210.52(e). This requirement also applies to Article 220.30, 220.31, 56 

220.32, 220.33. 57 

  58 

(D).Commercial Parking Areas. 59 

The minimum calculated load for each car head bolt heater receptacles is 1200 volt amperes. If the 60 

service, feeder and branch circuit overcurrent protective devices are located outside then 1200 volt 61 

amperes for the first 30 spaces, 1000 volt amperes for the next 30 spaces and 800 volt amperes for 62 

each space over 60 will be allowed. 63 

 64 

Article 230.9(A).Clearances. Amend as follows: 65 

 66 

Service conductors installed as open conductors or multi-conductor cable without an overall outer 67 

jacket shall have a clearance of not less than 900 mm (3 ft) from windows that are designed to be 68 

opened, doors, porches, balconies, ladders, stairs, fire escapes, building attic gable vents, or similar 69 

locations. 70 

 71 

Article 230.11 Service Detail Requirements. Add a new section as follows: 72 

 73 

Service installations shall comply with the details of Exhibit #1 Residential Service. 74 

 75 

Article 230.12.Temporary Power Service.Add a new section as follows: 76 

 77 

Temporary Services shall comply with the details of Exhibit #2 Temporary Service. 78 

Article 230.24(B).Vertical Clearance for Overhead Service Conductors. Amend as follows: 79 

 80 

(1) 3.81 m (12.5 feet) - at the electrical service entrance to buildings, also at the lowest point of the 81 

drip loop of the building electrical entrance, and above areas or sidewalks accessible only to 82 

pedestrians, measured from final grade or other accessible surface only for overhead service 83 

conductors supported on and cabled together with a grounded bare messenger where the voltage does 84 

not exceed 150 volts to ground 85 

(2) 3.81 m (12.5 feet) - over residential property and driveways, and those commercial areas not 86 

subject to truck traffic where the voltage does not exceed 300 volts to ground. 87 

 88 

file:///C:/Users/pjewers/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Documents%20and%20Settings/bld_indiv/Charlie's/Bldg_Web/Bldg_Web/PDF_Files/Elect_Service.PDF
file:///C:/Users/pjewers/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Documents%20and%20Settings/bld_indiv/Charlie's/Bldg_Web/Bldg_Web/PDF_Files/Temp_Elec_Service.PDF


 

3 

 

Article 230.26.Point of Attachment. Amend as follows: 89 

 90 

In no case shall this point of attachment be less than [3.81 m] 4.27 m [(12.5 ft)] (14 ft.) above 91 

finished grade. 92 

  93 

Article 230.28.Service Masts as Supports. Add subsections [(A)], [(B)], (C), (D), (E), (F) to read as 94 

follows: 95 

 96 

[(A)](C).General. 97 

When the overhead service is installed on the eave side of a structure with a pitched roof, the service 98 

mast conduit shall extend through the roof. 99 

  100 

[(B)](D).Conduit Size. 101 

The conduit size shall be a minimum of two inches rigid metal or intermediate metal conduit and 102 

must extend at least three feet above the roof surface. If couplings are used in the installation, they 103 

must be located below the roof overhang. 104 

  105 

[(C)](E).Guyed Support. 106 

The service mast conduit when installed through the roof shall be guyed to the roof with a minimum 107 

5/8 inches galvanized closed eyebolt using a minimum of 1/8 inches stranded stainless steel wire 108 

aircraft cable with four approved clamps. If the service mast conduit extends above the roof over four 109 

feet in length, then a double V-guy installation is required. 110 

 111 

 [(D)](F).Protection of Meter. 112 

When the eave overhang is less than eighteen inches, additional protection shall be required to protect 113 

the meter from snow and ice damage by a minimum of an 18 gauge galvanized metal hood or 114 

equivalent extending over the meter. 115 

 116 

Article 230.41.Insulation of Service Entrance Conductors. Add the following: 117 

 118 

Individual ungrounded service entrance conductors shall be XHHW, RHW, or R-Type insulation 119 

approved for exterior use. No other insulation is acceptable. 120 

 121 

Article 230.54(F).Drip Loops. Add the following: 122 

 123 

For 100 ampere service, leave 18 inches of conductors, for 200 ampere and larger, leave 24 inches of 124 

conductors extending out of the weather head. 125 

 126 

Article 230.70(A)(1).Location. Add the following: 127 

 128 

If installed inside, a means to disconnect all conductors in the building from the service entrance 129 

conductors shall be provided on the building exterior 130 

 131 

Article 230.70(A)(3) Remote Control. Add the following subsections: 132 



 

4 

 

(a) The remote control device shall be a key switch approved by the Fire Department. 133 

(b) The key switch shall shut down the electrical power for the entire building. 134 

(c) If a facility is equipped with a generator, a key switch shall be installed to shut down the 135 

generator in the event of an emergency. This switch shall be located adjacent to the electrical 136 

service remote control key switch or the electrical service disconnect. 137 

(d) Key switch locations shall be marked with a visible sign indicating “Fire Department Use Only” 138 

and “Generator Disconnect”. 139 

 140 

Article 230.70(A)(4).Add subsection (4): 141 

 142 

(4).Natural and Liquid Petroleum Gas. Electrical equipment (i.e.: service disconnect, electrical 143 

meters, receptacles, etc.) shall be installed not less than 5 feet from any LPG tank installation and 144 

related regulators, etc. or NG meter and regulators. If the gas equipment is installed less then 5 feet to 145 

the electrical equipment, then the electrical equipment shall meet the requirements of Article 500 and 146 

501 of the National Electrical Code. 147 

 148 

Article 230.70(B).Marking. Add the following: 149 

 150 

When there is more than one meter on any single service, they shall be permanently identified with 151 

numbers painted on the meter base at least one inch in height or identified by other approved means 152 

that corresponds to the number on the unit served. 153 

 154 

Article 250.66(B) Connections to Concrete Encased Electrodes. Amend the following: 155 

 156 

Where the grounding electrode conductor is connected to a concrete encased electrode as permitted in 157 

250.52(A)(3) a #4 AWG bare copper conductor consisting of at least 6.0 m (20 ft) in length shall be 158 

installed in the footing for a 100-200 ampere service. A #2 AWG bare copper conductor shall be 159 

installed in the footing for 225-300 ampere service. A 1/0 AWG bare copper conductor is required for 160 

a 350-400 ampere service. A 2/0 AWG bare conductor is required for a 450-500 ampere service and 161 

3/0 AWG bare conductor is required for services greater than 500 amperes. 162 

 163 

Article 410.36(B).Suspended Ceilings. Add the following exception: 164 

 165 

Exception: When the light fixtures are supported seismically in accordance with the current building 166 

codes adopted by the City of North Pole the above supports are not required. 167 

 168 

Article 700.12(B).Generator Set. Add subsection (7): 169 

 170 

(7).The generator shall have an exterior disconnect located adjacent to service disconnect to prevent 171 

the generator from starting when the normal power is turned off in case of an emergency or fire. A 172 

weatherproof sign shall be installed adjacent to the service disconnect that reads: Emergency 173 

Generator Disconnect Switch. 174 



 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
 

FOR THE 

 

Peridot Business Park 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
By and Between the 

 
CITY OF NORTH POLE, ALASKA 

 
and  

 
Badger Properties LLC 

 
 
 

2017 
 
 
 



2 of 14 Pages 

 
 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 

Table of Contents...................................................................................... Page  2 
 
Development Agreement........................................................................... Pages 3 - 10 
 
Appendices: 
 
 Appendix 'A' - Legal Description ......................................... Page 10 
 
 Appendix 'B' - Public Improvements ................................... Page 11 
 
 Appendix 'C' - Completion Schedule .................................. Page 12 
  
 Appendix 'D' – Traffic control plan ……..................................... Page 13 
 
 Appendix 'E' – Storm water plan (if required)................................ Page 14 
 
 
 
  

Attachments: 
 

 
Design and Construction Guidelines for the City of North Pole  
Street and Drainage Systems   
 
Peridot water runoff plan for Peridot Business Park  
 
Proposed Typical road section for Peridot Business Park 
 
Proposed Plat for Peridot Business Park  
 
R&M Engineering consultant’s letter dated 5-9-17 

 
MOA for road plan review and inspection services with the City of 
Fairbanks, Alaska 



3 of 14 Pages 

Peridot Business Park  

 
THIS AGREEMENT, made this 15th day of May, 2017, between the CITY OF NORTH 
POLE, 125 Snowman Ln, North Pole, Alaska, 99705, a municipal corporation of the 
State of Alaska, hereinafter referred to as the "CITY", and the Badger Properties LLC, 
Po Box 55068, North Pole Alaska 99705, their heirs and assigns, hereinafter referred to 
as the "DEVELOPER". 
 
 The CITY and the Developer, in consideration of their mutual covenants herein, 
make this agreement which solely concerns the public improvements which are to be 
constructed by the Developer for the City and conveyed to the City and private 
improvements to be owned and maintained by the Developer, if the Developer complies 
with this Agreement.  The Developer will, in addition, have to comply with other City 
Codes, for example Building and Fire Codes. 
 
 

SECTION 1. THE DEVELOPER: 

 

1.05 The Developer shall design and install the proposed improvements as herein 
described, in conformance with the North Pole Code of Ordinances, Chapters 12, 
Streets sidewalks and public places, and all requirements and specifications of the 
Design and Construction Guidelines for the City of North Pole Street and Drainage 
System, or approved design as submitted in this agreement and approved by the City.  
Any variance to City standards shall be clearly identified and provide justification for the 
variance,  See attachments for road construction variances.  All documents are attached 
to this Agreement, incorporating them as part of the Agreement. 
 
1.10 The Developer shall provide one hundred percent (100%) of the funding for the 
design and construction of all improvements required by this Agreement.  
 
1.15 In addition, the Developer shall pay the City one hundred percent (100%) for all 
of the associated expenses incurred by the City including costs for preparation of this 
developer’s agreement, and review, plan check, test, administration, and inspection of 
these improvements.  City labor / administration costs are estimated to be $18,500 and 
are billed as a reimbursable cost through an agreement with the City of Fairbanks.  See 
attachments for MOA with City of Fairbanks for plan review and inspection services of 
roads.  The effective start date of the billings will be 7-1-17.  All these costs shall be paid 
promptly upon billing and by the 31st of December of the year in which they accrued 
and before acceptance of the improvements by the City.  City billings are anticipated to 
be on a quarterly basis.   
 



4 of 14 Pages 

1.20 The Developer shall be responsible for the maintenance of all improvements 
covered by this agreement until acceptance tests are satisfactorily completed and 
written approval is given by the City and the council accepts ownership of the 
improvements. 
 
1.25 The Developer shall purchase a bond guaranteeing completion of the public 
improvements to the satisfaction of the City, dedicated for City use to complete the 
public improvements should the Developer’s contractor fail to satisfactorily do so as 
agreed.  The bond amount shall be $100,000, the estimated total cost of public 
improvements plus City administration costs as established by the Mayor or Mayor’s 
designee. 
 
 The City will relinquish its performance bond interest upon satisfactory 
completion of the improvements and acceptance by City Council. 
 
1.3 The Developer shall submit to the City three (3) complete copies of all 
engineering reports, plans, specifications and materials lists including design 
assumptions and calculations.  A deposit of $1,000 shall be paid for by the developer for 
the cost to the City for administrating the project that includes but are not limited to 
(reviewing, plan checking, testing and inspecting) , this deposit is not to be construed as 
an estimate and the Developer will be billed for actual costs associated with this project 
per Section 1.15.  No work shall be permitted to begin until the overall engineering 
report for all improvements, public and non-public, and the final plans and specifications 
have been reviewed and approved in writing by the Mayor or Mayor’s designee.   
 
The Developer shall submit, to the Mayor or Mayor’s designee a proposed schedule.  All 
proposed changes to approved engineering reports, plans, specifications and materials 
lists shall be submitted in a reasonable length of time prior to starting construction of the 
affected portion of the project.  Construction of any changes shall not commence until 
approval is given in writing.  Subsequent to approval, all changes will be incorporated 
into the As-built drawings. Submittal of additional materials after commencement of this 
agreement may incur additional charges that will be billed at the cost of the developer.  
 
1.35 The Developer hereby agrees to grant to the City access to all portions of the 
property specified in Appendix 'A' or private easement, permit area, etc. which is 
necessary to accomplish any inspections, surveillance, testing, or any other work to be 
performed by the City.  The actual work schedule will be provided to the City by the 
Developer.  Any changes in the schedule require at least forty-eight (48) hours advance 
notification to the City.  A minimum of seven (7) days written notice is required for any 
connections to the City's existing facilities. 
 
1.40 All necessary permits, licenses and reservations or easements shall be acquired 
by the Developer.  Drainage reservations or easements will be acquired in the name of 
the City of North Pole or in a manner that assigns the reservations or easements to the 
City of North Pole before acceptance of the improvements by the City.  Such 



5 of 14 Pages 

reservations or easements shall include permit(s) from appropriate governmental 
authorities to cover all improvements on government land or within their jurisdiction.  
  
1.45 The Developer shall comply with all applicable statutes, ordinances, rules and 
regulations of federal, state and governmental agencies.  Copies of all pertinent 
approval letters, permits, licenses and rights of way shall be transferred to the City upon 
acceptance of the public improvements by the City. 
 
1.50 The Developer will also provide copies of proposed utility plans.  Utility facilities 
will be located to the satisfaction of the City.  Each utility is subject to a City right of way 
permit. 
 
1.55 Permitting of City water and sewer utilities must satisfy the City Utility guidelines 
[list construction guidelines reference here] or approved design as submitted in this 
agreement and approved by the City.  Any variance to City standards shall be clearly 
identified and provide justification for the variance with engineering documentation.   
 
1.60 Before acceptance by the City, the Developer shall furnish a one (1) year 
warranty bond equal to five percent (5%) of the public improvement which the Developer 
desires the City to accept. The Mayor or Mayor’s designee shall not recommend 
acceptance of the public improvements by the City Council until all deficiencies have 
been corrected to his satisfaction and all outstanding liens or claims of laborers, 
materials suppliers, subcontractors, or others arising out of the performance of these 
improvements have been satisfied. 
 

1.65 The Developer shall complete all improvements required by this Agreement 
within two (2) years from the date of execution of this Agreement.  The Mayor or 
Mayor’s designee may at their discretion allow extensions for up to a total maximum of 
one (1) year.  Acts of God, inclement weather, governmental regulations, labor disputes, 
fires, required extra work, or any delay totally beyond the control of the Developer may 
justify an extension of time.  All time extensions requested by the Developer shall be 
made to the City in writing on or before the tenth day following the day in which the 
alleged delay is said to have occurred.  The City shall not be liable for costs incurred by 
these delays. 
 
1.70 The Developer shall warranty the design, construction and materials utilized in all 
improvements outlined in this Agreement for one (1) year from the date of acceptance of 
the improvements by the City Council.  The Developer shall remedy at his/her own 
expense any failure or defect in the work or any failure of any improvement to properly 
function which is due to design deficiencies, construction deficiencies, faulty materials or 
workmanship.  
 
1.75 Correction of the deficiencies shall be completed to the City's satisfaction within 
30 days of written notification by the City.  The warranty bond will be released upon 
satisfactory correction of all deficiencies of the City's year end warranty inspection if any 



6 of 14 Pages 

security remains from default to warranty obligations.  Emergency repairs may be 
completed by City forces and the cost shall be borne by the Developer. 
 
1.80 The Developer shall hold the City harmless and defend the City from any and all 
claims arising out of, or incidental to the design, construction or operation by the 
Developer contemplated by terms of this Agreement by the Developer.  The Developer 
shall not be liable for acts of the City.  This section does not create any third party rights 
and any immunity or defense the City is entitled to shall be available to the Developer in 
any suit brought by third parties which in any way involved the Development Agreement. 
 
1.85 The Developer shall retain a qualified engineer, licensed by the State of Alaska, 
to design and review the construction of said improvements including approving any 
changes and modifications of the design.  "As-Built" drawings stamped and signed by a 
professional engineer and professional land surveyor will be provided to and approved 
by the City prior to acceptance.  It is understood and agreed said engineer and surveyor 
are agents of and solely responsible to the Developer, and is in no sense whatsoever 
the agents of the City. 
 
1.90 The Developer shall coordinate the design and construction with the adjacent and 
affected property owners. Seven (7) days notice shall be provided prior to 
commencement of construction to those impacted by this project. 
 
1.95 The Developer shall convey the ownership of the public improvements, described 
in Appendix 'B', to the City of North Pole upon acceptance.  The form of the conveyance 
shall be as approved by the City Attorney. Only these improvements, if accepted by the 
City, shall be maintained by the City. 
 
 
 

SECTION 2. THE CITY: 

 

2.10 The City shall review and approve (when acceptable) the submitted engineering 
reports, plans, specifications and materials lists prior to construction and inspection of 
the project.  Final approval is required by Mayor or Mayor’s designee prior to Notice to 
Proceed. 
 
2.20 This Agreement does not obligate the City to finance any portion of the public 
improvements nor accept, operate or maintain any public improvements not constructed 
or inspected to City standards or design agreed to in this document. 
 
2.30 Upon acceptance of the public improvements by the City Council, the City will 
take over ownership and operation of the public improvements detailed in this 
Agreement.  City maintenance of these improvements will not begin until this time.  The 
final acceptance inspection by the City of the public improvements detailed in this 



7 of 14 Pages 

agreement will be conducted by the Mayor or Mayor’s designee, and representatives 
from other government agencies and the City as appropriate. 
 
 

SECTION 3. APPENDICES: 

 

3.10 This Agreement shall include all appendices and attachments referenced and 
such are incorporated herein as though fully set out herein.  This Agreement is 
composed of the Development Agreement, attachments, and the following appendices:   
 
APPENDIX 'A' Legal Description 
 
APPENDIX 'B' Public Improvements to be conveyed to the City 
 
APPENDIX 'C' Completion Schedule 
 
APPENDIX 'D' Traffic control plan  
 
APPENDIX 'E' Storm water plan (if required) 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



8 of 14 Pages 

SECTION 4. GENERAL: 

 

4.10 This Agreement shall not diminish the requirements of the Fairbanks North Star 
Borough (FNSB) or non-city, governmental agencies. 
 
4.20 If the Developer should fail to repair property or facilities owned by the City which 
were damaged by the Developer, or his/her agents, or if the Developer makes changes 
in construction covered by this Agreement without approval by the City, the City, after 
three (3) days written notice to the Developer, can make such repairs or remove such 
changes at the expense of the Developer. 
 
4.30 If the City determines the construction of an improvement does not comply with 
the plans and specifications as approved by the City, the City shall issue a written notice 
to the Developer specifying the deficiencies and may stop all further construction 
involving the work found to be non-complying.  This stop work order shall remain in 
effect until the Developer has made all necessary arrangements to remedy the non-
compliance and to provide assurances such non-compliance shall not again occur.  All 
damages, loss, expense incurred by any party as the result of a stop order imposed by 
the City shall not be the responsibility of the City. 
 
4.40 The Mayor or Mayor’s designee may authorize representatives (hereafter 
referred to as the Representative) to inspect all work done and all materials furnished for 
all improvements specified in this Agreement.  The Representative shall have authority 
to reject materials or work, but the Mayor or Mayor’s designee shall have final authority 
for deciding if the Developer's work and materials are acceptable.  The Representative 
is not authorized to revoke, alter, enlarge, relax, or release any requirements of the 
plans and specifications, nor to approve or accept any portion of the work, nor to issue 
instructions contrary to the Agreement, nor act as supervisor for the Developer.  The 
presence or absence of the Representative does not relieve the Developer from his/her 
obligation to perform all contract requirements and work shall not be deemed acceptable 
just by the reason of the presence of the Representative. 
 



9 of 14 Pages 

In Witness Whereof, This Agreement made and entered into on the day and year first 
written above: 
     
Developer: Badger Properties LLC 
 
  Owner 
   

By: ________________________ Date: _______________ 
      Buzz Otis 

 
  By:________________________  Date: _______________ 
 
 
Owner:  City of North Pole  
 
 
Approved  By:  __________________________ Attest: _____________________ 
     Bryce J. Ward, Mayor                         Kathy Weber, MMC  
                              City Clerk 

     Date ___________  
 

                           (((CCCIIITTTYYY   SSSEEEAAALLL)))   
 
Approved as to form: _____________________________ 
    Zane Wilson, City Attorney 

    Date ___________ 
 

City Acknowledgment 

 
State of Alaska   ) 
     ) ss 
Fourth Judicial District  )  
      
THIS IS TO CERTIFY that on this _____ day of ________, 20__, before me, the undersigned, a 
NOTARY PUBLIC in and for the State of Alaska, duly commissioned and sworn as such, 
personally appeared Bryce J. Ward, known to me to be the City Mayor of the City of North Pole , 
the municipal corporation named in the foregoing instrument, and that they signed the same 
under authority of said municipal corporation as the free and voluntary act and deed of said 
corporation. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have set my hand and affixed my official seal the day and year 
above written. 
 
      __________________________________ 
      Notary Public in and for the State of Alaska 



10 of 14 Pages 

(((SSSEEEAAALLL)))      Commission Expires: _________________ 
 

APPENDIX  'A' 

 
THE PROPERTY: The land owned by the Developer which is the subject of this 
agreement for purposes of this project is described below. 
 

 
 
Lot 2 Quinnell subdivision, 1st addition (plat # 2002-100) Located within 
Sec 4, T2S R2E FM AK.   
 
 

 
 
 



11 of 14 Pages 

APPENDIX 'B' 

 
PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS TO BE CONVEYED TO THE CITY 

 
The public improvements to be designed, constructed by the Developer, and conveyed 
to the City with associated easements necessary to encompass, operate and maintain 
these improvements are as follows: 
 
 

The public street system will include approximately, 800 linear feet of chip 
seal streets.  Prosperity Way will have access/egress to Peridot Road and 
shall consist of two 12-foot lanes with chip seal finish and a 3 foot gravel 
shoulder. Total shoulder width shall be 3 feet.  Prosperity Way will service 
ten new commercial lots and will end in a 85’ diameter chip seal cul-de-
sac.  All surfacing shall consist of a chip seal finish.  Road base is greater 
than required standard at 18” of NFS material.  Paved road surface shall 
be sloped 2% and edge of road shall have a slope no greater than a 3:1.  
 
Prosperity way access onto Peridot shall consist of one 18” culvert 
extending for the full width of the roadway.   
 
Prosperity way will have the final surface constructed after 80% of the lots 
are sold. Until the road is completed to the standard outlined in this 
agreement it will be maintained by Badger Properties LLC.   
 

 
 



12 of 14 Pages 

APPENDIX  'C' 
 

COMPLETION SCHEDULE 
 
 

 
The improvements shall be designed and constructed according to the following 
tentative schedule: 
 
1. Preliminary Design Report, Plans and Specifications to the City for approval:  

Submitted on 5-10-17 
 
2. Final Design Report, Plans and Specifications to the City for approval:  5-15-17 
 
3. Governmental Agency Approvals 
 a.  FNSB Zoning: NA 
 b.  FNSB Platting: 6-30-17 preliminary approval 
 c.  US Army Corps of Engineers Wetland Permit: in progress 
 d.  ADEC:  NA 

 

4. Pre-construction Conference with all key Developer representatives and 
contractors, City representatives and Utility representatives: 7-10-17 
 
5. Notice to Proceed:   7-14-17 
 
6. Public Improvement Construction Completion:  8-1-19 

   
7. "As-Built" Drawings: 8-1-19 
 
8. Final Conveyance, payments, certificate of release, etc.: 8-1-19 
 
9. Final Acceptance: anticipated to be 8-1-19 
 
A detailed construction schedule will be provided prior to the Notice to Proceed, 
reviewed monthly and updated as required. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



13 of 14 Pages 

APPENDIX  'D' 

 
TRAFFIC CONTROL PLAN 

 
A traffic plan is not required; signs will be posted on Peridot to notify 
Peridot traffic of truck crossing.   
 

 
 
 



14 of 14 Pages 

APPENDIX  'E' 

 
STORM WATER PERMIT 

 
A  storm water permit is not required, Please see storm runoff and ditch 
retention analysis for the Peridot Business Park  
 

 
 
 
 















  

Design Guidelines for Streets and Drainage 

City of North Pole 
125 Snowman Lane 

North Pole, AK 99705 

Tel.: 907-488-2281; Fax: 907-488-3002 

 

Part 1. General 

 

1.1 Intent. It is the intent of these guidelines to insure that newly constructed streets in 

subdivisions within the City of North Pole be built to a standard that will maintain or enhance 

property values within the neighborhood, and built of such material and in such a way that the 

City will be able to maintain them with the resources available to it. 

 

The requirements for streets constructed within the City of North Pole are more stringent than for 

those within the Borough at large or two major reasons. First, the City aspires to eventual paving 

of all streets in its neighborhoods. Thus, the initial street installation should be a first step toward 

this goal. Second, City streets are maintained by the City while the Borough roads are 

maintained at the expense of individuals living in a particular Service Area. Thus, a poorly 

constructed street in the City will sooner or later be a direct financial liability for all citizens of 

the City. 

 

These guidelines were drafted to aid in meeting the requirements of the City. No single 

document can possibly present guidelines for all situations that will be encountered. The City 

shall have ultimate authority to interpret this document, and may direct modifications for specific 

situations. Any proposed alternative materials and methods must be approved in writing by the 

City prior to installation. Substantial variations from these guidelines must be approved by the 

City Council. Special warranties may be required. 

 

1.2 Procedure. The design of all streets and associated drainage systems which are to become 

public streets in the City of North Pole (except for State of Alaska highways) shall be submitted 

to and approved by the City before construction. The design shall be in accordance with these 

guidelines and with all applicable codes and ordinances. Where requirements differ, the most 

stringent shall be met. 

 

The Borough requires that Developers furnish preliminary and final plats to the City (and other 

agencies) for comment before submitting them for Borough review and approval. In order to 

foster cooperation and to minimize subsequent delays, an informal conference should be 

arranged between the City and the Developer as early as possible. This will enable the City to 

answer questions as to the extent to which existing and proposed City facilities may affect the 

planned development, as well as questions regarding procedural requirements. 

 

The City will then review the plans and specifications for each preliminary plat for compliance 

with these guidelines and will work with the Developer to correct any deficiencies prior to 

formal submittal to the Borough. The plans and specifications shall be developed under the 

supervision of a civil engineer licensed and in good standing with the State of Alaska and shall 

be sealed thereby. 



  

 

Once the Developer has submitted an acceptable development package, the City will write a 

letter of non-objection to the Developer for submittal to the Borough. 

 

1.3 Standards of Construction. The Developer shall incorporate in the plans and specifications 

all the details of construction necessary to obtain a well constructed, easily maintainable road 

and drainage system. 

 

As-built plans and specifications shall be stamped by a professional civil engineer or registered 

land surveyor and shall be submitted to the City within one week of the completion of 

construction. The engineer or surveyor shall certify that the as-builts are an accurate depiction of 

what actually exists. 

 

Part 2: Streets 

 

2.1 Intent. The City’s goal is to provide good, maintainable streets for the use of its residents. 

Thus, developers are encouraged to provide paved streets, curb and gutters, and a storm drain 

system for their subdivisions. The design of the street and drainage system shall be coordinated 

with all utility system designs to avoid conflicts. 

 

The layout of street patterns should provide adequate and convenient access to all lots within a 

subdivision. Through traffic should be discouraged in residential subdivisions, but attention must 

be given to alternative access routes for emergency vehicles. Particular attention should be 

focused on Fairbanks North Star Borough, Title 17, and A Policy on Geometric Design of 

Highways and Streets by the American Association of State Highway and Transportation 

Officials. Street layout must consider placement of utilities to keep them inside or adjacent to the 

right-of-way (rather than along back or side lot line easements) to facilitate maintenance. 

 

2.2 Types of Streets: Title 17 identifies and defines eight road classifications, with minimum 

standards established for each. The City will approve or direct the classification of proposed 

roads within the development, based on the following definitions: 

 

Local Road: Local roads provide access to adjacent residential lots. Any road which does not 

fall into one of the other categories will be designated a local road. 

 

Minor Collector: Minor collectors join one or more local roads to the surrounding road system 

and may provide access to adjacent lots as well. As a rule, any road or section of road which 

handles the traffic from more than fifty (50) residential lots itself, or serving one or more local 

roads with a cumulative total of more than fifty lots, will be designated as a minor collector or 

better. Any road serving commercial or industrial lots will be designated as a minor collector or 

better. 

 

Major Collector: Major collectors will be designated by joint agreement between the 

Developer, the City and the State of Alaska DOT&PF. 

 



  

Arterial: Arterials will be designated by joint agreement betw4en the Developer, the City and 

the State of Alaska DOT&PF. 

 

Frontage Road: Frontage roads provide access to lots that otherwise would be landlocked by a 

limited access arterial or major collector. Frontage road design will require close cooperation 

between the Developer, the City and the State of Alaska DOT. 

 

Alley: Alleys provide secondary access to back or side lot lines of lots and may be a convenient 

route for utilities. Under no circumstances may an alley provide the sole access to a lot. 

 

No pioneer access roads will be approved within the City. 

 

2.3 Required Widths: Street widths required within the City are generally greater than those 

required by the Borough. The following are minimum widths for new developments: 

 

 

Classification 

Minimum Traveled 

Way 

Minimum Shoulder 

Each Side 

Minimum 

Right-of-Way 

Local Road 22 ft. 4 ft. 60 ft. 

Minor Collector 24 ft. 4 ft. 80 ft. 

Major Collector 24 ft. 6 ft. 100 ft. 

Arterial 24 ft. 8 ft. 100 ft. 

Frontage Road 24 ft. 8 ft. 80 ft. 

Alley 20 ft. N/A 30 ft. 

 

Theses are minimum widths. Traffic volumes, heavy turning movements, on-street parking 

requirements, presence of utilities and other factors may dictate grater widths. Minimum design 

speed shall be 30 mph for local roads, 40 for minor collectors and determined by the City and 

DOT/PF for others. 

 

If curb, gutter, and storm drain are constructed, the minimum width of right-of-way may be 

reduced to fifty (50) feet for local roads and seventy (70) feet for minor collectors. 

 

2.4 Alignment: Acceptable alignments will be based on the design speeds approved by the City 

for each road to be developed. Deflection angles greater than two degrees (2°) in the alignment 

of roads require connecting curves. Curves shall be engineered with a radius and super-elevation 

meeting AASHTO Guidelines. 

 

The intersection of streets shall be as nearly at right angles as possible but not less than seventy-

five degrees (75°) without approval of the City. In residential areas, three-way intersections are 

preferred to four-way intersections for safety. Four-way intersections should be at least two 

hundred feet (200’) apart, when measured centerline to centerline. This distance to a three-way 

intersection may be reduced to one hundred feet (100’). Intersections should be designed with a 



  

minimum corner radius of fifteen feet (15’) on local roads and designed for a WB-50 semi-

tractor trailer on all others. Corner lots shall have an appropriate radius corner at the intersection 

to maintain sufficient right-of-way width to allow for ditches around the turn radius. 

 

Centerline of the constructed street shall be centered in the right-of-way. 

 

2.5 Grades: Maximum grades are as defined in Title 17. Changes in grade shall be connected 

with vertical curves meeting AASHTO standards for sight distance at the design speed. 

 

2.6 Grading and Surfacing: Asphalt pavement shall be the required surface for all newly 

developed streets within the City. The following minimum depths of embankment and surfacing 

are required: 

 

 

Classification 

 

Minimum Gravel 

Minimum Crushed 

Rock 

Minimum Asphalt 

Pavement 

Local Road 12 in. 4 in. 1.5 in. 

Minor Collector 18 in. 4 in. 1.5 in. 

Major Collector 24 in 4 in. 2 in. 

Arterial 24 in. 4 in. 2 in. 

Frontage Road 18 in. 4 in. 2 in. 

Alley 12 in. Not Required Not Required 

 

If the Developer elects to pave alleys, minimum pavement thickness shall be 1.5 inch. 

 

These are minimum thicknesses. When adverse subsurface conditions, high traffic volumes or 

heavy anticipated truck traffic warrant, the City will require a pavement design calculation. The 

design method and design data must be submitted and approved by the City. Special measures 

may be required at specific locations such as slough crossings. The minimum depths may be 

reduced by the City when warranted by soils borings. 

 

Except in super-elevated areas, the paved street surface shall slope two percent (2%) from the 

center crown into a drainage system on either side.  

 

2.7 Materials and Construction: Proposed roads shall be cleared and grubbed to the limits of 

construction.  No waste or clearing debris shall be placed within the roadway, except that a small 

amount of waste with roots and stumps removed may be placed on slopes and seeded. 

 

Once clearing and grubbing are complete, the underlying material shall be compacted to 85% of 

maximum density prior to placing gravel. 

 

2.7.1 Gravel. Gravel used in the construction of streets shall meet the requirements of Title 17, 

and be compacted to 90% or more of maximum density. The City will require the use of a filter-



  

type geotechnical fabric where necessary to protect the gravel embankment from contamination 

by underlying silt, such as at old slough crossings. 

 

2.7.2 Crushed Rock. Crushed rock over which pavement is to be placed shall be made of pit run 

gravel, with specified gradation, hardness and fracture requirements acceptable to the City.  

 

Compaction of crushed rock shall be to 95% of maximum density. 

 

2.7.3 Prime Coat. Prime coast of a suitable type, grade and application rate shall be applied to 

the crushed gravel before installation of asphalt pavement or surface treatment. 

 

2.7.4 Asphalt Pavement. Asphalt pavement shall be plant mixed and placed with a laydown 

machine. Asphalt cement grade and content, and aggregate gradation, fracture and hardness, 

shall be clearly specified by the design engineer and approved by the City. Minimum compaction 

shall also be specified. 

 

2.7.5 Quality Control. Construction quality control testing by an independent laboratory will be 

required at the Developer’s expense to insure the specifications approved by the City are met. 

Type and frequency of such tests shall be spelled out in the specifications. 

 

2.8 Traffic and Safety 

 

2.8.1 Signing. Signing shall be in accordance with the Manual of Uniform Traffic Devices with 

Alaska Supplement. Minimum signing shall include intersection control, street names and speed 

regulation. Warning and informational signs shall be installed as warranted. 

 

Sign post shall be 2 ½” x 2 ½ “ perforated steel tubing, with embedded 3” x 3” sleeves, or an 

acceptable substitute. 

 

2.8.2 Stripping. At a minimum, centerline striping will be required on all paved streets. 

Shoulder striping will be required on collectors, arterials and frontage roads, and strongly 

encouraged on local roads. Striping and other traffic markings shall be designed and installed in 

accordance with the Manual of Uniform Traffic Devices with Alaska Supplement. 

 

2.8.3 Sight Distance. Sight distance on horizontal and vertical curves and at intersections shall 

meet AASHTO standards for the approved design speed. Where additional clearing is required to 

meet this requirement, the affected area shall be grubbed and seeded with grasses. Easements or 

additional right-of-way shall be dedicated as required for maintenance of sight distance. 

 

2.9 Miscellaneous Features 

 

2.9.1 Cable Crossing: All buried cable crossings shall be installed either by the affected utility 

or under its direct supervision. An easement shall be platted for each crossing within the 

proposed development. 

 



  

2.9.2 Driveways. Maximum driveway widths shall be twenty feet (20’) for single family 

residences, thirty feet (30’) for multiple family residences and commercial, and forty feet (40’) 

for large commercial. Additionally, no driveway entrance shall be closer than fifty feet (50’) to a 

street intersection, measured from shoulder of driveway to shoulder of street. More than one 

driveway entrance to a lot or greater driveway width may only be allowed with written 

authorization from the City. Driveways need not be constructed at the time of street construction, 

but they must be designed to the extent of location, width, profile and culvert size and length. 

 

Driveways connected to streets with ditches for drainage will usually require culverts. A swale 

system may eliminate the necessity for these culverts. The driveway going across the swale must 

be properly sloped to avoid “bottoming out” of vehicles. To achieve this, the algebraic sum of 

the road side slope and the adjacent driveway slope shall not be more than fourteen percent 

(14%). Thus, at driveways, the backslope would be cut down to a maximum of six percent if the 

slope of the swale adjacent to the road is the typical eight percent (six inches in six feet). In no 

case shall driveways impede the flow of a swale or ditch. 

 

Driveways which provide access to a paved street shall themselves be paved for at least 12’ from 

the edge of street pavement. 

 

Part 3. Drainage 

 

3.1 Scope. The City’s fundamental concern is that snow melt and rain runoff is drained away 

from structures and building lots. Runoff shall be conveyed to the ultimate disposal pint through 

storm drains, culverts or ditches, but not over streets, sidewalks, curbs, or other public 

improvements. If an existing public system is not available or is of insufficient capacity, on-site 

disposal or retention is required with easements for maintenance access. The design of the 

drainage system shall comply with all requirements of the City of North Pole NPDES permit for 

Storm Water Discharge from Small Municipal Separate Storm Sewer Systems. (MS4) 

 

Ideally, curb and gutters will be provided by the developer to immediately enhance property 

values and to avoid future assessments. However, a well designed drainage system consisting of 

ditches and culverts, or a swale with associated drainage system is an acceptable substitute. 

 

3.2. Design Criteria. 

 

3.2.1 Recurrence Interval. The minimum acceptable drainage system design shall be based on 

the five year peak rainfall rate for one hour for North Pole. Where circumstances warrant, the 

City may designate a longer recurrence interval. The design shall be based on the area being 

fully developed. 

 

The drainage system design shall identify an ultimate destination for surface runoff compatible 

with other existing and future development in the area, and one or more routes by which runoff 

could be carried to that destination. Existing and necessary future easements shall be identified. 

The City may, at its discretion, waive construction of a portion of the ultimate runoff system 

provided that the interim drainage pattern is compatible with the ultimate system. Suitable 

ultimate destinations might include live sloughs or streams, an existing ditch system (provided it 



  

has sufficient capacity and an ultimate destination of its own) or an engineered disposal method. 

Existing drainage systems shall not be obstructed, and may only be used if they are shown by the 

Developer to have sufficient capacity for the additional flow. 

 

3.2.2 Snowmelt. Snow removal, including runoff, must be proved for in the drainage design. 

Snow dump sites with suitable drainage are desirable within the development if existing City 

sites are not readily available or are not of sufficient size to accommodate the necessary quantity 

of snow. Ditches should be wide enough for temporary snow storage on arterials, frontage roads 

and major collectors, and wide enough for the annual snow accumulation on minor collectors 

and local roads. 

 

3.3 Ditches and Culverts. The minimum slope for ditches and culverts shall be twenty-five 

hundredths of one percent (0.25%). Drainage for relatively flat areas shall be achieved through 

roller coasting the ditch line a minimum grade of twenty-five hundredths of one percent (0.25%) 

and draining the ditch laterally at the low points. 

 

Culverts used shall be corrugated steel pipe, with minimum diameter of twelve inches (12”) for 

driveway crossings and eighteen (18”) for street crossings. Culverts shall be covered a minimum 

depth of twelve inches (12”). 

 

The in slope of ditches shall be three to one (horizontal to vertical) or flatter, with maximum one 

to one acceptable for the back slope of the ditch. Maximum depth of ditch is four feet (4’) for 

industrial and commercial areas and three feet (3’) for residential neighborhoods and public areas 

such as schools and playgrounds. 

 

3.4 Swales. Properly designed swales may be used on the sides of streets for drainage. Swales 

have much less depth than ditches and may allow the elimination of culverts at driveways. 

Swales may also require more associated lateral drainage systems than ditches. 

 

The slope of the swale shall correspond to the adjacent street with a minimum slope of four-

tenths of one percent (0.4%). The bottom of the swale shall be at least ix inches (6”) below and 

six feet (6’) away from the road surface shoulder. From its low point, the swale shall slope 

upward to adjacent property at a maximum steepness of one foot vertical for each four feet 

horizontal. Slope shall extend into adjacent property as necessary. 

 

3.5 Curb and Gutter. A minimum 0.25% grade should be maintained on paved roads with 

curbs, gutters and storm drain systems. Where the gutter discharges of a side drain or at a curb 

return, shoulders and slopes shall be protected against erosion. 

 

3.6 Erosion Control. Wherever culverts, ditches, gutters or storm drains discharge to the slopes 

of a new or existing street, slope protection shall be provided. 

 

3.7 Miscellaneous Features. 

 

3.7.1 Insulation. Insulation shall be required on storm drains and culverts at locations where 

their placement reduces the effective depth of burial of water and sewer lines below minimum 



  

required depths (four feet for water and five feet for sewer), increasing the risk of freezing. 

Storm drains and catch basins within seven feet of sewer main, water mains, and services shall 

be covered with at least two inches of urethane insulation. Extruded polystyrene may be an 

acceptable insulation for specific situations if approved by the City. If the Storm drain is within 

twelve inches of services at lest six inches of urethane shall separate them. 

 

Proposed ditch crossings of existing and proposed water and sewer mains and services shall be 

checked for minimum burial depths, and insulated if necessary. 

 

Part 4. Attachments 

 

4.1 TYPICAL STREET SECTION. 

4.2 TYPICAL STREET SECTION WITH SWALE ALTERNATIVE 



  

 

 
 

 

Right of way width varies with road classification 

Traffic way 

and shoulder 

width varies 

with 

classification 

Utility easement 

3% unpaved 

2% paved 

1:1 slope 

maximum 

3:1 slope 

maximum 

Asphalt pavement 

if required by 

classification 4” crushed 

surfacing 

  

Minimum gravel 

per classification 

4.1 Typical Street Section, City of North Pole Alaska 



  

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Right of way width varies with road classification 

Traffic way 

and shoulder 

width varies 

with 

classification 

Utility easement 

3% unpaved 

2% paved 

Asphalt pavement 

if required by 

classification 4” crushed 

surfacing 

  

Minimum gravel 

per classification 

6’ minimum 

14% 

maximum 

grade 

change at 

driveways 

Culvert or storm 

drain system if 

needed 

4:1 maximum 

between 

driveways 

Depth 

minimum 

0.3’ 

4.2 Typical Street Section with Swale Alternative 



 

FO

A

K
SALA

ETAT
S

R
E

E
NI

G

N
E

LANOISSEFORP
D

E
R

E

T
SI

G
E

R

TH49

CE−1752

James H. Wellman

 
May 10, 2017 



COST ESTIMATE PER TASK

FIRM: City of Fairbanks PROJECT TITLE: Peridot Business Park - New Road Construction

TASK NO:   TASK DESCRIPTION: Plan Review & Field Inspections DATE: 5/10/2017

GROUP: METHOD OF PAYMENT: FP FPPE T&E CPFF PREPARED BY:       Jackson Fox, City Engineer

SUB- LABOR HOURS PER JOB CLASSIFICATION

TASK NO. SUB-TASK DESCRIPTION Senior 

Engineer

Staff 

Engineer

1 Plan Review 4 12

2 Field Inspections 8 88

TOTAL LABOR HOURS 12 100 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

* LABOR RATES ($/HR) $135.29 $118.74

LABOR COSTS ($) $1,623.50 $11,874.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

EXPENSES

SUB-

TASK NO.
ITEM(S) QUANTITY UNIT PRICE

TOTAL 

PRICE

2a MAPPA - lab work for density & material testing 1 $5,000.00 $5,000.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00 FIRM'S TOTAL COST OF LABOR (or Fixed Price): $13,497

$0.00 IF CPFF , TOTAL INDIRECT COST @ $0

TOTAL EXPENSES: $5,000 FIRM'S TOTAL EXPENSES $5,000

SUB-CONTRACTORS:  Firm Initials and Price Per Task FIRM'S TOTAL COST (no Subcontracts or Fee) $18,497

FIRM:

AMOUNT: TOTAL SUBCONTRACTOR PRICES: $0

*  Labor Rates shall be direct labor (base pay) only if Method of Payment is CPFF; otherwise, Labor Rates shall be total rates (i.e. base pay + benefits + overhead + profit.)

COMMENTS:

estimate.tsk (March 2014)  DOT/PF, Task Estimate Sheets Task 1 



FIRÊ
DEPT

125 tnowmln Llnr - llorth Polt,l,lr¡l¡¡ ee70s
Phonc C07¡l8.2ial2 fer¡ 9O7áE8.3747

Memo
To¡

From:

Date:

Re:

North Pole City Council

Geoffrey L. Coon

5109t17

Disposal of Fire Department Training Trailer

Summary:

The North Pole Fire Department would like Council approval of the disposal of the Mobile Home Trailer
adjacent to the Fire Department.

The Department has secured an agreement with L & L services to remove the old mobile home trailer
next to the Fire Department for the Fee of $500.00. This fee will be paid for out of the existing FD building
maintenance budget.

The actual age of the trailer is unknown. lt was not new when it was moved on site in the eighties. Best
guess puts the trailer at 40-50 years old. lt was used to house volunteers in the past but has been
uninhabitable for the last 12 years. The reason the trailer was abandoned as a livable structure were:

1. Multiple water breaks.

2. Extreme age of the structure.

3. Multiple repairs to the appliances.

4. Escalating cost to operate and maintain

Since 2005, the structure has been used for fire training. The department has used the trailer for
performing searches, rescues, and advancing charged hose lines into the structure. The training has
resulted in holes in both the ceiling and walls. All interior doors and one exterior door has sustained
signiflcant damage. The department is working with utilities this year to dig up the water service so that
a breakage does not occur this winter. lt has been determined that the trailer is an eyesore and has no
further value.

With all this in mind I am seeking council approval to dispose of the FD training trailer

Geoffrey L. Coon

Fire Chief
1



1åt

D





Memo

125 Snowman Lane
North Pole, AK 99705
P: 907-488-8583
F: 907488-3002
C: 907-388-2728
Email: Kathy.Weber@northpolealaska.org

To:

From:

CC:

Dafe:

Re:

l{P Crty Council

Kathy Weber

Mayor Ward

5110/2017

Annual Renewal ofthe City ofNorth Pole Healthcare Plan

The City of North Pole's annual renewal of the healthcare plan has been sent to us for review. lt is
very good news for the City as there has only been a 1.3% overall increase to our plan. All items in the
plan would stay the same as they were last year and there would be no increase to employee
contributions.

Gity of North Pole
Office of the Gity GIerk/HR Mgr



CIry oE NoRTH Porn
2OI7 RnxE\ilAL MEETING

125 Snowman Lane
North Pole, AK 99705

May 7,2017

Presented by:
Craig Kestran
Employee Benefits Manager

Diana Stewart, RHU, CEBS
Sr. Employee Benefits Account Manager

...:h
lnsuronce Brokers

of Alosko
¡Cllf U¡E ¡çttr¡tutu



Agenda

Soctlon I.

Soction II.

Soctlon III.

Soctlon IY.

Scrtlon Y.

Soction VI.

C¡ty of North Pole

G¡norrl Ovolvlow

Currrnt Trundr ln l{ctltñceru

Loglrletlvo Updeto

Summery of Currunt Prognmt

Roncwrl Prclcntttion

RcpoËr f Exhlblt

2



Glty of llort'lr Polc Attcndco¡: In¡urancc Brokcn of Alatka Attcndcc¡:
Bryce Ward Craig Kestran

Kathy Weber Diana Stewaft

Indlvldual Functlonal Po¡ltlon
Craig Kestran
907-365-5106
ckcltnnOln¡r¡ranccbrckonak.com

E mployoo BoncfÏt¡ l,llnegcr:
Responsible for managing all strategic
aspects of client relationship, including
planning, plan design, financial evaluation,
claims analysis, insurer negotiations and
compliance.

Diana Stewaft, RHU, CEBS

907-365-5154
dtrW! ËOonodlg lte l.com

Employoo Bonoúltr Suporulror:
Responsible for analyzing carrier proposals,
assisting with the preparation of financial
evaluations (renewals) and daily
service/policy issues and plan execution.

J



I. General Overview

Our Gommltmcnt to Sorulcc

We appreciate the oppoftunity to work with City of North Pole, and help you meet your
insurance and employee benefits objectives. In order to adapt to the changing needs of your
organization, Insurance Brokers of Alaska & One Digital has invested in top-notch talent and
leading-edge technology. We take nothing for granted, and will always work in the best interest
of City of North Pole.

Thank you for your business. We look forward to nufturing an ongoing relationship that brings
you the best solutions in the business. We will continue to build our relationship through hard
work, creativity, and assertiveness that effectively meets the needs of your business.

In¡urancc Brokcr¡ of Ale¡kr Account Scrulcc Tcam

All Insurance Brokers of Alaska clients are assigned to a team of specialists who are dedicated to
providing a wealth of resources to serve their needs. Our professionals pride themselves on
excellent service, and are dedicated to using their experience and expeftise to meet our clients'
benefits objectives. Your account team's goal is to help City of North Pole save money through
proper implementation and management of your benefits programs, and they are committed to
anticipating and fulfilling your needs and concerns,

In addÍtion to our own talented professionals and specialized value-added services, Insurance
Brokers of Alaska has a wealth of resources available to us through our national affiliation with
One Digital, The resources available to us through these affiliations let us gain access to regional
expeftise and market clout.

Final accountability for your programs is the responsibility of Craig Kestran, your lead Advisor.
While a number of our professional staff will be active wÍth your account, either on a day-to-day
or project-specific basis, Craig is ultimately responsible for meeting your expectations.

4



II. Gurrent Trends in Healthcare

2ol7-20lt Trends

Health Care costs remain high, rising well above the national CPI each year. Increases
have been in the double digits now for over 14 consecutive years. This year has seen a
slight reduction, but with the rising cost of prescriptions as well as the uncertainty with
regards to health care reform trends will be on the rise again soon

2002 2003 2001 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2019 2011 2015 2016

Cost Driverc:

Health Care Reform

Increased incidence of chronic diseases - due to increase in age of the overall
population and in part due to unhealthy lifestyle cholces.

Specialty Drugs are creating double digit increases in pharmacy spend as more
new drugs receive FDA approval.

Increase use of technology to treat illnesses

Inefficient care - only 55o/o of all patients receive care in accordance with Best
Practices.

Defensive medicine - additional tests and procedures ordered as precautions

Addition of new provider locations and local clinics.

I

¡

I

5

11.7'lc

13.ú/e
12.0'lo

11.0'/o
10.1'/o lO.Oolol0.Oclo 9.5%

15.0% 15.0'/.
16.0.Â

11.Ùolc11.Ùo/t
13.0o/o 12.3e/c



Colt Saving Gonridcrationr:

Cost shifting:I

o Increase employee contributions
o Tiered employee contributions - charging employees a percentage of pay,

charging employees whose dependents have access to other insurance more
than those that do not

o Offer "Wellness Rebates to offset employee contribution increases

Change plan designs - especially increasing the prescription drug co-payments to
keep pace with prescription drug cost increases.

o Although minimum changes can be made within a Grandfathered plan, major
changes to benefits will cause the loss of Grandfather Status and an overall
increase in plan costs.

Focus on Employee Communications - as the need to implement more drastic cost
savings increases, it is critical to engage employees. Comprehensive
communications are needed to build awareness of the actual cost of their care, to
arm them with decision making tools to help them to be more involved in the
course of their medical treatment to improve outcomes, (which reduce cost) and
to educate them on the connection between health, prevention, the quality of life
and cost.

Othcr Ïcnd¡:

Compruhcnr¡YC Wcllnc¡r Programt:

. Employer-paid smoking cessation classes

. Smoker/Non-smoker employee medical contributions

. Wellness t'rebates" based on participation in an established wellness program

. Third pafty health advocate to assist employees in managing chronic health
conditions

Incentives for health risk assessments to assist employees in maintaíning or
improving health conditions year over year

6



Stop Loss and Leveraged Trcnd:

As plans budget for the next fiscal year, medical cost inflation is undoubtedly a critical
element of the planning process. New medical Technologies, rising provider charges,
and pharmaceutical costs continue to cause health coverage expenses and premium to
rise faster than general inflation. Medical inflation along with deductible erosion are the
two factors that create leveraged trend, and unfortunately, medical stop loss insurance
is not immune to these forces.

HOW DOES TEVERAGED TREND AFFECT STOP LOSS RATES?

The Self-funded plan in this example has a $50,000 specific stop loss deductible. In
year 1, an employee has $100,000 in claims. The first $50.000 of the claims are paid
through the self-funded plan. The remaining $50,000 is reimbursed by the medical stop
loss policy. Assuming the medical trend in year 2isLOo/o, the employee's claims would
increase to $110,000. At the same specific deductible, the self-funded plan pays the
First $50,000 of the claims and the medical stop loss policy reimburses the remaining
$60,000 in claims - a 2Oo/o leveraged trend increase from the preceding year. This
increase may result in higher premium.

Leveraged Trend on a $roo,ooo Total Claim
$5o,ooo Specific Deductible

20%
Leveraged T

I Empoyer Liability r Stop Loss Liability

Year 1 Year 2

7



Con¡umcpDlrcctcd Hcalth Planr (GHD¡):

CHDs represent a philosophical shift from the traditional managed care programs to one
that gives employees greater financial decision-making power. The premise is that
making employees more accountable for their healthcare expenses, they will make more
informed decisions and reduced healthcare utilization.

Because the employee's expenses under this plan are significantly higher than under
most traditional plans, adding a Flexible Spending Account (FSA) or other
reimbursement account, such as a Health Savings Account (HSA) or Health
Reimbursement Account (HRA) is critical. Below is a brief description of these plans:

Each of these additional programs can be implemented for both fully insured and self-
funded plans.

8

HSA HRA FSA

Name of Account Health Savings
Account

Health
Reimbursement

Account

Flexible Spending
Account

Who owns the
Account? Individual/Employee Employer Individual/Employee

Who may fund
the account?

Employer or
employee, can be
both in the same

year

Employee can
contribute pre-tax

dollars through
Section 125 plan

Employer

Self-employed
individuals, including
partners, and more

than 2o/o

shareholders in a
subchapter S-

corporation cannot
contribute

Employer/employee

Typically the
employee

contributes pre-tax
dollars through

Section 125 plan

What plans may
be offered with

the tax-
advantage
account?

An HDHP as follows:
Min, Deductible

$1,300 / $2,600 F

OPM

$6,650 / çr3,100 F

Any health plan
Any or no health

plan



III. LcAidatlvc Updatc

PPACA - Taxe¡ and Fee¡

PICORI Fec: Fully In¡urud t SGlf-Fundcd Plan¡. The Fee is based on the average
covered lives (including dependents) during the plan year. The fee changes on October
2 each year. The fee is based on covered lives, including dependents. The fírst year the
fee was $1 and the second year was $2 it will continue to grow from there. Thc Fce
duc luly ,2Ot7 i¡ S2.17 pcr lifc for a total of will bG S163.4t.

Rein¡urancc Fee: Fully Inrurud t, Sclf-Fundcd Plant. The Reinsurance fee applies
to plan years beginning 2OL4 through 2Ot6. This fee has now completed its legislated
term.

Health In¡urancc Tranrition Fce: Fully fnrurcd Plan¡ Only. This fee continues on
an annual basis, increasing annually from a base of 2o/o to 2.5o/o of Premium beginning
in 2OL4. Congress provided a 1 year relieve on this tax to carriers for the 2016 plan
year to be paid in 2OL7.

Employcr Sharcd Rccponrlblll$ Rcportlng - Formi 1094 ¡ 1095 BIC

Employer reporting under Internal Revenue Code Sections 6055 and 6056 began in
January 2OL6 based on 2015 plan enrollment. The Affordable Care Act requires ALE's
(Applicable large employers, generally those with 50 or more FTE's), all self-funded
plans and health coverage providers (carriers) to report information about the health
coverage they offered or provided during the year to covered employees (full and part-
time employees), beginning for coverage offered or provided in 2015.

The IRS will use this information to administer the employer shared responsibility
provisions and the premium tax credit. ALE's must provide employees a statement
(1095) that includes the same information provided to the IRS.

Gadlllac Tax: Rcmaln¡ In limbo, cuncntly po¡tponGd to 2O2O, is a 40olo excise tax
on health plans with values exceeding a specific threshold. The thresholds are $10,200
for individual or 527,5O0 for family coverage (indexed to inflation).The excise tax will be
assessed on the amount that exceeds the threshold, not the whole value of coverage.
2Ol7-2O18 ìlarimum Co¡t¡ for the Gity aru approximately llf.,35..20l
Employee Only t S28rO4O.2El Famlly.

The Cadillac Tax on High Cost Coverage does not kick in until 2O2O but employers are
anticipating its impact now. All employer-sponsored health care plans are potentially
subject to this excise tax; there is no exception. Employers do have the flexibility to
adjust benefits anywhere between now and 2O2O to get the cost below the threshold
and avoid the excise tax (though waiting may be inadvísable).

Congress continues to target this section of the ACA for repeal as the new administration
moves forward,

9



ALASKA VACCII{E ASSESS]IIEilT PLAII (AVAP):

The Alaska Legislature has passed an act that will affect every insured and self-insured
group health plan in Alaska. In summary, under the AVAP, the State of Alaska will
purchase ceftain vaccines in bulk and distribute them to medical providers for
administration. Underthis program the health care provider may not charge the patient
for the vaccine but may make a charge for the administration of the vaccine.

However since the AVAP requires the patient to incur a doctor's visit to obtain the
vaccine, this act will increase costs to plans.

The AVAP establishes a commission under HSS of I members including:

o HSS's chief medical officer for public health or their designee
o 2 licensed health care providers, one of which must be a pediatrician
. 3 members representing licensed health care insurers
o 1 representative of a tribal or public health insurance plan
o The Director of the Department of Insurance or their designee

This commission will be responsible for determining the cost and therefore the
assessment to be made each year for each vaccine included under the program. They
will also be responsible for collecting data from assessable entities (group health plans)
which among other things will be used to collect the assessments (money to pay for the
vaccines and the administration of the program) and monitor compliance.

The rates for 2OL7 under the AVAP to be paid quarterly are:

o $6.85 per child (participant under 19 years of age)
. $0.98 per adult (participant 19 years of age or older)

2Ot,7 E¡tlmatcd Yaccinc Tar for thc Glty of torth Polc lt 931432.

l0



Hoelt{t Self-Funded - AW Rehn 7/Ll17

Dcntel Self-Funded - AW Rehn 7 /t/L7

COBRA AW Rehn 7/rlt7

FSA Eflex Group LlLlL7

tlfc/ADID Lincoln Financial 7 /rlL7

ShoË Tonn Dlrability Lincoln Financial 7 /LlL7

Group Yoluntrry
Lifo /ADID Lincoln Financial 7/Llt7

IV. Summary of Cuncnt Progrem¡

Gerrlcr Detc

tdt' Detar'/edp/an nformatton ts /ocated in the Rqorbt Mlbl8sectton of this repoft.

Phn: Life & AD&D

G¡rrlcr: Llncoln Flnancirl
Rcncwrl Drtc: 7lul7

Phn¡ Voluntary Life & AD&D

STD All Employees working 30+ hrs

600/o of weekly earning to a
maximum benefit of $500 per

week for 52 weeks

Boncflt
Life Class I - Full Time Employees $50,000

AD&D Class I - Full Time Employees $50,000

Life All Employees working 30+ hrs
5 x annual salary to a maximum

of $500,000
Guaranteed Issue $100.000

AD&D All Employees working 30+ hrs
5 x annual salary to a maximum

of $500,000
Guaranteed Issue $100.000

Pl¡n: Voluntary Short Term Disability

ll



Summery of l{odlc¡|, Dcntel and Vldon Eonofltt

Phn: MedÍcal TPA: AW Rehn

Rcnowal Deto: 7l!l7

Boncflt In-I{gtwodr Out-of-I{otwork
Deductible $375 / $1,125 $375 / $L,125
Out-of-Pocket ( Incl
Ded.)

fi4225 / $t2,675 $4,225 /$12,675

Lifetime Maximum Unlimited Unlimited

Coinsurance 80o/o 80o/o Providers
600lo Hosoital

Preventative Services 100o/o 100o/o

Physician Office Visit 80o/o 80o/o

Retail Prescriptions Retail

Mail Order

lto I l2.l lso /l5o

,20 t asot 3roo

Member pays 100o/o at the time of
purchase then reimbursed 50o/o after

the applicable co-pay

Urgent Care 80% B0%

Emergency Room 80o/o 80o/o

Ambulance 9Oo/o 9Oo/o

Office Surgery BOo/o 80%

Outpatient Hospital Serv.
. Outpatient Surgery

Anesthesia
. Requires Pre-

Certification
. Lab & X-Ray based

on Facility Network
status

9Oo/o

90olo Providers
600lo Hospital

Inpatient Hospital Serv.
. Anesthesia
. Requires Pre-

Certification
. Lab & X-Ray based

on Facility Network
status

9Oo/o
90olo Providers

600/o Hospital

Outpatient Lab & X-ray 80o/o 80o/o

Outpatient Advanced
Radiology

. MRI, MRA,PET, CT-
Scan & Nuclear
Medicine

B0o/o 80o/o

600/o In patient

12



Durable Medical Equip 80o/o 80o/o

Skilled Nursing Facility
. 100 visits PCY

80o/o B0o/o

Hospice Care 80o/o 8Oo/o

Home Health Care
. 100 vis¡ts PCY

80% 80o/o

Organ Transplant 9Oo/o Not Covered

Plan: Dental

Plan: Vision

Bcnoflt In or Out of totwod¡
Deductible $s0 / $1s0

Waived For Preventive YES

Type A Expenses 100%

Type B Expenses 80o/o

Type C Expenses 5Oo/o

Calendar Year Max $1,000

Bcncflt In or Out of llotwork
Deductible None

Eye Exams Plan pays 100o/o up to $60

Lenses, Contacts and Frames Plan pays 100% up to $120

Benefit Period 24 months

l3



V. Renewal Prcsentation

Life & AD&D

Each year Lincoln reviews;
o Plan Features
o Demographics
. Nature of the Business
o Experience
o Any adjustments needed to the underlying rate structure

Based on this review Lincoln Financial has reviewed the current rate structure and
determined that a small increase is needed in the Life and Short Term Disability rates
charged to your group.

These rates will be guaranteed for 2 year to 7/L/2OL9

This is the firct rate increase for life & disabiliÇ since July 2012.

Pages 19-24 show the Year to Date experience for the Plan. The Population has
increased slightly this year, however claims are running very well with an Expected Loss
Ratio of B3o/o and a Maximum Loss Ratio of 7Lo/o after 9 months of experience.

Goveragc Rete Ba¡e Currçnt
rate

Gur¡rnt
l{onthly
Prcmium

Rcncwal
Retc

Rcncwal
ìlontüly
Prcmium

Rcncwal
llonttly
Prcmlum
Changc

Llfc Per $1,000 $ o.L2L $ 248.0s rl o.133 $ 272.6s $ 24.60

ADTD Per $1,000 $ 0.04s $ 92.2s I O.O45 $ e2.2s $ 0.00

Short
Term

Dirabllity

Per $10 of
weekly
benefit

$ 0.3s2 $ 698.44 $ 0.39 5 773.e4 $ 7s.4O

Totals I 1,038.74 iltl38.74 I 1OO.OO

t4



Pagc 25 The Projections report reflects claims over the past 24 months. We use this to
determine the rate of increase in claims year over year. We compare this to the claim
factors presented by the Stop Loss Carrier to determine if the rates they are setting are
reflective of the group's actual experience.

Pagc 26 shows the plans Large Claims Experience and loss ratios in relationship to the
Specific Deductible and Large Claims activity. Since leaving CIGNA and moving to HCC
life in July 2013 the Average Stop Loss Ratio of claims to premium has been a very
favorable t3o/o.

IIIEDICAL PLAT{ RENEWAL: Pages 27.29

FIXED GOSTS:

Admlnl¡trttlon: AW Rehn contracted a 2 year rate guarantee in July 2OL6, holding
their rate at $23.62 PEPM until T/L/2018.

Brldgc Hcalth: Has increased their monthly admin fee again this year from $1.50
PEPM to $2.50 PEPM. The basis for the increase in improved employee communication
which we are pleased to see is increasing utilization of the Bridgehealth program.

Utillzation Rcview: Medical Rehabilitation Consultants is proposing no increase for the
2OL7-2OI8 plan year.

Con¡ultlng Fcct: One Digital has also contracted for a 2 year rate guarantee from July
2016 through June 2018 at an annual fee of $19,920.

PPACA Fect: are also included in the renewal line items on page 21. The PPACA taxes
projected for 2016 when broken down to a per employee fee have dropped from $4.75
for 20t6/2OL7 to $0.19 PEPM for 20t7|2OLB, this amount includes only the PCORI Fee
of $2.t7 per participant per year payable in July 2OL7.

Ala¡ka Vaccine Fee¡: in the renewal line items, the Alaska State Legislature passed
this new tax in July 2OI4 and began collecting the tax in February 2015. This will be
collected quarterly and is estimated to be $3,432 annually or $7.15 PEPM.

Individual Stop Lo¡¡ P¡cmium: HCC Life has reviewed the plans experience over the
last 21 months and has determined that claims have increased only slightly in the last
24 months. Currently there is one participant who has recently exceed the Specific Stop
Loss Deductible of $40,000

The plan is utilizing an Aggregating Specific Policy which reduces the annual premium by
$15,000. If no claims exceed the Specific Deductible the plan saves $15,000 in
premium. If claims exceed the Specific Deductible then the plan pays the $15,000
premium savings in claims before the Individual Stop Loss kícks in. As you can see in

l5



the Large Claims Report, on page 26 this claim has exceeded the stop loss by only
$2,626 as of the end of March.

Due to the overall stabilization in claims, the decrease in the number of Stop Loss
Claims this year along with general medical inflation, HCC has offered to renew the Stop
Loss Policy with an overall increase of 5.4o/o. This is an increase of $1,163.94 per month
or $13,967.28 annually. This increase is well below a leveraged trend of 2Oo/o.

Aggrugatc Stop Lo¡¡ Prcmium: HCC did not increase it aggregate premium last year,
and originally requested an IL.3o/o increase for this renewal. We negotiated that down
to a 5olo increase. With this the Aggregate premium will increase from $18.81 PEPM to
$19.75 PEPM, an increase of $39.50 per month or $474.01 annually.

These combined changes create an overall increase in fixed costs of 4o/o resulting in a
monthly increase of $1,029 and an annual increase of $t2,354.

Claim Factor¡: Although the overall volume of claims has increased only slightly in this
past year HCC initially requested an increase in the Medical & Rx claim factors of 8.9olo.
This would have increased the plans Maximum Claims Liability by $58,981.

The maximum claim factor is set 25o/o above expected claims. With the Maximum
claims at $718,666, the expected claims for the plan year would be $574,933.

Based on claims utilization over the past24 months we were able to show the stop loss
carrier that their claims factor was too high and no increase was needed to the claims
factors this year. After reviewing our data they agreed and we were able to negotiate
no increase in the claim factor, saving a potential budget increase of $58,981.

When the claim factors are combined with the Fixed Costs the overall increase to the
plan is L.3o/o resulting in an annual increase of $12,354 at Maximum Cost or Expected
cost. The total amount of the increase is in the fixed cost portion of the rates.

Claims are currently running at 83o/o of expected for the 2O[6-2OL7 plan year which is
much more favorable than the tO3o/o of expected loss ratio at this same time last year.

Hilltory of claim¡: The number of large claims which has been a driving factor in costs
over the last few years ís declining. Currently 1 claim has exceeded the Specific
Deductible this year compared to 3 in 2OL5-2OL6 and 4 in 2OL4-2015.

Pagc 3O shows the plans overall loss ratios from July 2005 through the current year to
date.

l6



Clainrs
Above
$5O,OOO

Perrccntagc that
havc e Glaim

Employcr
Slzc

70qÉ,

Indultry

7A%

Statc

7L%
Avcrago
l{umbcr of
Glaim¡

2 3.2 4.3

Avcregc
Spcclflc
Rclmburuomcnt

iil,324 171p76 l6+6es

Plan Chengcr: No plan changes were made during the 2016-2OL7 renewal.

Employoc Gontrlbutlon¡: remain at the rates set in July 2015.

Plan Rccommcndationr:

Unless you have been experiencing service issues that we are unaware of, based on the
favorable renewal negotiations we recommend:

o Renew with AW Rehn for TPA services with no increase
o Continue the Bridgehealth Surgical Benefit
o Renew with MRC for Utilization Review Services with no increase
o Renew Consulting Services with One Digital with no increase
. Renew Stop Loss coverage with HCC Life utilizing the $40,000 Specific Deductible

currently in place

The ìlaximum overall plan increa¡e i¡ 1.3ofi

Contributlon Ticrr EmoloYcc Gontrlbutlon
Emoloyoc Only $4s

Deoendent¡ $17s
Femllv s220

t7



Alternative Optionr:

Recent legislative activity to Repeal & Replace the Affordable Care Act has not yet
resulted in any changes. ACA is still the law of the land. The alternative plan changes
show below would create a loss of the Grandfathcr Statul of your plan and open your
plan up to all the ACA required coverages.

Cost of employee only contributions can be increased to 9.5olo of the lowest
wage earners salary. ($35,000 per year, 9.5o/o =ç3,325/yr or $277.O8 per
month.

With the loss of Grandfather Status You would need to modify the plan to provide all of
the required PPACA Changes.

Preventative Care
Essential Health Benefits
Clinical Trials

Women's Health Care
External Independent Claims Review

The increased cost in claims expected the first year is 60lo which can be easily offset by
plan changes that are not allowed under a Grandfathered Plan design.

Reduce the In-patient coinsurance level to 80o/o in network
Lowering the Out of Network Coinsurance to 600lo
Adding copays for inpatient hospital or ER visits.
Adding an Ambulance Copay

Each of these items increase the employee cost of the plan without having a direct first
dollar impact on all employees. Only employees using these services would pay the
additional fees.

We have also provided a comparison of several other Self-Funded plans and the AETNA
Political Subdivision rates for the last several years on ptgGa 3l-43.

The AETNA Poli Sub plans are all Non Grandfathered plans. They have discontinued
their low deductible plan and only offer 3 plans as of July 1 2OL7.

l8



VI - Exhibits

Page 20,-24= 2ll16-2lJ17 ttlonthly Experience Report

Page 25=- Renewal Projection

Page 26: Large Claims RepoÉ
o 2Ot,3-2O175 llCC L¡Íe

Page 27-29:. Summary of Renewal

Page 30: Annual Loss Ratio Study

Pages 31-43: Gomparison of other Alaska Benefit Plans

l9



$120,000

$1 10,000

$100,000

$90,000

$80,000

$70,000

Gity of North Pole
Group Health Plan

July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2017

-a-Expected Cost

o
o
C'
G
o

$60,000

$50,000

$40,000

$30,000

$20,000

$10,000

$0

rsj ."" 
""..."t 

.C .""".t "/ ""- 
.oC d9'ô Þaò {91 t""' .dp"'

õ"**-

Expected Loss

Ratio 83%

A^

rActual Cost

20

+Maximum Cost .aO

,d



CTTY OF NORTH POLE
GROUP HEALTH PLAN
ELIGIBILITY REPORT

PLAN YEAR: JULY 7, 2076 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2077

Month

July

August

September

October

November

December

January

February

March

April

May

June

TOtat

Single
Employees

Employees with
Dependents

264

Total
EmDloyees

47

39

40

40

4T

4t

4L

43

42

36E

PPACA
covered lives

Total Covered
lives

Lt4

113

Lt4

115

118

118

118

t25

t2L

1056

11

10

11

11

11

11

11

t2

t2

30

29

29

29

30

30

30

31

30

too

2t



CITY OF NORTH POLE
GROUP HEALTH PLAN

AVERAGE COST PER EMPLOYEE
PLAN YEAR: JULY + 2076 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2077

Claims in excess of the Specific Stop Loss of g4O,OOO EXCLUDED

Month

July

August

September

October

November

December

January

February

March

April

May

June

Total

Med / Vis
Claims

$ 13,090

523,323

$ 18,761

$24,393

$79,722

$35,933

$39,359

$8,2t7

$25,578

çzOE,377

R¡(
Claims

$6,879

$5,165

$2,508

$s84

ç9,754

$3,765

$7,1 13

$3,01 1

$6,012

$44,

Dental
Claims

$2,496

$4,506

$ 1,993

ç2,878

$ 1,311

$3,640

$5,467

$2,699

$4,535

Total
Claims

$22,464

$32,995

ç23,263

$27,854

$30,788

$43,337

$51,939

$73,927

$36,126

Eligible
Emplovees

Avg Cost
Per EE

LL5I.74

1455.91

1183.25

1298.03

t354.t7

1660.25

1870.06

92t.7t

7455.73

L370.22

Stop-Loss Admin
Premium & U/R

Actual
Cost

$47,797

$56,780

$47,330

$51,921

$55,52 1

$68,070

$76,672

$39,608

$61,141

$504,240

$2L,9L7

$27,026

$27,279

$2t,279

$2t,9t7

$2r,9t7

$2t,9L7

$22,808

$22,L70

$2,816

$2,760

$2,788

$2,788

$2,816

$2,816

$2,816

$2,873

$2,844

,318

4L

39

40

40

47

47

4t

43

42

79L i29,525 $282,693 $L96,229 $25 368

22



CITY OF NORTH POLE
GROUP HEALTH PLAN

ACTUAL COST COMPARED TO EXPECTED COST
PLAN YEAR: JULY 7, 2076 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2077

Claims in excess of the Specifrc Súop Loss of 840,000 EXCLUDED

Month

July

August

September

October

November

December

January

February

March

April

May

June

Total

Total
Claims

522,464

$32,995

$23,263

$27,854

$30,788

$43,337

$51,939

$t3,927

$36,L26

Stop-Loss
Premium

$21,9t7

527,026

$2t,279

ç2L,279

$2t,9t7

$2t,9t7

$2t,977

$22,808

$22,t70

Admin
& U/R

$2,816

$2,760

$2,788

$2,788

$2,816

$2,816

$2,816

$2,873

52,844

Actual
Cost

$47,797

$56,780

$47,33O

$ 51,921

$55,521

$68,070

$76,672

$39,608

$61,141

$43,504

$47,754

$42,228

$42,228

$43,504

543,504

$43,504

$45,255

$43,979

$68,237

$65,539

$66,295

$66,295

$68,237

$68,237

$68,237

$70,936

$68,994

Loss
Ratio

69o/o

87o/o

7lo/o

78o/o

8Lo/o

100o/o

772o/o

560/o

89o/o

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$2,626.L5

ç2,626

Expected Expected
Claims Cost

Amounts
Over $4O,OOO

$282,693 çL96,229 $25,318 $5O4,24O $389,462 9611,009 83o/o

23



CITY OF NORTH POLE
GROUP HEALTH PLAN

ACTUAL COST COMPARED TO MAXIMUM COST
PLAN YEAR: JULY 7, 2076 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2077

Claims in excess of the Specific Stop Loss of g4O,OOO EXCLUDED

Month

July

August

September

October

November

December

Janua ry

February

March

April

May

Ju ne

Total

$22,464

$32,995

$23,263

$27,854

$30,788

$43,337

$51,939

$t3,927

$36,126

$2t,9t7

521,026

$2L,279

$2L,279

527,9t7

$27,9t7

#27,9t7

$22,808

$22,L70

Admin
& U/R

$2,816

$2,760

$2,788

$2,788

$2,816

$2,816

$2,816

$2,873

$2,844

$47,t97

$56,780

$47,330

$51,921

$55,52 1

$68,070

$76,672

$39,608

$6 1,14 1

$54,381

$52,r92

$52,785

$52,785

$54,381

$54,381

$54,381

$56,569

$54,974

$79,1 1 3

$75,977

$76,853

$76,853

579,7L3

$79,1L3

$79,7L3

$82,249

$79,989

$37,9L7

5t9,797

529,523

$24,937

$23,593

$11,043

+2,447

$42,642

$18,848

Ratio

60o/o

75o/o

620/o

680/o

7Oo/o

860/o

97o/o

48o/o

760/o

Total Paid
HealthClaims Stop-Loss

Actual Maximum Maximum SURPLUS
Cost Claims Cost (deficit)

Amounts
Over $4O,OOO

$o

$o

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$2,626

$282,693 i196,229 $25,318 i504r240 9486,828 i708,374 i204 134 7to/o $2t626

24



AUIB Renewal Proiection for:
CITY OF NORTH POLE

Effective July 1,2017

ilonths
April

May

June

July

August

September

October

November

December

January

February

March

Total

Monthly Average

Ave. Claims Per EE Per Month

Weighted Average (Med & Rx)

Trend l0% Annually over 14 mos
Exp. Clm. Factor (Med & Rx)

Weighted Average (Dental)

Trend 6% Annually over 14 mos
Exp. Clm. Factor (Dental)

Latest l2 Months
April l6 - March l7

Med/Rx/Vis

787.7'l

787.71 (.75) + 778 06 (.25)

76.02 (.75) + 84.85 ( 25) =

Expected Claims

Maximum Claims
(125% of Exp.)

Latest 12 ftlonths
April l5 - March 16

Med/Rx/Vis

778.06

Medical & Rx

Dental

Total

Projection Ío¡ 2016 - 2017

Proiected

Medical & Rx 876.39

Dental 83.71

Total 876.39

Dental

76.02

785 30

x 1.116

876.39

78.23
t 107

83.71

Dental

84.85

1095.49

83.71

Emplovees Med/Rx/Vis

55934

37295

36431

r 9969

28488

21269

24977

29476

39698

46472

11228

31 s90

Dental

40

39

39

41

39

40

40

41

41

41

43

42

2358

2873

2192

2496

4506

1 993

2878

1311

3640

5467

2699

4,535

486 382,827 36,948

41 31,902 3,079

Emolovees Med/Rx/Vis

12624

25122

8052

23242

21958

24641

301 90

36867

63346

30111

40562

55975

Dental

40

40

40

40

40

40

40

39

38

40

41

41

5059

1521

4306

2713

1286

2888

I 385

6l 98

2439

4144

3r 03

5,601

479

40

372,690 40,643

3l,058 3,387

25

1,095.49



City of North Pole
Large Claims Report

Plan Year

2013-2014

2074-2015

201,5-2016

2016-2017 YTD

Totals

Specific
SL Limit

Claims in
Excess ofSL

Stop Loss
Premium

Loss Agg
Ratio Specific

3%

24"h

230h

1,%

Employer
Claim Cost

Premium
Savings

$8,852

$o

$o

fi1.2,374

SL Loss
RatioClaims

1,

4

J

1,

$35,000

$35,000

$35,000

$40,000

$15,000

$15,000

$15,000

$15,000

$15,000

$15,ooo

$15,000

$15,000

$6,148

fi52,269

$56,ooo

fi2,626

fi21,7,1,73

fi274,236

fi240,1.48

fir96,229

1,00%

1,000h

700o/o

7000Â

9 fi1.1,7,043 $867,786 73o/o $60,000 $60,000 fi27,226 35%

26



City of North Pole
2017-2018 Renewal

chg

-5.1%

2.3%

5.9%

5.4%

5.0%

5.0o/o

4.Oo/o

O.0o/o

HCC L¡fe
$40.000 Soec

2017-2018
Revised Quote

3,249.05$

240.16$

655.41$

î 22,541.22

19.75$

829.52$

I 26,622.79

$ 54,973.80

chg

-5j%

2.3o/o

5.9Yo

5A%

11.3%

4.2o/o

'11.3o/o

8.9%

HCC Life
$¡10,000 Soec

240.16$

655.41$

î 22,544.22

20.94$

879.¿[8$

$ 26,672.75

2017-2018
OriginalQuote

3,249.05$

$ 59,888.88

HGC Life
$40,000 Specific
2016-2017 Agg

Specific

$ 3,¡123.00

234.74$

618.78$

$ 21,380.28

18.81$

790.02$

$ 25,593.30

$ 54,973.80

30

42

Aggregating Secific $l 5,000

Total Monthly Admin Fee

gfp$e *n'
Employee Only

Family

Specific Premium

Aggregate Premium

Employee Only

Aggregate Premium

Total filonthly Fixed Costs

Maximum Monthly Claims Cost

-

Total lncrease (Maximum Cost)

27

$ 71,934.36 $ 12,353.89



Gity of North Pole
2017-2018 Renewal

1.8o/o

0.0%

-5j%

2.3Vo

5.9Yo

5.4o/o

5.Oo/o

5.0%

: ! .r.i:,:k:t':

23.62$

2.50$

2.90$

2.00$

41.50$

0.19$

7.15$

3,2¡19.05¡

240.16$

655.41$

I 22,511.22

19.75

829.52

$

$

chg

1.8%

0.0o/o

-5.1%

2.SVo

5.9Yo

5.4o/o

't1.30/o

11.3o/o

tlGC L¡fe

240.16$

655.41$

$0,000 Spec
2017-2018 Original

Quote

23.62$

2.50$

2.90$

2.OO$

41.50$

0.19$

7.'t5$

3,2¿19.05$

I 22,511.22

20.94

879.{8

$

$

HCG Life
¡¿10.000 Soecific
2016-2017 Agg

Specific

23.20$

1.50$

2.90$

2.00$

41.50$

4.75$

7.15$

3,¡123.00$

234.74$

618.78$

s 2l,380.28

18.81

790.02

$

s

42

42

42

42

42

42

12

30

42

Aqqreqatinq Secific $l 5.000

AW Rehn

Bridge Health

MRC

AUIB PPO

AUIB ($1660tmo 711116)

ACA PCORI Fee

AK Vacine

Total Monthly Admin Fee

Employee Only

Family

Total ilonthly Stop Loss
Premium

Total Monthly Aggregate
Premium

Employee Only

28



City of North Pole
2017-2018 Renewal

$ 71,93¿1.36Total lncrease (Maximum Cost)

Cost Per Employee Per Month at Maximum

Gomposit at tlaximum $

Composit at Expected+10% $

2,060.99

1,775.81

$ 12,353.89

1,942.78

1,681.00

$

$

1 ,918.26 $

1,656.48 $

chg

0.Oo/o

0.0%

2017-20t8 Revised
Quob

593.30$

1,595.14$

$ 659,685.60

chg

10.3o/o

8.7o/o

llGG Life
$¡10,000 Spec

2017-2018 Original
Quote

654.29$

1,734.58$

$ 718,666.56

HCC Life
$¡10.000 Soecific
2016-2017 Agg

Specific

593.30$

1,595.14$

$ 659,685.60

12

30

Aggregatinq Secific $l 5,000

Employee Only

Family

29



CITY OF NORTH POLE
GROUP HEALTH PLAN

ANNUA¿ ¿OSS RATIO STUDY
Claims in excess of the Specific Stop Loss are EXCLUDED

Month

2005-2006

20lJ6-2007

2007-2lJ0a

2008-2009

2009-2010

2010-2011

20LL-20'.2

2lJL2-20r3 *

2fJL3-2014 **

20r4-zlJ'.5

2015-2016

Actual
Cost

$295,375

5375,426

$411,918

$545,639

$648,169

$587,505

$807,250

$640,447

$667,297

$639,829

$78L,857

Annual o/o

Increase

7o/o

3Io/o

32o/o

t9o/o

-9o/o

37o/o

-2to/o

4o/o

-4o/o

22o/o

Maximum
Cost

$270,762

i397,002

$516,100

$693,169

$678,25t

$779,6L3

$800,540

$737,267

$847,495

$777,522

$887,564

Maximum
Loss Ratio

Specific
Deductible

Specific
Claims

#of
Claims

Expected Expected
Cost Loss Ratio

$242,859

$358,605

$468,630

$630,362

$616,661

$705,969

$725,735

$636,229

$723,L95

567t,255

$764,676

L22o/o

88o/o

88o/o

87o/o

105%

83o/o

lIlo/o

LOto/o

92o/o

95o/o

LO2o/o

I09o/o

79o/o

80%

79o/o

960/o

75o/o

IOLo/o

87o/o

79o/o

82o/o

88o/o

$25,000

$25,000

$25,000

$30,000

$30,000

$30,000

$30,000

$35,000

$35,000

$35,000

$35,000

$0

$22,t70

$t4,397

$46,9t2

$67,465

$32,6t7

$230,881

$2t4,066

$6,148

$52,269

$53,600

0

3

1

1

2

2

1

2

1

3

4

2016-2017 YTD

Projected to
Year End

$504,240

x Moved away from CIGNA
** Changed To HCG Stop Loss

$611,009 83o/o $708,374 77o/o $40,000 i2,626 1

ç672,320 't4o/o ç759,251 89o/o i878,723 77o/o

30



AET]IA POLI SUB PtAlIS

100% Deductible

Waived (Subject

to U&C)

s2,ooo / s4,000

Plen lY

None
Occurance

Per

s3,ooo / s6,ooo

None

100% Deductible

Waived (Subject

to u&c)

100% Deductible

Waived

PIen lll

STso lS2,2so

None
Occurance

Per

s2,7so ls6,2so

None

100% Deductible

Waived

100% deductible Waived

L00% Deductible

Waived (Subject

to U&c)

Plen ll

None
S50o Per

Occurance

Ssoo / Sl,soo

s1,soo / s3,soo

None

100% Deductible

Waived

100% deductible Waived

Deductible PCY

Confinement Deductible

ax¡mum PCY

+

Office Visit - Well Adult (19 yrs or over)
Cne (11 v¡sit PCY

Office Visit - Well Child (2 yrs through 18
yrsl One (1) visit PCY

Office Visit - Well Baby (newborn through
¿4 monthsl Six (6) visit PCY

Routine Mammogram one (1) pcy - Age 40

lnd over

Colorectal Screening one (1) pcy - Ase 40 and

lvet

Pelvice Exam/PAP one (r) PcY - Ase 16 and

lver

Pfostate Exam & Lab Work one (1) pcy

\se 40 and over

Womens Health Care (ACA Requred)

OUT-OF- OUT.OF- OUT-OF.

IN- NETWORK IN- NETWORK IN- NETWORK

NETWORK (subject to NETWORK (subject to NETWORK (subject to
u&c) u&c) u&c)

OUT-OF- OUT-OF- OUT-OF.

IN- N ETWORK IN- N ETWOR K IN- N ETWORK

NETWORK (subject to NETWORK (subject to NETWORK (subject to
u&c) u&c) u&c)

PREVENTIVE SERVICES

COST SHARING OPTIONS
(PCY = Per Calendar Year)

31

L00% deductible Waived



OONWINNW

80% after deductible

80% after deductible

8O% af'ter deductible (25 Visits)

80% afrer deductible (max $800 per

3 years)

80% after
deductible

80% after deductible

80% after deductible

80% after deductible

80% after deductible

80% after deductible

80% after deductible (50% Non

Emergency Services)

80% after deductible

80o/o after deductible

OONW

6O% after
deductible

6o% after
dedictible

INNW

$10 copay + 80% after deductible

SL0 copay + 80% after deductible

$L0 copay + 80% after deductible

80% after deductible (max 5800 per

3 years)

80% after
deductible

80% after
deductible

$L0 copay + 80% after deductible

$tO copay + 80% after deductible

$tO copay + 80% after deductible

80% after deductible

8oo/o after deductible (50% Non

Emergency Services)

80% after deductible

80% after ded uctìble

OONW

60% after
deductible

6O% after
dedictible

INNW

$10 copay + 80% after deductible

$L0 copay + 80% after deductible

510 copay + 80% after deductible

8O% after deductible (max 5800 per

3 years)

807ó after
deductible

80% after
deductible

5l-0 copay + 80% aÍtet deductible

$1-0 copay + 80% after deductible

5l-0 copay + 80% after deductible

80% after deductible

80% after deductible (50% Non

Emergency Services)

80% afT.er deductible

80% after deductible

PROFESSIONAL CARE

Professional Office Visit

0utpat¡ent Professional Services

lProfess¡onal Hospital Care)

Chiropractic Care

Hearing Care

Inpatient Professional Services
ilncludes Mental Heallh Conditions, Chemical

)ependency lnpatient Treatment and lnpatient

PATHOLOGY AND DIAGNOSTIC SERV'CES

Inpatient Hospital X-rays and Lab Tests

RADIOLOGY - Outpøtient

URGENT / EMERGENT CARE

Outpatient X-rays and lab Tests

CT Scan, MRI/MRA, PET Scan, Other
lmaging

Mammography (non-prevent¡ve)

Urgent Care

Emergency Room Facility

Emergency Room Professional Services

OTHER COVERED SERVICES

6O% after
deductible

lance Transportation (Air & Ground)

32



OONW

S5oo per

confinement

Copay +60% after
dedictible

60% after
deductible

80% after deductible (120 days)

Ssoo per

confinement

copay + 60% after
deductible

60% after
deductible

80% after deductible

S5oo per

confinement

copay + 6oo/o after
deductible

80% after deductible

6O% after
deductible

S5oo per

confinement

copay + 60% aftet
deductible

80% after deductible

60% after
deductible

INNW

80% after
deductible

80% after
deductible

80% after
deductible

80% after
deductible

80% after
deductible

80% after
deductible

80% after
deductible

80% after
deductible

OONW

$5oo per

confinement

Copay +50% after
dedictible

60% afÌer
deductible

80% after deductible (120 days)

60% after
deductible

60% aff.er

deductible

80% after deductible

6O% after
deductible

80% after deductible

60% aflet
deductible

60% after
deductible

80% alter deductible

6O% af|er
deductible

INNW

80% after
deductible

80% after
deductible

80% after
deductible

80% after
deductible

80% after
deductible

80% after
deductible

80% afler
deductible

8O% afte¡
deductible

OONW

S5oo per

confinement
Copay +60% after

dedictible

60% afTe¡

deductible

80% after deductible (120 days)

5500 per

confinement
Copay +60% after

dedictible

60% after
deductible

80% after deductible

Ssoo per

confinement
Copay +60% after

dedictible

80% after deductible

60% after
deductible

$5oo per

confinement
Copay +60% after

dedictible

80/o after deductible

60% after
deductible

INNW

lnpat¡ent Facility Care
80% afber

deductible

0utpatient Facility Care
80% afler

deductible

MATERN'TY

Matern¡ty lnpat¡ent
80% efter
deductible

Matern¡ty Outpat¡ent
8O% afler
deductible

OTHER SERVICES

Mental Health lnpat¡ent
8O% afler
deductible

Mental Health Outpatient - Facility
80% after
deductible

Chemical Dependency lnpatient
80% after
deductible

Chemical Dependency Outpat¡ent -

Facility
80% after
deductible

FACILITY CARE

Skilled Nursing Facility

Maternity Ultrasound

Mental Health Outpat¡ent - Office Visit

Chemical Dependency Outpat¡ent -
Office Visit

33



lnpatient
Neurodevelopmental and Physical)

80% after
deductible

80% after
deductible

60o/o after
deductible

8O% after
deductible

S5oo per

confinement

Copay +60% after
dedictible

80% after deductible

80% after deductible

8O% after deductible (S10,000 PCY)

80% after deductible

80% afte¡ deductible (60 visits)

80% after deductible

$soo per

confinement
copay + 60% afte¡

deductible

Not Covered

Not Covered

80% After
Deductible

80% (Max

s20,000)

80% After
Deductible

80% after deductible

80% after deductible

80% after deductible

80% after deductible

80% after deductible (60 visits)

80% after deductible

Not Covered

Not Covered

Not Covered

80% After
Deductible

80% (Max

S2o,ooo)

80% After
Deductible

Ssoo per

confinement
Copay +60% after

dedictible

80% after deductible

80% after deductible

80% after deductible

80% after deductible

80% after deductible (60 visits)

80% after deductible

$soo per

conf¡nement

copay + 6O% affer
deductible

Not Covered

Not Covered

80% After
Deductible

80% (Max

S2o,ooo)

80% After
Deductible

Rehabilitation Outpat¡ent - Office Visit
(lncludes Neurodevelopmental and Physical)

Rehabilitation Outpat¡ent - Facility
(lncludes Neurodevelopmental and Physical)

Durable Medical Equipment

Orthot¡cs

Home Health Care

Hospice Cafe (Life Expectancy is six (6) months

or less)

Transplants

fransplants - Donor Cost

Íransplants - Transportation

34



Combined with Medical

S1o/S2o/S35

l*.
of recognized

charge

S2o / S5o / Sloo Not covered

L00% deductible waived

100% deductible waived

None

Not Covered

L00% (per 12 mo.)

ss0

St,500 per participant

80% Deductible Waived

80% After Deductible

50% After Deductible

Not covered

Not covered

80% of recognizec

charge

Not Covered

S5o tndiv / S 150 Fam

S0/ Sls o¡20% |
S30 or 30%

s10/s3o/s3o

100% deductible waived

100% deductible waived

None

80% per 24 Months

80% per 12 Months

ln lieu of glasses

80% per 12 Months

Sso

$1,500 per partic¡pant

80% Deductible Waived

80% After Deductible

50% After Deductible

Not covered

Not covered

80% of recognized

charge

Not Covered

S5o tndiv / S t50 ram

S0 / S1s or 20% /
S30 or 30%

s10/s30/s30

100% deductible waived

100% deductible waived

None

80% per 24 Months

80% per L2 Months

ln lieu of glasses

80o/o per 12 Months

ss0

S1,500 per participant

80% Deductible Waived

80% After Deductible

50% After Deductible

Not covered

Not covered

lndividual/Family Deductible PCY

Retail Pharmacy Up to 30 day supply

Vìail Order 90-day supply

Cral Contraceptives

Preventive RX (ACA Required)

Individual/Family Deductible PCY

Frames

Leses

:ontacts

lndividuaUFamily Deductible PCY

Exam

Benefit Maximum PCY

Preventive Care

Basic Care

Major Care

ÏMJ

Orthodntia

PHARMACY

vtstoN

DENTAL

35



is required, but not limited, to the services:
ance, w n use

Non-Emergency Medical

Conditions
Diagnostic lmaging such as CT

Scans, PET Scans, MRAs, MRls,

lVPs, etc.
Genetic testing

Home Health Care Services

Hospice Care

l/V Therapy

lnpatient Hospitalizations

Outparient Surgical Procedures

Physical and Occupational
Therapies

Purchase of Durable Medical

Equipment costing 51,000 or
more

u

Non-Emergency Medical

Conditions
Diagnostic lmaging such as CT

Scans, PET Scans, MRAs, MRls,

lVPs, etc.
Genetic testing

Home Health Care Services

Hospice Care

l/V Therapy

lnpatient Hospitalizations

Outpatient Surgical Procedures

Physical and Occupational

Therapies
Purchase of Durable Medical

Equipment costing S1,000 or
more

Non-Emergency Medical

Conditions
Diagnostic lmaging such as CT

Scans, PET Scans, MRAs, MRls,

lVPs, etc.
Genetic testing

Home Health Care Services

Hospice Care

l/V Therapy

lnpatient Hospitalizations

Outpatient Surgical Procedures

Physical and Occupational
Therapies

Purchase of Durable Medical

Equipment costing S1,000 or
more

u Air A ance,u

lnpatient Surgical Procedures lnpatient Surgical Procedures lnpatient Surgical Procedures

Orthotics and Prosthetics over Orthotics and Prosthetics over Orthotics and Prosthetics over

Ssoo.oo Ssoo.oo Ssoo.oo

Renal Dialysis Renal Dialysis Renal Dialysis

Rental of Durable Medical Rental of Durable Medical Rental of Durable Medical
Equipment with purchase value Equipment with purchase value Equipment with purchase value

of 53,000 or more of 53,000 or more of 53,000 or more

Skilled Nursing and Rehabilitation Skilled Nursing and Rehabilitation Skilled Nursing and Rehabilitation
Fac¡lity Services Facility Services Facility Services

Transplant Evaluations Transplant Evaluations Transplant Evaluations

Travel Travel Travel

36



Plan lV
S74t.93

5t,gzz.gt
5t,723.61
S2,408.10

Plan lll
S1,08i..62

Sz,o7t.z3

s2,520.86

S3,510.17

Plan il
Si.,376.95

52,552.23

s3,099.72

Sq,ztq.zo

7ltlzÙt7 Renewal

Employee Only

Employee & Spouse

Employee & Children

Family

Plan lV
S6so.61

5L,322.9L

Si.,59i..57

s2,223.55

Phn lll
5998.73

51,,9r2.49

52,327.66

53,241,.1,5

Plan tl
5r,27L.42
s2,356.63

Sz,ssz.ro
S3,946.63

7ltl20t6 Renewal

Emplovee Only

Employee & Spouse

Employee & Children

Family

PIan lV
So¡s.zg

S1,216.96

St,¿o¡.e s

52,044.73

Plan lll
59L7.s7

5L,7s7.86

s2,138.69

S2,978.3i.

Plan tl
S1,168.i.5

S2,16s.33

S2,629.03

52,62s.s4

7ltlz0ls Renewal

Employee Only

Employee & Spouse

Employee & Children

Family

37



s2s0

Glty ol l{orth
Polc

s37s lsL,L25

None

s4,22s /s72,67s

5250 (per cloim)

90% Deductible

Waived (Subject

to U&C)

90% Deductible

Waived

L00% deductible Waived

s6,zsols12,s00

80% Deductible

Waived

Glty of Scwatü

s2s0 / 5s00

lnpatient Hospital S50 / ER Services

s2s

s2,2so /54,soo

80% Deductible

Waived

100% deductible Waived

s2oo/ssoo

s4,ooo / ssooo

]IWABTD

sso / slso

None

Sl,soo / S3ooo

50% per occurance

100% Deduct¡ble

Waived (Subject

to u&c)

100% Deductible

Waived

L00% deductible Waived

90% Deductible

Waived (Subject

to U&c)

Valdcz Clty
School¡

sloo / s3oo

No ne

5588 Per lndividual

90% Deductible

Waived

N/A Grandfathered Plan

lndividuaUFamily Deductible

PCY

Per Confinement Deductible

lndividual/Fam¡ly Out-of-
Pocket Maximum PCY

lDeduct¡ble + Co¡nsurãnceì

Pre-Authorization Penalty

Office Visit - Well Adult (19 yrs

or over) One (1) visit PCY

Office Visit - Well Child (z yrs

lhrough 18 yrs) One (1) v¡sit PCY

Office Visit - Well Baby

Inewborn through 24 months)
Six (6) visit PCY

Rout¡ne Mammogram one (1)

rCY - Age 40 and over

Colorectal Screen¡ng one (1) pcl

Pelvice Exam/PAP one (1) pcy
Age 40 and over

\ee 16 and over

Prostate Exam & Lab Work
fne l1ì PCY - Ase ¿¡ and ôvêr

Womens Health Care (ACA

Requred)

OUT-OF- OUT-OF- OUT-OF. OUT-OF-
IN- NETWORK IN- NETWORK IN- NETWORK IN- NETWORK

NETWORK (subject to NETWORK (subject to NETWORK (subject to NETWORK (subject to
u&c) u&c) u&c) u&c)

PREVENTIVE SERVICES

COST SHARING

OPTIONS (PCY = Per

Calendar Year)

GOTPARISON OF OTIIER IIEALTII PLANS

38



ooNw

60o/o alter
deductible

Szso per

confinement

copay + 6Ù0/o after
deductible

60To afTer

deductible

¡NNW
80% after deductible

90% afTer deductible

9O/o after deductible (12 Visits)

90% after deductible

90% after
deductible

80% after deductible

8O% after deductible

80% after deductible

80% after deductible

80% after deductible

90% aÍte¡ deductible

9Oo/o afte¡ deductible

9Oo/o afte¡
deductible

9O% afier
deductible

80% after deductible

100% Deductible Waived

ooNw

60% after
deductible

6OTo afler
deductible

INNW
80% after deductible

80% after deductible

50% afte¡ deductible (15 Visits)

Exam80% / Hear¡ng Aid 100% (L per

year)

80% after deductible

80% a'fter deductible

80% after deductible

80% after deductible

80% after deductible

80% alr.er deductible

80% after deductible

80% after deductible

80% afler deductible

8O% aller
deductible

80% after
deductible

80% atter deductible (60 days)

100% Deductible Waived

ooNw

7O% aft.er

deductible

7Oo/o afie¡
deductible

INNW
90% afier deductible

90% afler deductible

9oo/o afler deductible

90% afte¡ deductible

90% after deductible

90o/o after deductible

90% after deductible

90% after deductible

9O% a'fier deductible

90% after deductible

90% after deductible

90o/o after deductible

90% after
deductible

90% aller
deductible

L00% Deductible Waived (90 days)

1-00% Deductible Waived

ooNw

75%

INNW
90% after deductible

90% after deductible

9Oo/o afte¡ deductible

90% after deductible

90%

90%

90%

90%

90%

90%

90%

9Oo/o

90%

90%

90%

100% Deductible Waived

T

PROFESSIONAL CARE

Professional Office Visit

0utpat¡ent Professional

Serv¡ces (Profess¡onal Hospital care)

Chiropractic Care

Hearing Care

Inpat¡ent Professional

Serv¡ces

PATHOLOGY AND DIAGNOSTIC SERVICES
lnpatient Hosp¡tal X-rays and
Lab Tests

0utpat¡ent X-rays and [ab
Iests

RAD,OLOGY - Outnatient
CT Scan, MRI/MRA, PET Scan,

Other lmaeins

Mammography (non-preventive)

Urgent Care

Emergency Room Facility

Emergency Room

Professional Services

Ambulance Transportat¡on
lAir & Groundl

FACILITY CARE

lnpat¡ent Facility Care

Outpat¡ent Facility Care

Skilled Nursing Facility

Bridge Health Surgery

Program

OTHER COVERED SERVICES

39



ooNw
5z5o per

confinement

copay + 6O% after
deductible

6O% afTe¡

deductible

80% after deductible

Szso per

confinement

copay + 6O% after
deductible

8Oo/o after deductible

6Ùo/o a'fT.er

deductible

Szso per

confinement

copay + 60% after
deductible

80% afler deductible

60% after
deductible

S250 per

confinement

copay + 60% aft.et

deductible

80% after deductible

INNW

90% a'fler

deductible

90% after
deductible

90% after
deductible

90% after
deductible

9O% afr.er

deductible

90% after
deductible

90% after
deductible

OONW

6O% after
deductible

6O% after
deductible

6O% after
deductible

80% after deductible

60%o afÌer
deductible

600/o after
deductible

8O% a'fier deductible

600/o after
deductible

60% after
deductible

80% after deductible

INNW

80% after
deductible

80% after
deductible

80% after
deductible

80% after
deductible

80% after
deductible

80% after
deductible

80% after
deductible

ooNw

70o/o Afier
Deductible

90% After Deductible

90% After Deductible

7O% Afr.er

Deductible

90% After Deductible

7O% Alter
Deductible

7O% Aft.er

Deductible

9O% Af'ter Deductible

70o/o AfTer

Deductible

TOTo Afte¡

Deductible

90% After Deductible

INNW

90% After
Deductible

9oo/o After

Deductible

90% After
Deductible

90% After
Deductible

90% After
Deductible

9O% Alt.er

Deductible

ooNw

75% Afl.er

Ded uctible

90o/o Aft.er Deductible

90% After Deductible

75% A'lter

Deductible

90% After Deductible

75o/o AÍrer

Deductible

75o/o Afl.er

Deductible

90% After Deductible

75o/o AfTer

Deductible

75% A'lte¡

Deductible

90% After Deductible

INNW

90% After

Deductible

90o/o AfTer

Deductible

90% After
Deductible

90% After
Deductible

90% After
Deductible

90% After
Deductible

MATERNITY

lvlaternity lnpat¡ent

Vlaternity Outpat¡ent

Matern¡ty Ultrasound

OTHER SERVICES

Mental Health lnpat¡ent

Mental Health Outpatient -

Office Visit

Mental Health Outpatient -

Facility

Chemical Dependency
lnpatient

Chemical Dependency

Outpat¡ent - Office Visit

Chemical Dependency

Outpat¡ent - Facil¡ty

Rehabilitat¡on lnpatient
llncludes Neurodevelopmental

rnd Physical)

Rehabilitation Outpatient -

Office Visit
ilncludes Neurodevelopmental

rnd Physical)

40



60% after
deductible

90% after
deductible

80% after deductible

80% after deductible

80% after deductible

80% after deductible

90% After Deductible

90% (Max S15,000)

90% After Deductible (S7,500)

None

s1o/s28lsso/sso

s3o/s84/s150/slso

See Summary Plan Description

s2o/sso/s1oo

Same As above

N/A Grandfathered Plan

Not Covered

Not Covered

80% after deductible

80% after deductible

80% after deductible

80% after deductible

80% after deductible

80% After
Deductible

80% (Max

s20,000)

Not Covered

None

80% After
Deductible

SS / S10 + difference in cost

55 / S10 + difference in cost

55 / S10 + difference in cost

55 / S10 + difference in cost

51 per Rx

N/A Grandfathered Plan

75% Afier
Deductible

Not Covered

Not Covered

90% After
Deductible

90% After Deductible

90% After Deductible

90% After Deductible (1.00 Visits)

9O% Aiter Deductible

90% After
Deductible

90% (Max

S2o,ooo)

100% deductibel

waived

Combined with Medical

Not Covered

90o/o afle¡ Deductible

100% deductible waived

100% deductible waived

75% Afte¡

Deductible

90% After Deductible

90% After Deductible

90% After Deductible

90% After Deductible (130 Visits)

90% After Deductible

90% After
Deductible

90% (Max S20,000)

90% After Deductible

None

ss / 510

Ss/ 510

ss/ s1o

ss/ 510

Not Covered

N/A Grandfathered Plan

Durable Medical Equipment

0rthotics

Rehabilitation Outpatient -

Facility

Home Health Care

Hosp¡ce Cafe (Life Expectancy is

six (6) months or less)

Transplants

Transplants - Donor Cost

Transplants - Transportation

PCY

Retail Pharmacy Up to 30 day

suoolv

Retail Pharmacy 31-90 day

supply

Out-of-Network Pharmacy Up

to 30 day supply

Mail Order 90-day supply

Oral Contraceptives

Preventive RX (ACA Required)

PHARMACY

4t



None / None

tOO% up to 5120 Maximum (per 24

Mo.)

ln lieu of glasses

100% up to 560 Maximum (per 12

mo.)

sso / s1s0

S1,000 per participant

100% Deduct¡ble Waived

80% After Deductible

50% After Deductible

Not covered

Not covered

None

Sloo PcY

S3o / 544 / Sss / 5166 (per lense

PCY)

ln lieu ofglasses S130 PcY

Sloo PcY

5so

$2,SOO per participant

100% Deduct¡ble Waived

80% After Deductible

50% After Deductible (6 mo wait)

80% S1,000 Lifetime deductible

waived

80% S1,000 Lifetime deductible

waived (children only)

None

90% up to $45 per 24 Months

90%per 12 Months

ln lieu of glasses

90To per 12 Months

None

S1,000 per part¡cipant

70% / 80% /90% / rcO%

70%/80%/eo%1100%

50%

Not Covered

Not Covered

None

9Q% per 1,2 Months

ln lieu of glasses

9OYo per 72 Months

90% per 12 Months

S2s / S7s

52,000 per partic¡pant

100% Deductible Waived

80% After Deductible

50% After Deductible

Not Covered

Not Covered

rnorvrouau hamtty ueducttÞte
PCY

Frames

Leses

Contacts

lndividual/Family Deductible

Exam

PCY

Ðenefit Maximum PCY

Prevent¡ve Care

Basic Care

Mlajor Care

TMJ

Orthodnt¡a

vtstoN

DENTAL

42



seryicesito thebut notis

Diagnostic lmaging such as CT

Scans, PET Scans, MRAs, MRls,

lVPs, etc.

Hospice Care

lnpatient Hospitalizations

lnpatient Surgical Procedures

Outpatient Surgical Procedures

Renal Dialysis

Transplant Evaluations

Travel

u

Non-Emergency Medical Non-Emergency Medical Non-Emergency Medical
Conditions Conditions Conditions

Diagnostic lmaging such as CT Diagnostic lmaging such as CT Diagnostic lmaging luch as CT
Scans, PET Scans, MRAs, MRIs, Scans, PET Scans, MRAs, MRIs, Scans, PET Scans, MRAs, MRIs,

lVPs, etc. lVPs, etc. lVps, etc.
Genetic testing Genetic testing Genetic testing

Home Health Care Services Home Health Care Services Home Health Care Services

Hospice Care Hospice Care Hospice Care

l/V Therapy t/V Therapy t/V Therapy

lnpatient Hospitalizations lnpatient Hospitalizations lnpatient Hospitalizations

lnpatient Surgical Procedures lnpatient Surgical Procedures lnpat¡ent Surgical Procedures
Orthotics and Prosthetics over Orthotics and Prosthetics over Orthotics and Prosthetics over

Ssoo.oo Ssoo.oo Ssoo.oo
Outpatient Surgical Procedures Outpatient Surgical Procedures Outpatient Surgical Procedures

Physical and Occupational Physical and Occupational Physical and Occupational
Therapies - Therapies Therapies

Purchase of Durable Medical Purchase ot Duiable Medical Purchase ot Duiabie Medical
Equipment costing St,000 or Equipment cost¡ng 51,000 or Equipment costing St,ooo or

more more more
Renal Dialysis Renal Dialysis Renal Dialysis

Rental of Durable Medical Rental of Durable Medical Rental of Durable Medical
Equ¡pment with purchase value Equipment with purchase value Equipment with purchase value

of 53,000 or more of 53,000 or more of 53,000 or more
Skilled Nursing and Rehabilitation Skilled Nursing and Rehabilitation Skilled Nursing and Rehabilitation

Facility Services Facility Services Facility Services

Transplant Evaluations Transplant Evaluations Transplant Evaluations

Travel Travel Travel

Glty o't Xotth Pol¡

40 lJlUzOtT Renewal)

S84s.oo

St,lqgls
S1,639.30

52,577.25

Ctty of towrd
98llltl2017 Renewal)

S1,115.69

52,309.47

52,L64.43

S3,¿02.85

xw BtD
38s (12 | t | 2016 Renewal )

s980.62

S2,029.89

5t,goz.qt
S2,990.90

Veld¡z GlÇ tchoolr
tt2lêhl2Ù17 Renewal)

S1,140.89

52,361.64

52,2L3.32

53,479.40

Group Size

Employee Only
Employee & Spouse

Employee & Children
Family

Self Funded Spec Ded. 50,000 Spec Ded.

43

5100,000 Spec Ded. 540,000 Spec Ded.



Memo 
To: North Pole City Council 

From: Bill Butler 

Date: May 8, 2017 

Subject: Updates for storm water management ordinances 

Recommendation 

 

Amend Title 12 Streets, Sidewalks and Public Places; 12.24 Illicit Discharge Detection and 

Elimination; Amend Title 15, Building and Construction; Title 15.66 Construction Site Storm 

Water Runoff; and Title 15.74 Post-Construction Storm Water Management to reflect State’s 

oversight of the permit and language changes to better reflect requirements of the Clean Water 

Act. 

 

Background 

 

The City of North Pole, City of Fairbanks, University of Alaska Fairbanks, and Alaska 

Department of Transportation and Public Facilities, Northern Region collectively received a 

Phase II National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System from the U.S. Environmental 

Protection Agency on June 1, 2005, to manage discharge from all municipal separate storm 

sewer systems (MS4s) into receiving waters, which includes Beaver Springs, Chena River, 

Chena Slough, Noyes Slough, and other associated waters of the U.S. The Phase II NPDES 

Permit required the different parties to implement and enforce a program to address post-

construction storm water runoff from new development and redevelopment projects within the 

Fairbanks Pole Urbanized Area. The proposed changes reflect the State of Alaska taking 

responsibility for oversight of the local permit. The change in authority is reflected in the name 

of the permit Alaska Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (APDES) program. The original 

permit conditions remain in effect despite the name change. The changes throughout the three 

associated ordinances reflect updating code language that reflect the increased responsibility of 

the State and feedback from EPA and the State to make the code language better reflect the 

requirements of the Clean Water Act. 

125 Snowman Lane 

North Pole, Alaska 99705 

(907) 488-8593 

(907) 488-3002 (fax) 

bill@northpolealaska.com 

City of North Pole 
Director of City Services 



1

2
J

4
5

6

7

8

9
10

11

t2
t3
t4
15

t6
t7
18

t9
20
2l
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31

32
JJ

34
35
36
37
38

Sponsored by: Mayor Bryce J. V/ard
Introduced }l4ay 15,2017

Possible adoption Jvne 5,2017

CITY OF NORTH POLE

ORDINANCE I7-I3

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CODES ASSOCIATED WITH THE CITY OF NORTH
POLE'S STORM WATER MANAGEMENT ORDINACES CHAPTER 12.24 ILLICIT

DISCHARGE DETECTION AND ELIMINATION; CHAPTER 15.66
CONSTRUCTION SITE STORM \ilATER RUNOFF; AND CHAPTER 1s.74

POST.CONSTRUCTION STORM WATER MANAGEMENT

WHEREAS, changes to the North Pole Municipal Code is a continually changing requirement;
and

\VHEREAS, the City of North Pole Municipal Code should be amended to conform to the
requirements of the City.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of North Pole:

Section 1. This ordinance is of a general and permanent nature and shall be codified.

Section 2. Amend Title 12 Streets, Sidewalks and Public Places; 12.24Illicit Discharge
Detection and Elimination; Amend Title 15, Building and Construction; Title 15.66 Construction
Site Storm Water Runoff; and Title 15.74 Post-Construction Storm Water Management as in the
attached amended code language.

Section 3. These changes shall become effective upon passage.

PASSED AND APPROVED by a duly constituted quorum of the North Pole City Council this
5th day of June, 2017.

Bryce J.'Ward, Mayor

ATTEST:

Kathryn M. W'eber, MMC
North Pole City Clerk

PASS/FAIL
Yes:
No:
Absent:



Merno

125 Snowman Lane
North Pole, Alaska 99705
(907) 488-8593
(907) 488-3002 (fax)
bill@northpolealaska.com

To:

From:

Date:

Subject:

North Pole City Council

Bill Butler

I|l4ay 8,2017

Updates for storm water management ordinances

Recommendation

Amend Title 12 Streets, Sidewalks and Public Places; 12.24Illicit Discharge Detection and
Elimination; Amend Title 15, Building and Construction; Title 15.66 Construction Site Storm
Water Runoft and Title 15.74 Post-Construction Storm'Water Management to reflect State's
oversight of the permit and language changes to better reflect requirements of the Clean Water
Act.

Background

The City of North Pole, City of Fairbanks, University of Alaska Fairbanks, and Alaska
Department of Transportation and Public Facilities, Northern Region collectively received a

Phase II National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System from the U.S. Environmental
Protection Agency on June I,2005, to manage discharge from all municipal separate storm
sewer systems (MS4s) into receiving waters, which includes Beaver Springs, Chena River,
Chena Slough, Noyes Slough, and other associated waters of the U.S. The Phase II NPDES
Permit required the different parties to implement and enforce a program to address post-
construction storm water runoff from new development and redevelopment projects within the
Fairbanks Pole Urbanized Area. The proposed changes reflect the State of Alaska taking
responsibility for oversight of the local permit. The change in authority is reflected in the name
of the permit Alaska Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (APDES) program. The original
permit conditions remain in effect despite the name change. The changes throughout the three
associated ordinances reflect updating code language that reflect the increased responsibility of
the State and feedback from EPA and the State to make the code language better reflect the
requirements of the Clean'Water Act.

Citl of North Pole
Directc-rr of Cin Sen,ices



Chapter 12.24
ILLICIT DISCHARGE DETECTION AND ELIMINATION

Sections:
12.24.010 Purpose - Intent.
12.24.020 Definitions.
12.24.030 Applicability.
12.24.040 Responsibility for administration.
12.24.050 Severability.
12.24.060 Ultimate responsibility.
12.24.070 Discharge prohibitions.
12.24.080 Suspension of MS4 access.
12.24.090 Industrial or construction activity discharges.
12.24.I00 Monitoring of discharges.
12.24.110 Requirement to prevent, control, and reduce storm water pollutants by the use of
best management practices.

12.24.I30 Vy'atercourse protection.
12.24.140 Notification of spills.
12.24.150 Enforcement.
12.24.160 Appeal of notice of violation.
I2.24.I70 Enforcement measures after appeal.
12.24.180 Cost of abatement of the violation.
12.24.190 Injunctive relief.
12.24.200 Compensatory action.
12.24.210 Violations deemed a public nuisance.
12.24.220 Remedies not exclusive.
12.24.010 Purpose - Intent.

The purpose of this chapter is to provide for the health, safety, and general welfare of the citizens
of the City of North Pole through the regulation of non-storm water discharges to the storm
drainage system to the maximum extent practicable as required by Federal and State law. This
chapter establishes methods for controlling the introduction of pollutants into the municipal
separate storm sewer system (MS4) in order to comply with requirements of the Na+ienal Alaska
Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPÐEÐ (APDES) permit process.

The objectives of this chapter are to:

A. Regulate the contribution of pollutants to the storm drainage system and local waterways
from storm water discharges and snow melt by any user.

B. Prohibit illicit connections and discharges to the storm drainage system or local waterways.

C. Establish legal authority to carry out all inspection, surveillance, and monitoring procedures
necessary to ensure compliance with this chapter.

1



47
48
49
50
5l
52
53

54
55
56
57
58
59
60
6r
62
63
64

12.24.020 Definitions.
For the pu{poses of this chapter, the following shall mean:

"Authorized enforcement agency''means employees or designees of the City of North Pole
to enforce this chapter.

Alaska Pollutíon Discharge Elimination System (APDES) Program: In 2008, the State of Alaska
applied to implement the NPDES Program. The EPA approved the application and agreed to
trønsfer program authority to the State overþur phases. The State's program is called the Alaska
Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (APDES) Program and is administered by the ADEC.
The initial phase transferred in 2008 and included domestic discharges, log storage and transfer
facilities, seaþod processing facilities, and hatcheries. Phase II wqs completed in 2009 and
included federal facilities, stormwater, wastewater pretreatment programs, and non-domestic
discharges. Phase III was completed in 2010 to include mining activities. November I, 2012
marked the completion of Phase IV and included wastewater permitting fbr the oil and gøs
industry, pesticides, munitions, and any other facilities that had not yet been transferued. New
(APDES) regulations were adopted at 18 AAC 83, alongwith subsequent amendmentseffective
October 23, 2008.

"Best management practices (BMPs)" means schedules of activities; prohibitions of practices;
general good housekeeping practices; pollution prevention and educational practices;
maintenance procedures; and other management practices to prevent or reduce the discharge of
pollutants directly or indirectly to storm water, receiving waters, or storm water conveyance
systems. BMPs also include treatment practices; operating procedures; and practices to control
site runoff, spillage or leaks, sludge or water disposal, or drainage from raw materials storage.

"Clean Water Act" (CWA) means the Federal Water Pollution Control Act (33 USC Section
l25I et seq.), and any subsequent amendments thereto.

"Construction activity''means activities subject to NPDES APDES construction permits.
Currently, these include construction projects resulting in land disturbance of one acre or more
and discharges from smaller sites that are part of a larger cotnmon plan of developntent or sale.
Suchearth-disturbing activities include, but are not limited to, clearing and grubbing, grading,
excavating, and demolition.

"Hazardous materials" means any material, including any substance, waste, or combination
thereof, which because of its quantity, concentration, or physical, chemical, biological, or
infectious characteristics may cause, or significantly contribute to, a substantial present or
potential hazard to human health, safety, property, or the environment when improperly treated,
stored, transported, disposed of, or otherwise managed.

"Illegal discharge" means any direct or indirect non-storm water discharge to the storm drainage
system, except as exempted by this chapter.

Illicit Connections. An illicit connection is defined as either of the following:

78

65
66
67
68
69
70
7I
72
73

74
75
76
77

t9
80
81

82
83

84
85
86
87
88

89
90
9l
92

2



93
94

A. Any drain or conveyance, whether on the surface or subsurface, that allows an illegal
discharge to enter the storm drainage system including, but not limited to, any conveyances that
allow any non-storm water discharge including sewage, process wastewater, and wash water to
enter the storm drainage system; and any connections to the storm drainage system from indoor
drains and sinks, regardless of whether said drain or connection had been previously allowed,
permitted, or approved by an authorized enforcement agency; or any drain or conveyance
connected to the storm drainage system from a commercial or industrial land use, and which has
not been documented in plans, maps, or equivalent records and approved by an authorized
enforcement agency.

"Industrial activity" means activities subject to NPDES industrial permits as defined in 40 CFR
S ection 122.26(b)(I 4).

"Municipal separate storm sewer system (MS4)" means facilities within the City of North Pole
urbanized area owned or operated by the co-permittees holding Permit No. AKS-053406by
which storm water is collected and/or conveyed, including, but not limited to, any roads with
drainage systems, City streets, gutters, curbs, inlets, piped storm drains, pumping facilities,
retention and detention basins, natural and human-made or altered drainage channels, reservoirs,
and other drainage structures.

"National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) storm water discharge permit"
means a permit issued by the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) (or by a state under
authority delegated pursuant to 33 USC Section I342(b)) that authorizes the discharge of
pollutants to waters of the United States, whether the permit is applicable on an individual,
group, or general area-wide basis.

"Non-storm water discharge" means any discharge to the storm drainage system that is not
composed entirely of storm water.

"Person" means any individual, association, organization, partnership, firm, corporation or other
entity recognized by law, and acting as either the owner or the owner's agent.

"Pollutant" means anything that causes or contributes to pollution. Pollutants may include, but
are not limited to: paints, varnishes, and solvents; oils, grease, and other automotive fluids;
nonhazardous liquids, detergents, and solid wastes and yard wastes; refuse, rubbish, garbage,
litter, or other discarded or abandoned objects, ammunition, and accumulations, so that same
may cause or contrihute to pollution; floatahles; pestìcides, he,rbicicles, ancl fertilizers; hazardous
substances and wastes; sewage, fecal coliform and pathogens; dissolved and particulate metals;
animal wastes; wastes and residues that result from constructing a building or structure; and
noxious or offensive matter of any kind.

"Premises" means any building, lot, parcel of land, or portion of land, whether improved or
unimproved, including adjacent sidewalks and parking strips.

"Snow storage" means any area used to store snow removed from residential and commercial
facilities, roadways, parking lots, storage areas.

95
96
97
98
99

100
101

r02
103
r04
105
106
t07
108

109
110
111

I12
113
tI4
115
11ó
117
118

119
t20
t2l
t22
r23
124
125
t26
127
128
r29
130
l3l
132
r33
t34
135

r36
r37
138

J



139
t40
t4t
t42
r43
144
t4s
r46
r47
148

t49
150

151

152
153
r54
155
156

157
158

159
160

161

r62
r63
164
165
r66
r67
168
r69
170
17l
172

r73
174
175
t76
n7
r78
179
180

181

182
183

"Storm drainage system" means MS4 facilities within and under the control of the City of North
Pole by which storm water is collected andlor conveyed, including but not limited to any roads
with drainage systems, City streets, gutters, curbs, inlets, piped storm drains, pumping facilities,
retention and detention basins, natural and human-made or altered drainage channels, reservoirs,
and other drainage structures.

"Storm water" means any surface flow, runoff, and drainage consisting entirely of water from
any form of natural precipitation, and resulting from such precipitation.

"Storm water pollution prevention plan" (SWPPP) means a document that describes the BMPs
and activities to be implemented by a person or business to identify sources of pollution or
contamination at a site, and the actions to eliminate or reduce pollutant discharges to storm
water, storm water conveyance systems, andlor receiving waters to the maximum extent
practicable.

"Wastewater" means any water or other liquid, other than uncontaminated storm water,
discharged from a facility.

Waterways. Area waterways include the Chena River, Noyes Slough, ponds, lakes, gravel pits,
storm water retention basins, and all associated drainage pathways, swales, ditches, channels, etc.

12.24.030 Applicability.
This chapter shall apply to all water entering the storm drainage system generated on any
developed and undeveloped lands unless explicitly exempted by an authorized enforcement
agency.

12.24.040 Responsibility for administration.
The City of North Pole shall administer, implement, and enforce the provisions of this chapter.
Any powers granted or duties imposed upon the authorized enforcement agency may be
delegated in writing by the Director of the authorized enforcement agency to persons or entities
acting in the beneficial interest of, or in the employ of, the agency.

12.24.050 Severability.
The provisions ofthis chapter are hereby declared to be severable. Ifanyprovision, clause,
sentence, or paragraph of this chapter or the application thereof to any person, establishment, or
circumstances shall he helrl invalid, such invalidity shall not affect the othe.r provisions or
application of this chapter.

12.24.060 Ultimate responsibility.
The standards set forth herein and promulgated pursuant to this chapter are minimum standards;
therefore, this chapter does not intend nor imply that compliance by any person will ensure that
there will be no contamination, pollution, nor unauthorized discharge of pollutants.

4

12.24.07 0 Discharge prohibitions.



r84
185

186
187

188
189

190
t9I
192
193
r94
195
196
t97
198

r99
200
20r
202
203
204
205
206
207
208
209
2t0
27t
212
213
214
215
216
217
218
219
220
221
222
223
224
225
226
227
228
229

A. Prohibition of Illegal Discharges. No person shall cause or permit the illicit discharge of any
of the following in such a manner that access was, is, or will be gained to:

1. Waters of the State, or waters of the United States, unless such is first treated in a manner
approved by the authorized enforcement agency having jurisdiction; or

2. To a storm drainage system of the City of North Pole, other than pursuant to an NPDES
APDES permit:

a. Grease, fatty materials, offal, or garbage;

b. Sand, sand dust, dirt, gravel, sawdust, coal, coal ash, metal filings, broken glass, yard waste,
domestic animal or livestock waste or any material which may cause or create an obstruction in
the storm sewer system;

c. Gasoline, benzene, fuel oil or a petroleum product, or volatile liquid;

d. Milk or any liquid milk waste products;

e. Wax, cyanide, phenols, or other chemical or substances that may cause damage to materials
of which the storm sewer system is constructed;

f. Wastewater; or

g. Pollutants or any materials other than storm water which are prohibited by the Clean Water
Act, National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System under 33 USC 1342 (1987) and
regulations adopted thereunder located at 40 CFR 22,23 and24 (1990).

B. Dumping in Watercourse. No person shall deposit, dump, abandon, throw, scatter, or
transport solid waste, garbage, rubbish, junk, f,rll, soil, dirt, snow yard weste, domestic animal or
livestock waste or other material in such a manner as to obstruct, impound, pollute or cause
siltation of any river, stream, creek, watercourse, ditch, drain, or gutter except as otherwise
allowed by valid Federal, State, or local permits or licenses relative to water pollution, water
impoundment, or water quality control.

The commencement, conduct or continuance of any illegal discharge to the storm drainage
system is prohihited exce¡t as clescribecl as follows:

1. The following discharges are exempt from discharge prohibitions established by this
chapter: water line flushing or other potable water sources, landscape irrigation or lawn watering,
diverted stream flows, rising ground water, ground water infiltration to storm drains,
uncontaminated pumped ground water, foundation or footing drains (not including active ground
water dewatering or cooling systems), crawl space pumps, air conditioning condensation,
springs, noncommercial washing of vehicles, natural riparian habitat or wetland flows,
swimming pools (if dechlorinated - typically less than one part per million (PPM chlorine)),
firefighting activities, and any other water source not containing pollutants.

5



230
231
232
233
234
235
236
237
238
239
240
24t
242
243
244
245
246
247
248
249
250
25r
252
253
254
255
256
257
258
259
260
26r
262
263
264
265
266
267
268
269
270
271

272
273
274

2. Discharges specified in writing by the authorized enforcement agency as being necessary to
protect public health and safety.

3. Dye testing is an allowable discharge, but requires a verbal notification to the authorized
enforcement agency prior to the time of the test.

4. The prohibition shall not apply to any non-storm water discharge permitted under an NPDES
APDES permit, waiver, or waste discharge order issued to the discharger and administered under
the authority of the EPA; provided, that the discharger is in full compliance with all requirements
of the permit, waiver, or order and other applicable laws and regulations; and provided, that
written approval has been granted for any discharge to the storm drainage system.

C. Prohibition of Illicit Connections

1. The construction, use, maintenance, or continued existence of illicit connections to the storm
drainage system is prohibited.

2. This prohibition expressly includes, without limitation, illicit connections made in the past,
regardless of whether the connection was permissible under law or practices applicable or
prevailing at the time of connection.

3. A person is considered to be in violation of this chapter if the person connects a line
conveying sewage to the MS4, or allows such a connection to continue.

12.24.080 Suspension of MS4 access.
A. Suspension Due to Illicit Discharges in Emergency Situations. The City of North Pole may,
without prior notice, suspend MS4 discharge access to a person when such suspension is
necessary to stop an actual or threatened discharge which presents or may present imminent and
substantial danger to the environment, or to the health or welfare of persons, or to the MS4, or
waters of the United States. If the violator fails to comply with a suspension order issued in an
emergency, the authorized enforcement agency may take such steps as deemed necessary to
prevent or minimize damage to the MS4 or waters of the United States, or to minimize danger to
persons.

B. Suspension Due to the Detection of Illicit Discharge. Any person discharging to the MS4 in
violation of this chapter may have their MS4 access terminated if such termination would abate
or reduce an illicit discharge. The authorized enforcement agency will notifii a violator of the
proposed termination of its MS4 access. The violator may petition the authorized enforcement
agency for a reconsideration and hearing.

A person commits an offense if the person reinstates MS4 access to premises terminated
pursuant to this section, without the prior approval of the authorized enforcement agency.

12.24.090 Industrial or construction activity discharges

6



275
276
277
278
279
280
281
282
283
284
285
286
287
288
289
290
29r
292
293
294
295
296
297
298
299
300
301

302
303
304
305
306
307
308
309
310
3r l
312
313
3r4
315
316
3t7
318
319
320

Any person subject to an industrial or construction activity NPDES APDES storm water
discharge permit shall comply with all provisions of such permit. Proof of compliance with such
permit may be required in a form acceptable to the City of North Pole prior to the allowing of
discharges to the MS4.

12.24.1 00 Monitoring of discharges.
A. Applicability. This section applies to all facilities that have storm water discharges
associated with industrial activity, including construction activity.

B. Access to Facilities.

1. The City of North Pole shall be permitted to enter and inspect facilities subject to regulation
under this chapter as often as may be necessary to determine compliance. If a discharger has
security measures in force that require proper identification and clearance before entry into its
premises, the discharger shall make the necessary arrangements to allow access to
representatives of the authorized enforcement agency.

2. Facility operators shall allow the City of North Pole ready access to all parts of the premises
for the purposes of inspection, sampling, examination and copying of records that must be kept
under the conditions of an NPDES APDES permit to discharge storm water, and the performance
of any additional duties as defined by State and Federal law.

3. The City of North Pole shall have the right to set up, on any permitted facility, such devices
as are necessary in the opinion of the authorized enforcement agency to conduct monitoring
andlor sampling of the facility's storm water discharge.

4. The City of North Pole has the right to require the discharger to install monitoring
equipment as necessary. The facility's sampling and monitoring equipment shall be maintained
at all times in a safe and proper operating condition by the discharger at their own expense. All
devices used to measure storm water flow and quality shall be calibrated yearly to ensure their
accuracy.

5. Any temporary or permanent obstruction to safe and easy access to the facility to be
inspected andlor sampled shall be promptly removed by the operator at the written or oral
request of the City of North Pole and shall not be replaced. The costs of clearing such access
shall be borne by the operator.

6. Unreasonable delays in allowing the City of North Pole access to a permitted facility are a
violation of a storm water discharge permit and of this chapter. A person who is the operator of a
facility with an NPDES APDES permit to discharge storm water associated with industrial
activity commits an offense if the person denies the authorized enforcement agency reasonable
access to the permitted facility for the purpose of conducting any activity authorized or required
by this chapter.

7. If the City of North Pole has been refused access to any part of the premises from which
storm water is discharged and is able to demonstrate probable cause to believe that there may be

7



32t
322
323
324
32s
326
327
328
329
330
331

332
JJJ

334
335
336
337
338
339
340
341
342
343
344
345
346
347
348
349
350
351

352
353
354
355
356
357
358
359
360
361
362
363
364
36s
366

a violation of this chapter, or that there is a need to inspect andlor sample as part of a routine
inspection and sampling progr¿ìm designed to verify compliance with this chapter or any order
issued hereunder, or to protect the overall public health, safety, and welfare of the community,
then the authorized enforcement agency may seek issuance of a search warrant from any court of
competent jurisdiction.

12.24.110 Requirement to prevent, control, and reduce storm water pollutants by the use of best
management practices. The City of North Pole will adopt requirements identi$ring BMPs for any
activity, operation, or facility that may cause or contribute to pollution or contamination of storm
water, the storm drainage system, or waters of the U.S. The owner or operator of a commercial
or industrial establishment shall provide, at their own expense, reasonable protection from
accidental discharge of prohibited materials or other wastes into the storm drainage systern or
watercourses through the use of structural and nonstructural BMPs. Further, any person
responsible for a property or premises, which is, or may be, the source of an illicit discharge,
may be required to implement, at said person's expense, additional structural and nonstructural
BMPs to prevent the further discharge of pollutants to the storm drainage system. Compliance
with all terms and conditions of a valid NPDES APDES permit authorizing the discharge of
storm water associated with an industrial activity, to the extent practicable, shall be deemed
compliance with the provisions of this section. These BMPs shall be part of a storm water
pollution prevention plan (SWPPP) as necessary for compliance with requirements of the
NPDES APDES permit.

I 2,24, I 20 r\eeidental diseharæ /slug eentrel plan,

@

8



367
3ó8
369
370
371
372
373
374
375
376
377
378
379
380
381

382
383
384
385
386
387
388
389
390
391
392
393
394
39s
396
397
398
399
400
401
402
403
404
405
406
407
408
409
410
4tr

5.___lÀ/erl<ertraininË

12.24.13 0 Watercourse protection.
Every person owning property through which a watercourse passes, or such person's lessee, shall
keep and maintain that part of the watercourse within the property free of trash, debris, and other
obstacles that would pollute, contaminate, or significantly retard the flow of water through the
watercourse. In addition, the owner or lessee shall maintain existing privately owned structures
within or adjacent to a watercourse, so that such structures will not become ahazard to the use,
function, or physical integrity of the watercourse. Any pollutants discharged into a watercourse
through a privately owned system shall constitute an illegal discharge.

12.24.140 Notification of spills.
Notwithstanding other requirements of law, as soon as any person responsible for a facility or
operation, or responsible for emergency response for a facility or operation, has information of
any known or suspected release of materials which are resulting or may result in illegal
discharges or pollutants discharging into storm water, the storm drainage system, or waters of the
U.S., said person shall take all necessary steps to ensure the discovery, containment, and cleanup
of such release. In the event of such a release of hazardous materials, said person shall
immediately notify emergency response agencies of the occurrence via emergency dispatch
services. In the event of a release of nonhazardous materials, said person shall notify the
authorized enforcement agency in person or by phone or facsimile no later than the next business
day. Notif,rcations in person or by phone shall be confirmed by written notice addressed and
mailed to the City of North Pole within three business days of the phone notice. If the discharge
of prohibited materials emanates from a commercial or industrial establishment, the owner or
operator of such establishment shall also retain an on-site written record of the discharge and the
actions taken to prevent its recurrence. Such records shall be retained for at least three years.

12.24.1 50 Enforcement.
A. Notice of Violation. Whenever the City of North Pole finds that aperson, public entity,
business, or corporation has violated a prohibition or failed to meet a requirement of this chapter,
the authorized enforcement agency may order compliance hy written notice of violation to the
responsible person. Such notice may require without limitation:

1. The performance of monitoring, analyses, and reporting;

2. The elimination of illicit connections or discharges;

3. That violating discharges, practices, or operations shall cease and desist;

9



4t2
4r3
414
415
416
4t7
418
4r9
420
42r
422
423
424
425
426
427
428
429
430
43t
432
433
434
435
436
437
438
439
440
441
442
443
444
445
446
447
448
449
450
451
452
453
454
455
456
457

4. The abatement or remediation of storm water pollution or contamination hazards and the
restoration of any affected property;

5. Payment of a fine to cover administrative and remediation costs; and

6. The implementation of source control or treatment BMPs.

If abatement of a violation and/or restoration of affected property is required, the notice shall set
forth a deadline within which such remediation or restoration must be completed. Said notice
shall further advise that, should the violator fail to remediate or restore affected property within
the established deadline, the work will be done by a designated governmental agency or a
contractor, and the expense thereof shall be charged to the violator.

12.24.160 Appeal of notice of violation.
Any person receiving a notice of violation may appeal the determination of the authorized
enforcement agency. The notice of appeal must be received within thirty days from the date of
the notice of violation. Hearing on the appeal before the appropriate authority or his/her designee
shall take place within fifteen days from the date of receipt of the notice of appeal. The decision
of the authorized enforcement agency or their designee shall be final.

12.24.170 Enforcement measures after appeal.
If the violation has not been corrected pursuant to the requirements set forth in the notice of
violation, or in the event of an appeal, within thirty days of a decision by the authorized
enforcement agency upholding the original decision, then representatives of the authorized
enforcement agency shall enter upon the subject private property, and are authorized to take any
and all measures necessary to abate the violation andlor restore the property. It shall be unlawful
for any person, owner, agent or person in possession of any premises to refuse to allow the
authorized enforcement agency or designated contractor to enter upon the premises for the
purposes set forth above.

12.24.180 Cost of abatement of the violation.
'Within ninety days after abatement of the violation, the owner of the property will be notified of
the cost of abatement, including administrative costs. The property owner may file a written
protest to the authorized enforcement agency objecting to the amount of the assessment within
fourteen days. If the amount due is not paid within a timely manner as determined by the
decision of the authorized enforcement agency or by the expiration of the time in which to file an
appeal, the charges shall hecome a special assessment against the property and shall constiftrte a
lien on the property for the amount of the assessment. Any person violating any of the provisions
of this chapter shall become liable to the authorized enforcement agency by reason of such
violation. lnterest as allowed by law shall be assessed on the balance beginning on the ninety-
first day following discovery of the violation.

12.24.190 Injunctive relief.
It shall be unlawful for any person to violate any provision or fail to comply with any of the
requirements of this chapter. If a person has violated or continues to violate the provisions of this
chapter, the authorized enforcement agency may petition for a preliminary or permanent

10



458
459
460
461
462
463
464
465
466
467
468
469
470
471
472
473
474
475
476
477
478
479
480
481
482
483
484
485
486
487
488

injunction restraining the person from activities that would create further violations, or
compelling the person to perform abatement or remediation of the violation.

12.24.200 Compensatory action.
In lieu of enforcement proceedings, penalties, and remedies authorized by this chapter, the
authorized enforcement agency may impose upon a violator alternative compensatory actions,
such as storm drain stenciling, attendance at compliance workshops, creek cleanup, etc.

12.24.210 Violations deemed a public nuisance.
A. In addition to the enforcement processes and penalties provided, any condition caused or
permitted to exist in violation of any of the provisions of this chapter is a threat to public health,
safety, and welfare, and is declared and deemed a nuisance, and may be summarily abated or
restored at the violator's expense, andlor a civil action to abate may be taken to enjoin or
otherwise compel the cessation of such nuisance.

B. It is the duty of the Mayor or his designee receiving information or obtaining knowledge of
the existence of any thing or things declared to be nuisances in this chapter to notify the person
committing, creating, keeping or maintaining the same to remove or cause the same to be
removed within twenty-four hours, or such other reasonable times may be determined by the
City official after such notice has been duly given; and if the same is not removed by such person
within the time prescribed in the notice, it shall be the duty of the Mayor or his designee to
remove or cause to be removed such nuisance or nuisances and all costs and expenses of such
removal shall be paid by the persons committing, creating, keeping or maintaining such nuisance
or nuisances. A person violating the provisions of this chapter may be punished by a fine of not
more than $200 (two hundred dollars) per violation in addition to any costs and expenses for
removal of the nuisance.

12.24.220 Remedies not exclusive.
The remedies listed in this chapter are not exclusive of any other remedies available under any
applicable Federal, State, or local law, and it is within the discretion of the authorized
enforcement agency to seek cumulative remedies.

11



Chapter 15.66
CONSTRUCTION SITE STORM WATER RUNOFF

Sections:
15.66.010 Introduction - Purpose.
15.66.020 Definitions.
15.66.030 Applicability.
15.66.040 Severability.
15.66.050 Ultimate responsibility.
15.66.060 Permit.
15.66.070 Review and approval.
15.66.080 SWPPP requirements.
15.66.090 Inspection.
15.66.100 Notification of spills.
15.66.1 10 Enforcement.
15.66.I20 Notice of violation.
15.66.130 Appeal of notice of violation.
15.66.140 Enforcement measures after appeal.
15.66.150 Cost of abatement of the violation.
15.66.160 Injunctive relief.
15.66.170 Compensatory action.
15.66.180 Violations deemed a public nuisance.
15.66.190 Criminal prosecution.
15.66.200 Remedies not exclusive.
15.66.010 Introduction - Purpose

When vegetation is removed or soil is disturbed during the construction process, soil is highly
vulnerable to erosion by wind and water. The sediment produced from this erosion endangers
water resources by reducing water quality and causing the siltation of aquatic habitat for fish and
other desirable species. Sedimentation of stoÍn sewers and ditches also increases maintenance
costs to the City of North Pole.

The City of North Pole, City of Fairbanks, University of Alaska Fairbanks, and Alaska
Department of Transportation and Public Facilities - Northern Region collectively received a

Phase II National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit (hereafter Permit)
from the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) on June 1,2005, to discharge from all
municipal separate storm sewer systems (MSas) into receiving waters, which includes Beaver
Springs, Chena River, Chena Slough, Noyes Slough, and other associated waters of the U.S. The
Phase+{++PDES Permit requires the aforementioned agencies to develop, implement, and
enforce a local storm water runoff plan review and inspection program to reduce pollutants in
storm water runoff from construction activities within the Fairbanks urbanized area. Therefore,
the purpose of this chapter is to empower the City of North Pole to meet the requirements of the
Phas€lI++PDES Permit within the urbanized area of the City of North Pole, as mandated by the
EPA. The Alaska Department of Environmental Conservation (ADEC) assumed authority over
the Permit in October 2009 under the Alaska Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (APDES)
program. The original Permit Conditions remain in effect. The objective of this chapter is to

I2



,tothemaximumextentpracticable,istoreducethedischarge
of sediment and other pollutants resulting from construction activities to the MS4 and waters of
the U.S. This chapter will also promote public and environmental welfare by guiding, regulating,
and controlling the design, construction, use, and maintenance of any development or other
activity that disturbs or breaks the topsoil or results in the movement of earth on land in the City
of North Pole.

15.66.020 Definitions
a(

Alaska Pollution Discharge Elimination System (APDES) Program: In 2008, the Stqte of Alaskn
applied to implement the NPDES Program. The EPA approved the application and agreed to
transfer program authority to the State over þur phases. The State's progrqm is called the
Alaska Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (APDES) Program and is administered by
ADEC. The initial phase transfewed in 2008 and included domestic discharges, log storage and
transfer facilities, seaþod processing facilities, and hatcheries. Phase II was completed in 2009
and included federal facilities, stormwater, wastewater pretreatment programs, and non-
domestic discharges. Phase was completed in 2010 to include mining activities. November I,
20I2 marked the completion of Phase IV and íncluded wastewater permítting for the oil and gas
industry, pesticides, munitions, and any other facilities that had not yet been transferued. New
(APDES) regulations were adopted at l8 AAC 83, along with subsequent amendments effective
October 23, 2008.

"Best management practices (BMPs)" means schedules of activities, prohibitions of practices,
maintenance procedures, and other management practices to prevent or reduce the pollution to
the MS4 and waters of the U.S. BMPs also include treatment practices, operating procedures,
and practices to control site runoff, spillage or leaks, sludge or water disposal, or drainage from
raw materials storage.

"Clean Water Act (CWA)" means the Federal Water Pollution Control Act (33 USC Section
l25l et seq.), and any subsequent amendments thereto.

"Construction activity''means activities including, but not limited to, clearing and grubbing,
grading, excavating, and demolition.

"Design cntena" means the design requirement that BMPs used during construction shall be
designed to handle the two-year, six-hour duration storm event without failure of the BMPs and
without any degradation to water quality of the receiving water.

"Fairbanks urbanized area" means the area of the Fairbanks North Star Borough delineated by
the U.S. Census Bureau consisting of contiguous, densely settled census block groups and census
blocks that meet minimum population density requirements, along with adjacent densely settled
census blocks that together encompass a population of fifty thousand people; as named by the
U.S. Census Bureau on May 1,2002 (67 FR 21962).

13



93
94
95

"Hazardots materials" means any material, including any substance, waste, or combination
thereof, which because of its quantity, concentration, or physical, chemical, biological, or
infectious characteristics may cause, or significantly contribute to, a substantial present or
potential hazard to human health, safety, property, or the environment when improperly treated,
stored, transported, disposed of, or otherwise managed.

"Maximum extent practicable"
Thedischargestandardthatusesbestavailabletechnology

and methods in order to reduce pollutants entering waters of the U.S. as established by CWA
Section a02@).

"Municipal separate storm sewer system (MS4)" means the conveyance or system of
conveyances (including roads with drainage systems, municipal streets, catch basins, curbs,
gutters, ditches, manmade channels, or storm drains):

A. Designed or used for collecting or conveying storm water;

B. Which is not a combined sewer;

C. Which is not part of a publicly owned treatment works; and

D. Which discharges to waters of the U.S.

"National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES)" means the national program for
issuing, modifying, revoking and reissuing, terminating, monitoring and enforcing permits, and
imposing and enforcing pretreatment requirements, under CWA Sections 307,318, 402, and 405

"Pollutant" means anything that causes or contributes to pollution including, but not limited to
dredged spoil, solid waste, sewage, garbage, sewage sludge, chemical wastes, biological
materials, heat, wrecked or discarded equipment, rock, sand, cellar dirt, and industrial or
municipal waste.

"Storm water" means any surface flow, runoff, and drainage consisting entirely of water from
any form of natural precipitation, and resulting from such precipitation, including ice and snow
melt runoff.

"Storm water pollution prevention plan" (SWPPP) means a document that describes the BMPs
and activities to be implemented by a person or business to identify sources of pollution or
contamination at a site, and the actions to eliminate or reduce pollutant discharges to storm
water, storm water conveyance systems, andlor receiving waters to the maximum extent
practicable.

I 5.66.030 Applicability
This chapter shall apply to all ground disturbances of one acre or greater within the urbanized
area of the City of NorthPoleþr development projects on"ri#a+cfrep€rty funded by the private

96
97
98
99

100
101

t02
103

r04
105

106
107
108
109
110
111

t12
113

rt4
115

TI6
It7
118
tt9
t20
127
122
t23
124
125
t26
r27
r28
129
130
131

132
133
134
135

136
137
138

T4



r39
t40
t4r
t42
r43
t44
145
146
t47
148
149
150
151

t52
153

154
r55
t56
r57
158
r59
160
t6l
t62
r63
164
165
r66
r67
168

t69
170
rll
t72
173
t74
17s
r76
177

178
179
180
181

182

sector, including private development where all or part of the project will be transferred to the
City of North Pole at a later date (i.e., roads and associated right-of-way within new
subdivisions).

I 5.66.040 Severability
The provisions of this chapter are hereby declared to be severable. If any provision, clause,
sentence, or paragraph of this chapter or the application thereof to any person, establishment, or
circumstances shall be held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect the other provisions or
application of this chapter.

1 5.66.050 Ultimate responsibility
The standards set forth herein and promulgated pursuant to this chapter are minimum standards;
therefore, this chapter does not intend nor imply that compliance by any person will ensure that
there will be no contamination, pollution, nor unauthorized discharge of pollutants.

15.66.060 Permit
No person shall be granted a residential or commercial building permit for construction activity
that will result in a ground disturbance of greater than or equal to one acre, or result in a ground
disturbance less than one acre but will be part of a larger common plan of development or sale
that will collectively disturb more than one acre, without the submission of a storm water
pollution prevention plan (SWPPP) meeting the requirements set forth in this chapter, and
approval by the City of North Pole.

An SWPPP is not required for the following activities:

A. Any emergency activity that is immediately necessary for the protection of life, property, or
natural resources.

B. Routine maintenance that is performed to maintain the original line and grade, hydraulíc
capacity, or origínal purpose of afacility.
B C. Existing nursery and agricultural operations conducted as a permitted main or accessory
use.

e D. Small construction activities (less than five acres) meeting the requirements for a rainfall
erosivity waiver, total maximum daily load waiver, equivalent analysis waiver, or other waiver
detailed in the most recently issued EPA construction general permit.

15.66.070 Review and approval
The City of North Pole will review each SWPPP to determine its conformance with the
provisions of this chapter. Within ten business days after receiving a SWPPP, the City of North
Pole shall, in writing:

A. Issue a letter of non-objection to the SWPPP;

l5



183

184
185

186
t87
188
189

190
19r
192
t93
r94
195
196
197
198

r99
200
201
202
203
204
205
206
207
208
209
2t0
2rl
212
213
214
2t5
2t6
217
2t8
21q
220
221

222
223
224
225
226
227
228

B. Issue a letter of non-objection to the SWPPP subject to such reasonable conditions as may
be necessary to secure substantially the objectives of this chapter, and issue the permit subject to
these conditions; or

C. Disapprove the SWPPP, indicating the reason(s) and procedure for submitting a revised
application andl or submission.

I 5.66.080 SWPPP requirements
The SWPPP shall, at a minimum, meet the following requirements:

A. Conformance to the most recently issued FP+NPDES ADEC APDES construction general
permit (CGP) and any existing permit stipulations.

B.
Preventien Plan Guifu

e B. Conformance to any additional standards adopted by the City of North Pole necessary to
ensure that construction site operators practice adequate erosion, sediment, and waste control.

ÐC.Bedevelopedbyacertifiedprofessiona1ineresiMstormwater
management or aprofessional engineer registered in the State of Alaska.

E D. Meet the design criteria that BMPs used during construction shall be designed to handle
the two-year, six-hour duration storm event without failure of the BMPs and without any
degradation to water quality of the receiving water.

F E. Include a copy of the notice of intent submitted to the W+ ADEC

G F. Include a signed statement that any land clearing, construction, or development involving
the movement of earth shall be in accordance with the SWPPP.

++ G. Include the name(s) and address(es) of the owner or developer of the site, and of any
consulting firm retained by the applicant together with the name of the applicant's principal
contact at such firm.

+ H. Include payment of the SWPPP plan review fee in the amount prescribed by the City of
North Pole.

+ I. Include payment of the construction site inspection fee in the amount prescribed by the City
of North Pole.

J. The SWPPP must be kept on-site and contain a record of the implementation of the SWPPP
and other permit requirements, including the installation and maintenance of BMPs, site
inspections, and stormwater monitoring.

15.66.090 Inspection

t6



229
230
231
232
233
234
235
236
237
238
239
240
241
242
243
244
245
246
247
248
249
250
251
252
253
254
255
256
257
258
259
260
26t
262
263
264
265
266
267
268
269
270
277
272
273
274

The City of North Pole will inspect each permitted construction site at least once per year.
Access to a construction site for inspection shall not be denied. In addition to other available
penalties, any permit issued under this chapter may be immediately suspended until an inspection
is conducted. If, during construction, the City of North Pole finds that BMPs are improperly
installed, not maintained, or inappropriate for proper erosion, sediment and waste control, any
permit issued under this chapter may be immediately suspended until the identified problem is
resolved.

15.66.100 Notification of spills
Notwithstanding other requirements of law, as soon as any person responsible for a facility or
operation, or responsible for emergency response for a facility or operation, has information of
any known or suspected release of materials which are resulting or may result in illegal
discharges or pollutants discharging into storm water, the storm drainage system, or waters of the
U.S., said person shall take all necessary steps to ensure the discovery, containment, and cleanup
of such release. In the event of such a release of hazardous materials, said person shall
immediately notify emergency response agencies of the occulrence via emergency dispatch
services. In the event of a release of nonhazardous materials, said person shall notif,i the City of
North Pole in person or by phone or facsimile no later than the next business day. Notifications
in person or by phone shall be confirmed by written notice addressed and mailed to the City of
North Pole within three business days of the phone notice. If the discharge of prohibited
materials emanates from a commercial or industrial establishment, the owner or operator of such
establishment shall also retain an on-site written record of the discharge and the actions taken to
prevent its recurrence. Such records shall be retained for at least three years.

15.66.110 Enforcement
No person shall construct, enlarge, alter, repair, or maintain any grading, excavation, or fill, or
cause the same to be done, contrary to or in violation of any terms of this chapter. Any person
violating any of the provisions of this chapter shall be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and each
day during which any violation of any of the provisions of this chapter is committed, continued,
or permitted shall constitute a separate offense. In addition to any other penalty authorized by
this section, any person, partnership, or corporation convicted of violating any of the provisions
of this chapter shall be required to bear the expense of such restoration.

In the event that any person holding a residential or commercial building permit pursuant to this
chapter violates the terms of the permit or implements site development in such a manner as to
materially adversely affect the health, welfare, or safety of persons residing or working in the
neighborhood or development site so as to be materially detrimental to the public welfare or
injurious to property or improvements in the neighborhood, the City of North Pole may issue a
notice of violation, suspend, or revoke the permit.

15.66.120 Notice of violation
Whenever the City of North Pole finds that aperson has violated a prohibition or failed to meet a
requirement of this chapter, the City of North Pole may order compliance by written notice of
violation to the responsible person. Such notice may require without limitation:

A. The performance of monitoring, analyses, and reporting;

T7



27s
276
277
278
279
280
281
282
283
284
285
286
287
288
289
290
291
292
293
294
295
296
297
298
299
300
301

302
303
304
30s
306
307
308
309
310
3ll
3t2
313
314
315
3t6
3t7
318
319
320

B. The elimination of construction storm water discharges, illicit connections or discharges;

C. That violating discharges, practices, or operations shall cease and desist;

D. The abatement or remediation of storm water pollution or contamination hazards and the
restoration ofany affected property; and

E. Payment of a fine to cover administrative and remediation costs; and

F. The implementation of source control or treatment BMPs.

If abatement of a violation and/or restoration of affected property is required, the notice shall set
forth a deadline within which such remediation or restoration must be completed. Said notice
shall further advise that, should the violator fail to remediate or restore affected property within
the established deadline, the work will be done by a designated governmental agency or a
contractor and the expense thereof shall be charged to the violator.

15.66.130 Appeal of notice of violation
Any person receiving a notice of violation may appeal the determination of the City of North
Pole. The notice of appeal must be received within thirty days from the date of the notice of
violation. Hearing on the appeal before the appropriate authority or hislher designee shall take
place within fifteen days from the date of receipt of the notice of appeal. The decision of the City
of North Pole or its designee shall be final.

15.66.140 Enforcement measures after appeal
If the violation has not been corrected pursuant to the requirements set forth in the notice of
violation, or, in the event of an appeal, within thirty days of a decision by the City of North Pole,
then the City of North Pole shall enter upon the subject private property, and is authorized to take
any and all measures necessary to abate the violation and/or restore the property. It shall be
unlawful for any person, owner, agent or person in possession of any premises to refuse to allow
the City of North Pole or designated contractor to enter upon the premises for the purposes set
forth above.

15.66.150 Cost of abatement of the violation
Within ninety days after abatement of the violation, the owner of the property will be notified of
the cost of abate.ment, inclucling administrative costs. The property owner may file a written
protest to the City of North Pole objecting to the amount of the assessment within fourteen days.
If the amount due is not paid within a timely manner as determined by the decision of the City of
North Pole or by the expiration of the time in which to file an appeal, the charges shall become a
special assessment against the property and shall constitute a lien on the property for the amount
of the assessment. Any person violating any of the provisions of this chapter shall become liable
to the City of North Pole by reason of such violation. Interest as allowable by law shall be
assessed on the balance beginning on the ninety-first day following discovery of the violation.

1 5.66. I 60 Injunctive relief

18



32r
322
323
324
325
326
327
328
329
330
331

332
JJJ

334
335
336
337
338
339
340
341
342
343
344
345
346
347
348
349
350

It shall be unlawful for any person to violate any provision or fail to comply with any of the
requirements of this chapter. If a person has violated or continues to violate the provisions of this
chapter, the City of North Pole may petition for a preliminary or permanent injunction
restraining the person from activities that would create further violations, or compelling the
person to perform abatement or remediation of the violation.

15.66.17 0 Compensatory action
In lieu of enforcement proceedings, penalties, and remedies authorized by this chapter, the City
of North Pole may impose upon a violator alternative compensatory actions, such as storm drain
stenciling, attendance at compliance workshops, stream cleanup, etc.

15.66.180 Violations deemed a public nuisance
In addition to the enforcement processes and penalties provided, any condition caused or
permitted to exist in violation of any of the provisions of this chapter is a threat to public health,
safety, and welfare, and is declared and deemed a nuisance, and may be summarily abated or
restored at the violator's expense, andlor a civil action to abate may be taken to enjoin or
otherwise compel the cessation of such nuisance.

1 5.66. I 90 Criminal prosecution
Any person that has violated or continues to violate this chapter shall be liable to criminal
prosecution to the fullest extent of the law, and shall be subject to criminal penalties and/or
imprisonment.

The City of North Pole may recover all attorney's fees, court costs, and other expenses
associated with enforcement of this chapter, including sampling and monitoring expenses.

15.66.200 Remedies not exclusive
The remedies listed in this chapter are not exclusive of any other remedies available under any
applicable Federal, State or local law, and it is within the discretion of the City of North Pole to
seek cumulative remedies.

t9



Chapter 15.74
POST-CONSTRUCTION STORM WATER MANAGEMENT

Sections:
15.74.010 Introduction - Purpose.
15.74.020 Definitions.
15.74.030 Applicability.
15.74.040 Responsibility for administration.
15.74.050 Severability.
15.74.060 Ultimate responsibility.
15.74.070 Permit.
15.74.080 PSWCP requirements.
15.74.090 Notification of spills.
15.74.100 Enforcement.
15.74.110 Appeal of notice of violation.
I5.74.I20 Enforcement measures after appeal.
15.74.I30 Cost of abatement of the violation.
15.74.140 þunctive relief.
15.74.150 Compensatory action.
15.74.160 Violations deemed a public nuisance.
15.74.I70 Criminal prosecution.
15.74.180 Remedies not exclusive.
I 5.7 4.010 lntroduction - Purpose.

Land development and redevelopment projects and associated increases in impervious cover
alter the hydrologic response of local watersheds and increase storm water runoff rates and
volumes, flooding, stream channel erosion, and sediment transport and deposition. This can be
controlled and minimized through the regulation of project design in consideration of post-
development storm water runoff quantity and quality.

The City of Fairbanks, City of North Pole, University of Alaska Fairbanks, and Alaska
Department of Transportation and Public Facilities - Northern Region collectively received a
Phase II National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) Permit (Permit) from the
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) on June I,2005, to discharge from all municipal
separate storm sewer systems (MSas) into receiving waters, which includes Beaver Springs,
Chena River, Chena Slough, Noyes Slough, and other associated waters of the U.S. The-Phase{I
NPDES Permit requires the aforementioned agencies to develop, implement, and enforce a
program to address post-construction storm water runoff from new development and
redevelopment projects within the Fairbanks Urbanized Area. Therefore, the purpose of this
chapter is to empower the City of North Pole to meet the requirements of the Phase-+I-NPDES
Permit within the Urbanized Area of the City of North Pole, as mandated by the EPA. The
Alaska Department of Environmental Conservation (ADEC) assumed authority over the Permit
in October 2009 under the Alaska Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (APDES) program.
The original Permit conditions remain in ffict. This chapter will also promote public and
environmental welfare by guiding, regulating, and controlling the design, construction, use, and

20



maintenance of any development or other activity that disturbs or breaks the topsoil or results in
the movement of earth on land in the City of North Pole. (Ord. 09-10 g 2, 2009)

15.74.020 Definitions

Alaska Pollution Discharge Elimination System (APDES) Program: In 2008, the State of Alaskn
applied to implement the NPDES Program. EPA approved the application and agreed to transfer
program authority to the State overþur phases. The State's program is called the Alaska Pollutant
Discharge Elimination System (APDES) Program and is administered by ADEC. The initial phase
transferred in 2008 and included domestic discharges, log storage and transferfacilíties, seafood
processing focilities, and hatcheries. Phase II was completed in 2009 and included federal
facilities, stormwater, wastewater pretreatment programs, and non-domestic discharges. Phase
III wqs completed in 2010 to include mining activities. November I, 2012 marked the completion
of Phase IV and included wastewater permittingþr the oil and gas industry, pesticides, munitions,
and any otherfacilitíes that had not yet been transferced. New (APDES) regulations were adopted
at 18 AAC 83, along with subsequent amendments effective October 23, 2008.

"Best management practices (BMPs)" means schedules of activities, prohibitions of practices,
maintenance procedures, and other management practices to prevent or reduce the pollution to
the MS4 and waters of the U.S. BMPs also include treatment practices, operating procedures,
and practices to control site runoff, spillage or leaks, sludge or water disposal, or drainage from
raw materials storage.

"Clean Water Act" (CWA) means the Federal Vy'ater Pollution Control Act (33 USC Section
l25l et seq.), and any subsequent amendments thereto.

"Construction activity" means activities including, but not limited to, clearing and grubbing,
grading, excavating, and demolition.

"Design criteria" means the design requirement for (1) runoff volume that post-development
peak runoff shall be limited to five percent over predevelopment peak runoff based on the tcn-
year, one-hour duration storm cvent; and (2) runoff quality that permanerrt BMPs shall be
designed to treat the initial one-half inch of runoff from each storm event, and provide treatment
at a minimum of 0.005 inch per minute after the first flush storm event.

"Fairbanks urbanized area" means the area of the Fairbanks North Star Borough delineated by
the U.S. Census Bureau consisting of contiguous, densely settled census block groups and census
blocks that meet minimum population density requirements, along with adjacent densely settled
census blocks that together encompass a population of fifty thousand people; as named by the
U.S. Census Bureau on May 1,2002 (67 FR 21962).

"Hazatdous materials" means any material, including any substance, waste, or combination
thereof, which because of its quantity, concentration, or physical, chemical, biological, or
infectious characteristics may cause, or significantly contribute to, a substantial present or
potential hazard to human health, safety, property, or the environment when improperly treated,
stored, transported, disposed of, or otherwise managed.

2T



92
93
94

"Maintenance agreement" mearìs a signed statement that the owner of the site will operate,
maintain,andlorscheduleallpermanentBMP(s)inaccordancewiththeffi
@ permanent storm water control plan.

"Maximum extent practicable" The discharge standard that uses best available technology and
methods in order to reduce pollutants enteríngwaters of the U.S. as estqblished by CWA $
a02(p).

"Municipal separate storm sewer system (MS4)" means the conveyance or system of
conveyances (including roads with drainage systems, municipal streets, catch basins, curbs,
gutters, ditches, manmade channels, or storm drains): (A) designed or used for collecting or
conveying storm water; (B) which is not a combined sewer; (C) which is not part of a publicly
owned treatment works; and (D) which discharges to waters of the U.S.

"National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES)" means the national program for
issuing, modiÛring, revoking and reissuing, terminating, monitoring and enforcing permits, and
imposing and enforcing pretreatment requirements, under CWA Sections 307,3I8, 402, and 405.

"Permanent storm water control plan (PSWCP)" means a document that describes the specific
BMPs, and maintenance therein, to be incorporated into the project design to eliminate or reduce
pollutant discharges to storm water, storm water conveyance systems, andlor receiving waters to
the maximum extent practicable for construction activity that will result in a ground disturbance
ofgreater than or equal to one acre.

"Pollutant" means anything that causes or contributes to pollution including, but not limited to:
dredged spoil, solid waste, sewage, garbage, sewage sludge, chemical wastes, biological
materials, heat, wrecked or discarded equipment, rock, sand, cellar dirt, and industrial or
municipal waste.

"Storm water" means any surface flow, runoff, and drainage consisting entirely of water from
any form of natural precipitation, and resulting from such precipitation, including ice and snow
melt runoff. (Ord. 09-10 ç 2,2009)

I 5 .7 4.03 0 Applicability.
This chapter shall apply to all ground disturbances ef ntaling one acre or great.er on a common
parcel within the urbanized area of the City of NorthPoleþr development projects funded by the
private sector, including private development where all or part of the project will be transferred
to the City of North Pole at a later date (i.e. roads and associated right-of-way within new
subdivisions).

95
96
97
98
99

r00
101

t02
103
104
105
106
t07
108
109
110
llt
tt2
113
rt4
115
116
tt7
118
It9
t20
l2l
122
t23
t24
125
t26
r27
r28
129
130
l3l
t32
133
134
135
136 | 5.7 4.040 Responsibility for administration.

22



r37
138
139
t40
r47
r42
143
144
t45
r46
147
148
r49
150
151

r52
153

154
155
t56
t57
158

159
160
161

r62
r63
164
165
166
t67
168

r69
170
t7t
t72
t73
174
175
176
t77
178
179
180
18r

The City of North Pole shall administer, implement, and enforce the provisions of this chapter.
(Ord. 09-10 $ 2,2009)

15.7 4.050 Severability.
The provisions ofthis chapter are hereby declared to be severable. Ifany provision, clause,
sentence, or paragraph of this chapter or the application thereof to any person, establishment, or
circumstances shall be held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect the other provisions or
application of this chapter. (Ord. 09-10 $ 2, 2009)

I 5.7 4.060 Ultimate responsibility.
The standards set forth herein and promulgated pursuant to this chapter are minimum standards;
therefore, this chapter does not intend nor imply that compliance by any person will ensure that
there will be no contamination, pollution, nor unauthorized discharge of pollutants. (Ord. 09-10 $
2,2009)

15.14.070 Permit.
A. No person shall be granted a residential or commercial building permit for construction
activity that will result in a ground disturbance of greater than or equal to one acre, or result in a
ground disturbance less than one acre but will be part of a larger common plan of development
or sale that will collectively disturb more than one acre, without the submission of a permanent
storm water control plan (PSWCP) meeting the requirements set forth in this chapter, and
approval by the City of North Pole.

B. Review and Approval. The City of North Pole will review each PSV/CP to determine its
conformance with the provisions of this chapter. Within ten business days after receiving a
PSWCP, the City of North Pole shall, in writing:

l. Issue a letter of nonobjection to the PSWCP;

2. Issue a letter of nonobjection to the PSWCP subject to such reasonable conditions as may be
necessary to secure substantially the objectives of this chapter, and issue the permit subject to
these conditions; or

3. Disapprove the PSWCP, indicating the reason(s) and procedure for submitting a revised
application andl or submission. (Ord. 09- 1 0 ç 2, 2009)

1 5.74.080 PSWCP requirements,
The PSV/CP shall be developed by a certified professional in erosion and sediment control or a
professional engineer registered in the State of Alaska, and at a minimum include the following:

A. BMP Selection Narrative.

1. Site Description. Provide a description of the property boundary, construction site boundary
(area of disturbance), existing soil conditions, and approximate depth to ground water.

23



r82
183

184
185

186
t87
188

189
190
191

192
193
t94
195
r96
r97
198

199
200
20r
202
203
204
205
206
207
208
209
210
2tl
2t2
2t3
214
215
216
2t7
?,18

219
220
221
222
223
224
225
226
227

2. Site Conditions. Include a summary of pre- and post-developed site conditions including
existing and proposed land use, amount of impervious area existing and proposed, drainage
patterns to and from the site, and any known historical drainage problems such as flooding
andlor erosion.

3. Receiving Waters. Include the name and approximate distance (to the nearest one hundred
feet) of all receiving waters, including wetlands as defined by the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers,
where storm water will discharge. If the storm water discharges to the MS4 (i.e., roads with
drainage systems, municipal streets, catch basins, curbs, gutters, ditches, manmade channels, or
storm drains), identify the point of discharge to the MS4 and the receiving water to which the
MS4 outfalls.

4. Pollutant Sources. Include a description of all potential pollutant sources from the proposed
land use, which may add pollutants to storm water discharges.

5. BMP Selection. Identiff all permanent structural and nonstructural BMPs selected and
incorporated into the project design to eliminate or reduce pollutant discharges to storm water,
storm water conveyance systems, andlor receiving waters to the maximum extent practicable.
For each BMP, also include a description of the methodology used to size and locate each BMP

6. Operation and Maintenance Procedures. Include a description of all operation and
maintenance procedures for each BMP to be installed on site.

B. Site Plan.

1. Site Characteristics. Include the property boundary, construction site boundary, names of all
adjacent streets or roadways, north arrow, and scale bar.

2. Construction Plan. Include the location of all planned excavation and fill activities, existing
and proposed buildings, surfaced areas, and utility installations.

3. Drainage Patterns. Include approximate slopes (to the nearest percent) and direction of
slopes (i.e., flow direction arrows) for both pre- and post-development for all surfaces, ditches,
and culverts.

4. Receiving Vy'aters. Identify all surface waters and wetlands within one mile of the
constnrcfion site, inclucling the location where storm wate.r will clischarge to the receiving waters
If the storm water discharges to the MS4, identify the point of discharge to the MS4.

5. Permanent Storm Water Controls. Identify the location of all permanent structural BMPs to
be installed on site, as well as all areas where nonstructural BMPs will be implemented.

C. Sizing and Design Information

1. Include calculations, manufacturers' guidance, or other process decisions showing how all
permanent structural BMPs were sized and designed, and their performance goals. At a

24



228
229
230
231
232
233
234
235
236
237
238
239
240
24t
242
243
244
245
246
247
248
249
250
251
252
253
254
255
256
257
258
259
260
26r
262
263
264
26s
266
267
268
269
270
27r
212
273

minimum, the project must meet the design requirement for (1) runoff volume that post-
development peak runoff shall be limited to five percent over predevelopment peak runoff based
on the ten-year, one-hour duration storm event; and (2) runoff quality that permanent BMPs shall
be designed to treat the initial 0.5 inch of runoff from each storm event, and provide treatment at
aminimum of 0.005 inchperminute afterthe first flush storm event.

D. A signed statement that the owner of the site will operate, maintain, andlor schedule all
permanent BMP(s) in accordance with the PSWCP.

E. Payment of the PSV/CP plan review fee in the amount prescribed by the City of North Pole.
(Ord. 09-10 ç 2,2009)

15.74.090 Notification of spills.
Notwithstanding other requirements of law, as soon as any person responsible for a facility or
operation, or responsible for emergency response for a facility or operation has information of
any known or suspected release of materials that are resulting or may result in illegal discharges
or pollutants discharging into storm water, the storm drainage system, or waters of the U.S., said
person shall take all necessary steps to ensure the discovery, containment, and cleanup of such
release. In the event of such a release of hazardous materials, said person shall immediately
notify emergency response agencies of the occuffence via emergency dispatch services. In the
event of a release of nonhazardous materials, said person shall notiS' the City of North Pole in
person or by phone or facsimile no later than the next business day. Notifications in person or by
phone shall be confirmed by written notice addressed and mailed to the City of North Pole within
three business days of the phone notice. If the discharge of prohibited materials emanates from a
commercial or industrial establishment, the owner or operator of such establishment shall also
retain an on-site written record of the discharge and the actions taken to prevent its recurrence.
Such records shall be retained for at least three years. (Ord. 09-10 ç 2,2009)

I 5 .7 4.1 00 Enforcement.
A. No person shall construct, enlarge, alter, repair, or maintain any grading, excavation, or fill,
or cause the same to be done, contrary to or in violation of any terms of this chapter. Any person
violating any of the provisions of this chapter shall be deemed gurlty of a misdemeanor and each
day during which any violation of any of the provisions of this chapter is committed, continued,
or permitted, shall constitute a separate offense. In addition to any other penalty authonzed by
this section, any person, partnership, or corporation convicted of violating any of the provisions
of this chapter shall be required to bear the expense of such restoration.

B. In the event that any person holding a residential or commercial building permit pursuant to
this chapter violates the terms of the permit or implements site development in such a manner as
to materially adversely affect the health, welfare, or safety of persons residing or working in the
neighborhood or development site so as to be materially detrimental to the public welfare or
injurious to property or improvements in the neighborhood, the City of North Pole may issue a
notice of violation, suspend, or revoke the permit.

C. Notice of Violation. Whenever the City of North Pole finds that a person has violated a
prohibition or failed to meet a requirement of this chapter, the City of North Pole may order

25



L

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

Sponsored by: Mayor Bryce J. V/ard
Introduced }i4ay I5,20I7

Possible adoption June 5,2017

ORDINANCE I7-I4

AN ORDINANCE TO INCUR $303,000 DEBT FROM A LOW-INTEREST ALASKA
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL CONSERVATION (ADEC) LOAN F'OR THE

PURPOSE OF'CONSTRUCTING AN EXTENSION TO THE WASTEWATER
TREATMENT PLANT DISCHARGE SE\ilER MAIN IN RESPONSE TO AN ADEC

NOTICE OF VIOLATION

\üHEREAS, the City of North Pole created its utility system to provide residents with the
sanitation, protection and convenience afforded by a municipal utility system and to promote an
improved community environment; and

WHEREAS, the Utility has a permit from the Alaska Department of Environmental
Conservation (ADEC) allowing the Utility to discharge treated wastewater to the Tanana River;
and

\MHEREAS, the wastewater treatment plant discharges treated wastewater to the Tanana River
via a discharge sewer main; and

\ryHEREAS, the discharge of treated wastewater to the Tanana River is the last step in the
wastewater treatment process where river water dilutes the treated wastewater in a mixing zorLe;
and

\üHEREAS, periodically starting in October 2012 the river channel where the Utility
discharges treated wastewater there has been a loss of surface water flow; and

WHEREAS, the loss of surface river flow in the discharge channel results in the loss of the
Utility's mixing zone; and

WHEREAS, lack of a mixing zone is a violation of the Utility's wastewater discharge permit;
and

WHEREAS, in November 201{ the ADEC issued the Utility a Notice of Violation (NOV) of
the Utility's wastewater discharge permit for the lack of a mixing zone; and

\ilHEREAS, the Utility received an engineering estimate that it would cost approximately $4
million to construct in2020 an extension to the discharge sewer main to an active channel of the
Tanana River to bring the Utility back in compliance with its ADEC wastewater discharge
permit; and

WHEREAS, the Utility submitted a request to the ADEC for a $2 million loan to help finance
the design, permitting, construction and construction management of the extension to the
discharge sewer main; and

WHEREAS, the Utility has existing capital charges levied on all utility rate payers that generate

10

L!
L2

r-3

L4

1_5

L6

L7

18

1_9

20
2L

22

23

24

25
26

27
28

29

30
31

32

33

34
35

36

37

38

39
40
4L

42

43
44
45

t



46
47
48
49
50
5L
52

53

54
55

56
57

58

59

60

6L
62
63

64

65
66

67
68

69
70
7t
72

Sponsored by: Mayor Bryce J. V/ard
Introduced l|i4ay 15,2017

Possible adoption Jvne 5,2017

sufficient revenues to repay the loan over its 2}-year life; and

WHEREAS, the extension of the sewer outfall main is still in the design and permitting stage
and the original $2 million ACWF loan application included construction activities, that
therefore the ADEC is unable to offer the City the full $2 million at this time, but has offered the
City an installment of $303,000 to assist the City with design and permitting costs; and

WHEREAS, the ADEC is prepared to issue the City the balance of the ACÌWF loan totaling
S1,697,000 after the sewer outfall main design is complete;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the North Pole City Council approves
acceptance of ACWF #633012 for $303,000 to assist the City with design and permitting costs
for the sewer outfall main project.

PASSED AND FORWARDED by a duly constituted quorum of the North Pole City Council
this 5ft day ofJune 2017.

Bryce J. Ward, Mayor

ATTEST:

Kathryn M. Weber, MMC
North Pole City Council

PASSED/FATLED

Yes:

No:
Absent:

2



City of North Pole, Alaska

Fiscal Note

Fiscal Year: 2017 ordinance#: 17'14

Abbreviared ri'e: ACWF #633021 $303,000 loan

Originator/ Sponso r Namew¡lliam Butler Dare: May 9,2017

Yes ø NoDoes the Ordinance Have a multiyear fiscal impact?

Does the Ordinance add positions beyond the Budget? Yes No

If yes, how many position? If yes, what type of Position?
F- Full Time, P- Part time, T- Temporary

Financial Detail

SUMMARY: (Briefly describe the proposed alterations to the budget and why
they are needed)

The extension of the sewer outfall main is still in the design and permitting stage and the
original $2 million ACWF loan application included construction activities, that limits what
the ADEC can offer. The ADEC has offered the City an installment of $303,000 to assist
the City with design and permitting costs with the balance available when ready for
construction.

Prepared by: IÐúMÔM Date: 5t9t2017

Date: S'7¿?City Accountant App

FUND Account Description Account Number Debits Credits
43 ACWF #633021 Mixing Zone 43-03-9-902 303,000

43 ACWF #633021 Mixing Zone 43-00-2-300 303,000

NOTE- Fiscal Notes are amendments to the budget, once approved



'/ALASKA
T'HE, SI'/|:I'E

(jovnnr.¡on Bllt \lhlrct n

Department of Environmental
Conservation

DIVISION OF WATER

RECEIVED
MAY l - 20ll

CITYOF NORTH POLE

Posf Office Box I I 1800
Juneou, Alosko 9981 l-1800

Mqin: 907,4ó5.5300
Fox:907.4ó5.5177

www.dec.olosko.gov

Apnl26,2077

Mr.I7illi¿m H. Butler
Dkectot of City Sewices
City of North Pole
125- Snowman Lane
North Pole, AI( 99705

Re: Loan A,gteement fot !?astewater Effluent Discharge Phase I - Desþ Only (ACWF # 633021)

Dear Mr. Butlet:

e amount of $303,000 for the desþ portion of
aska Clean SØarer Fund Loan # 633021). Of
r disadvantaged community assistance. The

oth desþ and construction. Once the project is
desþed and a construction estimate supporting the full lãan amount is. provided to the
Departrnent, an increase request for the consttuction potÈion can be submitted. The remaining
ptoposed subsidy amor¡nt of $339,400 is expected to be offered at that timc.

In addition to the tequfuements of the loan agreement, the following tecomrnendations'were made
based on the financial capzcity review completed by the Department's contractor:

(a) Debt Sewice Reserve Fund. The Botrower should establish a debt service reserve fund to
hold one ñfl yeat of debt setvice pâyments.
(b) ,{nnual CAFR Review. The Departrnent should conduct a review of the Borrower,s annual
comptehensive annual ûnancial report (CAFR).

Ytitrc item (a) is a tecommendation, the Department strongly suggests that the City take steps to
implement it. No action is tequired by the City in r"fer"ncJó i,"- Ol, The Depar'tment will review
a copy of the utility's CAFR provided by the stare's Division of Finance.

Please retuffi the sþed original loan offer to the following address:

,{laska Departrnent of Envfuonmental Conservation
Division of nØater, Municþal Matching Grants & Loans progtam
Attn: MAT
P.O. Box 1i1800
410 Willoughby Avenue, Suitc 303



City of North Pole
AC'ù(/F # 633021
Loan Agreement

Upon teceþt of the sþed odginal loan offer, the Depattrnent will route the document fot final
sþattrre' A copy of the complete document will be e-mailed to you for yoqr tecotds.

I{y"" have xly questionsterydmg the loan agreement you may contact CaneBohan, progtam
Managet, at 465-5743 or Beth Venelli, ptoject Engineet, 

^t269_7603

Juneau,AK 99811-1800

Sincerely

Michelle Hale
Director

Enclosute: ACWF # 633021Loan Agreement

Page 2 of 2



ALASKA CLEAN WATER FUND AGREEMENT

ADEC LOAIY NUMBER 633021
City of North Pole

Wastewater Eflluent Dlscharge Pha¡e I - Design Only

This agreement is entered into as of April 26, 2Ol7 , by the Alaska Department of
Environmental Conservation (the Department) and the City of North Pole (the
Borrower), acting pursuant to Resolution 16-05 approved by the City of North
Pole, for a loan amount of $SOS,O0O with a term of 20 years for design only of the
North Pole Wastewater Treatment Facility. Of this total amount, $60,600 is
offered as a funding subsidy for disadvantaged assistance.

SECTION I - DEFINITIONS

Scction 1.1. Except where the context clearly indicates othenvise, terms used in
this Agreement will have the meaning ascribed to them in this section.

(a) "Approved Application" means the application submitted to the
Department on July 12,2016 together with all attachments and supporting
documentation, as approved by the Department and the Borrower.

(b) "Finance Charge Rate" means 1.5 percent per annum.

(c) nContract periodo means the time period commencing on the date this
âgreement is signed by the Borrower and terminating on the date the Borrower
repays the loan in full.

(d) "Funding Subsidy''means principal forgiveness amount awarded
under this agreement.

(e) "Default" means the Borrower has failed to make a loan repayment
within 90 days of the due date, as determined by the repayment schedule
prepared by the Department immediately following initiation of operation of the
facility.

(Ð "Eligible Project Costs" include the following costs disbursed from
the Alaska Clean Water Fund, estimated to not exceed $gOg,OOO; engineering for
the project facility; surveys, planning, estimates, and preliminary design;
financial and environmental investigations; laboratory testing, legal expenses;
and any other necessary miscellaneous expenditures, minus the amount of any
grant applicable foregoing costs.



Oi-ty af' t'Joi'ii l ít¿:l<.:

/\,{)\¡d 1,' li t¡'.' t30li, 1

l,o¡¿ i: .it¿ti'lelr:t;i r I

(s) "Participation Payment" means the amount per year necessary to
amortize the loan.

(h) "Project Facility''means the facility to be designed pursuant to
this Agreement as described generally in the Approved Application dated
JuLy 12, 2016. This project will design an agreed upon alternative to address the
Alaska Department of Environmental Consen¡ation Notice of Violation for failure
to comply with the conditions of the Alaska Pollutant Discharge Elimination
System (APDES) Permit No. AKOO2L393 for the North Pole Wastewater Treatment
Facility.

SECTION II . RIGHÎS OF ACCESS

Sectlon 2.1. The Department has the right at all reasonable times to enter the
project site, for the purpose of inspecting the facility.

SECTIOIY III - ACQUISITTON OF PROJECT SITE, LOAN DISBURSEMENI, ANn
PAYMENT OF COSÎS

Section 3.1. Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, the eligible
project costs less other funding sources wilt be distributed by the Department
upon submittal and departmental approval of invoices.

Section 3.2. If this project finishes under the estimated cost, it will be funded
only as necessary to complete the project.

Soction 3.3. In connection with the design of the project facility, the Borrower
agrees that:

(a) The Borrower under the Federal Water Pollution Control Act section
602(bX13), must certiff that they have conducted studies and evaluations for
determining the cost and effectiveness of the project. The cost and effectiveness
analysis at minimum requires:

(i) the study and evaluation of the cost and effectiveness of the
processes, materials, techniques, and technologies for carrying out the proposed
project or activity for which assistance is sought under this title; and

(iÐ the selection, to the ma<imum extent practicable, of a project or
activity that maximizes the potential for efficient water use, reuse, recapture, and
conservation, and energr conservation, taking into account: the cost of
constructing the project or activit5r; the cost of operating and maintaining the



L',ity o1 l\i;r'i"ir licli:
l\(li.hi ir ll ( :t!:)îJÐ',ì, l

l,u;ì i: /\¡;l r:r.tiirrrn i

project or activity over the life of the project or activit5r; and, the cost of replacing
the project or activity.

Certification must be provided by the Borrower before proceeding with final
design or construction. The Borrower must use the certification form supplied by
the Department to ensure compliance with this requirement.

(b) When applicable, Borrower's contracting for all architectural and
engineering (A/E) services after October I, 2OI4 must comply with the elements
of the procurement processes for A/E services as identified in 40 U.S.C. 1101.

Requirements under 40 U.S.C. 1101 are as follows:

(i)

Qualifications);
Public announcement of the solicitation (e.g., a Request for

(iÐ Evaluation and ranking of the submitted qualifications
statements based on established, publicly available criteria (e.g., identified in the
solicitation), Evaluation criteria should be based on demonstrated competence
and qualification for the type of professional services required (e.g., past
performance, speciaiiz.ed experience, and technical competence in the type of
work required);

(iiÐ Discussion with at least three firms to consider anticipated
concepts and compare alternative methods for furnishing services;

(iv) Selection of at least three firms considered to be the most
highly qualified to provide the services required; and

(v) Contract negotiation with the most highly quatified firm to
determine compensation that is fair and reasonable based on a clear
understanding of the project scope, complexity, professional nature, and the
estimated value of the services to be rendered. In the event that a contract cannot
be negotiated with the most highly qualifiecl firm, negotiation continues in order
of qualification.

section 3.4. The Borrower agrees to administer this loan in a non-
discriminatory manner. No person shall be discriminated against based on race,
religion, color, national origin, gender or disability. In addition, all contracts
issuçd by the Borrower under this loan agreement must include the following
statement:



City of l{ot'th Folr:
ACWI.' # 633A21
Lo¿rn Agreeu:enl.

"The contractor shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin
or sex in the performance of this contract. The contractor shall carry out
applicable requirements of 40 CFR Part 33 in tfie award and administration of
contracts awarded under EPA financial assistance agreements. Failure by the
contractor to carry out these requirements is a material breach of this contract
which may result in the termination of this contract or other legalty available
remedies."

Section 3.5. When applicable, the Borrower will comply with Title I-Employment
of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (P.L. 101-336) and in accordance
with Title I of that Act, shall not discriminate against a qualified individual with a
disability because of the disability of such individual in regard to job application
procedures, the hiring, advancement, or discharge of employees, employee
compensation, job training, and other terms, conditions, and privileges of
employment.

Sectio¡ 3.6. When applicable, the Borrower will comply with Title ll-public
Services of the Americans with Disabilities Act of l99O (P.L. 101-336) and in
accordance with Title II of the Act, no qualified individual with a disability shall,
by reason of such disability, be excluded from participation in or be denied the
benefits of the services, programs, or activities of a public entity, or be subjected
to discrimination by any such entity.

Section. 3.7. When applicable, the Borrower will comply with Title II, part 35,
section 35.151 of the Act "New construction and Alterations,"

(a) Design and construction: Each facility or part of a facility constructed
by, on behalf of, or for the use of a public entity shall be designed and
constructed in such manner that the facility or part of the facility is readily
accessible to and usable by individuals with disabilities, if the construction was
commenced after January 26, L992.

(b) Alteration: Each facility or part of a facility altered by, on behalf, of or
for the use of a public entity in a manner that affects or could affect the usability
of the facility or part of the facility shall, to the mærimum extent feasible, be
altered in such manner that the altered portion of the facility is readily accessible
to and usable by individuals with disabilities, if the alteration was commenced
after Januar5r 26, 1992.

(c) Accessibility standards: Design, construction or alteration of facilities
in conformance with the Uniform Federal Accessibility Standards (UFAS)
(Appendix A to 41 CRF part 101-19.6) or with the Americans with Disabilities Act



{.)i t.'y' ol Nr.¡riir 1:'c¡Jrr

,r\(iV/i ' Íl (si'¡i:)t)'),1

tr .,|;t:i f t. tt.{t,\ '{':t,::tf'.¡t t Li,

Acc-essibility Guidelines for Buitdings and Facilities (ADAAG) (Appendix A to 28
CFR Part 36) shall be deemed to comply with the requirements of this section
with respect to those facilities, except that the elevator exemption contained at
section 4.1.3(5) and section 4.1.5(1)tj) of ADAAG shall not apply.

Section 3.E. When applicable, the Borrower will comply with Title III, part 36,
Section 36.401 of the Act "New Construction." Except as provided in paragraph
(b) and (c) of the Act, discrimination for purposes of this part includes a failure to
design and construct facilities for first occupancy after January 26,1990, that
are readily accessible to and usable by individuals with disabilities.

Scctlon 3.9. When applicable, the Borrower will comply with Title III, Part 36,
Section 36.402 of the Act "Alterations."

(a) General: Any alteration to a place of public accommodation or a
commercial facility, after January 26, 1992, shall be made so as to ensure that,
to the maximum extent feasible, the altered portions of the facility are readily
accessible to and usable by individuals with disabilities, including individuals
who use wheelchairs.

(b) Alteration: An alteration is a change to a place of public
accommodation or a commercial facility that affects or could affect the usability of
the building or facility or any part thereof.

Section 3.1O. The Borrower shall fully comply with Subpart C of 40 CFR part
32, entitled "Responsibilities of Participants Regarding Transactions." The
Borrower is responsible for ensuring that any lower tier covered transaction, as
described in Subpart B of 40 CFR Part 32, entitled "Covered Transactions,"
includes a term or condition requiring compliance with Subpart C. The Borrower
is responsible for further requiring the inclusion of a similar term or condition in
any subsequent lower tier covered transactions. The Borrower acknowledges that
failing to disclose the information required under 40 CFR 32.335 may result in
the delay or negation of this assistance agreement, or pursuance of legal
remedies, including suspension and debarment.

Sectlon 3.11. The Borrower will comply with the disadvantaged business
enterprise requirements of the State Revolving Loan Fund program, and will
require its contractors to also meet these requirements.

Sectlo¡ 3.12. Upon completion of the Project, the Borrower shall provide a
statement to the Department of the project final costs by category of expenditure,
including but not limited to costs for administration and design.



(lily lÍ' N¡rr"1Jr iur¡i<-r

h{:W|," f} 6il3,r,}? I

l,<lan A¡l,roenreuI

SECTION TV - PARTICIPATTON PAYMENTS BY THE BORROWER

Section 4.1. This loan is made to the Borrower from the Alaska Clean Water
Fund for the mærimum amount of $303,000. Of this total amount, no more than
2OVo of the total amount of funds disbursed is offered to the Borrower as a
funding subsidy (as principal forgiveness) up to and not to exceed amount of
$OO,OOO for disadvantaged assistance. By no later than one year from the date of
this agreement, the Borrower must submit disbursement requests equal to
$903,000 in order to receive the fu[y subsidized amount of $oo,ooo.

Sectlon 4.2. The Borrower agrees to repay the principal amount and the finance
charge rate on all cash draws made to the Borrower according to the repayment
schedule, which will be prepared by the Department and confirmed Uy ltre
Borrower following initiation of operation of the facility. The repayment schedule
for the actual amount of loan payments made to the Borrower will provide that:

(a) The Borrower will pay a finance charge of 1.s percent on each
disbursement. Accrual of tl:e finance charge will begin one year after the date of
the first disbursement to the Borrower.

(b) The loan amount will be paid back within 20 years following initiation
of operation of the facility. Repayment of the loan will be made with either equal
annual principal pa¡rments plus the fìnance charge or equal annual total
payments including the finance charge. other repayment methods may be
negotiated with the Department.

(c) The fïrst installment payment will be due within one year following
substantial completion and initiation of operation of the facility.

Section 4.3. The Borrower assures the Department that the Borrower has not
pledged revenues for the repayment of its loan that have been previously pledged
or encumbered, unless specifically set forth in the Borrower,s approved
application. The pledged revenues for repayment of the loan and each separate
source of revenue are specifically identified and described in the Borrower,s
submitted application.

Scction 4.4. In the event that any of the revenues pledged by the Borrower for
the repayment of its loan are encumbered by a lien of any prior outstanding debt,
the Borrower will furnish the Department with legal assurance that the excess of
such prior encumbered revenues are legally available for pledging to the Alaska
Clean Water Fund.

i'rl.l,'t¡:ii I l



City of North Fole
ACIiVF # 61t3021
Loan AgreernenL

Section 4.5. The Borrower agrees that if pledged revenues are insufficient to
meet any loan payment to the Department when due, the Borrower will pay the
deficiency in its loan payment from any legally available funds accruing to or in
the possession of the Borrower. Repayment of the loan which is the subject of this
loan agreement shall not be a direct and general obligation of the Borrower.

Section 4.6. If a repayment is received by the Department more than 30 days
after it is due, the Borrower will be subject to a late charge in accordance with the
following conditions.

If the Borrower is in good standing with the Department and has no late
payments on any loans within the last five years:

(a) And a payment is more than two months late a !o/o charge will be
applied against the outstanding amount due.

(b) And a payment is more than three months late a 3o/o charge will be
applied against the outstanding amount due.

(c) And a payment is more than four months late a5%o charge will be
applied against the outstanding amount due,

If the Borrower has had late loan payments in the last five years.

(a) And a payment is more than one month late a 1o/o charge will be
applied against the outstanding amount due,

(b) And a payment is more than two months late a 3%o charge will be
applied against the outstanding amount due.

(c) And a payment is more than three months late a 5%o dnarge will be
applied against the outstanding amount due.

Additionally, interest on the unpaid balance will continue to accrue at the
contract interest rate and must be paid in addition to the late charge. Payments
in arrears when the 5% late charge is assessed will be referred to the Department
of Law for collection.

Section 4.7. The Borrower agrees that it will separately account for all monies
received from the Alaska Clean Water Fund and will maintain project accounts in
accordance with generally accepted governmental accounting principles.



(lity of Norttr Pole
ACWF # 6)313021
Lorr n ,Agi-e 'crnclrt

Section 4.8. The provisions of AS 37.15.575 relating to state aid interception
apply to the loan made under this agreement.

SECTIOIÍ V . AT'DIT

Section 5.1. The Borrower agrees to submit a financial report for the design
portion of the project for Departmental approval within one year after completion
of the plans and specifications.

Section 5.2. Financial assistance received under this loan agreement is
considered federal assistance and is to be included when determining the
threshold amount for a Federal Single Audit. However, fînancial assistance
received under this loan agreement is not subject to State Single Audit.

SECÎION VI . MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

Section 6.1. Any disbursement or repayment made under this Agreement by the
Department or Borrower shall be delivered by electronic transfer, registered or
certified mail, courier service or delivered personally.

(a) Any repayment addressed to the Department will be sent or delivered
personally to:

Alaska Department of Environmental Conservation
Division of Water - Municipal Grants & Loans program
ATTN: MAT
410 Tùl/illoughby Avenue, Suite 3O3
P.O. Box 111800
Juneau, Alaska 9981 1- 180O

(b) Any disbursement addressed to the Borrower will be sent to or
delivered personally to:

City of North Pole
125 Snowman Lane
North Pole, AK 99705

Section 6.2. Disbursement Requests and Progress Status Reports shall be
sub-mitted to the Department via the Division of Water's Online Apptication
System (OASys). OASys may be accessed at the following link:

httpi/ ldec. alaska. eov /water / MuniGrantsloans / index. htm



¿,:i ty oj' lTorl.l.r Poir:
' Af)\ i fi' ,lt tri3lt}').1

Loi.itr A¡¡r,tcrncnI

At minimum, Disbursement Requests must be submitted to the Department
quarterþ, but no more frequently than once per month.

Progress Status Reports must be submitted to the Department on a quarterly
basis, within 3O days following the end of each quarter.

Should the Borrower fail to submit quarterþ progress status reports as
required, the Department will not process subsequent pay requests until all
outstanding quarterþ report(s) are received.

Section 6.3. Departmental approvals required by this Agreement will not be
unieasonably withheld.

Section 6.4. This Agreement is made subject to, and conditional upon, the
availability of funds.

Sectlon 6.5. This Agreement is effective as of the date set forth above and
continues in full force and effect until the final day of the Contract Period.

Sectlon 6.6. This Agreement is binding upon the parties specified below, and
to any person, office, or board succeeding either of the parties. This Agreement
may not be assigned by the Borrower without written consent of the
Department.

Section 6.7. The Department may cancel all or any part of this agreement if:

(a) Any representation or other statement made by the Borrower to the
Department in connection with its application for a loan from the Alaska Clean
Water Fund is incorrect or incomplete in any material respect;

(b) The Borrower has violated commitments made by it in its Approved
Application and supporting documents, has not adhered to the regulations of
the Alaska Clean Water Fund (1S AAC 76), has violated any of the terms of this
Loan Agreement; or

(c) The financial position of the Borrower has, in the opinion of the
Department, suffered a materially adverse change.

section 6.t. No portion of this loa¡r amount may be used for lobbying or
propaganda purposes as prohibited by 18 U.S.C. Section 1913 or Section
6O7(a) of Public Laut 96-74.

l'¡r:-'rr') i'J i j



CiLv of North Pole
ACWF # 633021
Loan Agreerr:ent.

section 6.9. Nothing in this agreement, whether or not accepted, may be
deemed to constitute a contractual obligation on the part of the Department
until the Agreement is signed by all parties.

ALASI(A DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL CONSERVATION

"fu/t^,/Lil
By:

Michelle Hale, Director
Division of Water

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
STATE OF ALASI(A

First Judlclal District

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this day of

2017

By

Notary Public, State of Alaska

My commission expires:

CITY OF NORTH POLE

ACKNOWLEDGEMENl
STATT OF ALASKA

First Judicial Distrlct

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this day of

2017

!).¡r,,. | {j r;l i l



Cily of Ï{orllr Polr:

^A.CWþ' # ôÍt3021
l,cl¿ìfr ÄgrcemertL

Notary Public, State of Alaska

My commission expires:

ALASKA DEPARTMENÎ OF TNTIIRONMENTAL CONSERVAîIOil

By:
Nikolay Barkov, Finance Officer
Division of Administrative Services

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
SlAlE OF ALASIIA

Thtrd Judlclel Distrlct

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this day of

2017

Notary hrblic, State of Alaska

My commission expires:



L

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

LL

L2

13

L4

L5

16

t7
18

L9

20

2t
22

23

24

25

26
27

28
29

30

31_

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40
4T

42

Sponsored by: Mayor Bryce J. Ward
Introduced: May 15, 2017

Possible adoption: June 5,2017

CITY OF NORTH POLE

ORDINANCE 17-15

AN ORDINANCE TO ALLOW MULTIPLE WATER METERS AT PROPERTIES
WITH MULTIPLE OCCUPANCIES AND TO ALLOW A SINGLE CUSTOMER
SEWER SERVICE LINE AT PROPERTIES WITH MULTIPLE OCCUPANCIES

WHEREAS, the City of North Pole created its utility system to provide residents with the
sanitation, protection and convenience afforded by a municipal utility system and to promote an
improved community environment; and

WHEREAS, changes to the public services practices and policies is a continually changing
requirement; and

WHEREAS, the City of North Pole Municipal Code should be amended to conform to the
requirements of the City and its residents.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of North Pole:

Section 1. This ordinance is of a general and permanent nature and shall be codified.

Section 2. Title 13, Chapter 13.16 V/ater Services, Section 13.16.030 Multiple Water Services
and Chapter 13.20 Sewer Services, Section 13.20.020 Policies and conditions of service shall be
amended in the North Pole Code of Ordinances as follows in the attached revised sections.

Section 3. Effective date.
This ordinance shall become effective immediately upon passage.

PASSED AND APPROVED by a duly constituted quorum of the North Pole City Council this
5th day of June, 2017.

Bryce J.'Ward, Mayor

ATTEST

Kathryn M. Vy'eber, MMC
North Pole City Clerk PASSED/FAILED

Yes:

No:

Absent:



I
2
J

4
5

6
7

8

9
l0
11

t2
t3
t4
l5
t6
I7
18

t9
20
2t
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31

32
JJ

34
35
36
37
38
39
40
4I
42

Multiple'Water Services

13.16.030 Multiple water services.

In buildings occupied by two or more water customers, the water service to each customer must
be individually metered and adequately valved to permit disconnection of any customer without
intemrpting service to the other customers in the building. Existing services that do not meet
these requirements will be disconnected, unless the owner of the building has done one of the

following:

A. Entered into a written contract with a+appreved a contractor
licensed by the state to modifu the water service to meet these the following requirements.:-er

1. All plumbing connections installed to provide multiple meteringfrom a single master
service line must comply with the City of North Pole Service Line Requirements for
Water and Wastewater Commercial and Residential Structures and the provisions of the
latest version of the Uniform Plumbing Code and amendments adopted by the City.

2. The property owner must submit a scaled drawingwith a scale of no less than I inch
equals I þot in the drawing of the water meter installation.

3. The property owner must install plumbing such that each dwelling unit receiving water
services is plumbed separately.

4. Adequate space must be provided between individual water meters such thqt they can be

manually read by the Utility qnd there is adequate space to repair or replace a meter.
5. The water meters must be in a heated secure location readily accessible by the Utility.
6. The Utility sholl inspect any multi-metered dwelling's utility connections before

authorizing the installation of water meters and before providing water service to the
dwelling.

7. Tampering with water meters is a violation of North Pole Municipal Code and violation
of these provisions may result in termination of individuals'woter service or termination' 
ofwater service to the entire dwelling at the sole discretion of the Utility. See sections
13.08.070 A and B; 13.12.060; 13.12.150; 13.16.060 A.

8. The service line from the water main to the water meters is the sole responsibility of the
property ownen (See 13.16.020 D.)

B. Has contracted to be the sole customer for the water service and has had a master water
meter installed to meter all water used in the building; or

C. Has entered into an agreement with the North Pole Utility to guarantee payment of all water
service into the building.

(Ord. 16-16 $2,2016; Ord. 12-03 $2,2012; Ord.82-8 $ 3.C, 1982)



1

2

J

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

t2
13

t4
l5
t6
t7
18

I9
20

2l
22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

JJ

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

Multiple Sewer Services

13.20.020 Policies and conditions of service

S. Building Sewers. All building sewers shall be installed in complete accordance with City of
North Pole Service Line Requirements for Water and Wastewater Commercial and Residential
Structures andprovisions of the latest version of the Uniform Plumbing Code and amendments

adopted by the City.

T. Service Connection.

7. Individual Sewer Services. Independent and separate sewer services shall be provided

on each lot for all buildings within the City or that are to be ultimately connected to the

municipal sewer system. Common sewer services are expressly prohibited in zero lot
line and townhouse developments. Condominiums or planned unit developments with
specific association agreements subject to the City's review and satisfaction may be

allowed as exceptions. The customer provides and pays for all expenses required to

install the necessary sewer pipe, fittings, cleanouts, manholes and pump stations

required to connect the property to the City sewer at the point of connection designated

by the Utility Supervisor or his designated representative.

a. Exceptions where the Utility has approved a single customer service line to serve

multiple utility customers at a single property, as in duplex or multiplex properties,

- the property owner shall be responsible þr the customer sewer line from the sewer

main to the property. (See 13.20.020, U.)

10. Installation of sewer stub line and sewer connections:

a. All sewer stub lines shall be installed and mains tapped by a contractor licensed by

the State. As a prerequisite to commencing any work on the Utility, the contractor

shall furnish:

i. Contractor's license (State of Alaska);
ii. Proof of workman's compensation insurance, if required by law;

iii. A bond in the amount of $5,000 (five thousand dollars);

iv. Other proof of capability to perform such work as required by the Director of
City Services.

b. The party or parties installing the building sewer line portion outside the street

right-of-way need not meet the requirements of a bonded contractor as outlined
above, but they shall make the City aware of their capabilities to perform such

work. Those installing this portion of the water sewer service line will, however, be

required to meet the same material and workmanship qualifications outlined in the

City of North Pole standard of construction specifications.



1 U. Maintenance and Repair. {Jsers The property owner shall be responsible for all maintenance

2 and repair of their service line, connection cleanouts, backwater valves, and shall further be

3 responsible for the removal of soft plugs or debris which accumulate in their service line or
4 connection as well as frozen service line and connections. Users The property owner shall ensure

5 that all-weather access is available to sewer system personnel for cleanouts, valves, control
6 manholes and pretreatment facilities located on user property.



1

2
J

4
5

6
7

8

9

10

l1
t2
13

T4

15

t6
l7
18

I9
20
2T

22
z)
24

26
27
28
29
30
31

32

-t -t

34
35

36
37
38
39
40
4t
42
43
44
45
46
47

25

Sponsored by: Mayor Ward
Intorduced & Advanced: May 75,2077

Possible Adoption: June 5,2077

CITY OF NORTH POLE
ORDINANCN fi.ß

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NORTH POLE, ALASKA TO
AMEND THE 2017 JAG/BYRNE GRANT TO PURCHASE AN

UNDERCOVER VEHICLE FOR USE BY NPPD

\ilHEREAS, the State of Alaska has modified the2017 JAG/BYRNE Grant to assist the City of
North Pole with the purchase of an undercover vehicle; and

\ilHEREAS, the City of North Pole needs to replace the current vehicle in order to maintain
undercover operations in the State V/ide Drug enforcement unit; and

WHEREAS, the current vehicle being used in the unit has reached its end of use in the unit and
will be moved to unmarked status inside the police department; and

WHEREAS, the funds received from the JAG/BYRNE grant will be $13,344.00 which is an
increase of $937.00; and

WHEREAS, unspent funds in the Personnel and Fringe Benefits will be moved to the
Equipment Expense line to cover the above costs placing the Personnel line item funding to
$54,585.00 and the Fringe Benefit line item to $40,958.00; and

WHEREAS, the overall grant award will now total $108,887.00.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of North Pole that it
approves the transfer of funds from Personnel and Fringe benefits to Equipment Expense in the
2017 JagIBYRNE grant and accepts a grant increase of $ $937.00 and allows the purchase of a
new undercover vehicle at a cost of $13,344.00.

Section 1. This ordinance is of a general nature and shall not be codified.

Section. Effective date.
This ordinance shall become effective immediately upon passage.

PASSED AND APPROVED by a duly constituted quorum of the North Pole City Council this
5thdayofJune,2017.

Bryce J. Ward, Mayor

ATTEST:

Kathryn M. 'Weber, MMC
North Pole City Clerk PASSED/FAILED

Yes:
No:
Absent:



ALASKA DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY

DIVISION OF ADMI NISTRATIVE SERVICES

GRANTS SECTION

Grantee Name: Citv of North Pole
Project Name: Multi-iurisdictional Task Force
Program Name: Justice Assistance Grant (JAG)

Grant Award Number: 17-100

GRANT AGREEMENT ADDENDUM ONE

Property Standards

The Department of Justice expects recipients and sub recipients of Federal funds to use good judgement
when purchasing, managing, and disposing of property paid for by Federal funds. lf a recipient or sub
recipient uses award funds to purchase new property when suitable property is already available within
the relevant organization, this use will be considered an unnecessary expenditure.

Special rules set outin 42. U.S.C. 3789 (a provision of the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of
1968), apply to the ownership, use and disposition of equipment and supplies purchased with Edward
Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program (Byrne JAG) funds awarded by the Bureau of Justice
Assistance (BJA).

Title to all equipment and supplies purchased with Bryne JAG funds vest in the criminaljustice
agency or non-profit organization that purchased the property, if it certifies to the State Office
that it will use the property for criminaljustice purposes,

lf such certification is not made, title to the property shall vest in the State Office, which shall
seek to have the property used for criminal justice purposes elsewhere in the State prior to
using or disposing of it in any other manner.
When equipment is no longer needed for criminaljustice purposes, a State should dispose of
equipment (for both the State and sub recipients) in accordance with State procedures, with no
further obligation to the award agency.

Property Definition
Property includes both 1) reolpropertywhich typically includes land and buildíngs; and 2) personal
property, which includes both a)

supplies; and b) intangible personol property, which includes things having no physical existence, like
trademarks, copy rights, and patents. (See definitions in 2 C.F.R 200.1)

Property Screening and Management Systems
Careful screening should take place before purchasing property to ensure that it is needed. An effective
property management system should be established and maintained to avoid incurring property
acquisition costs that are later disallowed by the awarding agency (e.g., acquiring unreasonable,
duplicative, or unnecessary property).

FFY16 JAG Agreement - Addendum One
City of North Pole
Grant Award: 17-1(X)

a

a

o

Page 1 of 2



Equipment Ownership
Title to equipment acquired under a Federal award will vest in the recipient or sub recipient's
organization. The legal right of ownership and conditions for use, management, and disposal of
equipment are set forth in 2 CFR 200.373.

Use of Equipment
Recipients and sub recipients must use equipment acquired under an award for the authorized program

or project purposes for which it was acquired as long as needed, whether or not the project or program

continues to be supported by Federal funds. When no longer needed for the original program or project,

the equipment may be used in other activities currently or previously supported by a Federal agency.

Management of Equipment
Recipients and sub recipients must use procedures for managing equipment (including replacement
equipment) acquired in whole or in part under a Federal award, until disposition takes place, that, at a

minimum meet the following requirements:
Propertv records - maintain property records that include description of property, serial number or
other identification number, source of property (federal program name and award number),
ldentification of the title holder, Acquisition date, cost of the property, percentage of Federal
participation in the cost of the property, location of the property, use and condition of the property,
disposition data, include the date of disposal and sale price.

lnventorv - a physical inventory must be taken of the property and reconcile the results with the
property records at least once every two years.

Maintenance - establish and use adequate maintenance procedures to keep the property in good

condition.
Control Svstem - have a control system in place with adequate safeguards to prevent loss, damage, and

theft.
Proper sales procedures - if authorized or required to sell the property, the recipient or sub recipient
must establish proper sales procedures to ensure the highest possible return.

The City of North Pole hereby certifies thot it will use the property purchosed with Edward Byrne
MemoriolJustice Assistonce Gront (lAG) Program funds for criminol justice purposes as outlined above
ond per the DOJ Grants Finonciql Guide at https://oip.qov/finoncialquide/DOJ/index.htm. and will submit
on equipment/inventory log provided by the Alosko Deportment of Public Sofety at the end of eoch grant
period.

Bryce Ward, Mayor
Authorized Signer

DATE

FFY16 JAG Agreement - Addendum One
City of North Pole

Grant Award: 17-1ü)

Page 2 of 2



STATE OF ALASKA
Department of Public Safety

Division of Administrative Services

GRANT AMENDMENT

DEPARTMENT
NAME: City of North Pole

ADDRESS: 125 Snowman Lane
CIW: North Pole AK 99705

NAMEI Department of Public Safety
ADDRESS: 57OO E. Tudor Road

GITY: AK 99502
CONTACT; Ghad Rathbun

T|TLET L¡eutenant
CoNTAGT: AprilCarlson e

5.8't1TITLET Grants Manager
PHoNE: 907-488-6902
EMATL: crathbun@northpolepolice,org

PHoNE: 907-269-5082

EMATL: aoril.carlson@alaska.oov
INFORMATION

PROJECT ],IAIvIEI

PROGRA¡,I NATIIE:

FEDERAL AWARD:

AWARO Ai¡IOUNT:

PROJECT START:

Multi-jurisdictional Task Force

Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant (JAG)

2016-DJ-BX-0968 - $51,496 / 2015-DJ-BX{5ô0 - $57,391
$108,887.00 AilEND E: Dept Slgnatur€

GRANTEE DUNS:

GRANTAWARD:

PROGRATI CFDA:

REOUIRED MATCH:

015680010

17-100

16.738
No

YesF 2017 PROJECTEND: Dêcember3'1,2017 R|SK

BUDGET AMENDMENT

Gost
Cateqorv

Origlnal
AMOUNT

Amend
One

Amend
Two

Amend
Three

Amended
Budget

Personnel

Fringe

EguiÞment

62,207.00

45,743,00

(7,622.00)

(4,785.00)

13,344.00

54,58s.00

40,958.00

I 344.00
TOTAL $ 107,950.00 $ 937.00 $ $ $ 108,887"00

TOTAL $ 107,950.00 $ 937.00 $ 10E,E87.00

Fundinq Sourcc: OrlsinalBudEet Amendments TotalProlect
201ô-DJ.BX-0968 $ 50,559.00 $ 937.00 $ s1,496.00

2015-DJ-BX-0560 $ 57,391.00 $ $ 57,391.00

AM ENDM ENT JUSTIFICATION

A¡nend Q¡s; The original budget funded 11 months of personnel/fringe and OT; tne award was not slgned until
02122/17 pendlng clty councilapproval reducing the project period to 10 months. A vehlcle will be
purchased for the drug enforccmcnt offìcer to conduct undercover operations with the excess
personnel/fringe and OT; and an increase of $937 to the total award amounl.

GRANTEE AUTHORIZATION DEPARTM ENT AUTHORIZATION
NAME/TITLE:

Bryce Ward, Mayor

NAME/TITLE;

Colonel James E. Cockrell, Director
SIGNATURE: SIGNATURE:

DATE: DATE:

FFYI6 JAq NPole Grant.Amend 1.xl¡xAmend I
REV: 05/13



List oach andütle availableifnamaby employee salarymonthly amount,
monthsof andI toof time be todevoted thepercentage forprojed, paidCompensataion employees

ln mustactivities consistentbegrânt thatwith for similar work thowlthinpaid izationorganappllcant

PERSONNEL BUDGET DETAIL

Personnel/Fringe

SUBTOT

TOTAL $ t0

POSITION TITLE/NAME
MONTHLY
AMOUNT QTY % TIME TOTAL

Officer Bruce Milne - Sqlary 965,499/year $ 5,458.52 10 100% $ 54.585.20

$

$

$

$ 54,585,20

are for the personnel listed above
on overtime hours are limlted to F

and only for thE percentage of time devoted to the proJect, Fringe
lCA, Workman's Gompensation, and Unemployment Compensation

should be based on- Fringe costs or an

POSITION TITLE/NAME
MONTHLY
AMOUNT QTY o/o TIME TOTAL

PERS: Salary $65,499 x 22o/o = $14,409.78 $ 1,200.82 10 1000/o $ 12,008.20

Medicare: Salary $65,499 x6.2o/o = $4060.94 $ 338,41 10 100% $ 3,384.10

Workers Comp: Salary $65,499 x 5.46% = $3,576,25 s 298.02 10 100o/o $ 2,980.20

Health Care: 2080 hrs/yr x $13.03/hr = $27,102.40 $ 2,258.54 10 100% $ 22,585.40

$

$ 40,957,90

Page I of 6



are beto rsequipment tangible
usefula ofllfe thanmore onehaving vehlclee(e,gyear, radios, etc.I cam€ras.computers, )

EQUIPMENT BUDGET DETAIL

TOTAL $ 1

DESCRIPTION AMOUNT QW TOTAL

vehicle for e $ 13,344.00 1 $ 13,344.00

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

s

$

$

$

Page 5 of 6



BUDGET SUIIJ|IMARY

BUDGEI CATEGORY
AMOUNT

Personnel

Fringe
$ 40,957.90

Travel
$

Gontractual
$

Supplies
$

ui
1 344.00

Totat $ 109,997.10
OriginalBudget

Anend I
$

$

t

Page 6 of 6



Fiscal Year: 2017

Abbreviated Title:

Originator/ Sponsor Name

Does the Ordinance Have a multiyear fïscal impact?

Does the Ordinance add positions beyond the Budget?

City of North Pole, Alaska

Fiscal Note

Ordinance#: 17 -16

Amend 2017 JAGlByrne Grant to Purchase Vehicle for use by NPPD

Chief Dutra Dare: May 9,2017

Yes No

Yes No

If yes, how many position 2 If yes, what type of Position?
F- Full Time, P- Part time, T- Temporary

Financial Detail

SUMMARY: @riefly describe the proposed alterations to the budget and why
they are needed)

Amending 2017 JaglByrne grant to purchase a vehicle for use by NPPD

Prepared by . Mayor Ward Date: 
MaY 9' 2017

City Accountant Approval. Tricia Fogarty Date: 
MaY 9' 2017

FUND Account I)escription Account Number Debits Credits
Jag -1 1 Wages FullTime 1 1-10-1-001 5,456.00

Jag -11 Benefits I 1 -l 0-1 -003 1,540.00

Jag -1 1 PERS 11-10-1-OO4 1,225.00

Jag -1 1 Overtime Regular 11-10-1-OO7 2,166.00

Jag -1 1 Health lnsurance 11-10-1-013 2020.00

Jag -1 1 Jag Grant Revenue I 1-00-3-900 937.00

Jag -1 1 Misc Expenses 1 1-10-9-920 13,344.00

Total 13,344.00 13,344.00

NOTE- Fiscal Notes are amendments to the budget, once approved


	AG-05-15-17
	5-15-17_City NP Strategic Plan_Council Work Session Agenda
	Mayors Communications
	Email to NPPD
	John Weaver Skatboard Park Contest
	Immunization Clinic
	2017 Rummage and Trunk Flyer

	Proclamations
	Proclamation - NPHS Student of the Month - Makayla Crawford
	Proclamation - Youth Suicide- Out of the Darkness Campaign in the Interior
	Proclamation - NPHS Student of the Month - Kimberly Williams

	Ord 17-12 Amending Title 15, Building and Construction
	Ord 17-12 Chapter 15-12
	Ord 17-12 Chapter 15-20
	Ord 17-12 Chapter 15-28
	Ord 17-12 Chapter 15-36
	Ord 17-12 Chapter 15-42
	Ord 17-12 Chapter 15-82

	CNP Developer Agreement Badger Properties LLC
	Analysis of Ditch Retention of Storm Runoff for the proposed Peridot Business Park
	Design Guidelines for Streets and Drainage April 2006
	Peridot Business Park Typical Road Section 5-10-2017
	PeridotBusinessPark_Est_051017

	Disposal of NPFD Training Trailer
	CNP Healthcare Renewal 2017
	Ord 17-13 Stormwater modification recommendation
	Ord 17-13, An Ordinance to amend codes associated with the City of North Pole's storm water management Ordinances Chapter 12.24 Illicity Discharge Detection and Elimination; Chapter 15.66 Consturction Site Storm Water Runoff; and Chapter 15.74 Post-Construction Storm Water Management

	Ord 17-14 To incure $303,000 debt loan from ADEC for constucting an extnesion to wwtp dischare sewer main
	Ord 17-15 To allow multiple water meters with multiple occupanices and single customer sewer service line at properties with multiple occupancies
	Ord 17-16 Amending the 2017 JAG-BYRNE grant to purchase undercover vehicle for NPPD



